
 

Page 1 of 503 

 

AGENDA 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
MONDAY, AUGUST 05, 2019 

7:00 PM AT CITY HALL 

 

 
 
Call to Order by the Mayor 

Roll Call 

Approval of Minutes 

1. Regular Meeting of July 15, 2019. 

Administration of Oath to Public Safety Officers and Reserve Officers 

Agenda Revisions 

Special Order of Business 

2. Public hearing on proposed plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the 2019 
Sidewalk Assessment Project, Zone 2. 
 
a) Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published July 19, 2019) 
 
b) Written communications filed with the City Clerk. 
 
c) Oral comments. 

3. Resolution approving and adopting the plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for 
the 2019 Sidewalk Assessment Project, Zone 2. 

4. Public hearing on the proposed vacation of a 15-foot wide pedestrian trail access easement along 
the southern border of the Western Home Campus between South Main Street and Prairie Parkway. 

a) Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published July 19, 2019) 
 
b) Written communications filed with the City Clerk. 
 
c) Oral comments. 

5. Resolution approving and authorizing the vacation of a 15-foot wide pedestrian trail access 
easement located along the southern border of the Western Home Campus between South Main 
Street and Prairie Parkway. 

6. Public hearing on a proposed ordinance granting a partial property tax exemption to ACOH, LLC for 
construction of an industrial use manufacturing and office facility at 6601 Development Drive. 
 
a) Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published July 19, 2019) 
 
b) Written communications filed with the City Clerk. 
 
c) Oral comments. 

1



 

Page 2 of 503 

7. Pass an ordinance granting a partial property tax exemption to ACOH, LLC for construction of an 
industrial use manufacturing and office facility at 6601 Development Drive, upon its first 
consideration. 

8. Public hearing on a proposed ordinance granting a partial property tax exemption to Buckeye 
Corrugated, Inc. for construction of an industrial use warehouse and production facility at 2900 
Capital Way. 
 
a) Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published July 19, 2019) 
 
b) Written communications filed with the City Clerk. 
 
c) Oral comments. 

9. Pass an ordinance granting a partial property tax exemption to Buckeye Corrugated, Inc. for 
construction of an industrial use warehouse and production facility at 2900 Capital Way, upon its first 
consideration. 

10. Public hearing on a proposed ordinance granting a partial property tax exemption to FN Investors, 
LLC for construction of an industrial use lab and office facility at 3019 Venture Way. 
 
a) Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published July 19, 2019) 
 
b) Written communications filed with the City Clerk. 
 
c) Oral comments. 

11. Pass an ordinance granting a partial property tax exemption to FN Investors, LLC for construction of 
an industrial use lab and office facility at 3019 Venture Way, upon its first consideration. 

Old Business 

12. Pass Ordinance #2949, amending certain sections of the Code of Ordinances relative to establishing 
regulations for events on public property, upon its third & final consideration. 

New Business 

Consent Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by voice vote on a single motion without separate 
discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered separately.) 

13. Receive and file the resignation of Evan Renfro as a member of the Library Board of Trustees. 

14. Receive and file the Committee of the Whole minutes of July 15, 2019 relative to the following items: 
a) River Gauge Update.  
b) Snow removal requests on sidewalks/trails. 
c) Bills & Payroll. 

15. Receive and file the report of the July 22, 2019 Joint Meeting of the City Council & the Utilities Board 
of Trustees. 

16. Receive and file Departmental Monthly Reports of June 2019. 

17. Approve the request of Community Main Street for temporary signs for the Downtown Shuttle. 

18. Approve the following special event related requests: 
a) Street closures, Fondo Cedar Valley Bike Ride, August 17, 2019. 
b) Parking variance, Campus Street, August 19-23, 2019. 
c) Street closure, West 5th Street, August 31, 2019. 
d) Scott Sterrett Memorial Half Marathon, September 7, 2019. 
e) Closure of a portion of Municipal Lot G, Pear Fair & Oktoberfest, September 27-30, 2019. 

2



 

Page 3 of 503 

19. Approve the following applications for cigarette/tobacco/nicotine/vapor permits:  
a) Dollar General Store, 1922 Valley Park Drive. 
b) Fleet Farm, 400 West Ridgeway Avenue. 
c) Fleet Farm Fuel, 108 West Ridgeway Avenue. 

20. Approve the following applications for beer permits and liquor licenses:  
a) Vintage Iron, 104 Main Street, Class B native wine - renewal. 
b) The Black Hawk Hotel/Bar Winslow/Farm Shed, 115-119 Main Street, Class B liquor, Class B 
wine & outdoor service - renewal. 
c) Octopus, 2205 College Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal. 
d) The Library, 2222 College Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal. 
e) The Other Place, 4214 University Avenue, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal. 
f) Texas Roadhouse, 5715 University Avenue, Class C liquor - change in ownership. 
g) The Pump Haus Pub & Grill, 311 Main Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - sidewalk café. 
h) Community Main Street (FondoFest), Overman Park, Special Class C liquor & outdoor service - 5-
day permit. 

Resolution Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by roll call vote on a single motion without 
separate discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered 
separately.) 

21. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Easement Agreement, in conjunction with a 
sidewalk café at 311 Main Street. 

22. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement in Support of the Beau's Beautiful 
Blessings, Inc. relative to an FY20 Community Betterment Grant. 

23. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement in Support of the Cedar Falls 
Community Theatre, Inc. relative to an FY20 Community Betterment Grant. 

24. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement in Support of the Cedar Falls 
Historical Society relative to an FY20 Community Betterment Grant. 

25. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement in Support of the HusomeStrong 
Foundation relative to an FY20 Community Betterment Grant. 

26. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement in Support of the Volunteer Center 
of the Cedar Valley relative to an FY20 Community Betterment Grant. 

27. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement in Support of the Waterloo-Cedar 
Falls Symphony Orchestra Association relative to an FY20 Community Betterment Grant. 

28. Resolution approving a Claim for Non-Residential Relocation Assistance Reimbursement, in 
conjunction with the West 1st Street Reconstruction Project. 

29. Resolution approving and accepting the contract and bond of K. Cunningham Construction 
Company, Inc. for the South Main Street Parking Lot Project. 

30. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Contract for Completion of Improvements with 
Western Home Independent Living Services, Inc. and approving an Escrow Agreement relative to 
the final plat of Western Home Communities Ninth Addition. 

31. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Contract for Completion of Improvements with 
BJW Holdings, LLC relative to the final plat of Park Ridge Estates. 

32. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of Supplemental Agreement No. 9 to the 
Professional Service Agreement with Snyder & Associates, Inc. for 2019 Engineering Services 
relative to the Northern Cedar Falls Drainage Study. 

33. Resolution receiving and filing the bids, and approving and accepting the low bid of Minturn, Inc., in 
the amount of $186,793.00, for the 2019 Bridge Maintenance Project. 

3



 

Page 4 of 503 

34. Resolution approving the application for Traffic Safety Improvement Program (TSIP) Funding with 
the Iowa Department of Transportation relative to the Cedar Heights Drive and Greenhill Road 
Intersection Improvements. 

35. Resolution approving and adopting revised Rules of Procedure for the Board of Adjustment. 

36. Resolution approving the final plat of Park Ridge Estates Subdivision. 

37. Resolution approving the final plat of Western Home Communities Ninth Addition. 

38. Resolution approving the final plat of Greenhill Village Townhomes II, Phase I. 

39. Resolution approving a Mixed Use Residential Zoning District site plan for a multi-unit residential 
development on Lot 1, Greenhill Village Townhomes II, Phase I. (contingent upon approval of final 
plat) 

40. Resolution approving and accepting the low bid, and approving and authorizing execution of a 
Rehabilitation Contract with Brothers Construction Enterprises, Inc., relative to a HOME housing 
rehabilitation project. 

41. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Assignment and Assumption Agreement by 
CV Properties 2, LLC to CV Commercial 2, LLC relative to a private development agreement for 
development of property located at 917 West 23rd Street. 

42. Resolution approving a revised Highway 20 Commercial Corridor Overlay Zoning District site plan for 
construction of a restaurant and convenience store/gas station/automobile service station to be 
located on Lot 2 of Gateway Business Park at Cedar Falls I. 

43. Resolution approving a PC-2, Planned Commercial Zoning District site plan for construction of a 
retail/professional office building at 918 Viking Road. 

44. Resolution approving and authorizing the expenditure of funds to order pavers to complete the brick 
pattern for Peter Melendy Park and East 2nd Street sidewalk at MU2. 

45. Resolution receiving and filing, and setting August 19, 2019 as the date of public hearing on, the 
proposed plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the 2019 Peter Melendy Park 
Renovation Project. 

46. Resolution setting August 19, 2019 as the date of public hearing to consider entering into a proposed 
Agreement for Private Development and to consider conveyance of certain city-owned real estate to 
Strickler Properties, L.C. 

Ordinances 

47. Pass an ordinance amending Ordinance No. 1923, 2122, 2461, 2696, 2785 and 2923, providing that 
general property taxes levied and collected each year on all property located within the amended 
Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Area, by and for the benefit of the State of 
Iowa, City of Cedar Falls, County of Black Hawk, Cedar Falls Community School District, Hudson 
Community School District, Dike-New Hartford Community School District and other taxing districts, 
be paid to a special fund for payment of principal and interest on loans, monies advanced to and 
indebtedness, including bonds issued or to be issued, incurred by the City in connection with 
Amendment No. 5 to the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Area, upon its first 
consideration. 

Allow Bills and Payroll 

48. Allow Bills and Payroll of August 5, 2019. 

City Council Referrals 

City Council Updates 

4



 

Page 5 of 503 

Public Forum. (Speakers will have one opportunity to speak for up to 5 minutes on topics germane to City 

business.) 

Adjournment 

  

5



CITY HALL 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, JULY 15, 2019 
REGULAR MEETING, CITY COUNCIL 

MAYOR JAMES P. BROWN PRESIDING 
  

The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, met in Regular Session, 
pursuant to law, the rules of said Council and prior notice given each member 
thereof, in the City Hall at Cedar Falls, Iowa, at 7:00 P.M. on the above date. 
Members present: Miller, deBuhr, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Absent: 
Kruse. 

 
52406 - It was moved by Darrah and seconded by deBuhr that the minutes of the Regular 

Meeting of July 1, 2019 be approved as presented and ordered of record. Motion 
carried unanimously. 

 
  Coach Kenton Swartley and four members of the Cedar Falls High School 

“Swartdogs” Robotics Team spoke about accomplishments and recent awards 
received. 

 
  Public Safety Services Director Olson provided an introduction and Mayor Brown 

proceeded with the Administration of Oath to new Public Safety Officer Lucas 
Schmidt. 

 
52407 - Mayor Brown announced that in accordance with the public notice of July 8, 

2019, this was the time and place for a public hearing on the proposed plans, 
specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the 2019 Bridge 
Maintenance Project. It was then moved by Green and seconded by Miller that 
the proof of publication of notice of hearing be received and placed on file. 
Motion carried unanimously. 

 
52408 - The Mayor then asked if there were any written communications filed to the 

proposed plans, etc. Upon being advised that there were no written 
communications on file, the Mayor then called for oral comments. Public Works 
Director Schrage provided brief comments about the proposed plans, etc. There 
being no one else present wishing to speak about the proposed plans, etc., the 
Mayor declared the hearing closed and passed to the next order of business. 

 
52409 -  It was moved by Blanford and seconded by Wieland that Resolution #21,611, 

approving and adopting the plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of 
cost for the 2019 Bridge Maintenance Project, be adopted. Following due 
consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon 
call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, 
Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then 
declared Resolution #21,611 duly passed and adopted. 

 
52410 -  It was moved by Darrah and seconded by Miller that Ordinance #2947, amending 

Section 26-118 of the Code of Ordinances by removing property located at 2600 
Grove Street from the R-3, Multiple Residence District, and placing the same in 
the C-2, Commercial District, be passed upon its third and final consideration. 
Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the 
motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. 

6

ITEM  1.



 
 

 

- 2 - 

 

Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion 
carried. The Mayor then declared Ordinance #2947 duly passed and adopted. 

 
52411 -     It was moved by Wieland and seconded by Darrah that Ordinance #2949, 

amending certain sections of the Code of Ordinances relative to establishing 
regulations for events on public property, be passed upon its second 
consideration. Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the 
question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. 
Nay: None. Motion carried. 

 
52412 - It was moved by Miller and seconded by Darrah that the following items and 

recommendations on the Consent Calendar be received, filed and approved: 
 
 Receive and file the resignation of Deb Giarusso as a member of the Planning & 

Zoning Commission. 
 
 Approve the following special event related requests:  
 a) Street closures, Live to 9, July 19 & 26, 2019 (August 2 & 9, 2019 if inclement   
  weather).  
 b) Street closure, Hiawatha Road, August 3, 2019. 
 d) Street closures, ARTapalooza, September 7, 2019. 
 
 Approve the following applications for beer permits and liquor licenses:  
 a) Cypress Lounge, 209 A State Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - 

renewal.  
 b) Hy-Vee Market Grille, 6301 University Avenue, Class C liquor - renewal.  
 c) Walgreens, 2509 Whitetail Drive, Class E liquor - change in ownership.  
 d) Cedar Basin Jazz Festival & Live to 9, 200 Block of State Street and 100 Block 

of East 2nd Street, Special Class C liquor & outdoor service - permanent 
transfer.  

 e) Dollar General, 1922 Valley Park Drive, Class C Beer & Class B Wine - new. 
 

Motion carried unanimously. 
 
52413 - It was moved by Wieland and seconded by deBuhr to approve the request for a 

street closure on Bluebell Road, August 6, 2019. Following a comment by Penny 
Popp, 4805 South Main Street, the motion carried unanimously. 

 
52414 - It was moved by Miller and seconded by deBuhr that the following resolutions be 

introduced and adopted: 
 

Resolution #21,612, approving and authorizing execution of a Memorandum of 
Understanding with the Teamsters Union, Local No. 238 relative to earning 
compensatory time. 
 
Resolution #21,613, approving and authorizing execution of an Extension of an 
Agreement for Custodial Services with Fresh Start Cleaning, f/k/a T & C 
Cleaning, Inc., relative to custodial services for city buildings for a period of 
September 1, 2019 through August 31, 2020, and adding custodial services for 
the new Public Safety Facility. 

7

ITEM  1.



 
 

 

- 3 - 

 

 
Resolution #21,614, approving and authorizing the expenditure of funds for the 
purchase of a dump truck. 
 
Resolution #21,615, approving and authorizing execution of a Memorandum of 
Agreement with the Municipal Electric Utility of the City of Cedar Falls (CFU) 
relative to use of a dump truck. 
 
Resolution #21,616, approving three Claims for Non-Residential Relocation 
Assistance Reimbursement, in conjunction with the West 1st Street 
Reconstruction Project. 
 
Resolution #21,617, receiving and filing the bids, and approving and accepting 
the low bid of K. Cunningham Construction Company, Inc., in the amount of 
$135,515.36, for the South Main Street Parking Lot Project. 
 
Resolution #21,618, approving and authorizing execution of a Contract for 
Completion of Improvements with James V. Sands relative to the final plat of 
Sands Addition. 
 
Resolution #21,619, approving the opening of the Housing Choice Voucher 
(HCV) Program (a/k/a Section 8) Waiting List August 6, 2019 through January 
31, 2020, as recommended by the Housing Commission. 

  
Resolution #21,620, approving a Central Business District Overlay Zoning District 
site plan for façade improvements at 100 East 2nd Street, Suite 103. 
 
Resolution #21,621, approving the preliminary plat of Chrisbro Subdivision. 
 
Resolution #21,622, approving the final plat of Sands Addition. 
 
Resolution #21,623, approving and authorizing execution of a HOME Investment 
Partnership Program Consortium Cooperation Agreement with the City of 
Waterloo for FY2020-2022. 

 
Resolution #21,624, approving and authorizing execution of a Professional 
Service Agreement with Iowa Northland Regional Council of Governments 
(INRCOG) relative to the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) and 
HOME Programs. 
 
Resolution #21,625, receiving and filing, and setting August 5, 2019 as the date 
of public hearing on, the proposed plans, specifications, form of contract & 
estimate of cost for the 2019 Sidewalk Assessment Project, Zone 2. 
 
Resolution #21,626, setting August 5, 2019 as the date of public hearing on the 
proposed vacation of a 15-foot wide pedestrian trail access easement within 
Tract E Western Home Communities Seventh Addition, Lot 1 Western Home 
Communities Eighth Addition, Parcel G Western Home Communities Lot 17 
Minor Plat and Lot 2 Western Home Communities Fourth Addition. 
 
Resolution #21,627, setting August 5, 2019 as the date of public hearing on a 

8

ITEM  1.



 
 

 

- 4 - 

 

proposed ordinance granting a partial property tax exemption to ACOH, LLC for 
construction of an industrial use manufacturing and office facility at 6601 
Development Drive. 
 
Resolution #21,628, setting August 5, 2019 as the date of public hearing on a 
proposed ordinance granting a partial property tax exemption to Buckeye 
Corrugated, Inc. for construction of an industrial use warehouse and production 
facility at 2900 Capital Way. 

 
Resolution #21,629, setting August 5, 2019 as the date of public hearing on a 
proposed ordinance granting a partial property tax exemption to FN Investors, 
LLC for construction of an industrial use lab and office facility at 3019 Venture 
Way. 

 
Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the 
motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. 
Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion 
carried. The Mayor then declared Resolutions #21,612 through #21,629 duly 
passed and adopted. 

 
52415 -   It was moved by deBuhr and seconded by Blanford that Resolution #21,630, 

approving the recommendation of the City Administrator by appointing the 
Director of Public Works for the City of Cedar Falls, be adopted. City 
Administrator Gaines responded to questions by Councilmembers Green and 
Blanford. 

 
    It was then moved by Green that the motion be amended to reflect the effective 

date of July 15, 2019. The motion to amend failed due to lack of a second. 
 

 Following comments by Councilmembers deBuhr and Green, and Jim Skaine, 
2215 Clay Street, the Mayor then put the question on the original motion and 
upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted.  Aye: Miller, 
deBuhr, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland.  Nay: Green.  Motion carried. The Mayor then 
declared Resolution #21,630 duly passed and adopted. 

 
52416 - It was moved by Darrah and seconded by Miller that Resolution #21,631, 

approving the Cherrywood Acres Minor Plat, be adopted. Following a comment 
and question by Councilmember Wieland, the following individuals spoke in 
opposition to the Minor Plat: 

 John Runchey, 920 Columbine Drive 
 Susie Sigwarth, 1028 Cherrywood Drive 
 Mark Sigwarth, 1028 Cherrywood Drive 
 Chad Schoneman, 4307 Cherrywood Drive 
  
 The following individuals spoke in support of the Minor Plat: 
 Del Carpenter, 1005 Cherrywood Drive 
 Tony Runyan, 4114 High Street 
 Lea Runyan, 4114 High Street 
 
 Following questions by Councilmembers deBuhr, Wieland and Green, and 

responses by Planner III Sturch and Community Services Manager Howard, the 

9

ITEM  1.



 
 

 

- 5 - 

 

Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following 
named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Blanford, Darrah. Nay: 
Wieland, Green. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution #21,631 
duly passed and adopted.  

 
52417 - It was moved by Miller and seconded by Darrah that Resolution #21,632, 

approving the preliminary plat of The Terraces at West Glen, be adopted. 
Following concerns expressed by Cathy Showalter, 3109 Pendleton Drive, 
Carmen Mason, 3108 Waterbury Drive, and Susie Sigwarth, 1028 Cherrywood 
Drive, and response by Fehr Graham Civil Engineer Jon Biederman regarding 
water issues, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, 
the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Blanford, 
Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared 
Resolution #21,632 duly passed and adopted.  

 
52418 - It was moved by Darrah and seconded by Miller that Resolution #21,633, 

approving and authorizing execution of Supplemental Agreement No. 1A with 
Snyder & Associates, Inc. for 2019 Engineering Services relative to the Parkade 
Brick Replacement Project, be adopted. Following comments by Councilmember 
Darrah and Community Development Director Sheetz, the Mayor put the 
question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. 
Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution #21,633 duly 
passed and adopted.   

 
52419 -     It was moved by deBuhr and seconded by Green that the bills and payroll of July 

15, 2019 be allowed as presented, and that the Controller/City Treasurer be 
authorized to issue City checks in the proper amounts and on the proper funds in 
payment of the same. Upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers 
voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion 
carried.  

 
52420 - It was moved by Wieland and seconded by Green to refer to the Committee of 

the Whole review of parking trailers on residential streets. Following comments 
and questions by Councilmembers Blanford and Green, the motion to refer 
carried 4-2, with Miller and deBuhr voting nay. 

  
52421 - Public Works Director Ripplinger provided an update on crosswalk improvements 

being completed in the Aldrich Elementary School neighborhood.  
 
 Public Safety Services Director Olson announced that Police and Fire operations 

have been relocated to the new Public Safety Facility at 4600 South Main Street, 
and that firefighters will continue to respond from the 18th/Main Street station. 

 
 Public Works Director Ripplinger announced the Cedar Valley designation as a 

“Great Place” and that Cedar Falls will be working with the City of Waterloo to 
determine common improvement projects for this grant money. 

 
52422 - Penny Popp, 4805 South Main Street, announced their first neighborhood night 

out in conjunction with the city-wide ‘National Night Out’ event on August 6th. 
 

10

ITEM  1.



 
 

 

- 6 - 

 

 Public Safety Services Director Olson responded to comments by Whitney Smith, 
2904 Neola Street, regarding assignment of firefighter duties. 

 
 Following comments on tax breaks for commercial properties and impacts on city 

services by Jim Skaine, 2215 Clay Street, Councilmember Wieland raised point 
of order. 

 
 Mary Jane McCollum, 807 West 2nd Street, expressed concerns about increased 

traffic on West 2nd Street. Public Works Director Schrage provided an update on 
traffic calming efforts already implemented and others that could be explored. 

 
52423 - It was moved by Green and seconded by Miller that the meeting be adjourned at 

8:36 P.M.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
  _________________________________ 

  Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

11

ITEM  1.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

 

 
 

  
 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 
 FROM: Brett Armstrong, Civil Engineer I 
 
 DATE: August 5, 2019 
 
 SUBJECT: 2019 Sidewalk Assessment, Zone 2 
   Project No. SW-000-3164 
   Public Hearing 
 
This project involves the replacement of various sidewalk squares throughout the City of Cedar 
Falls. Work will include the construction of Portland Cement Concrete (PCC) sidewalk according 
to the plans and specifications.  
 
The total estimated cost for the construction of this project is $107,051.73. This project will be 
funded with Street Construction Fund.  
 
The Plans, Specifications, and Estimate of Costs and Quantities are available for your review at 
the City Clerk's office or the Engineering Division of the Public Works Department. 
 
Att: 
 
xc: Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works  
 Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II  

12

ITEM  2.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8606 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 

 TO: Mayor and City Council 

 FROM: David Sturch, Planner III 

 DATE: July 30, 2019 

 SUBJECT: Western Home Communities Pedestrian Trail Access Easement Vacation 
 

 
REQUEST: 

 
Request to vacate a 15-foot wide pedestrian trail access easement vacation 
Case #VAC19-002 
 

PETITIONER: Western Home Communities, Claassen Engineering 
 

LOCATION: 
 

15-foot wide pedestrian trail access easement along the south boundary of 
the Western Home Campus on S. Main Street 
 

 

PROPOSAL 
This request includes the vacation of a 15-foot wide pedestrian trail access easement along the 
southern edge of the Western Home property on S. Main Street. 
 
BACKGROUND 
A 15-foot wide pedestrian trail access 
easement lies across the southern 
boundary of the Western Home Campus 
from S. Main Street to Prairie Parkway. 
This easement is identified in the 
Western Home Communities 4th 
Addition, 7th Addition and 8th Addition.  
 
During the planning for the Highway 58 
intersection at Viking Road, the 
easement was established to route 
pedestrians and cyclists around the 
interchange by travelling along the 
backside of the Blains and Wal-Mart 
retail stores to Prairie Parkway. The 
actual easement sits within a sloped 
area with overhead utilities. Grading this easement for a trail will be difficult to achieve with the 
existing features on the site. Since the completion of the aforementioned study, the trail 
alignment changed, to route the pedestrians and cyclists to Brandilynn Boulevard and Viking 

 

15’ wide pedestrian easement 

13

ITEM  4.



Road. This section of trail has been completed as part of the Highway 58 and Viking Road 
interchange project. There is no need for a pedestrian easement along the south property 
boundary of the Western Home Campus.  
 
TECHNICAL COMMENTS 
City technical review staff does not have any concerns with the vacation of the 15-foot wide 
pedestrian and trail easement along the south side of the Western Home S. Main Street 
Campus. The other utility and drainage easements in this area will remain.  
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
Discussion/Vote 
6/26/2019 

The Planning and Zoning Commission considered a pedestrian easement vacation 
request in conjunction with the final plat for the Western Home Communities Ninth 
Addition. Chair Holst stated he had a conflict of interest and would need to abstain 
from the matter. Acting Chair Leeper introduced the item and Mr. Sturch provided 
background information. He explained the final plat and the vacation of a 15-foot 
wide pedestrian and trail easement along the south boundary of the Western Home 
S. Main Street campus. Said pedestrian easement is no longer needed since the 
trail was relocated to Brandilynn Boulevard and Viking Road. Staff recommends 
approval to vacate the 15-foot wide pedestrian and access easement. All other 
utility easements will remain in place. 
 
There were no public comments and the Commission recommended approval of the 
easement vacation. 

  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
The Community Development Department recommends approval of the pedestrian trail and 
access easement vacation. 
 
 

14

ITEM  4.



Existing (Relocated) Recreational Trail

Viking Rd

Prairi
e View Rd

P
ra

ir
ie

 P
k

w
y

H
w

y
 5

8

Hyacinth Dr

S
. 

M
a

in
 S

t

15' wide pedestrian trail and access easement (request to vacate)

Western Home Communities
Pedestrain Trail Access Easement Vacation

Location Map

15

ITEM  4.



16

ITEM  4.



17

ITEM  4.



18

ITEM  4.



19

ITEM  4.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Prepared by: Jacqueline Danielsen, City Clerk, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613  (319) 273-8600 

 

 

RESOLUTION NO. ______________ 

 

RESOLUTION APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING THE VACATION OF A PEDESTRIAN 

TRAIL ACCESS EASEMENT ON TRACT E OF WESTERN HOME COMMUNITIES 

SEVENTH ADDITION, LOT 1 OF WESTERN HOME COMMUNITIES EIGHTH 

ADDITION, PARCEL G OF WESTERN HOME COMMUNITIES LOT 17 MINOR PLAT, 

AND LOT 2 OF WESTERN HOME COMMUNITIES FOURTH ADDITION, CEDAR FALLS, 

BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IOWA 

 

 WHEREAS, a request was submitted to the Cedar Falls Planning and Zoning 

Commission to vacate a 15-foot wide pedestrian trail access easement within Tract E of Western 

Home Communities Seventh Addition, Lot 1 of Western Home Communities Eighth Addition, 

Parcel G of Western Home Communities Lot 17 Minor Plat and Lot 2 of Western Home 

Communities Fourth Addition, in the City of Cedar Falls, Black Hawk County, Iowa and 

 

 WHEREAS, said Commission has recommended approval of said request, and 

 

 WHEREAS, the subject pedestrian trail access easement is no longer needed for a 

pedestrian trail along the south side of the Western Home South Main Street Campus, and 

 

 WHEREAS, a recreational trail has been realigned and constructed along portions of 

Brandilynn Boulevard and East Viking Road.  

 

 NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved by the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 

that the 15-foot pedestrian trail access easement is hereby vacated upon the following real estate 

described as: 

 

THE SOUTH FIFTEEN (15) FEET OF TRACT E, WESTERN HOME COMMUNITIES 

SEVENTH ADDITION, 

 

AND 

 

THE SOUTH FIFTEEN (15) FEET OF LOT 1, WESTERN HOME COMMUNITIES 

EIGHTH ADDITION, 

20

ITEM  4.



 

AND 

 

THE SOUTH FIFTEEN (15) FEET OF PARCEL G, WESTERN HOME 

COMMUNITIES LOT 17 MINOR PLAT, 

 

AND 

 

THE SOUTH FIFTEEN (15) FEET OF LOT 2, WESTERN HOME COMMUNITIES 

FOURTH ADDITION. 

  

 

 INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this   day of    , 2019. 

 

 

              

                                               James P. Brown, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

        

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

21

ITEM  4.



ADMINISTRATION 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 

 FROM: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator 

 DATE: August 1, 2019 

 SUBJECT: ACOH, LLC--Industrial Partial Property Tax Exemption 
  6601 Development Drive in Cedar Falls Industrial Park 
 
On March 19, 2018, City Council approved a Developmental Agreement with ACOH, 
LLC for a new 30,000 sf. industrial use manufacturing and office facility for ACOH, LLC.  
Work on the $1,400,000 new building at 6601 Development Drive in the West Viking 
Road Industrial Park began last year and construction is nearing completion. 
 
As part of the executed Developmental Agreement approved by City Council in March 
2018, the City of Cedar Falls committed to the following actions: 
 

1. Transfer of Lots 14, 15 and 16 of West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase III to 
ACOH, LLC (Completed).   

 

2. Adoption of an Ordinance granting a partial exemption from taxation of industrial 
property as may be provided by Sections 21-48 through 21-57 of the Cedar Falls 
Code of Ordinances, and by Chapter 427B, Code of Iowa, with respect to the 
Development Property. 
 

Item #1 noted above was completed in March 2018.  The remaining item to be 
completed by the City of Cedar Falls as part of the Developmental Agreement is formal 
adoption of a Partial Property Tax Exemption Ordinance that has been prepared by staff 
and reviewed by City Attorney Kevin Rogers.  Since construction of the new building 
has commenced and is nearing completion, it is now necessary to move forward with 
Ordinance adoption. 
 
The applicable 5-Year Partial Property Tax Exemption schedule is estimated as follows 
based upon the $1,400,000 valuation of the ACOH, LLC building, 10% 
commercial/industrial valuation rollback, and the FY19 tax rate of $33.23/$1,000 
valuation ($41,869 annually): 
 
 

22

ITEM  6.



  Exemption % Exempt $ Amount Paid $ Amount 
 
Year 1  75%   $31,402  $10,467 
Year 2  60%   $25,122  $16,748 
Year 3  45%   $18,841  $23,028 
Year 4  30%   $12,561  $29,309 
Year 5  15%   $6,280  $35,589 
     $94,207  $115,142 
 
I recommend that in accordance with our executed Developmental Agreement, City 
Council approve and adopt the following through the normal three reading process: 
 

1. Ordinance establishing a partial property tax exemption on the actual value 
added to real estate by new construction consisting of a 30,000 square foot 
industrial use manufacturing and office facility to be constructed on property 
owned by ACOH, LLC, located at 6601 Development Drive, Cedar Falls, Iowa.  

 

If you have any questions pertaining to this memorandum or project, please feel free to 
contact me. 
 
xc:  Ron Gaines, P.E., City Administrator 
       Sean Abbas, ACOH, LLC 
 
 

23

ITEM  6.



Poplar
Hollow Ln

Ar
bo

rs 
DrTimber Cove Dr

Tec
hn

olo
gy

Pl

De
ve

lop
me

nt
 D

r

Pr
od

uc
tio

n D
r

Venture Way

Capital Way

Technology Pkwy

Viking Rd

I

Project Site: 3.94 Acres

ACOH, LLC
30,000 Sq Ft
Manufacturing/Office 
Facility

24

ITEM  6.



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Prepared by: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613, (319) 273-8600 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO. ______ 
 

AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING A PARTIAL PROPERTY TAX EXEMPTION OF THE 
ACTUAL VALUE ADDED TO REAL ESTATE BY NEW CONSTRUCTION CONSISTING 

OF A 30,000 SQUARE FOOT INDUSTRIAL USE MANUFACTURING AND OFFICE 
FACILITY TO BE CONSTRUCTED ON PROPERTY OWNED BY ACOH, LLC, LOCATED 

AT 6601 DEVELOPMENT DRIVE, CEDAR FALLS, IOWA  
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, has by ordinance 
provided a partial exemption from property taxation of the actual value added to real estate 
by certain new construction, as authorized in Section 427B.1, Code of Iowa, with said 
exemption being provided for in Division 2, Partial Exemptions for Industrial Property, of 
Article II, Tax Exemptions, of Chapter 21, Taxation, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa; and 
 
 WHEREAS, ACOH, LLC, will complete and own an approximate 30,000 square foot 
industrial use manufacturing and office facility by December 31, 2019, to be constructed on 
property owned by ACOH, LLC, located at 6601 Development Drive Cedar Falls, Iowa, and 
legally described as: 
 
Lots 14, 15 and 16, West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase III, City of Cedar Falls, Black 
Hawk County, Iowa (Contains 3.94 acres more or less), 
 
and has requested a partial property tax exemption as provided in the Iowa Code and the 
Cedar Falls Code of Ordinances; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council conducted a public hearing on the proposal for said 
exemption on the 5

th
 day of August, 2019, and more than thirty (30) days have elapsed 

since the date of public hearing, as required by Section 427B.1, Code of Iowa; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council deems it appropriate pursuant to state law and city 
ordinance to grant said exemption. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 
 
 Section 1. The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, by this Ordinance 
hereby grants a partial exemption from property taxation of the actual value added to real 

25

ITEM  6.



estate by new construction of an approximate 30,000 square foot industrial use 
manufacturing and office facility to be constructed by ACOH, LLC, on property owned by 
ACOH, LLC, located at 6601 Development Drive, Cedar Falls, Iowa, and legally described 
as: 
 
Lots 14, 15 and 16, West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase III, City of Cedar Falls, Black 
Hawk County, Iowa (Contains 3.94 acres more or less), 
 
by December 31, 2019, to the extent and upon the terms and conditions provided for in 
Sections 427B.1 through 427B.7 of the Code of Iowa, and Sections 21-48 through 21-57 of 
the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. Responsibility for the proper and 
timely filing of an application for exemption with the Black Hawk County Assessor is that of 
the property owner. The amount of actual value added which is eligible to be exempt from 
taxation shall be as follows: 
 

1. For the first assessment year after the Minimum Improvements are fully 
assessed, 75% exemption of the actual value added. 

 
2. For the second assessment year after the Minimum Improvements are fully 

assessed, 60% exemption of the actual value added. 
 
3. For the third assessment year after the Minimum Improvements are fully 

assessed, 45% exemption of the actual value added. 
 
4. For the fourth assessment year after the Minimum Improvements are fully 

assessed, 30% exemption of the actual value added. 
 
5. For the fifth assessment year after the Minimum Improvements are fully 

assessed, 15% exemption of the actual value added. 
 
 
INTRODUCED: August 5, 2019 

1
ST

 CONSIDERATION:  

2
ND

 CONSIDERATION:  

3
RD

 CONSIDERATION:  

ADOPTED:  

 
 
  ________________________ 
  James P. Brown, Mayor 
ATTEST:   
   
_______________________________   
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk   

 

26

ITEM  6.



ADMINISTRATION 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 

 FROM: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator 

 DATE: August 1, 2019 

 SUBJECT: Buckeye Corrugated, Inc.--Industrial Partial Property Tax Exemption 
  2900 Capital Way in Cedar Falls Industrial Park 
 
On September 5, 2017, City Council approved a Developmental Agreement with 
Buckeye Corrugated, Inc. for a new 175,000 sf. industrial use warehouse and 
production facility for Buckeye Corrugated, Inc. – Hawkeye Division.  Work on the 
$9,000,000 new building at 2900 Capital Way in the West Viking Road Industrial Park 
began last year and construction is nearing completion. 
 
As part of the executed Developmental Agreement approved by City Council in 
September 2017, the City of Cedar Falls committed to the following actions: 
 

1. Transfer of all of Lot 7, all of Lot 8, all of Lot 9 and the West eighty (80.00) feet in 
even width of Lot 6 in West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase III and all of Lot 7, 
all of Lot 8, all of Lot 9 and the West eighty (80.00) feet in even width of Lot 10 in 
West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase IV, West Viking Road Industrial Park 
Phase I and Lot 17 in West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase IV Addition to 
Buckeye Corrugated, Inc. (Completed).   

 

2. Adoption of an Ordinance Granting a partial exemption from taxation of industrial 
property as may be provided by Sections 21-48 through 21-57 of the Cedar Falls 
Code of Ordinances, and by Chapter 427B, Code of Iowa, with respect to the 
Development Property. 
 

Item #1 noted above was completed in September 2017.  The remaining item to be 
completed by the City of Cedar Falls as part of the Developmental Agreement is formal 
adoption of a Partial Property Tax Exemption Ordinance that has been prepared by staff 
and reviewed by City Attorney Kevin Rogers.  Since construction of the new building 
has commenced and is nearing completion, it is now necessary to move forward with 
Ordinance adoption. 
 
 

27

ITEM  8.



The applicable 5-Year Partial Property Tax Exemption schedule is estimated as follows 
based upon the $9,000,000 valuation of the Buckeye Corrugated, Inc. building, 10% 
commercial/industrial valuation rollback, and the FY19 tax rate of $33.23/$1,000 
valuation ($269,163 annually): 
 
 
  Exemption % Exempt $ Amount Paid $ Amount 
 
Year 1  75%   $201,872  $67,291 
Year 2  60%   $161,498  $107,665 
Year 3  45%   $121,123  $148,040 
Year 4  30%   $80,749  $188,414 
Year 5  15%   $40,374  $228,789 
     $605,617  $740,198 
 
I recommend that in accordance with our executed Developmental Agreement, City 
Council approve and adopt the following through the normal three reading process: 
 

1. Ordinance establishing a partial property tax exemption on the actual value 
added to real estate by new construction consisting of a 175,000 square foot 
industrial use warehouse and production facility to be constructed on property 
owned by Buckeye Corrugated, Inc., located at 2900 Capital Way, Cedar Falls, 
Iowa.  

 

If you have any questions pertaining to this memorandum or project, please feel free to 
contact me. 
 
xc:  Ron Gaines, P.E., City Administrator 
       Matt Highland, Division President 
 
 

28

ITEM  8.



Venture Way

Capital Way

Technology Pkwy

Tec
hn

olo
gy

Pl

De
ve

lop
me

nt 
Dr

Production Dr

Project Location

Buckeye Corrugated, Inc.
New Facility
2900 Capital Way I

29

ITEM  8.



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Prepared by: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613, (319) 273-8600 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO. ______ 
 

AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING A PARTIAL PROPERTY TAX EXEMPTION OF THE 
ACTUAL VALUE ADDED TO REAL ESTATE BY NEW CONSTRUCTION CONSISTING OF A 

175,850 SQUARE FOOT INDUSTRIAL USE WAREHOUSE AND PRODUCTION FACILITY TO 
BE CONSTRUCTED ON PROPERTY OWNED BY BUCKEYE CORRUGATED, INC., 

LOCATED AT 2900 CAPITAL WAY, CEDAR FALLS, IOWA  
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, has by ordinance provided 
a partial exemption from property taxation of the actual value added to real estate by certain 
new construction, as authorized in Section 427B.1, Code of Iowa, with said exemption being 
provided for in Division 2, Partial Exemptions for Industrial Property, of Article II, Tax 
Exemptions, of Chapter 21, Taxation, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, 
Iowa; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Buckeye Corrugated, Inc., will complete and own an approximate 175,850 
square foot industrial use warehouse and production facility by December 31, 2019, to be 
constructed on property owned by Buckeye Corrugated, Inc., located at 2900 Capital Way 
Cedar Falls, Iowa, and legally described as: 
 
All of Lot 7, all of Lot 8, all of Lot 9 and the West eighty (80.00) feet in even width of Lot 6 in 
West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase III and all of Lot 7, all of Lot 8, all of Lot 9 and the West 
eighty (80.00) feet in even width of Lot 10 in West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase IV, all in 
the East one-half (1/2) of Section Thirty-four (34), Township Eighty-nine North (T89N), Range 
Fourteen West (R14W) in the City of Cedar Falls, Black Hawk County, Iowa. Contains 16.16 
acres, more or less, 
 
and has requested a partial property tax exemption as provided in the Iowa Code and the Cedar 
Falls Code of Ordinances; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council conducted a public hearing on the proposal for said 
exemption on the 5th day of August, 2019, and more than thirty (30) days have elapsed since 
the date of public hearing, as required by Section 427B.1, Code of Iowa; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council deems it appropriate pursuant to state law and city 
ordinance to grant said exemption. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 

30

ITEM  8.



 
 Section 1. The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, by this Ordinance hereby 
grants a partial exemption from property taxation of the actual value added to real estate by new 
construction of an approximate 175,850 square foot industrial use warehouse and production 
facility to be constructed by Buckeye Corrugated. Inc., on property owned by Buckeye 
Corrugated, Inc., located at 2900 Capital Way, Cedar Falls, Iowa, and legally described as: 
 
All of Lot 7, all of Lot 8, all of Lot 9 and the West eighty (80.00) feet in even width of Lot 6 in 
West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase III and all of Lot 7, all of Lot 8, all of Lot 9 and the West 
eighty (80.00) feet in even width of Lot 10 in West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase IV, all in 
the East one-half (1/2) of Section Thirty-four (34), Township Eighty-nine North (T89N), Range 
Fourteen West (R14W) in the City of Cedar Falls, Black Hawk County, Iowa. Contains 16.16 
acres, more or less, 

by December 31, 2019, to the extent and upon the terms and conditions provided for in Sections 
427B.1 through 427B.7 of the Code of Iowa, and Sections 21-48 through 21-57 of the Code of 
Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. Responsibility for the proper and timely filing of an 
application for exemption with the Black Hawk County Assessor is that of the property owner. 
The amount of actual value added which is eligible to be exempt from taxation shall be as 
follows: 
 

1. For the first assessment year after the Minimum Improvements are fully 
assessed, 75% exemption of the actual value added. 

 
2. For the second assessment year after the Minimum Improvements are fully 

assessed, 60% exemption of the actual value added. 
 
3. For the third assessment year after the Minimum Improvements are fully 

assessed, 45% exemption of the actual value added. 
 
4. For the fourth assessment year after the Minimum Improvements are fully 

assessed, 30% exemption of the actual value added. 
 
5. For the fifth assessment year after the Minimum Improvements are fully 

assessed, 15% exemption of the actual value added. 
 
 
INTRODUCED: 

 
August 5, 2019 

1ST CONSIDERATION: August 5, 2019 

2ND CONSIDERATION:  

3RD CONSIDERATION:  

ADOPTED:  

 
 
  ________________________ 
ATTEST:  James P. Brown, Mayor 
   
________________________________   
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

31

ITEM  8.



ADMINISTRATION 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 

 FROM: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator 

 DATE: August 1, 2019 

 SUBJECT: FN Investors, LLC--Industrial Partial Property Tax Exemption 
  3019 Venture Way in Cedar Falls Industrial Park 
 
On May 7, 2018, City Council approved a Developmental Agreement with FN Investors, 
LLC for a new 20,600 sf. industrial use lab and office facility for TestAmerica 
Laboratories, Inc.  Work on the $2,500,000 new building at 3019 Venture Way in the 
West Viking Road Industrial Park began last year and construction is nearing 
completion. 
 
As part of the executed Developmental Agreement approved by City Council in May 
2018, the City of Cedar Falls committed to the following actions: 
 

1. Transfer of Lot 12 of West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase I and Lot 7 of West 
Viking Road Industrial Park Phase II to FN Investors, LLC (Completed).   

 

2. Adoption of an Ordinance granting a partial exemption from taxation of industrial 
property as may be provided by Sections 21-48 through 21-57 of the Cedar Falls 
Code of Ordinances, and by Chapter 427B, Code of Iowa, with respect to the 
Development Property. 
 

Item #1 noted above was completed in May 2018.  The remaining item to be completed 
by the City of Cedar Falls as part of the Developmental Agreement is formal adoption of 
a Partial Property Tax Exemption Ordinance that has been prepared by staff and 
reviewed by City Attorney Kevin Rogers.  Since construction of the new building has 
commenced and is nearing completion, it is now necessary to move forward with 
Ordinance adoption. 
 
The applicable 5-Year Partial Property Tax Exemption schedule is estimated as follows 
based upon the $2,500,000 valuation of the FN Investors, LLC building, 10% 
commercial/industrial valuation rollback, and the FY19 tax rate of $33.23/$1,000 
valuation ($74,768 annually): 
 

32

ITEM  10.



 
  Exemption % Exempt $ Amount Paid $ Amount 
 
Year 1  75%   $56,076  $18,692 
Year 2  60%   $44,861  $29,907 
Year 3  45%   $33,645  $41,122 
Year 4  30%   $22,430  $52,337 
Year 5  15%   $11,215  $63,552 
     $168,227  $205,611 
 
I recommend that in accordance with our executed Developmental Agreement, City 
Council approve and adopt the following through the normal three reading process: 
 

1. Ordinance establishing a partial property tax exemption on the actual value 
added to real estate by new construction consisting of a 20,600 square foot 
industrial use lab and office facility to be constructed on property owned by FN 
Investors, LLC, located at 3016 Venture Way, Cedar Falls, Iowa.  

 

If you have any questions pertaining to this memorandum or project, please feel free to 
contact me. 
 
xc:  Ron Gaines, P.E., City Administrator 
       Fred Rose, FN Investors, LLC 
 
 

33

ITEM  10.



De
ve

lop
me

nt
 D

r

Pr
od

uc
tio

n D
r

Venture Way

Capital Way

Viking Rd

I

Project Site: 4.6 Acres

FN Investors, LLC
20,600 Sq Ft
Lab/Office Facility

34

ITEM  10.



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Prepared by: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613, (319) 273-8600 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO. ______ 
 
AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING A PARTIAL PROPERTY TAX EXEMPTION OF THE 

ACTUAL VALUE ADDED TO REAL ESTATE BY NEW CONSTRUCTION 
CONSISTING OF A 20,600 SQUARE FOOT INDUSTRIAL USE LAB AND OFFICE 
FACILITY TO BE CONSTRUCTED ON PROPERTY OWNED BY FN INVESTORS, 

LLC, LOCATED AT 3019 VENTURE WAY, CEDAR FALLS, IOWA  
 
  WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, has by 
ordinance provided a partial exemption from property taxation of the actual value added 
to real estate by certain new construction, as authorized in Section 427B.1, Code of 
Iowa, with said exemption being provided for in Division 2, Partial Exemptions for 
Industrial Property, of Article II, Tax Exemptions, of Chapter 21, Taxation, of the Code of 
Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa; and 
 
 WHEREAS, FN Investors, LLC, will complete and own an approximate 20,600 
square foot industrial use lab and office facility by December 31, 2019, to be 
constructed on property owned by FN Investors, LLC, located at 3016 Venture Way 
Cedar Falls, Iowa, and legally described as: 
 
Lot 12, West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase I, and Lot 7, West Viking Road 
Industrial Park Phase II, City of Cedar Falls, Black Hawk County, Iowa (Contains 4.6 
acres more or less), 
 
and has requested a partial property tax exemption as provided in the Iowa Code and 
the Cedar Falls Code of Ordinances; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council conducted a public hearing on the proposal for said 
exemption on the 5th day of August, 2019, and more than thirty (30) days have elapsed 
since the date of public hearing, as required by Section 427B.1, Code of Iowa; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council deems it appropriate pursuant to state law and city 
ordinance to grant said exemption. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 

35

ITEM  10.



 
 Section 1. The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, by this Ordinance 
hereby grants a partial exemption from property taxation of the actual value added to 
real estate by new construction of an approximate 20,600 square foot industrial use lab 
and office facility to be constructed by FN Investors, LLC, on property owned by FN 
Investors, LLC, located at 3016 Venture Way, Cedar Falls, Iowa, legally described as: 
 
Lot 12, West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase I, and Lot 7, West Viking Road 
Industrial Park Phase II, City of Cedar Falls, Black Hawk County, Iowa (Contains 4.6 
acres more or less), 
 
by December 31, 2019, to the extent and upon the terms and conditions provided for in 
Sections 427B.1 through 427B.7 of the Code of Iowa, and Sections 21-48 through 21-
57 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. Responsibility for the 
proper and timely filing of an application for exemption with the Black Hawk County 
Assessor is that of the property owner. The amount of actual value added which is 
eligible to be exempt from taxation shall be as follows: 
 

1. For the first assessment year after the Minimum Improvements are fully 
assessed, 75% exemption of the actual value added. 

 

2. For the second assessment year after the Minimum Improvements are 
fully assessed, 60% exemption of the actual value added. 

 

3. For the third assessment year after the Minimum Improvements are fully 
assessed, 45% exemption of the actual value added. 

 

4. For the fourth assessment year after the Minimum Improvements are fully 
assessed, 30% exemption of the actual value added. 

 

5. For the fifth assessment year after the Minimum Improvements are fully 
assessed, 15% exemption of the actual value added. 

 
 
INTRODUCED: August 5, 2019 

1ST CONSIDERATION:  

2ND CONSIDERATION:  

3RD CONSIDERATION:  

ADOPTED:  

 
 
  ________________________ 
ATTEST: 
 

 
 

James P. Brown, Mayor 
 

_______________________________   
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk   
 

36

ITEM  10.



1 
 

 

 

 

Prepared by: Kevin Rogers, City Attorney, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA  50613, (319)273-8600 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2949 

       AN ORDINANCE (1) AMENDING SECTION 3-42, EXEMPTIONS FROM PERMIT 

REQUIREMENT, OF ARTICLE II, SIGNS, OF CHAPTER 3, ADVERTISING, OF THE CODE 

OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, BY ENACTING A NEW 

UNTITLED SUBSECTION (6), OF SECTION 3-42, EXEMPTIONS FROM PERMIT 

REQUIREMENT; (2) REPEALING SECTION 17-197, PERMITS, OF ARTICLE V, PARK 

REGULATIONS, OF CHAPTER 17, PARKS AND RECREATION, OF THE CODE OF 

ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA; (3) REPEALING SECTION 17-207, 

RESERVATION OF PARK AREAS AND FACILITIES, AND SECTION 17-208, POSSESSION 

OF BEER OR OTHER INTOXICATING LIQUOR, AND SECTION 17-210, SPECIAL EVENTS 

IN GATEWAY PARK GREEN SPACE, ALL OF ARTICLE V, PARK REGULATIONS, OF 

CHAPTER 17, PARKS AND RECREATION, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY 

OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, AND ENACTING IN LIEU THEREOF NEW SECTION 17-207, 

RESERVATION OF PARK AREAS AND FACILITIES, NEW SECTION 17-208, POSSESSION 

OF BEER OR OTHER INTOXICATING LIQUOR, AND NEW SECTION 17-210, PUBLIC 

EVENTS ON CITY PROPERTY; (4) REPEALING SECTION 19-2, STREET MEETINGS; 

PARADES, OF ARTICLE I, IN GENERAL, OF CHAPTER 19, STREETS AND SIDEWALKS, OF 

THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, AND ENACTING IN 

LIEU THEREOF NEW SECTION 19-2, RIGHT-OF-WAY, PUBLIC PARK, PUBLIC AREA 

MEETINGS; PARADES; AND (5) CONFORMING TITLES TO SUBSECTIONS, SECTIONS, 

DIVISIONS AND ARTICLES ACCORDINGLY. 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 

       Section 1.  Section 3-42, Exemptions from Permit Requirement, of Article II, Signs, of 

Chapter 3, Advertising, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa is hereby 

amended by enacting new untitled subsection (6), of Section 3-42, Exemptions from Permit 

Requirement, of Article II, Signs, of Chapter 3, Advertising, as follows: 

(6) Temporary signs constructed or erected in connection with a properly permitted public 

event, displayed for up to seven days before and one day after such public event. 

        

                     Section 2.  Section 17-197, Permits, of Article V, Park Regulations, of Chapter 17, Parks 

and Recreation, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby repealed 

in its entirety. 

37

ITEM  12.



2 
 

       Section 3.  Section 17-207, Reservation of Park Areas and Facilities, and Section 17-208, 

Possession of Beer or Other Intoxicating Liquor, and Section 17-210, Special Events in 

Gateway Park Green Space, all of Article V, Park Regulations, of Chapter 17, Parks and 

Recreation, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, are hereby repealed in 

their entirety and new Section 17-207, Reservation of Park Areas and Facilities, new Section 

17-208, Possession of Beer or Other Intoxicating Liquor, and new Section 17-210, Public 

Events on City Property, all of Article V, Park and Public Event Regulations, of Chapter 17, 

Parks and Recreation, are hereby enacted in lieu thereof, as follows: 

ARTICLE V.  PARK AND PUBLIC EVENT REGULATIONS 

Sec. 17-207.   Reservation of park areas and facilities. 

(a)  No person may be granted an exclusive non-public use of park areas or facilities unless a 
permit for such exclusive non-public use is first obtained from the director of community 
development or designee. The factors listed in section 17-210 for issuance of a public 
event permit shall apply to a permit required under this section.  Only the following park 
areas and facilities may be so reserved:  

(1)  A golf course.  

(2)  A clubhouse.  

(3)  A specific picnic shelter.  

(4)  Special game facilities, including, but not limited to, sports fields and courts, aquatic 
center, pools, and outdoor exercise facilities. 

(b)  Liability of permit holder. The holder of a permit required by this section as well as any 
sponsoring group or organization shall be liable for any loss, damage or injury sustained by 
any person or entity, including the city, arising out of or resulting from the fault of the permit 
holder, his or her employees, servants or agents, or other persons participating in or 
attending the non-public event. The holder as well as any sponsoring group or organization, 
by acceptance of a permit, assumes full responsibility for and agrees to indemnify the city 
against and save it harmless from any liability arising out of or resulting from the fault of the 
holder, his or her employees, servants or agents, or other persons participating in or 
attending the non-public event. 

(Code 2017, § 20-222) 

Sec. 17-208.   Possession of beer or other intoxicating liquor. 

(a)  It shall be unlawful for any person to bring in or use or have in their possession a keg or 
similar container for the purpose of dispensing beer or any other intoxicating liquor not 
otherwise prohibited by Iowa Code § 123.46, within any park, including any access area or 
wildlife habitat area under the jurisdiction of the city parks and recreation commission, 
unless:  

(1)  Such use or possession is authorized by a liquor control license or beer permit 
approved by the city council, and issued by the state alcoholic beverages division 
under Iowa Code ch. 123, and such use is confined to a shelter or other place within a 
park which constitutes a "licensed premises" within the meaning of state law and which 
is designated for group use; and  

38

ITEM  12.



3 
 

(2)  Any other necessary permits and licenses are first obtained.  

(b)  Any person desiring to use a shelter or building, where beer or an intoxicating liquor is to be 
dispensed from a keg or similar container as authorized in this section must make a prior 
shelter or building reservation, obtain all necessary permits and licenses, and make 
advance payment of a reservation fee and submit a $100.00 minimum damage deposit. 
The city has the right to retain any or all of the required deposit to cover damage to city 
park property. The holder of a shelter or building reservation shall be bound by and be 
responsible for enforcing all park rules and regulations and all applicable ordinances 
regarding the use of a keg, or similar container, or other rules and regulations set out in this 
article.  

(Code 2017, § 20-223; Ord. No. 2301, § 1, 5-22-2000; Ord. No. 2422, § 1, 3-10-2003) 

Sec. 17-210.   Public events on City property. 

(a)  Persons who wish to use city owned, occupied or controlled areas or facilities for public 
events must first obtain a permit as described in this section from the director of finance 
and business operations or designee.           

(b)  The director may adopt and enforce rules and regulations to protect and preserve the 
rights, privileges and property of the city or of its residents, and to preserve and improve 
the peace, safety, health, welfare, comfort, and convenience of its residents. The director 
may post signs setting forth rules and regulations and directional signs.  

(c)  The director, upon receiving a completed permit application, shall provide a copy of the 
application to appropriate city personnel who shall provide comments as to the following 
factors:  

(1)  The applicant has complied with all of the requirements of this Code and any rules or 
regulations promulgated thereunder;  

(2)  The proposed event will not substantially or unnecessarily interfere with traffic in the 
area;  

(3)  The proposed event will not substantially or unnecessarily interfere with any publicly 
managed infrastructure project;  

(4)  The concentration of persons or things at the event will not prevent proper fire and 
police protection or ambulance service;  

(5)  That the proposed event or use of the property will not unreasonably interfere with or 
detract from the general public enjoyment of the property;  

(6)  That the proposed event and use will not unreasonably interfere with or detract from 
the promotion of public health, welfare, safety and recreation;  

(7)  That the property has not been reserved for other use at the time requested in the 
application;  

(8)  That the proposed event will not entail unusual, extraordinary or burdensome expense 
to the city;  

(9)  The applicant and group have complied with any required permits or licenses required 
for the activity on the property.  

(d)  The application for a permit required in this section shall include, in the discretion of the 
director, information reasonably calculated to allow the director to determine the 

39

ITEM  12.



4 
 

appropriateness of a permit, considering the factors set forth in subsection c of this section.  
The director or designee shall determine whether a permit shall be issued.          

(e)  The factors listed in subsection c of this section shall also apply to a permit application 
under section 17-207 of this article. 

(f)   The permit required in this section is in addition to and not in lieu of any other license or 
permit required in this Code. 

(g)  The director shall issue or deny a permit within thirty days of submission of the permit 
application.  

(h)  In the event of denial of the permit application, the applicant shall have 10 days to appeal 
such denial to the administration committee of the city council.  The administration 
committee shall hold a hearing on the appeal in person or upon written submission, within 
21 days of the filing of the appeal with the city clerk.  The applicant shall be notified in 
writing of the date, time and place of the hearing.  The administration committee shall afford 
the applicant the opportunity to present information in support of the application.  Within 10 
days of the hearing, the administration committee shall issue its written decision, which 
may affirm or reverse the decision of the director, or affirm the application subject to certain 
conditions.  The decision of the administration committee shall be final.  

(i)  Revocation of permit. The permit may be revoked without notice if the director, the chief of 
police, or fire chief have cause to believe anyone participating in the public event has 
committed any one or more of the following acts or if the following conditions occur: 

         i.  violated any local, state or federal laws; 

         ii. violated the terms of any permit issued; 

         iii. violated the rules or regulations of the area or facility; or 

          iv  that the public order or the health or safety of the public would be at risk if the use 
continued.  

(j)  The applicant or sponsoring group/organization and all individual participants shall be 
required to have been approved for any local, state or federal licenses or permits that are 
required for the activities intended to be conducted pursuant to the permit.  

(k)  Any and all appropriate city departments are authorized to inspect the public event and 
may issue citations for any violation of this Code or any regulations pertaining to the 
operation of the public event.  

(l)  The director, after consultation with other appropriate departments, shall have the authority 
to promulgate such forms, rules and regulations that the director determines are necessary 
or desirable for the implementation of this section. The forms, rules and regulations shall be 
available for inspection by the public.  

(m)  Liability of permit holder. The holder of a permit required by this article as well as any 
sponsoring group or organization shall be liable for any loss, damage or injury sustained by 
any person or the city arising out of or resulting from the fault of the permit holder, his or 
her employees, servants or agents, or other persons participating in or attending the public 
event. The holder as well as any sponsoring group or organization, by acceptance of a 
permit, assumes full responsibility for and agrees to indemnify the city against and save it 
harmless from any liability arising out of or resulting from the fault of the holder as well as 
any sponsoring group or organization, and their employees, servants or agents, or other 
persons participating in or attending the public event. 

40

ITEM  12.



5 
 

(n)   The director may impose insurance requirements on the issuance of a permit under this 
section in order to minimize the liability of the city for injury or damage connected to or 
arising out of the public event.  

(Code 2017, § 20-225; Ord. No. 2763, § 1, 4-23-2012) 

       Section 4.  Section 19-2, Street Meetings; Parades, of Article I, In General, of Chapter 19, 
Streets and Sidewalks, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby 
repealed in its entirety and new Section 19-2, Right-Of-Way, Public Park, Public Area Meetings; 
Parades, of Article I, In General, of Chapter 19, Streets and Sidewalks, is hereby enacted in lieu 
thereof, as follows: 

Sec. 19-2.   Right-of-way, public park, public area meetings; parades. 

(a)  It shall be unlawful for any person to hold public meetings of any character or description 
upon any public right-of-way of the city, or in any public park or area under the control of 
the city, without a permit being first secured as set forth in this section, or for any person to 
congregate about or upon any public right-of-way of the city so as to obstruct public travel 
or city services, or for any person to parade or march upon any street or public right-of-way 
of the city without a permit being first secured as set forth in this section.  

(b)  Public meetings may be held on public right-of-ways of the city and in public parks or other 
public areas, and parades or marches may be held in the city by a person first obtaining 
from the city a written permit as described in section 17-210.This section is not intended to 
apply to funeral processions, students engaged in educational activities under the direct 
supervision of proper school authorities, or governmental agencies acting within the scope 
of their functions.  

(c)  Any person violating any provision of this section, or who holds, conducts, manages, 
directs or has charge of a public meeting, parade or march otherwise than in accordance 
with the terms of the written permit issued as provided in this section, shall be guilty of a 
municipal infraction, punishable as provided in section 1-9 of this Code.  

(Code 2017, § 23-3) 

INTRODUCED:     July 1, 2019   

PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION:   July 1, 2019   

PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION:   July 15, 2019   

PASSED 3RD CONSIDERATION:      

ADOPTED:         

 

____________________________ 

       James P. Brown, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

________________________________ 

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk  

41

ITEM  12.



From: Evan Renfro 
Sent: Saturday, June 8, 2019 1:06 PM 
To: Richardson Funeral Service 
Subject: Re: Library Board 
  
Hello Mike, 
Unfortunately, I'll need to resign from the Board. What with the baby, and department meetings here 
every Wednesday, I'm just not able to contribute as fully as I should.  
I very much enjoyed working with you and the rest of the Board.  
Sincerely, 
Evan Renfro 
 

42

ITEM  13.



COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE 
City Hall – Council Chambers  

July 15, 2019 
 

The Committee of the Whole met in the Council Chambers at 5:45 p.m. on July 15, 
2019, with the following Committee persons in attendance:  Mayor Jim Brown, Tom 
Blanford, Frank Darrah, Susan deBuhr, Rob Green, Mark Miller, and David Wieland.   
Daryl Kruse was absent.  Staff members attended from all City Departments.  Jason 
McVay and Jon Nania from USGS also attended as well as members of the community. 

Mayor Brown called the meeting to order and introduced the first item on the agenda, 
River Gauge Update.  Chase Schrage Principal Engineer stated they have met with 
USGS on June 3, 2019 to review a stage only river gauge placement.  He said there are 
many challenges in placement of the stage only river gauge; first placement will need to 
be far enough up stream and at necessary height to stay out of the way of ice jams.  
Second, FEMA will need to review placement of a gauge in the floodplain, based on the 
deed restrictions to the land.  He explained Iowa Homeland Security will review initially 
and the federal government will review, which can take 90 days.  Mr. Schrage stated the 
third challenge in a stage only river gauge is the datum will have different elevation up 
stream.  He stated the location upstream will be approximately 11 feet difference in 
elevation.  He stated the installation cost for the stage only river gauge will be $22,000, 
with $5,500 for annual maintenance.  He stated both of these costs will be funded 100% 
by the City.  He stated FEMA approval will be necessary to review the location at the 
end of Cottage Row for the stage only river gauge.   

Mayor Brown opened it up for discussion.  Councilmember deBuhr commented about 
the new river gauge will have limited benefits for the residents.  Jason McVay with the 
USGS stated the gauge will have an accurate reading within .02-.04 feet and stated the 
readings will be different than the full gauge located down stream, which may say 80 
feet and the new stage only gauge may say 91 feet.  Councilmember Miller commented 
the cost is a deterrent for the limited benefits the residents may gain.  Mr. Schrage 
stated the ice jams may affect the readings.  He also explained the residents may sign 
up for an automated notification on river levels through “notify me” on the City’s website.  
Jon Nania, with the USGS stated residents may sign up through USGS WaterAlert and 
they can set the river level they are interested in.  Based on City Council consensus a 
stage only river gauge will not be placed at the end of Cottage Row.  

The Mayor introduced the second item on the agenda Snow Removal requests on 
sidewalks/trails.  Mark Ripplinger Public Works Director reviewed the current City policy 
to remove the snow adjacent to city owned property, bridges or areas with higher 
pedestrian usage such as by schools.  He stated this was set through the Council goal 
setting process.  Brian Heath Public Works and Parks Manager reviewed the operating 
procedures for snow removal for a snow event.  He explained streets are done first then 
certain personnel will break away to clear snow at public buildings and then some 
sidewalks/trails are cleared.  He explained there are 7.3 miles of sidewalks/trails 
currently being cleared, which is estimated to cost $30,000 on average annually.  He 
reviewed the request, which is for an additional 9.5 miles of sidewalks/trails to be 
cleared.  He stated this would be an additional 51 man hours and cost an estimated 

43

ITEM  14.



$38,000 annually.  Mr. Heath said additional equipment will be needed, which may cost 
between $80,000 – $100,000.  He reviewed a map of the additional sidewalk/trails 
requested.  He explained these would provide benefits to runners and bicyclist, but 
there would also be challenges.  He stated there will be blowing and drifting issues, 
updating the equipment more often, high cost for a low number of users, and concern 
for users safety with thawing and re-freezing.   Mr. Ripplinger stated recreation trails are 
for winter users.  He reviewed a map of staff recommendation of clearing 1 mile of 
additional sidewalk/trails.  He stated this could be reviewed at goal setting which can 
include discussion for staffing and the additional costs.  Mayor opened it for discussion.  
Mr. Ripplinger explained with the addition of 1 mile, no additional equipment will be 
needed.  Mr. Heath confirmed the current cost is $30,000 annually for 7.3 miles of 
sidewalks/trails.  Tom Blanford motioned for the staff recommendation of clearing the 
additional 1 mile of sidewalks/trails in addition to the current clearing of 7.3 miles of 
sidewalks/trails. Rob Green seconded the motion.   The motion carried unanimously.  

Mayor Brown introduced the final item on the agenda, bills and payroll. Mark Miller 
moved to approve the bills as presented, Rob Green seconded the motion.  The motion 
carried unanimously.  

There being no further discussion, Mayor Brown adjourned the meeting at 6:25 p.m.  

Minutes by Lisa Roeding, Controller/City Treasurer 

44

ITEM  14.



Joint Meeting of Cedar Falls City Council & 
Cedar Falls Utilities Board of Trustees 

 
Monday, July 22, 2019 

 
Cedar Falls Public Safety Facility 

4600 South Main Street, Cedar Falls 
 
 

The City Council met in Joint Session with the Cedar Falls Utilities Board of 
Trustees pursuant to law, the rules of said Council and prior notice given 
each member thereof at 2:00 p.m. on Monday, July 22, 2019.  Mayor Brown 
and City Council members present: Miller, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland and 
Green.  Absent: deBuhr and Kruse. Cedar Falls Utilities Board of Trustees 
present: Taylor, Johnson, McAlister, Engel and Soneson. City staff members 
present: Administrator Gaines, City Directors Rodenbeck, Olson, Ripplinger, 
Schrage and Sheetz, City Attorney Rogers, Communications Specialist 
Huisman and City Clerk Danielsen. Utilities staff members present: General 
Manager Bernard, Attorney Abernathy, Directors Forehner, Houlihan and 
Skubal, Marketing Manager Strouse and Clerk Weber. 
 
Mayor Brown called the meeting to order at 2:00 p.m. and introduced Cedar 
Falls Utilities General Manager Steve Bernard.  Mr. Bernard presented 
information on rate comparisons, emission evaluation and planning, electric 
vehicle plans, communication utility update and challenges ahead. 
 
Mayor Brown then introduced City Administrator Ron Gaines.  Mr. Gaines 
presented information on city reorganization, city financial information, 
building permit activity, infrastructure projects, planning & quality of life 
projects, economic development, public safety updates and long-term climate 
action plan. 
 
There was general discussion after each presentation. There being no further 
business, the meeting adjourned at 3:40 p.m. 
 
Minutes by Jacqueline Danielsen, City Clerk 

 
 

45

ITEM  15.



46

ITEM  16.



47

ITEM  16.



48

ITEM  16.



49

ITEM  16.



50

ITEM  16.



51

ITEM  16.



52

ITEM  16.



53

ITEM  16.



54

ITEM  16.



55

ITEM  16.



56

ITEM  16.



57

ITEM  16.



58

ITEM  16.



59

ITEM  16.



60

ITEM  16.



61

ITEM  16.



62

ITEM  16.



63

ITEM  16.



64

ITEM  16.



65

ITEM  16.



66

ITEM  16.



67

ITEM  16.



68

ITEM  16.



69

ITEM  16.



70

ITEM  16.



71

ITEM  16.



72

ITEM  16.



73

ITEM  16.



74

ITEM  16.



75

ITEM  16.



76

ITEM  16.



77

ITEM  16.



78

ITEM  16.



79

ITEM  16.



80

ITEM  16.



81

ITEM  16.



82

ITEM  16.



83

ITEM  16.



84

ITEM  16.



85

ITEM  16.



86

ITEM  16.



87

ITEM  16.



88

ITEM  16.



89

ITEM  16.



90

ITEM  16.



91

ITEM  16.



92

ITEM  16.



93

ITEM  16.



94

ITEM  16.



95

ITEM  16.



96

ITEM  16.



97

ITEM  16.



98

ITEM  16.



99

ITEM  16.



100

ITEM  16.



101

ITEM  16.



102

ITEM  16.



103

ITEM  16.



104

ITEM  16.



105

ITEM  16.



106

ITEM  16.



107

ITEM  16.



108

ITEM  16.



109

ITEM  16.



110

ITEM  16.



111

ITEM  16.



112

ITEM  16.



113

ITEM  16.



114

ITEM  16.



115

ITEM  16.



116

ITEM  16.



117

ITEM  16.



118

ITEM  16.



119

ITEM  16.



120

ITEM  16.



121

ITEM  16.



 
 

 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor James T. Brown and City Council  

 FROM: David Sturch, Planner III 

 DATE: July 31, 2019 

SUBJECT: Temporary Sign Request 
 Downtown Shuttle Bus 
  
This office received the attached request from Community Main Street to install 
temporary signs in the public right of way that will advertise the downtown shuttle bus. 
The shuttle bus runs on Thursday, Friday and Saturday evenings throughout the 
summer months from 6:00 pm to 9:00 pm. 
 
Cedar Falls Community Main Street requests permission from the City of Cedar Falls to 
place promotional signs for the downtown shuttle bus service. The signs will be similar 
in size to a typical “political” sign, measuring 24” wide by 18” tall mounted on a wire 
frame at various locations along the bus route in downtown Cedar Falls. The signs will 
be displayed on Thursday, Friday and Saturday to to promote the shuttle service. 
Typically these temporary sign requests are for a limited time but staff finds this as an 
acceptable solution to create awareness of the shuttle service in order to alleviate 
parking concerns in downtown Cedar Falls and help make this a successful service to 
the community and its visitors. 
 
Community Main Street will be responsible to put out and remove the signs each week. 
The signs will be placed in the right of way that will not obstruct the vision of motorists. 
 
The Department of Community Development recommends approval to display the 
temporary signs at along the bus route during the operation of the downtown shuttle 
service. 
 
If you have any questions or need additional information, please feel free to contact this 
office. 

122

ITEM  17.



206 Main Street, Suite B
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613

Phone: 319-277-0213
communitymainst@cfu.net
www.communitymainstreet.org

310 East 4th Street
Cedar Falls, IA 50613

Phone: 319-277-0213
www.communitymainstreet.org

2019-2020
Board of Directors:

Amy Mohr - Chair
Natalie Brown
Matt Dunning
Crystal Ford
Wynette Froehner
Lexie Heath
Ty Kimble
Audrey Kittrell
Dan Lynch
Jessica Marsh
Clark Rickard
Stephanie Sheetz
Julie Shimek
Mark Showalter
Brad Strouse

July 22, 2019

Dear David and members of City Council, 

Thank you for providing and coordinating the MET transit shuttle service on 
Thursday, Friday and Saturday nights in the Cedar Falls Downtown District. This 
service provides an alternative method for guests to navigate into and throughout 
the neighborhood during the time parking demand is at its peak. 

In order to help increase awareness of the shuttle service, Community Main Street 
would like to put out temporary yard signage throughout the district Thursday – 
Sundays during the months of operation. A visual reminder of the shuttle service 
alternative while guests are actively seeking a parking place will increase the 
likelihood of shuttle use and create goodwill with those wishing to patronize district 
businesses.  

A maximum of 20 signs are available for placement at Gateway Park, along 
Washington Street, State Street and Main Street. Plans have also been made to 
place signs near the parking lot entrances. Three different versions of the sign have 
been created, each with a unique message related to the service. Copies of the signs 
are attached. Community Main Street respectfully requests city council permission 
to put out the signs along the public right of way during shuttle operation. We will 
be responsible to put out and pick up the signs each week. 

We at Community Main Street appreciate the partnership we have developed with 
the city to address the citizen’s parking concerns. Thank you for your consideration 
of our request to promote our efforts with the citizens and guests of Cedar Falls.

Regards,

Carol Lilly
Executive Director

123

ITEM  17.



Downtown shuttle
sign examples

1
8

”

24”

124

ITEM  17.



125

ITEM  17.



   DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES 

  POLICE OPERATIONS 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 

  4600 SOUTH MAIN STREET 
  CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 

  319-273-8612 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To:  Mayor Brown and City Councilmembers 

From:  Jeff Olson, Public Safety Services Director/Chief of Police 

Date:  July 31, 2019 

Re:  Special Event Related Requests 

Police Operations has received the following special event related requests and 
recommends approval:  

a) Street closures, Fondo Cedar Valley Bike Ride, August 17, 2019. 

b) Parking variance, Campus Street (students moving in), August 19-23, 2019. 

c) Street closure, West 5th Street (block/retirement party), August 31, 2019. 

d) Scott Sterrett Memorial Half Marathon, September 7, 2019. 

e) Closure of a portion of Municipal Lot G, Pear Fair & Oktoberfest, September 27-30, 
2019. 

126

ITEM  18.



127

ITEM  18.



128

ITEM  18.



129

ITEM  18.



130

ITEM  18.



131

ITEM  18.



132

ITEM  18.



133

ITEM  18.



134

ITEM  18.



135

ITEM  18.



136

ITEM  18.



137

ITEM  18.



138

ITEM  18.



139

ITEM  18.



140

ITEM  18.



141

ITEM  18.



142

ITEM  18.



143

ITEM  18.



144

ITEM  18.



145

ITEM  18.



146

ITEM  19.



147

ITEM  19.



148

ITEM  19.



   DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES 

  POLICE OPERATIONS 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 

  4600 SOUTH MAIN STREET 
  CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 

  319-273-8612 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To:  Mayor Brown and City Councilmembers 

From:  Jeff Olson, Public Safety Services Director/Chief of Police 

Date:  August 1, 2019 

Re:  Beer/Liquor License Applications 

Police Operations has received applications for liquor licenses and/ or wine or beer 
permits. We find no records that would prohibit these license and permits and 
recommend approval. 

Name of Applicants:  

a) Vintage Iron, 104 Main Street, Class B native wine - renewal. 

b) The Black Hawk Hotel/Bar Winslow/Farm Shed, 115-119 Main Street, Class B 
liquor, Class B wine & outdoor service - renewal. 

c) Octopus, 2205 College Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal. 

d) The Library, 2222 College Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal. 

e) The Other Place, 4214 University Avenue, Class C liquor & outdoor service - 
renewal. 

f) Texas Roadhouse, 5715 University Avenue, Class C liquor - change in ownership. 

g) The Pump Haus Pub & Grill, 311 Main Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - 
sidewalk café. 

h) Community Main Street (FondoFest), Overman Park, Special Class C liquor & 
outdoor service - 5-day permit. 

149

ITEM  20.



150

ITEM  21.



151

ITEM  21.



152

ITEM  21.



153

ITEM  21.



154

ITEM  22.



155

ITEM  22.



156

ITEM  22.



157

ITEM  22.



158

ITEM  22.



159

ITEM  23.



160

ITEM  23.



161

ITEM  23.



162

ITEM  23.



163

ITEM  24.



164

ITEM  24.



165

ITEM  24.



166

ITEM  24.



167

ITEM  25.



168

ITEM  25.



169

ITEM  25.



170

ITEM  25.



171

ITEM  26.



172

ITEM  26.



173

ITEM  26.



174

ITEM  26.



175

ITEM  27.



176

ITEM  27.



177

ITEM  27.



178

ITEM  27.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

 
City of Cedar Falls  
220 Clay Street  
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613   
www.cedarfalls.com  

 
Administration Division  Planning & Community Services Division 

Phone: 319-273-8600  Fax: 319-273-8610 
 

Engineering Division  Inspection Services Division 
Phone: 319-268-5161  Fax: 319-268-5197 

 
Water Reclamation Division 

Phone: 319-273-8633  Fax: 319-268-5566 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

  

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 

 FROM: Terra Ray, Engineer Tech II 

 DATE: July 31, 2019 

 SUBJECT: W. 1
st
 Street Reconstruction Project  

  Project # RC-000-3118 
  State Project # STP-57-2(28)-2C-07 
 
The City of Cedar Falls is working with the Iowa Department of Transportation on the 
reconstruction to W. 1

st
 Street from Hudson Road to the Center/Franklin Street intersection. The 

project is in the final design phase, acquisitions of the necessary right of way needs are 
underway to meet the DOT and City’s funding years for construction. The road construction will 
take place in 2019-2020. This project includes a total reconstruction of the roadway from a four 
lane to a five lane facility. The project identifies the need for total acquisitions from three (3) 
properties and partial acquisitions from 68 properties. 
 
Attached is the Claim for Relocation Reimbursement for Parcel 43. Staff recommends that the 
City Council state their support in approving the Claim for Relocation Reimbursements. 
 
 
 
 
xc: Stephanie Sheetz, Director 
 Chase Schrage, Principal Engineer 
 David Sturch, Planner III 
  

179

ITEM  28.



180

ITEM  28.



181

ITEM  28.



182

ITEM  28.



183

ITEM  28.



184

ITEM  28.



185

ITEM  28.



186

ITEM  28.



187

ITEM  28.



188

ITEM  28.



189

ITEM  28.



190

ITEM  28.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council  
 
 FROM: Ben Claypool, Civil Engineer II, PhD, EI 
 
 DATE: July 31, 2019 
 
 SUBJECT: South Main Street Parking Lot 
  Project No. PL-159-3202 
  Contract Documents 
 
Attached for your approval are the Form of Contract, the Performance, Payment, and 
Maintenance Bonds, Certificates of Insurance, and Form of Proposal with K. 
Cunningham Construction Company, Inc. for the construction of the South Main Street 
Parking Lot Project. 
 
The Department of Public Works recommends approving and executing the contract 
with K. Cunningham Construction Company, Inc. for the construction of the South Main 
Street Parking Lot Project. This project involves the construction of a small parking lot to 
provide public access to the Cedar Prairie Trail on South Main Street, just west of 
Oregon Road. There will be 8 standard and 1 handicap accessible parking stalls. This 
project also includes the construction of approximately 500 feet of PCC shoulder along 
South Main Street from Oregon Road north to the Highway 58 Bridge. 
 
If you have any questions or comments feel free to contact me.  
 
 
xc:  Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 Stephanie Houk Sheetz,  Director of Community Development 
  

 
 
 
 

191

ITEM  29.



192

ITEM  29.



193

ITEM  29.



194

ITEM  29.



195

ITEM  29.



196

ITEM  29.



197

ITEM  29.



198

ITEM  29.



199

ITEM  29.



200

ITEM  29.



201

ITEM  29.



202

ITEM  29.



203

ITEM  29.



204

ITEM  29.



205

ITEM  29.



206

ITEM  29.



207

ITEM  29.



208

ITEM  29.



209

ITEM  29.



210

ITEM  29.



211

ITEM  29.



212

ITEM  29.



213

ITEM  29.



214

ITEM  29.



215

ITEM  29.



216

ITEM  29.



217

ITEM  29.



218

ITEM  29.



219

ITEM  29.



220

ITEM  29.



221

ITEM  29.



222

ITEM  29.



223

ITEM  29.



224

ITEM  29.



225

ITEM  29.



226

ITEM  29.



227

ITEM  29.



228

ITEM  29.



229

ITEM  29.



230

ITEM  29.



231

ITEM  29.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 
 FROM: Ben Claypool, Civil Engineer II, PhD, EI 
 
 DATE: July 26, 2019 
 
 SUBJECT: Western Home Communities 9th Addition 
  Contract for Completion of Improvements 
  Project No. SU – 217 – 3193 
 
The developer of the above-mentioned project, Western Home Independent Living 
Services, Inc., has requested Final Plat approval in order to proceed with the sale of lots 
in the development. Wayne Claassen Engineering and Surveying, Inc., the developer’s 
engineer, has submitted the estimate of remaining costs for completion of 
improvements. The developer has submitted a “Contract for Completion of 
Improvements” and established a cash escrow in the amount of $941,000.00 to ensure 
completion of the project. A copy of the Final Plat is attached for your reference. 
  
The Engineering Division has reviewed the cost estimate for the remaining work and 
concur that the amount of the escrow account is adequate to complete the project.  The 
“Contract for Completion of Improvements” is based on the standard forms developed 
by our City Attorney. The developer has also provided a Maintenance Bond in the full 
amount of the public improvements that will be on file until final acceptance of the 
project by City Council. We recommend approval of the “Contract for Completion of 
Improvements”. 
 
 
xc:   Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Community Development 
 
 

232

ITEM  30.



233

ITEM  30.



234

ITEM  30.



235

ITEM  30.



236

ITEM  30.



Exhibit A – Legal Description 
 
Western Home Communities Ninth Addition 
 
Tract 'E', Western Home Communities Seventh Addition, Document No. 2016-16744 in the Black Hawk 
County Recorder's Office, Cedar Falls, Black Hawk County, Iowa. 
 
AND 
 
That part of Lot Sixteen (16), aforesaid Western Home Communities Seventh Addition, described as 
follows: 
 
Beginning at the Southeast corner of said Lot Sixteen (16); thence N00o31’08”W One Hundred Thirty-
four and Six Hundredths (134.06) feet along the East line of said Lot Sixteen (16); thence S89o28'52"W 
Two Hundred Twenty-five (225.00) feet to the West line of said Lot Sixteen (16); thence S00o31'08"E 
One Hundred Fifty-six and Twenty-eight Hundredths (156.28) foot along said West line; thence 
Southerly Twenty-three and Ninety-seven Hundredths (23.97) feet along the Southwesterly line of said 
Lot Sixteen (16) and along the arc of a curve concave Northeasterly having a radius of Fifteen (15.00) 
feet and a chord of Twenty-one and Fifty Hundredths (21.50) feet which bears S46o18'09"E; thence 
Easterly Two Hundred Thirteen and Sixty-five (213.65) feet along the Southerly line of said Lot Sixteen 
(16) and along the arc of a curve concave Northerly having a radius of Seven Hundred Twenty (720.00) 
feet and a chord of Two Hundred Twelve and Eighty-seven Hundredths (212.87) feet which bears 
N79o24'47"E to the point of beginning containing 0.82 acres 
 
AND 
 
That part of Lot One (01) and Lot Two (02) Western Home Communities Eighth Addition, described as 
follows: 
 
Beginning at the Northeast corner aforesaid Lot One (01); thence S00o31'08"E Seventy-six and Twenty-
four Hundredths (76.24) foot along the East line of said Lot One (01); thence S89o28'52"W Sixty (60.00) 
feet along said East line; thence N00o31'08"W Seventy-six and Twenty-four Hundredths (76.24) foot 
along the Northerly extension of the East line of said Lot One (01) to the North line of said Lot One (01); 
thence continue N00o31'08"W One Hundred Thirty-five and Sixty-one Hundredths (135.61) foot still on 
said Northerly extension to the East line of aforesaid Lot Two (02); thence N89o28'52"E Fifty-five and 
Seventy-two Hundredths (55.72) feet along said East line; thence Easterly Four and Twenty-eight 
Hundredths (4.28) feet along said East line and along the arc of a curve concave Northerly having a 
radius of Seven Hundred Eighty-four (784.00) feet with a chord of Four and Twenty-eight Hundredths 
(4.28) feet which bears N89o19'29"E; thence S00o31'08"E One Hundred Thirty-five and Sixty-two 
Hundredths (135.62) feet along the East line of aforesaid Lot Two (02) to the point of beginning 
containing 12,711 square feet. 

 

237

ITEM  30.



                             















LOT  1

LOT  2

LOT  3

LOT  4

LOT  6

LOT  7

LOT  8

LOT  5

LOT  9

LOT  10

LOT  11

LOT  14

LOT  13

LOT  12

LOT  16

LOT  15





























LOT  17

LOT  18

238

ITEM  30.



239

ITEM  30.



240

ITEM  30.



241

ITEM  30.



242

ITEM  30.



243

ITEM  30.



244

ITEM  30.



245

ITEM  30.



246

ITEM  30.



247

ITEM  30.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 
 FROM: Ben Claypool, Civil Engineer II, PhD, EI 
 
 DATE: July 31, 2019 
 
 SUBJECT: Park Ridge Estates 
  Contract for Completion of Improvements 
  Project No. SU – 345 – 3186 
 
The developer of the above-mentioned project, BJW Holdings, LLC, has requested 
Final Plat approval in order to proceed with the sale of lots in the development. 
Clapsaddle-Garber Associates, Inc, the developer’s engineer, has submitted the 
estimate of remaining costs for completion of improvements. The developer has 
submitted a “Contract for Completion of Improvements” and established a performance 
bond in the amount of $324,298.32 to ensure completion of the project. A copy of the 
Final Plat is attached for your reference. 
  
The Engineering Division has reviewed the cost estimate for the remaining work and 
concur that the amount of the escrow account is adequate to complete the project.  The 
“Contract for Completion of Improvements” is based on the standard forms developed 
by our City Attorney. The developer has also provided a Maintenance Bond in the full 
amount of the public improvements that will be on file until final acceptance of the 
project by City Council. We recommend approval of the “Contract for Completion of 
Improvements”. 
 
 
xc: Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Community Development   
  

248

ITEM  31.



249

ITEM  31.



250

ITEM  31.



251

ITEM  31.



Exhibit A – Legal Description 
 
Park Ridge Estates 
 
That Part of the Northwest Quarter (NW ¼), of the Southeast Quarter (SE ¼) of the Section Three (3) 
Township Eighty-Nine North (T89N), Range Fourteen West (R14W) of the Fifth Principal Meridian in the 
City of Cedar Falls, Black Hawk, County, Iowa, Lying North of Lakewood Hills, Except the East Six Hundred 
Five (605) Feet Thereof. 
 
Also 
 
That Part of the Northwest Quarter (NW ¼), of the Southeast Quarter (SE ¼) of the Section Three (3) 
Township Eighty-Nine North (T89N), Range Fourteen West (R14W) of the Fifth Principal Meridian in the 
City of Cedar Falls, Black Hawk, County, Iowa, Lying North of Lakewood Hills, Except the West One 
Thousand Two Hundred Forty-Eight (1,248) Feet Thereof. 

252

ITEM  31.



LINE DATA
LINE NUMBER

L1

L2

L3

BEARING

N66°55'24"W

N21°27'19"W

N24°58'12"E

DISTANCE

37.54'

41.96'

42.01'

CURVE TABLE
CURVE DATA

C1

C2

C3

C4

C5

C6

C7

C8

ARC LENGTH

21.55'

77.25'

47.22'

48.21'

47.22'

69.61'

21.55'

289.51'

RADIUS

25.00'

59.50'

59.50'

59.50'

59.50'

59.50'

25.00'

59.50'

DELTA ANGLE

49°23'29"

74°23'29"

45°27'58"

46°25'32"

45°27'58"

67°02'03"

49°23'29"

278°46'58"

CHORD BEARING

N26°37'02"W

N14°07'02"W

N45°48'42"E

S88°14'34"E

S42°17'49"E

S13°57'11"W

S22°46'28"W

N88°04'43"E

CHORD

20.89'

71.94'

45.99'

46.90'

45.99'

65.71'

20.89'

77.46'

Clapsaddle-Garber Associates, Inc

www.cgaconsultants.com
Toll Free (800) 542-7981

SHEET NO.

DRAWN:
CHECKED:

DATE:
DATE:

APPROVED: DATE:

PROJECT NO.DESIGNED: DATE:REVISIONNO. DATEBY DATEBYREVISIONNO.

J:
\5

69
4\

dw
g\

Su
rv

ey
\F

in
al

 P
la

t\5
69

4-
Fi

na
l P

la
t.d

wg
 - 

FP
-1

 - 
 0

7-
17

-1
9 

- 4
:0

4p
m

 - 
LC

B3
55

CGA PARK RIDGE ESTATES SUBDIVISION
1 OF 5

5694.05

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA FINAL PLATSJC

JAH

PARK RIDGE ESTATES SUBDIVISION FINAL PLAT
BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IOWA

GOVERNMENT CORNER MONUMENT FOUND

(  )    RECORDED AS

PARCEL OR LOT CORNER MONUMENT FOUND

LEGEND:

Pages or sheets covered by this seal:

Professional Land Surveyor under the laws of the State of Iowa.
my direct personal supervision and that I am a duly Licensed
and the related survey work was performed by me or under
I hereby certify that this land surveying document was prepared

date

WI O A

EDL
EIC NS

P
R

O
F

E
SS IONAL L AND SUR

V
E

Y
O

RSET 1/2" x 30" REBAR w/BLUE PLASTIC
ID CAP #22259

GOVERNMENT CORNER MONUMENT SET 1/2" x 30"
REBAR w/BLUE PLASTIC ID CAP #22259

Iowa License Number 22259
My License Renewal Date is December 31, 2019

JEREMY A. HARRIS, PLS22259

JE

REMY  A .  HARRIS

SHEETS 1 OF 5, 2 OF 5, 3 OF 5, 4 OF 5, AND 5 OF 5.

FINAL PLAT
PARK RIDGE ESTATES SUBDIVISION

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA

PROPRIETOR
BJW HOLDINGS LLC
2110 FLYNN DRIVE
CEDAR FALLS, IA 50613

DEVELOPER

ZONING INFORMATION:
CURRENT: R1 (RESIDENTIAL)

BRIAN WINGERT
2021 MAIN ST., SUITE A
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA  50613

SURVEYOR AND ENGINEER
JEREMY A. HARRIS, P.L.S.
ADAM DATERS, P.E.
CLAPSADDLE-GARBER ASSOCIATES
P.O. BOX 754 - 16 E. MAIN STREET
MARSHALLTOWN, IOWA 50158
(641)752-6701

NOTE:
ALL BEARINGS ARE THE RESULT OF G.P.S. OBSERVATIONS
USING NAD83 IOWA STATE PLAN NORTH ZONE

CLOSURE:
- ALL SUBDIVISION BOUNDARIES ARE WITHIN THE 1:10,000 ERROR OF

CLOSURE REQUIREMENT
- ALL LOTS ARE WITHIN THE 1:5000 ERROR OF CLOSURE REQUIREMENT.

VICINITY MAP
NOT TO SCALE

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

DATE PREPARED:6/24/2019

THAT PART OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER (NW 1/4), OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER (SE 1/4) OF SECTION THREE (3), TOWNSHIP
EIGHTY-NINE NORTH (T89N), RANGE FOURTEEN WEST (R14W) OF THE FIFTH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN IN THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS,
BLACK HAWK, COUNTY, IOWA, LYING NORTH OF LAKEWOOD HILLS, EXCEPT THE EAST SIX HUNDRED FIVE (605) FEET THEREOF.

ALSO

THAT PART OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER (NE 1/4), OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER (SW 1/4) OF SECTION THREE (3), TOWNSHIP
EIGHTY-NINE NORTH (T89N), RANGE FOURTEEN WEST (R14W) OF THE FIFTH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN IN THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS,
BLACK HAWK, COUNTY, IOWA, LYING NORTH OF LAKEWOOD HILLS, EXCEPT THE WEST ONE THOUSAND TWO HUNDRED
FORTY-EIGHT (1,248) FEET THEREOF

PROJECT
LOCATION

N

SETBACK DATA

LOT 1            15.9'              30'

LOT 2            14.8               30'

LOT 3             7.5                30'

LOT 4             7.5                30'

LOT 5            11.0               30'

LOT 6            20.0               30'

LOT NO         SIDE          REAR
(GROSS-ACRES) (EASE-ACRES) (NET-ACRES)

NE 1/4 SW 1/4
SEC 3-89-14

18.49 AC 18.49 AC0.00 AC

2.22 AC 2.22 AC0.00 AC

NW 1/4 SE 1/4
SEC 3-89-14

TOTAL 20.71 AC 20.71 AC0.00 AC

SHEET INDEX
SHEET NO. DESCRIPTION
   1 OF 5 TITLE SHEET
   2 OF 5  FINAL PLAT
   3 OF 5  FINAL PLAT EASEMENTS
   4 OF 5  FINAL PLAT EASEMENTS
   5 OF 5  FINAL PLAT EASEMENTS

TRACT USE TABLE

TRACT "A" STREET R.O.W.

OUTLOT "A" TO BE USED FOR EXPANSION OF A YARD FOR DEAN AND
ROBYN ANDERSON AND SUBSEQUENT OWNERS. OUTLOT
"A" WILL BE A PART OF AN UNPLATTED CEDAR FALLS NE SW
LOT WITH THE ADDRESS BEING 3316 SKYVIEW DR, CEDAR
FALLS, IA 50613.

OUTLOT "B" RESERVED FOR FURTHER DEVELOPMENT PENDING
FLOOD MAP REVISIONS.

OUTLOT "C" TO BE CONVEYED TO THE OWNER OF LOT 1.

OUTLOT "D" TO BE CONVEYED TO THE OWNER OF LOT 2.

OUTLOT "E" TO BE CONVEYED TO THE OWNER OF LOT 3.

OUTLOT "F" TO BE CONVEYED TO THE OWNER OF LOT 4.

OUTLOT "G" STORM WATER MANAGEMENT

OUTLOT "H" STORM WATER MANAGEMENT

253

ITEM  31.



SEWER EASEMENT

ACCESS
EASEMENT

CONSERVATION
EASEMENT FOR

OUTLOT B

R59.50'
158.72'

CENTER
SECTION 3-89-14
FND 1" PINCHED PIPE

FND 1/2" REBAR
w/ YPC #8033

FND 1/2" REBAR
w/ YPC #8033

FND 1/2" REBAR
w/ YPC #8033

FND 1" PINCHED PIPE

FND 1/2" REBAR
w/ YPC #8033

FND 1" PINCHED PIPE FND 5/8" REBAR FND 5/8" REBAR FND 5/8" REBAR
FND REBAR
w/ OPC #12088

FND REBAR
w/ OPC #12088

FND REBAR
w/ OPC #12088

FND 5/8" REBAR

FND 1/2" REBAR

LOT 1
32,428 SF
0.75 AC LOT 2

31,362 SF
0.72 AC

LOT 3
95,764 SF
2.20 AC

LOT 4
79,581 SF
1.83 AC

LOT 5
62,775 SF
1.44 AC

LOT 6
90,505 SF
2.08 AC

OUTLOT "C"
CONSERVATION EASEMENT

17,878 SF
0.41 AC

OUTLOT "D"
CONSERVATION EASEMENT

26,369 SF
0.61 AC

OUTLOT "E"
CONSERVATION EASEMENT

156,103 SF
3.58 AC

TRACT  "A"
34,757 SF
0.80 AC

100' SEWER
EASEMENT

10'

OUTLOT "A"
38,535 SF
0.88 AC

RESERVED FOR FURTHER
DEVELOPMENT PENDING
FLOOD MAP REVISIONS.

TO BE CONVEYED TO THE
OWNER OF LOT 1.

TO BE CONVEYED TO THE
OWNER OF LOT 3.

TO BE CONVEYED TO THE
OWNER OF LOT 4.

TO BE CONVEYED TO THE
OWNER OF LOT 2.

OUTLOT "F"
CONSERVATION EASEMENT

120,567 SF
2.77 AC

OUTLOT "B"
72,567 SF
1.67 AC

OUTLOT G
22,381 SF
0.51 AC

OUTLOT H
20,852 SF
0.48 AC

15' DRAINAGE
EASEMENT

25
' D

R
A

IN
A

G
E

E
A

S
E

M
E

N
T

20
' S

A
N

 S
E

W
E

R
E

A
S

E
M

E
N

T

164.81'

30'
INGRESS/EGRESS

EASEMENT

80
7.

40
'

S
89

°0
4'

58
"W

1121.06'
S1°44'27"E

1120.89'
N1°31'03"W

71
6.

75
' (

71
7.

10
')

N
89

°0
1'

37
"E

 (
N

89
°0

5'
21

"E
)

86
.2

8'
N

89
°2

7'
58

"E

385.39'
N1°55'17"W

C1

C2

C3

C
4

C5

C6

C7
386.44'

S1°55'17"E60
.0

1'

33
3.

52
'

N
89

°0
4'

58
"E 35

5.
06

'

N52
°1

3'5
4"

W

L1

L2

L3

L4

249.10'
N1°45'50"E

263.67'
N1°45'50"E

289.63'
S67°33'15"W

332.30'
N1°45'50"E

99
.60

'

N45
°2

8'3
0"

W

334.25'

N14°33'40"E

17
5.

87
'

N
89

°0
4'

58
"E

175.09'
N

82°17'06"E

385.35'
N1°31'03"W

174.33'N3°56'45"E
164.42'

N6°36'27"E

81
.6

3'
S

89
°0

4'
58

"W

223.66'
N0°55'02"W

11
1.

51
'

S
89

°0
4'

58
"W

11
3.

80
'

N
89

°0
4'

58
"E

38
6.

28
'

N
83

°2
6'

52
"W

21
2.

48
'

N
89

°0
4'

58
"E

619.21'
163.02'

180.12'

15.00'
158.70' 49.96'

41
1.

16
'

23
6.

23
'

10
0.

01
'

385.35'
326.07' 127.45' 282.01'

34
6.

14
'

40
.1

4'

43.86'

245.78'

40
1.

53
'

31
5.

22
'

50.40' 114.02'

159.27'

180.13' 158.72' 47.59'

10' PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT

10' PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT

57
1.

24
'

S
70

°3
1'

06
"W

26
0.

00
'

S
89

°0
1'

37
"W

159.77'

100.01'

C
8

2632.46'
N1°31'03"WTO BE USED FOR EXPANSION OF A YARD FOR DEAN AND ROBYN

ANDERSON AND SUBSEQUENT OWNERS. OUTLOT "A" WILL BE A

PART OF AN UNPLATTED CEDAR FALLS NE SW LOT WITH THE

ADDRESS BEING 3316 SKYVIEW DR, CEDAR FALLS, IA 50613.

30' FRONT SETBACK (TYP.)

30' REAR SETBACK (TYP.)

971.50' (971.44')

60
.0

0'

20' SAN SEWER

EASEMENT

WEST LINE OF THE SE 1/4
SECTION 3-89-14

3.78'
STORM WATER MANAGEMENT

STORM WATER MANAGEMENT

20
' A

C
C

E
S

S
E

A
S

E
M

E
N

T

19
6.

20
'

N
89

°0
4'

58
"E

30' DRAINAGE
EASEMENT

10
3.

01
'

N
89

°0
4'

58
"E

15.06'

40' SEWER
EASEMENT

S 1/4 CORNER
SECTION 3-89-14

FND CUT "X"

N

0

GRAPHIC SCALE

100'50' 150'

Clapsaddle-Garber Associates, Inc

www.cgaconsultants.com
Toll Free (800) 542-7981

SHEET NO.

DRAWN:
CHECKED:

DATE:
DATE:

APPROVED: DATE:

PROJECT NO.DESIGNED: DATE:REVISIONNO. DATEBY DATEBYREVISIONNO.

J:
\5

69
4\

dw
g\

Su
rv

ey
\F

in
al

 P
la

t\5
69

4-
Fi

na
l P

la
t.d

wg
 - 

FP
-2

 - 
 0

7-
17

-1
9 

- 4
:0

4p
m

 - 
LC

B3
55

CGA PARK RIDGE ESTATES SUBDIVISION
2 OF 5

5694.05

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA FINAL PLATSJC

JAH

FINAL PLAT
PARK RIDGE ESTATES SUBDIVISION

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA

SHEET INDEX
SHEET NO. DESCRIPTION
   1 OF 5 TITLE SHEET
   2 OF 5  FINAL PLAT
   3 OF 5  FINAL PLAT EASEMENTS
   4 OF 5  FINAL PLAT EASEMENTS
   5 OF 5  FINAL PLAT EASEMENTS

SCALE: 1" = 50' (22x34 SHEET)
1" = 100' (11x17 SHEET)

NORTH LINE
LAKEWOOD HILLS

NORTH LINE
LAKEWOOD ESTATES

FOUND 1"
PINCHED PIPE

ACCESS EASEMENT

SEWER EASEMENT

LEGEND

SAN SEWER EASEMENT

254

ITEM  31.



LOT 1
LOT 2

LOT 3

LOT 4LOT 5LOT 6

OUTLOT "C"
CONSERVATION EASEMENT

OUTLOT "D"
CONSERVATION EASEMENT

OUTLOT "E"
CONSERVATION EASEMENT

TRACT  "A"

100' SEWER
EASEMENT

10'

20
' A

C
C

E
S

S
E

A
S

E
M

E
N

T

SEWER EASEMENTOUTLOT "A"

OUTLOT "F"
CONSERVATION EASEMENT

OUTLOT "B"

30' DRAINAGE
EASEMENTACCESS

EASEMENT

OUTLOT G

OUTLOT H

15' DRAINAGE
EASEMENT

25
' D

R
A

IN
A

G
E

E
A

S
E

M
E

N
T

20
' S

A
N

 S
E

W
E

R
E

A
S

E
M

E
N

T

164.81'

CONSERVATION
EASEMENT FOR

OUTLOT B

30'
INGRESS/EGRESS

EASEMENT

10' PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT

10' PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT

R59.50'

CENTER
SECTION 3-89-14
FND 1" PINCHED PIPE

FND 1/2" REBAR
w/ YPC #8033

FND 1/2" REBAR
w/ YPC #8033

FND 1/2" REBAR
w/ YPC #8033

FND 1" PINCHED PIPE

FND 1/2" REBAR
w/ YPC #8033

FND 1" PINCHED PIPE FND 5/8" REBAR FND 5/8" REBAR FND 5/8" REBAR
FND REBAR
w/ OPC #12088

FND REBAR
w/ OPC #12088

FND REBAR
w/ OPC #12088

FND 5/8" REBAR

FND 1/2" REBAR

282.01'

CENTERLINE 40'
SEWER EASEMENT

131.66'

16.45'

20'
20'

10
'

10
'

80
7.

40
'

S
89

°0
4'

58
"W

1121.06'
S1°44'27"E

1120.89'
N1°31'03"W

71
6.

75
' (

71
7.

10
')

N
89

°0
1'

37
"E

 (
N

89
°0

5'
21

"E
)

86
.2

8'
N

89
°2

7'
58

"E

60
.0

1'

57
1.

24
'

S
70

°3
1'

06
"W

26
0.

00
'

S
89

°0
1'

37
"W

159.77'

100.01'

2632.46'
N1°31'03"W

18
5.

46
'

N
89

°1
1'

16
"W

23
4.

94
'

N
76

°1
7'

44
"W

213.02'
N

81°17'29"E

336.39'
S6°36'27"W

20' SAN SEWER

EASEMENT

WEST LINE OF THE SE 1/4
SECTION 3-89-14

3.78'

S 1/4 CORNER
SECTION 3-89-14

FND CUT "X"

N

0

GRAPHIC SCALE

100'50' 150'

Clapsaddle-Garber Associates, Inc

www.cgaconsultants.com
Toll Free (800) 542-7981

SHEET NO.

DRAWN:
CHECKED:

DATE:
DATE:

APPROVED: DATE:

PROJECT NO.DESIGNED: DATE:REVISIONNO. DATEBY DATEBYREVISIONNO.

J:
\5

69
4\

dw
g\

Su
rv

ey
\F

in
al

 P
la

t\5
69

4-
Fi

na
l P

la
t S

he
et

 3
 o

f 4
.d

wg
 - 

FP
-3

 - 
 0

7-
17

-1
9 

- 4
:0

5p
m

 - 
LC

B3
55

CGA PARK RIDGE ESTATES SUBDIVISION
3 OF 5

5694.05

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA FINAL PLATSJC

JAH

FINAL PLAT
PARK RIDGE ESTATES SUBDIVISION

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA

LOT 1

OUTLOT 2

7.
46

'

11.89'

CENTERLINE 20'
SANITARY SEWER

EASEMENT

O
U

TL
O

T 
"B

"
C

E
N

TE
R

LI
N

E
 4

0'
S

E
W

E
R

 E
A

S
E

M
E

N
T

SEE DETAIL "A"

DETAIL "A"
SCALE 1" = 20' (22x34 SHEET)

1" = 40' (11x17 SHEET)

LOT 2

LOT 3

CL 20' S
ANITARY

SEWER EASEMENT

SEE DETAIL "B"

LOT LINE

D=4°00'55"
L=4.17'

CH=4.17'
CH=N21°34'18"W

R=59.50'

10
'

10
'

10' 10'

DETAIL "B"
SCALE 1" = 20' (22x34 SHEET)

1" = 40' (11x17 SHEET)

SHEET INDEX
SHEET NO. DESCRIPTION
   1 OF 5 TITLE SHEET
   2 OF 5  FINAL PLAT
   3 OF 5  FINAL PLAT EASEMENTS
   4 OF 5  FINAL PLAT EASEMENTS
   5 OF 5  FINAL PLAT EASEMENTS

SCALE: 1" = 50' (22x34 SHEET)
1" = 100' (11x17 SHEET)

NORTH LINE
LAKEWOOD HILLS

NORTH LINE
LAKEWOOD ESTATES

FOUND 1"
PINCHED PIPE

LEGEND

SEWER EASEMENT

SAN SEWER EASEMENT

255

ITEM  31.



100' SEWER
EASEMENT

10'

30' DRAINAGE
EASEMENTACCESS

EASEMENT

15' DRAINAGE
EASEMENT

25
' D

R
A

IN
A

G
E

E
A

S
E

M
E

N
T

20
' S

A
N

 S
E

W
E

R
E

A
S

E
M

E
N

T

CONSERVATION
EASEMENT FOR

OUTLOT B

30'
INGRESS/EGRESS

EASEMENT

10' PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT

10' PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT

R59.50'

CENTER
SECTION 3-89-14
FND 1" PINCHED PIPE

FND 1/2" REBAR
w/ YPC #8033

FND 1/2" REBAR
w/ YPC #8033

FND 1/2" REBAR
w/ YPC #8033

FND 1" PINCHED PIPE

FND 1/2" REBAR
w/ YPC #8033

FND 1" PINCHED PIPE FND 5/8" REBAR FND 5/8" REBAR FND 5/8" REBAR
FND REBAR
w/ OPC #12088

FND REBAR
w/ OPC #12088

FND REBAR
w/ OPC #12088

FND 5/8" REBAR

FND 1/2" REBAR

282.01'

80
7.

40
'

S
89

°0
4'

58
"W

1121.06'
S1°44'27"E

1120.89'
N1°31'03"W

71
6.

75
' (

71
7.

10
')

N
89

°0
1'

37
"E

 (
N

89
°0

5'
21

"E
)

86
.2

8'
N

89
°2

7'
58

"E

60
.0

1'

57
1.

24
'

S
70

°3
1'

06
"W

26
0.

00
'

S
89

°0
1'

37
"W

159.77'

100.01'

2632.46'
N1°31'03"W

40' SEWER
EASEMENT

15'
15'

134.98'
N

89°04'58"E

144.80'
S

88°15'33"W
58.71'

S
68°20'28"W

27.79'
N0°55'02"W

59.08'
N

68°20'19"E 106.40'
S0°00'00"E

98.46'
S0°00'00"E

89.22'

83.01'

20' SAN SEWER

EASEMENT

WEST LINE OF THE SE 1/4
SECTION 3-89-14

LOT 1
LOT 2

LOT 3

LOT 4LOT 5LOT 6

OUTLOT "C"
CONSERVATION EASEMENT

OUTLOT "D"
CONSERVATION EASEMENT

OUTLOT "E"
CONSERVATION EASEMENT

TRACT  "A"

OUTLOT "A"

OUTLOT "F"
CONSERVATION

EASEMENT

OUTLOT "B"

OUTLOT G

OUTLOT H

SEWER EASEMENT

3.78'

S 1/4 CORNER
SECTION 3-89-14

FND CUT "X"

N

0

GRAPHIC SCALE

100'50' 150'

Clapsaddle-Garber Associates, Inc

www.cgaconsultants.com
Toll Free (800) 542-7981

SHEET NO.

DRAWN:
CHECKED:

DATE:
DATE:

APPROVED: DATE:

PROJECT NO.DESIGNED: DATE:REVISIONNO. DATEBY DATEBYREVISIONNO.

J:
\5

69
4\

dw
g\

Su
rv

ey
\F

in
al

 P
la

t\5
69

4-
Fi

na
l P

la
t S

he
et

 4
 o

f 4
.d

wg
 - 

FP
-4

 - 
 0

7-
17

-1
9 

- 4
:0

6p
m

 - 
LC

B3
55

CGA PARK RIDGE ESTATES SUBDIVISION
4 OF 5

5694.05

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA FINAL PLATSJC

JAH

FINAL PLAT
PARK RIDGE ESTATES SUBDIVISION

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA

SHEET INDEX
SHEET NO. DESCRIPTION
   1 OF 5 TITLE SHEET
   2 OF 5  FINAL PLAT
   3 OF 5  FINAL PLAT EASEMENTS
   4 OF 5  FINAL PLAT EASEMENTS
   5 OF 5  FINAL PLAT EASEMENTS

SCALE: 1" = 50' (22x34 SHEET)
1" = 100' (11x17 SHEET)

NORTH LINE
LAKEWOOD HILLS

NORTH LINE
LAKEWOOD ESTATES

FOUND 1"
PINCHED PIPE

DRAINAGE EASEMENT

ACCESS EASEMENT

LEGEND

256

ITEM  31.



R59.50'

CENTER
SECTION 3-89-14
FND 1" PINCHED PIPE

FND 1/2" REBAR
w/ YPC #8033

FND 1/2" REBAR
w/ YPC #8033

FND 1/2" REBAR
w/ YPC #8033

FND 1" PINCHED PIPE

FND 1/2" REBAR
w/ YPC #8033

FND 1" PINCHED PIPE FND 5/8" REBAR FND 5/8" REBAR FND 5/8" REBAR
FND REBAR
w/ OPC #12088

FND REBAR
w/ OPC #12088

FND REBAR
w/ OPC #12088

FND 5/8" REBAR

FND 1/2" REBAR

80
7.

40
'

S
89

°0
4'

58
"W

1121.06'
S1°44'27"E

1120.89'
N1°31'03"W

71
6.

75
' (

71
7.

10
')

N
89

°0
1'

37
"E

 (
N

89
°0

5'
21

"E
)

86
.2

8'
N

89
°2

7'
58

"E

2632.46'
N1°31'03"W

83.01'

WEST LINE OF THE SE 1/4
SECTION 3-89-14

LOT 1
LOT 2

LOT 3

LOT 4LOT 5LOT 6

OUTLOT "C"
CONSERVATION EASEMENT

OUTLOT "D"
CONSERVATION EASEMENT

OUTLOT "E"
CONSERVATION EASEMENT

TRACT  "A"

OUTLOT "A"

OUTLOT "F"
CONSERVATION

EASEMENT

OUTLOT "B"

OUTLOT G

OUTLOT H

3.78'

164.81'
N0°00'00"E

20
2.

03
'

S
89

°0
4'

58
"W 158.70'

N0°55'02"W

81
.6

3'
S

89
°0

4'
58

"W

114.02'
N6°36'27"E

334.25'

N14°33'40"E

99
.60

'

N45
°2

8'3
0"

W

24
5.

78
'

S6
7°

33
'1

5"
W

34
6.

14
'

N
83

°2
6'

52
"W

15.00'
N0°55'02"W

49.96'
N0°55'02"W

43
.8

6'
S6

7°
33

'1
5"

W
40

.1
4'

N
83

°2
6'

52
"W

S 1/4 CORNER
SECTION 3-89-14

FND CUT "X"

N

0

GRAPHIC SCALE

100'50' 150'

Clapsaddle-Garber Associates, Inc

www.cgaconsultants.com
Toll Free (800) 542-7981

SHEET NO.

DRAWN:
CHECKED:

DATE:
DATE:

APPROVED: DATE:

PROJECT NO.DESIGNED: DATE:REVISIONNO. DATEBY DATEBYREVISIONNO.

J:
\5

69
4\

dw
g\

Su
rv

ey
\F

in
al

 P
la

t\5
69

4-
Fi

na
l P

la
t S

he
et

 4
 o

f 4
.d

wg
 - 

FP
-5

 - 
 0

7-
17

-1
9 

- 4
:0

6p
m

 - 
LC

B3
55

CGA PARK RIDGE ESTATES SUBDIVISION
5 OF 5

5694.05

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA FINAL PLATSJC

JAH

FINAL PLAT
PARK RIDGE ESTATES SUBDIVISION

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA

SHEET INDEX
SHEET NO. DESCRIPTION
   1 OF 5 TITLE SHEET
   2 OF 5  FINAL PLAT
   3 OF 5  FINAL PLAT EASEMENTS
   4 OF 5  FINAL PLAT EASEMENTS
   5 OF 5  FINAL PLAT EASEMENTS

SCALE: 1" = 50' (22x34 SHEET)
1" = 100' (11x17 SHEET)

CONSERVATION EASEMENT FOR

OUTLOT "B"

NORTH LINE
LAKEWOOD HILLS

NORTH LINE
LAKEWOOD ESTATES

FOUND 1"
PINCHED PIPE

LEGEND

CONSERVATION
EASEMENTS

257

ITEM  31.



PROJECT: PARK RIDGE ESTATES CREATED BY: STT

PN: 5694 DATE CREATED: 7/29/2019

ITEM # DESCRIPTION UNITS QUANTITY UNIT PRICE EXTENDED PRICE

1 MOBILIZATION LS 1.0 $3,500.00 $3,500.00

2 TRAFFIC CONTROL LS 1.0 $900.00 $900.00

3 EXCAVATION, CLASS 10, ROADWAY AND BORROW CY 10770.0 $10.15 $109,315.50

4 REVETMENT, CLASS D, W/ ENGINEERING FABRIC TN 588.0 $60.00 $35,280.00

5 TOPSOIL, STRIP AND STOCKPILE CY 4510.0 $2.50 $11,275.00

6 TOPSOIL, SPREAD CY 4157.0 $20.00 $83,140.00

7 TOPSOIL, WASTE CY 353.0 $3.00 $1,059.00

8 SPECIAL COMPACTION OF SUBGRADE STA 5.0 $400.00 $2,000.00

9 GRANULAR SUBBASE SY 2355.3 $8.10 $19,077.93

10 STD. OR SLIP FORM PCC, CLASS A, CLASS 3, 7 IN. SY 2119.0 $39.25 $83,170.75

11 SIDEWALK, PCC, 4 IN. SY 33.7 $39.00 $1,314.30

12 REMOVAL OF INTAKES AND UTILITY ACCESSES EA 1.0 $800.00 $800.00

13 REMOVE STORM SEWER PIPE LESS THAN OR EQUAL TO 36 IN. LF 317.0 $12.76 $4,044.92

14 REMOVAL OF EXISTING STRUCTURE LS 1.0 $950.00 $950.00

15 REMOVAL OF EXISTING BARRICADE LS 1.0 $175.00 $175.00

16 CLEARING AND GRUBBING LS 1.0 $4,350.00 $4,350.00

17 EXISTING STRUCUTRE TIE‐IN EA 1.0 $1,450.00 $1,450.00

18 STORM MANHOLE, MINOR ADJUSTMENT EA 1.0 $175.00 $175.00

19 STORM SEWER GRAVITY MAIN, TRENCHED, REINFORCED CONCRETE PIPE (RCP), 2000D (CLASS III), 18 IN. LF 164.0 $58.00 $9,512.00

20 STORM SEWER GRAVITY MAIN, TRENCHED, REINFORCED CONCRETE PIPE (RCP), 2000D (CLASS III), 24 IN. LF 233.0 $98.00 $22,834.00

21 STORM SEWER GRAVITY MAIN, TRENCHED, REINFORCED CONCRETE PIPE (RCP), 2000D (CLASS III), 12 IN. LF 59.9 $55.00 $3,294.50

22 INTAKE, SW‐509 EA 3.0 $5,525.00 $16,575.00

23 12" RCP ST. PIPE APRON, APRON FOOTING W/ REBAR, & APRON GUARD EA 2.0 $0.00 $0.00

24 24" RCP ST. PIPE APRON, APRON FOOTING W/ REBAR, & APRON GUARD EA 2.0 $1,200.00 $2,400.00

25 SUBDRAIN, PERFORATED PLASTIC PIPE, 6 IN. DIA. LF 1037.0 $13.00 $13,481.00

26 SUBDRAIN OUTLET (CFD.01) EA 6.0 $275.00 $1,650.00

27 SILT FENCE LF 9338.0 $2.25 $21,010.50

28 INLET PROTECTION (FILTERSOXX) LF 180.0 $7.25 $1,305.00

29 STABILIZING CROP ‐ SEEDING AND FERTILIZING (URBAN) AC 5.2 $1,000.00 $5,200.00

30 CHECK DAMS, EROSION STONE, 6 IN., ON ENGINEERING FABRIC TN 46.0 $52.50 $2,415.00

31 STABILIZED CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE TN 55.0 $24.00 $1,320.00

32 ROLLED EROSION CONTROL PRODUCT (RECP) SY 2856.0 $1.50 $4,284.00

33 SANITARY SEWER GRAVITY MAIN, TRENCHED, POLYVINYL CHLORIDE PIPE (PVC), 8 IN. (TRUSS) LF 631.0 $29.75 $18,772.25

34 MANHOLE, SANITARY SEWER, SW‐301, 48 IN. EA 2.0 $3,600.00 $7,200.00

35 MANHOLE, SANITARY SEWER, SW‐303, 48 IN. EA 1.0 $4,200.00 $4,200.00

36 MANHOLE ADJUSTMENT, MAJOR EA 1.0 $500.00 $500.00

37 SANITARY SEWER SERVICE STUB, PVC, 4 IN.  LF 348.0 $26.50 $9,222.00

38 WATERMAIN CONNECTION LS 1.0 $637.50 $637.50

39 PRESSURE AND DISINFECTION TEST LS 1.0 $925.00 $925.00

40 WATER MAIN, DIP, 8 IN, POLY‐WRAPPED LF 475.0 $53.00 $25,175.00

41 TOTAL LF OF SERVICE LINE, 2" COPPER LF 378.0 $17.25 $6,520.50

42 CURB STOP EA 7.0 $290.00 $2,030.00

43 WATER MAIN, FIRE HYDRANT ASSEMBLY, END OF WATERMAIN EA 1.0 $3,850.00 $3,850.00

44 WATER MAIN, FIRE HYDRANT ASSEMBLY EA 1.0 $3,850.00 $3,850.00

45 WATER MAIN, FITTINGS, 45 DEGREE, 8" EA 3.0 $500.00 $1,500.00

46 WATER MAIN, FITTINGS, REDUCER, 8"X6" EA 1.0 $385.00 $385.00

CO1.01 STORM SEWER GRAVITY MAIN, TRENCHED, REINFORCED CONCRETE PIPE (RCP), 2000D (CLASS III), 18 IN. LF ‐164.0 $37.25 ‐$6,109.00

CO1.02 STORM SEWER GRAVITY MAIN, TRENCHED, REINFORCED CONCRETE PIPE (RCP), 2000D (CLASS III), 24 IN. LF ‐233.0 $48.75 ‐$11,358.75

CO1.03 INTAKE, SW‐509 EA ‐3.0 $5,525.00 ‐$16,575.00

CO1.04 24" RCP ST. PIPE APRON, APRON FOOTING W/ REBAR, & APRON GUARD EA ‐1.0 $990.00 ‐$990.00

CO1.05 EX SW‐401 MANHOLE MINOR ADJUSTMENT EA ‐1.0 $175.00 ‐$175.00

CO1.06 24" RCP LF 37.0 $98.00 $3,626.00

CO1.07 36" RCP LF 392.0 $100.00 $39,200.00

CO1.08 SW‐509 EA 1.0 $5,525.00 $5,525.00

CO1.09 SW‐510 EA 2.0 $5,750.00 $11,500.00

CO1.10 36" FLARED END SECTION EA 1.0 $1,850.00 $1,850.00

CO1.11 SW‐401, 60" MANHOLE EA 1.0 $4,200.00 $4,200.00

CO1.12 ST. OR SLIP FORM 7" PCC SY 28.6 $61.25 $1,751.75

CO1.13 REMOVE EX STRUCTURE EA 1.0 $950.00 $950.00

CO1.14 REMOVE EX PCC PATCH SY 28.6 $38.50 $1,101.10

CO1.15 REMOVE EX 18" RCP LF 12.0 $125.00 $1,500.00

TOTAL MAINTENANCE BOND AMOUNT $588,021.75

July 29, 2019

Prepared By: Date:

Adam C. Daters, PE

258

ITEM  31.



259

ITEM  31.



260

ITEM  31.



261

ITEM  31.



262

ITEM  31.



263

ITEM  31.



264

ITEM  31.



265

ITEM  31.



266

ITEM  31.



267

ITEM  31.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 
 FROM: Benjamin Claypool, Civil Engineer II, PhD, E.I. 
 
 DATE: July 31, 2019 
 
 SUBJECT: Professional Services Agreement, Snyder & Associates, Inc.   
  2019 Engineering Services 
  Supplemental Agreement No. 9 
  Northern Cedar Falls Drainage Study 
  City Project No. ST-000-3209 
 
Please find attached Supplemental Agreement No. 9 to the Professional Services 
Agreement between the City of Cedar Falls and Snyder & Associates, Inc. for 2019 
Engineering Services. This supplemental agreement includes a drainage study for the 
neighborhood generally defined by the residential areas north of Rosewood Drive and 
west of Center Street in the city of Cedar Falls. The agreement will provide the 
development of two conceptual design alternates to mitigate flooding to the subject 
properties. 
  
The City of Cedar Falls entered into a Professional Services Agreement with Snyder & 
Associates, Inc. for the 2019 Engineering Services on December 3, 2018.  Funding for 
the Supplemental Agreement #9 will be provided by the storm water fund in the amount 
of $7,500.00. This project is included in the City of Cedar Falls’ Capital Improvements 
Program. 
 
The Department of Community Development requests your consideration and approval 
of this Supplemental Agreement No. 9 with Snyder & Associates, Inc. for the Northern 
Cedar Falls Drainage Study.  
 
If you have any questions or comments feel free to contact me. 
 
xc: Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 

268

ITEM  32.



� � � � � � � � � � 	 
 � � � �  � � � � � � � 	 � � �� � � � 	 
 � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � 	 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � ! � " � # � $ � " % � & ' � # � ( � � ! � & � "  � ! � " � # �) * # � � + , - . / 0 1 2 / 3 - 1 - 4 5 6 + , - . / 0 1 2 / 3 - . 7
8 9 : ; : < � � = > ? @ A B C C D @ E = F G B ? H D I B C J K ? B B L B E M N = C B E M B ? B O D E M @ P Q M R B S D M Q @ A S B O = ? T = F F C U V @ N =W S X V Y Z [ \ U = E O G E Q O B ? ] J C C @ I D = M B C U V E I ^ W S _ Z G ` X [ J Z [ \ U @ A S B O = ? a = b D O C U V @ N = U O = M B O c B I B L P B ? d Ue f g h A @ ? M R B L i E D I D b = F B E K D E B B ? D E K C i b b @ ? M C B ? H D I B C j = E Ok l Y a Y J G U M R B S X V Y Z [ = E O S _ Z G ` X [ J Z [ O B C D ? B M @ = L B E O M R B b ? B H D @ i C = K ? B B L B E M M @ D E I F i O B G I @ b B @ AG B ? H D I B C = E O S @ L b B E C = M D @ E A @ ? = O O D M D @ E = F D M B L C ? B m i D ? B O = C = b = ? M @ A M R B e f g n Y E K D E B B ? D E K G B ? H D I B C UZ _ k [ l Y a Y T _ a Y U D M D C L i M i = F F Q = K ? B B O M @ = L B E O M R B @ ? D K D E = F > ? @ A B C C D @ E = F G B ? H D I B C J K ? B B L B E M = CA @ F F @ N C o� � � � p q : p 
 � : ; r � � : �[ R B G I @ b B @ A G B ? H D I B C = E O P = C D C A @ ? S @ L b B E C = M D @ E O B ? D H = M D @ E = ? B = C A @ F F @ N C oJ ^ [ R B S _ Z G ` X [ J Z [ C R = F F b ? @ H D O B > ? @ A B C C D @ E = F G B ? H D I B C A @ ? I @ L b F B M D @ E @ A = O ? = D E = K B C M i O Q A @ ? M R BE B D K R P @ ? R @ @ O K B E B ? = F F Q O B A D E B O P Q M R B ? B C D O B E M D = F = ? B = C E @ ? M R @ A a @ C B N @ @ O c ? D H B = E O N B C M @ AS B E M B ? G M ? B B M D E M R B S D M Q @ A S B O = ? T = F F C ^ [ R D C = ? B = R = C C B B E ? B b B = M B O A F @ @ O D E K A ? @ L C i ? A = I B N = M B ?? i E @ A A = E O M R B S D M Q N D C R B C M @ I @ E C D O B ? L D M D K = M D @ E @ b M D @ E C ^s ^ [ R B S _ Z G ` X [ J Z [ C R = F F O B M B ? L D E B M R B O ? = D E = K B = ? B = = E O I @ L b F B M B ? i E @ A A I = F I i F = M D @ E C A @ ? M R BC D M B ^S ^ [ R B S _ Z G ` X [ J Z [ C R = F F O B H B F @ b i b M @ M N @ I @ E I B b M i = F O B C D K E = F M B ? E = M D H B C M @ L D M D K = M B A F @ @ O D E K M @M R B C i P t B I M b ? @ b B ? M D B C ^c ^ [ R B S _ Z G ` X [ J Z [ C R = F F C i L L = ? D u B M R B ? B C i F M C @ A M R B C M i O Q D E = O B C D K E L B L @ = E O b ? @ H D O B = E@ ? O B ? @ A L = K E D M i O B I @ C M B C M D L = M B = E O B v R D P D M C A @ ? B = I R = F M B ? E = M D H B ^Y ^ [ R B S _ Z G ` X [ J Z [ C R = F F L B B M D E K N D M R M R B S X V Y Z [ w C C M = A A M @ O D C I i C C M R B = F M B ? E = M D H B C = E O = E C N B ?m i B C M D @ E C ^T ^ [ R B I @ E I B b M i = F O B C D K E C C R = F F P B P = C B O i b @ E D E A @ ? L = M D @ E I i ? ? B E M F Q = H = D F = P F B M @ M R B S _ Z G ` X [ J Z [D E I F i O D E K X D c J a = E O M R B S X V Y Z [ w C x V G O = M = P = C B ^x ^ [ R B b ? @ b @ C B O N @ ? y O @ B C E @ M D E I F i O B C i ? H B Q U A D B F O N @ ? y U @ ? O B M = D F B O R Q O ? = i F D I L @ O B F D E K ^ J I = b = I D M Q= E = F Q C D C @ A M R B B v D C M D E K C M @ ? L C B N B ? C Q C M B L D C E @ M D E I F i O B O ^

269

ITEM  32.



270

ITEM  32.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 
 TO: Honorable  Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 
 FROM: Brett Armstrong, Civil Engineer I 
 
 DATE: July 31, 2019 
 
 SUBJECT: 2019 Bridge Maintenance Project  
  Project No. BR-000-3183 
  Bid Opening 
 
On Tuesday, July 30, 2019 at 2:00 p.m., bids were received and opened for the 2019 
Bridge Maintenance Project. A total of three (3) bids were received, with Minturn Inc. the 
low bidder: 
 

 
Base Bid 

Minturn Inc.  $186,793.00 

Jasper Construction  $208,170.72 

PCI $228,997.40 

 
The Engineer's Estimate for this project was $143,634.10. Minturn Inc. of Brooklyn, 
Iowa submitted the low bid in the amount of $186,793.00. Attached is a bid tab for your 
reference. 
 
Due to the time of year and contractor’s schedules the bids received were significantly 
higher than anticipated. As a result of the bids, we recommend acceptance of the lowest 
bid from Minturn Inc. in the amount of $186,793.00. On August 5th, 2019, the Contract, 
Bonds and Insurance Certificate will be submitted for City Council approval. 
 
If you have any questions or comments feel free to contact me.  
  
xc: Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Community Development 
  
  

271

ITEM  33.



PROJECT BID TAB CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 

PROJECT NAME: 2019 BRIDGE MAINTENANCE PROJECT ENGINEERING DIVISION 

CITY PROJECT NUMBER: BR-000-3183

BID OPENING: JULY 30, 2019

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 

ENGINEERING DIVISION 

Jasper Construction 

ITEM NO. ITEM CODE ITEM UNIT QUANTITY UNIT PRICE EXTENDED PRICE UNIT PRICE EXTENDED PRICE UNIT PRICE EXTENDED PRICE UNIT PRICE EXTENDED PRICE 

1 2010-108-I-0 SUBBASE, GANULAR 6 IN. SY 321.7 15.00$             4,825.50$                15.00$           4,825.50$              12.00$           3,860.40$               43.50$          13,993.95$            

2 7010-108-A-0 PAVEMENT, PCC, 8 IN. SY 106.7 75.00$             8,002.50$                130.00$         13,871.00$            95.00$           10,136.50$            125.00$        13,337.50$            

3 7010-108-G-0 CONCRETE MEDIAN, 6 IN. SY 108.3 55.00$             5,956.50$                90.00$           9,747.00$              85.00$           9,205.50$               113.00$        12,237.90$            

4 7021-108-B-0 HMA OVERLAY, 3 IN. SY 253.3 50.00$             12,665.00$              76.00$           19,250.80$            69.40$           17,579.02$            70.00$          17,731.00$            

5 7040-108-G-0 PAVEMENT REMOVAL SY 321.7 20.00$             6,434.00$                50.00$           16,085.00$            35.00$           11,259.50$            62.50$          20,106.25$            

6 8010-108-A-0 TRAFFIC CONTROL LS 1 15,000.00$     15,000.00$              14,480.00$    14,480.00$            17,500.00$   17,500.00$            22,675.00$  22,675.00$            

7 8010-108-B-0 TEMPORARY TRAFFIC SIGNAL LS 1 5,000.00$       5,000.00$                10,000.00$    10,000.00$            10,000.00$   10,000.00$            10,000.00$  10,000.00$            

8 8020-108-B-0 PAINTED PAVEMENT MARKINGS, SOLVENT/WATERBORN STA 32.24 35.00$             1,128.40$                60.00$           1,934.40$              55.00$           1,773.20$               55.00$          1,773.20$               

9 8020-108-K-0 PAVEMENT MARKINGS REMOVED STA 32.24 30.00$             967.20$                   145.00$         4,674.80$              140.00$         4,513.60$               140.00$        4,513.60$               

10 2121-7425020 GANULAR SHLD, TYPE B TON 75 30.00$             2,250.00$                35.00$           2,625.00$              10.00$           750.00$                  62.50$          4,687.50$               

11 2301-0690220 BRIDGE APPROACH, SECONDARY ROADS SY 106.7 100.00$          10,670.00$              225.00$         24,007.50$            215.00$         22,940.50$            147.00$        15,684.90$            

12 2401-6750001 REMOVALS,AS PER PLAN (STRUCTURE NO. 1) LS 1 1,300.00$       1,300.00$                1,000.00$      1,000.00$              6,275.00$     6,275.00$               3,000.00$    3,000.00$               

13 2401-6750001 REMOVALS,AS PER PLAN (STRUCTURE NO. 12) LS 1 2,000.00$       2,000.00$                1,000.00$      1,000.00$              9,600.00$     9,600.00$               3,000.00$    3,000.00$               

14 2401-6750001 REMOVALS,AS PER PLAN (STRUCTURE NO. 17) LS 1 600.00$          600.00$                   1,000.00$      1,000.00$              1,500.00$     1,500.00$               2,400.00$    2,400.00$               

15 2401-6750001 REMOVALS,AS PER PLAN (STRUCTURE NO. 28) LS 1 1,500.00$       1,500.00$                1,000.00$      1,000.00$              7,200.00$     7,200.00$               3,000.00$    3,000.00$               

16 2401-6750001 REMOVALS,AS PER PLAN (STRUCTURE NO. 39) LS 1 2,000.00$       2,000.00$                1,750.00$      1,750.00$              4,100.00$     4,100.00$               3,200.00$    3,200.00$               

17 2401-6750001 REMOVALS,AS PER PLAN (STRUCTURE NO. 49) LS 1 500.00$          500.00$                   1,000.00$      1,000.00$              1,000.00$     1,000.00$               1,400.00$    1,400.00$               

18 2413-0698074 DECK REPAIR, CLASS A SY 38 500.00$          19,000.00$              350.00$         13,300.00$            100.00$         3,800.00$               495.00$        18,810.00$            

19 2413-1200100 NEOPRENE GLAND INSTALLATION AND TESTING LF 34.5 100.00$          3,450.00$                100.00$         3,450.00$              215.00$         7,417.50$               180.00$        6,210.00$               

20 2414-6444100 STEEL PIPE PEDESTRAIN HAND RAILING LF 14.4 200.00$          2,880.00$                650.00$         9,360.00$              450.00$         6,480.00$               410.00$        5,904.00$               

21 2426-6772016 CONCRETE REPAIR SF 3 100.00$          300.00$                   450.00$         1,350.00$              275.00$         825.00$                  880.00$        2,640.00$               

22 2533-4980005 MOBILIZATION LS 1 10,500.00$     10,500.00$              18,600.00$    18,600.00$            21,750.00$   21,750.00$            20,000.00$  20,000.00$            

23 2599-9999009 INSTALL CF EXPANSION JOINTS LF 514.1 50.00$             25,705.00$              20.00$           10,282.00$            50.00$           25,705.00$            36.00$          18,507.60$            

24 2599-9999010 FILL VOIDS AT CONDUIT LS 1 500.00$          500.00$                   1,000.00$      1,000.00$              2,000.00$     2,000.00$               2,680.00$    2,680.00$               

25 2599-9999010 ALUMINUM HAND RAIL WELD REPAIR LS 1 500.00$          500.00$                   1,200.00$      1,200.00$              1,000.00$     1,000.00$               1,505.00$    1,505.00$               

TOTAL: 143,634.10$           TOTAL: 186,793.00$         TOTAL: 208,170.72$          TOTAL: 228,997.40$          

Minturn Inc Engineering Estimate PCI 

272

ITEM  33.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 
 FROM: Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: August 1, 2019 
 
 SUBJECT: Cedar Heights Drive and Greenhill Road Intersection Improvements 
  Application for Traffic Safety Improvement Program Funding 
  City Project Number: RC-000-3171 
 
Each year, the Iowa Department of Transportation (Iowa DOT) accepts applications for 
traffic safety improvements through the Traffic Safety Improvements Program (TSIP). 
The intersection of Cedar Heights Dr and Greenhill Rd was studied as a part of the 
Greenhill Road Corridor Traffic Study (completed December, 2018). That study 
recommended the intersection be converted into a roundabout in order to improve the 
safety and capacity of the intersection when Cedar Heights Drive is reconstructed. The 
intersection of Cedar Heights Drive and Greenhill Road in Cedar Falls is currently 
signalized and lacks left turn lanes in north/south direction. As a matter of safer 
operations, the signal was converted to a “split- phased” operation many years ago. 
However, the split-phase operation is inefficient and is not sustainable with expected 
traffic growth.  
 
The City’s consultant for the Cedar Heights Drive Reconstruction Project, Snyder & 
Associates, upon approval by Council will submit the application to the Iowa DOT for the 
funding request. The Cedar Heights Drive and Greenhill Road Intersection 
Improvements application for Traffic Safety Improvement Program Funding is attached. 
The project could potentially receive $500,000.00 in TSIP Funds upon approval by the 
Iowa DOT. Eligible project costs for construction would be reimbursed by the Iowa DOT.  
 
The Engineering Division recommends acceptance of the Application for the Traffic 
Safety Improvement Program Funding for the Cedar Heights Drive Reconstruction 
Project.  
 
If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me. 
 
xc: Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 

273

ITEM  34.



RESOLUTION 

 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, TO MAKE AN 

APPLICATION TO THE IOWA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION TRAFFIC 

SAFETY IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM (TSIP) FOR THE PARTIAL FUNDING OF THE 

CEDAR HEIGHTS DRIVE AND GREENHILL ROAD INTERSECTION IMPROVEMENTS, 

WHICH INCLUDES RECONSTRUCTING THE INTERSECTION AS A ROUNDABOUT. 

 

WHEREAS, the Iowa Department of Transportation has established the TSIP and provides 

funding for locations where vehicular safety is a concern and documented; and 

 

WHEREAS, said program allows for funding to be provided to local jurisdictions for eligible 

transportation projects or programs that will improve traffic safety at a specific site or corridor 

with a crash history; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Cedar Falls has determined that by reconstructing the intersection of 

Cedar Heights Drive and Greenhill Road as a roundabout will help reduce crashes, thus 

improving safety: 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, THAT: 

 

1. The City Council supports and approves the attached application for TSIP 

funding. 

2. The City Council hereby commits the additional City funds necessary for 

construction of the project beyond any TSIP funding. 

3. The City Council hereby commits to accepting and maintaining these 

improvements. 

4. The Mayor is hereby authorized to execute the application on behalf of the City. 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED this _____________________________ 

 

 

 

 

 ____________________________________ 

  Jim Brown, Mayor 

 

Attest: 

 

 

 

____________________________________ 

 Jacque Danielsen, City Clerk 

274

ITEM  34.



Rev. 5/18 

 
Application for SITE-SPECIFIC 

TSIP FUNDS 
 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION DATE: 8/1/19 

  

Location / Title of Project Intersection of Cedar Heights Drive and Greenhill Road 

Applicant Cedar Falls, IA 

Contact Person Chase Schrage Title Director of Public Works 

Complete Mailing Address 2200 Technology Parkway 

 Cedar Falls, IA 50613 

Phone (319) 268-5170 E-Mail chase.schrage@cedarfalls.com 

 (Area Code)  
 
 

If more than one highway authority is involved in this project, please indicate and 
fill in the information below (use additional sheets if necessary). 

Co-Applicant(s)       

Contact Person       Title       

Complete Mailing Address       

        

Phone       E-Mail       

 (Area Code)  
 
 

PLEASE COMPLETE THE FOLLOWING PROJECT INFORMATION: 
 

Funding Amount 
 

Total Safety Cost      $ $1,397,450 

 Total Project Cost $ $2,553,650 

 
 
Safety Funds Requested      $ $500,000 

 

 
Does this project appear on a Safety Improvement Candidate List or is there a safety 
study recommendation for this project?                 

Yes – Explain _The Greenhilll Road Corridor Traffic Study recommended a roundabout 
No

275

ITEM  34.



Rev. 5/18 

APPLICATION CERTIFICATION FOR PUBLIC AGENCY 
 
To the best of my knowledge and belief, all information included in this application is true and 
accurate, including the commitment of all physical and financial resources.  This application 
has been duly authorized by the participating public agency(ies).  I understand the attached 
resolution(s), where applicable, binds the participating public agency(ies) to assume 
responsibility for any additional funds, if required, to complete the project. In addition, the 
participating public agency(ies) agrees to maintain any new or improved public streets or 
roadways for a minimum of five years. 
 
I understand that, although this information is sufficient to secure a commitment of funds, a 
firm contract between the applicant and the Department of Transportation is required prior to 
the authorization of funds. 
 
 

Representing the City of Cedar Falls 

Signed: 

 Signature Date Signed 

 
       

 Printed Name  

Attest: 

  

 Signature Date Signed 

 
       

 Printed Name  

 

276

ITEM  34.



277

ITEM  34.



� � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 �

278

ITEM  34.




 � �  � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � �  � � � � � 	 � � � � �  � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � �  � � �� � � �  � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � �  � � � �  � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � �  � � � � !  "  � � � � # 
 � �  � � � � � � � �  � � � � � " � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � $ � � � � ��  � � � �  � � � � � � � � % � � � � � � � � � � � � � & � � � �  � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � ' � & �  � ( & � � � � � ) � & � � � �  � �% � � � � � � � � � � � # � � � � � � � * � � � � & �  � ( & � � � � � & � � � �  � �  �  � � � �  �  � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � �  � �� + & � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � # 
 � � & � � � % � � � � � � �  �  � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � �  � �  �  � � � � � �� � �  � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � �  � � �  � � # 
 � � & � � � % � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � , �  � � � %  �  % � %� � �  � �  �  � � � � � � & �  � � � � & � � �  � � � � � � � � � � & � � � � % � � �  � � � �  � � � �  � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � �� �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � & � � & � � � � � � � � � #� � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � - ( � � � � � � � � � ( � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � �  � � . � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � ��  � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � / � � � � 0 ( � � � � � � �  �  � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � �  � # 	 � � � � �  � � � �  � �1 ( � � � � � � �  �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � �  � � # � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � - 2 % & � � � � � � � �� � �  � � � � � � � �  � � � � � 1 2 % & � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � �  � � * � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � �  � �� � � � �  � � � � $ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � - 2 % & � � � � � � � � � � � � % � �  % � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � #	 � � � � �  � � � � � � � � 1 2 % & � � & � � � �  %  � � � � � �  � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � �  � � #� � � � �  � � � � � � � �  � � * � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � �  � � � �  � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � # 
 � � � � � � � � � � � � � & & � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � $ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � �  � � � � � �  � � � � � � � # 
 � � � � � � � � � � � � � & & � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � $ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � $ �  � � � � � � � * � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � % � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � & & � � +  % � � � � � 0 3 3 � � � �� � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � �  � � # 4 �  � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � & & � � � � � � � � � � � �� & & � � +  % � � � � � 5 0 2 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � * � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � & � � � � � � � � " � � & � � � % � � �% � � "  � � � * � � �  � � � � � � � � � , � � � � �  � � � � �  � � & � � � � �  � �  � � � � � � � � � � � �  � �  � � � � �  � � � � � �  � � � � �  � �& � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � #	 � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � �  � . � � � 
 / � � � � % � . � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � �  � � � / � �� � � � � 5 3 * 3 3 3 � � �  � � � � & � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � �  � � # � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �6 * 3 3 3 � � �  � � � � & � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � & & � � � � � � � � � � � � � 7 * 2 3 3 � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� & & � � � � � #� � � � � � � � � * � � � �  � � � �  � � �  � � � & � � � � � �  � � & �  � ( & � � � � � � & � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� & & � � � � � � � # 8 & �  � ( & � � � � � � & � � � �  � �  � � � � � � � �  �  � � � � � � �  � �  � � �  � � � �  � � � � � � � & & � � � � � � � � �  % � *� �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � �  % & � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � & & � � � � � � � * � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � �  �  � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � �  � � * � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � & � �  � � # 9 � � � � � � �  � � � � �  � � � �  � � � � ��  � � * � �  � �  � � � � & � � �  � � � � �  % & � � % � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � " � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � �  � � � � � � � � & & � � � � � � � # 
 �  � & � � �  � � � � � % & � � % � � � � � & �  � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � �  � � � � 4 � � � � � 
 � � � � � � � � � � � � � . 0 3 3 7 / * � � � � �� � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � & � � �  � � . & � � %  � �  � � � � � � � * & � � � � � � � � $ & � � %  � �  � � � � � � � * � � & � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � /  � � � � " � � � � #� � � % 0 3 5 1 � � 0 3 5 : . & � � � � � � �  � � � �  + % � � � � � � � 0 3 5 7 / * � � � � � � � � � 0 5 � � � � � � � � � � �  �  � � � � � � � �  � � *7 � � � �  � � � � � � & � � �  � � � $ � � " � � � �  �  � � � � � � � � � � * � � % � � � � � � � � � # 
 � � � � � � � 5 % �  � �  �  � � � � � � � � *2 %  � � �  �  � � � � � � � � � � * � � � - & � � �  � � � $ � � " � � � �  �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � �  � 5 % �  � �  �  � � � * 2 %  � � �
279

ITEM  34.



 �  � �  � � * � � � 6 & � � �  � � � $ � � " � � � �  �  � �  � � # 
 � � % � � � � � % % � � � � � � � � � & � � � � � � � � � � ( � � � � � �� � � � %  � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � * �  � � 6 � � � � � � � � � � � # 
 � � � � + � % � � � � � % % � � � � & � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � *�  � � 2 � � � � � � � #
 � �  � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � 	 � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � & � � � � � � � � ; < = = > ? @ A A B C D EF C < < @ E C < G < D H H @ I J K L E M . � � % & � � � � � � � � � % � � � * 0 3 5 : / # 
 � � � � � � � � � � � � % % � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � �  � � � �� � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � �  % & � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � & � �  � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � �  � � � � � �� � � � � � �  � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � � #
 � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � �  � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � �  � � & � � � � � � � � �  �  � � � � � � � �  � �  �& � � & � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � 8 � � �  � � 	 #
 �  �  � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � & & � � � � � #
 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � & & � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � $ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � $ �  � � � � � � � # 
 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � & & � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � $ �  � � � � � � � # 
 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � %  � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � & � �  � � � � � �  % � � � �  � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � % � � � � � � �  � � � � � � �  � #
 �  � & � �  � � �  � � + & � � � � � � �  % & � � � � � � � � � � �  � �  �  � � � � � � * � �  � � � � � �  % & � � �  � � � & � � � �  � � � #� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � �  �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � �  % & � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � �  � � � #� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � % � � � � * � �  �  � & � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � * � �  � �� � � � � � � � � � � % � � � � � � � � � # 
 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � % � � � � � % % � � � � � � � � � & � � � � � �  �& � � �  � � � � �  � � � � � � � �  � � #� � �  �  � � � � � � * � � � � +  � �  � � � � � � �  � �  � � � � � & � � � � � � �  � �  � � � �  �  � � � � & �  � & � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � & & � � � � � � � # 
 �  � % � � � � � � & � � � �  � � % � � � � � � �  �  �  � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � �� � � , � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � �  � � � � % & � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � & � � �  � � # 
 � � � � � � � � � � � % � �  �  � � �  � �� � � � � � . � N � / � � � � � � � � � �  � � � �  � � � � � � � & �  � ( & � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � N � � � � � �  � � � � � � �  � �  � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � 2 6 & � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � # � � � � � � � * � � � � � � �  � � � � �  �  � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � * � �  � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � % �  � � �  � � � � � & �  � & � � �  � � � � � � �  � �  � � � �  �  � � � � # � � � � � � � � � * � � � � � � �� � � �  �  � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  " � �  � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � �  � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � * � �  � �� � �  � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � # 
 � � � � � � � � *  � � � �  � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � �  � �� � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � & & � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � & � � �  � � � � � & � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � & � �  � �� � � � � �  � � � � � � � �  � � * � � � � � � � �  � � � � �  � � % � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � #

280

ITEM  34.



8 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � & � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � %  � � � � � � � � � � % & � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � #9 � � � � � � � �  �  � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � �  �  � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � �  � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � * � � � � � �  % � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � % & � � � � � � � � � � � �  % � � � � � � � � � � ��  � � � � # 
 � � � � �  �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � %  � � � � �� � & � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � #
 � � � � � � � �  � � & � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  % � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � �  � � � � � � �  % � � � � *� � � & � � �  � � � � # 
 � � � � � � � � �  % � � � � � � � � � � " � � � � � % � � � ; < = = > ? @ A A B C D E F C < < @ E C < G < D H H @ I J K L E M # 
 � �& � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � % % � �  � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � & � � & � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � % % � �  � � � � � � � �� � � � # O P Q Q R S T U V W U P X Y R Z U P [ \ S U ] ^ _ [ ` U a [ a b O c d X R e ` U Q f R S c a U X ` U a [ a b R X Y W ^ a P e [ c X d O R V ^ [ T ` U a [ ag h i j k l m h i no p h q r s n t u v j l wx h y z l p u { h j t l | r n } x h { n� � � � � � � � �  � � 
 � � � � ~ 0 * 3 - 2 * 6 2 3 ~ 6 - : * 0 3 3 ~ 5 * - 7 � * 1 2 3� � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � ~ 2 5 : * 3 3 3 ~ 5 5 : * 2 3 3 ~ - 7 7 * 2 3 3
 � � � � � � � � ~ 0 * 2 2 - * 6 2 3 ~ � 2 6 * � 3 3 ~ 5 * � 7 6 * 7 2 3\ S U f U a ^ Y \ S U ] ^ _ [ � P X Y c X d O U P S _ ^t h i p s r � y h i j n
 � � � �  � 8 � � � � � 4 % & � � � � % � � � � � � � � � % � � � �  � � ~ 2 3 3 * 3 3 3�  � � � � � �  � � . � � �  % � � � � / ~ 0 * 3 2 - * 6 2 3
 � � � � ~ 0 * 2 2 - * 6 2 3

281

ITEM  34.



���� ������������
��������������
��������������� �����

�� ������� �� ��� �  �¡
¢¢¡¡�£ ¤ ¥¡¡¦§̈ �¢¡¡ ¥¡¡¦

©ª «¬ ®�¯ °± ®°²�®��� ��
³�́�§µ¡¡ª£
§ ¥¡¡¦µ¡ �©¡¡ ¥¡¡¦

§¶ ��̄·� °ª̄ «¬¬ � °
³©́�§µ¡¡ª£
�© ¥¡¡¦�̧¡ �¡̈¡ ¥¡¡¦

µ¹ �² ��� �ª � ®� ² �ª �� ��°��º̄ ° ²®°�³̄§́©�¡¡�£̈
¥¡¡¦�̧ �¡̈¡ ¥¡¡¦

¢º °»��°� ��  �� �ª � �®»¼ �� �½ °³µ́�¡�¾̈
¡¡ ¥¡¡¦̈ �¡¡¡ ¥¡¡¦

º̧ °»��°� ��  �� �ª � �®»ª °¿°® �º�± À©µÁ�©¡¡
ÂÃ© ¢ ¥¡¡¦§¡ �¡¡¡ ¥¡¡¦

¤ª � �®»ª °¿°® �º�± �À©µÁ
�̧¡¡ÂÃ�¡¡ ¥¡¡¦�̧¡ �¡¡¡ ¥¡¡¦

ª̈ � �®»ª °¿°®¼ �� �½ ° �ª � ®°°�³µ́�©�¾
¢ �¡¡¡ ¥¡¡¦̧¡ �¡¡¡ ¥¡¡¦

Äª � �®»ª °¿°®¶ ��Å �� °
§�¾ ¢ �¡¡¡ ¥¡¡¦� ¢ �¡¡¡ ¥¡¡¦

�¡º °»���� �·± ��°»°��
�¡̈¡¡ª£

¢ ¥¡¡¦ ¢µ �¡¡¡ ¥¡¡¦

��±��± ��°»°��
³ ¢�́�¡¡¡ª£̧

¢ ¥¡¡¦ ¤� ¢ �¡¡¡ ¥¡¡¦

�©� ���®°� °¶ °�̄ ��
¡̧ª£̧¡ ¥¡¡¦§ �¡̧¡ ¥¡¡¦

�§� ���®°� °¶ °�̄ �� �� �� �®°�̄ ���®°� °
©̈¡ª£̈ ¢ ¥¡¡¦©§ �¡̈¡ ¥¡¡¦

�µ¹ ®«�½¾ ²®�� �� �� �®°¯
µ̈¡ª£Ä¡ ¥¡¡¦µ§ �©¡¡ ¥¡¡¦

� ¢± ��°»°��¶ �®½� � 
�Âª�¡ �¡¡¡ ¥¡¡¦�¡ �¡¡¡ ¥¡¡¦

�̧º °»���� �·ª�̄ °¿��½
�§¡¡ª£©¡ ¥¡¡¦©̧ �¡¡¡ ¥¡¡¦

� ¤ª�̄ °¿��½ �¢Á
³̧́�§ ¢¡ª£µ¡ ¥¡¡¦ ¢µ �¡¡¡ ¥¡¡¦

�̈ª�̄ °¿��½ �Á̧
³ ¤µ́ ¢ª£ ¤¡ ¥¡¡¦§ �� ¢¡ ¥¡¡¦

�ÄÆ °� °�� �¬� °Ç �®�� � 
³ ¤´̈¡ªÃ
µ ¢ ¥¡¡¦§ �¡̧¡ ¥¡¡¦

©¡¼ �� °® °��� ��Â� Å �� �
³́̈�Âª̧
¡ �¡¡¡ ¥¡¡¦̧¡ �¡¡¡ ¥¡¡¦

©�¶ �¬��� È��� ��
�Âª ¤¡ �¡¡¡ ¥¡¡¦ ¤¡ �¡¡¡ ¥¡¡¦

©©¹ ®�··� �� ��� ®��
�Âª©¡ �¡¡¡ ¥¡¡¦©¡ �¡¡¡ ¥¡¡¦

©§¹ ®�··� �ª� ���º °»����
�Âª ¢¡ �¡¡¡ ¥¡¡¦ ¢¡ �¡¡¡ ¥¡¡¦

©µ� �� � ®«��� ��ª «®�°É
�Âª� ¢ �¡¡¡ ¥¡¡¦� ¢ �¡¡¡ ¥¡¡¦

© ¢ª «®· ��°º ° � �®��� ��
�Âª ¢ �¡¡¡ ¥¡¡¦ ¢ �¡¡¡ ¥¡¡¦

©̧� ®� � ��� ��� ®��
�Âª�¡ �¡¡¡ ¥¡¡¦�¡ �¡¡¡ ¥¡¡¦ ª «¬ � �� �� Ê� �Ä̧ ¢ �¸ ¢¡ ¥¡¡¦ � ���� °��É³ Ë©¡Ì́ Ê§µ¡ �¡¡¡ ¥¡¡¦

�ÍÎª¹ºÏ�¹¼ÍÎ¹Í¹
¾Â Ê© �¡§ ¢ �¸ ¢¡ ¥¡¡¦

Í �Å °®± ®�Ð °��� � �   º� Å � �·Ç �ÉÑÒ Ê�¡ �¡¡¡ ¥¡¡¦ Ï ���� � Éº °� ����� �� ÑÑ Ê�Ä§ �¡¡¡ ¥¡¡¦

� �� �°°®� � �� �� � ®«��� �� ���¾̄̄ »� ��  � ®��� ��³ Ë�̧Ì �· ��� � ®«��� ��´ Ê§� ¢ �¡¡¡ ¥¡¡¦
���� Ó���Ô������� ÕÖ ×ØØÙ ×Ú ØÛ ÜÛÛÝ

������Þ��ß�����
������������

� àá âãäâåáæ çà� âè éãê âæ ëì á ä� ãéàèß ãââàìæíí�è � çîàè éï çîá ��Æ¾ºÃ¾ÂÂª �¼ÍÇ¾ ±ºÍð��¹ÎÍ ¥��Ä ¥¡©̧§ ¥¡̈

ñ òóô õö÷ øùúûóüýþÿóþþÿ �ýü�� �ý�ó� øû� ��ó� õ	

� ùó���ô � ø� 	õ� ø� �� úû �� õøø����� � öûú� � ��� û�
���þ�üýþÿ ô 	�øþ ö
�

� �� � !" �# $%& �' () �  * %$+#, %��+)'--.#. �/+# $0 �/�
³�́ ³©́ ³§́ ³µ́ ³ ¢´ ³̧́ ³ ¤´ ³́̈ ³Ä́ ³�¡́ ³��́¾   «»° �»� �� »«»�·̧Á �· »��̄·� °¯  «¬¬ � °°�� °�¯ °©̄1¬ °É��¯ �Å °¬ ��½ �· �«®¬ ¥

¾   «»° Á̈ �· � �² ���  � ®� ²��¯ ²� ��°»°�� ¿� �Å� ��Å °��� � ®«��� ���� »� �   ¥

º °»��°��¯ ®°²� ��°� �� �½ ° � ��°¿¬ ��½ �· �«®¬ ¥¾̄̄� �� ���·µ  � ®°°�� �� �½ ° � ��Å ° �«�Å �� ��� °¯ �®

2 °� Å �  Æ ® ¥� ��°¿�«®¬ °¯  °��� ���·  � ®°°� ¥
¾   «»° ��Á̈ ²��°»°���Å� �½ �°   ¥

º °²� ��°»°�� �· �²²®�� ¥�©̈¡1 �·�¡1  Å �®°¯ « °²��Å ¿� �Å� ��Å °²®�Ð °���� »� �   ¥

� �� � ®«��� ���·¾Æ¾ ®�»² �� ®�«�¯ �¬ �«� ¥
¾   «»° �1 �·  «¬ ®�¯ °²®°²�®��� ��°�� °�¯ °©̄1¬ °É��¯ �Å °¬ ��½ �· �«®¬ ¥

¾   «»° �Å °�¯̄� �� ���·̈  � ��¯ �®�̄� Å � ²�� ° · �®� �� °® °��� ���� Å �� � ¥

¾   «»° �� �� ��ºÍÇ ��3«�  � �� ���· �²²®�� ¥� �¡̈¡  ·� ��Å °ªÇ ��ª̄� ��®�°® �· �Å °®�«�¯ �¬ �«� ¥

± �  �¬� ° � ��·� ����� »²���  � �«���� �� ° ¿� �Å� ��Å °®� Å � 4�· 4¿�É ¥� � �  ²°®�ÃÏ «���� �� ° ®°�� °¿· �®ð ��º ¥

Ä5©¡ 4©�5�̈ 6 �  4¦�̈ �¢¡¡5Ç �� °® 4¦̈µ �¡¡¡5�� °� 4¦̧ ¢ �¡¡¡5� �»» 4¦© ¢ �¡¡¡

ñ òóô õö÷ øùúûóüýþÿóþþÿ �ýü�� �ý�ó� øû� ��ó� õ	

� ùó���ô � ø� 	õ� ø� �� úû �� õøø����� � öûú� � ��� û�
���þ�üýþÿ ô 	�øü ö
�

282

ITEM  34.



���� ������������
��������������
��������������� �����

�� ������� �� ��� �  �¡
¡̧¡�£ ¤ ¥¡¡¦µ �©¡¡ ¥¡¡¦

©ª «¬ ®�¯ °± ®°²�®��� ��
³�́�̧¡¡ª£
§ ¥¡¡¦µ �¡̈¡ ¥¡¡¦

§¶ ��̄·� °ª̄ «¬¬ � °
³©́�̧¡¡ª£
�© ¥¡¡¦�Ä �©¡¡ ¥¡¡¦

µ¹ �² ��� �ª � ®� ² �ª �� ��°��º̄ ° ²®°�³̄§́�¡¡¡�£̈
¥¡¡¦̈ �¡¡¡ ¥¡¡¦

¢º °»��°� ��  �� �ª � �®»¼ �� �½ °³µ́§�¾̈
¡¡ ¥¡¡¦© �µ¡¡ ¥¡¡¦

º̧ °»��°� ��  �� �ª � �®»ª °¿°® �º�± À©µÁ ¢¡ÂÃ© ¢ ¥¡¡¦� �© ¢¡ ¥¡¡¦

¤ª � �®»ª °¿°® �º�± �À©µÁ
¡̧ÂÃ�¡¡ ¥¡¡¦̧ �¡¡¡ ¥¡¡¦

ª̈ � �®»ª °¿°®¼ �� �½ ° �ª � ®°°�³µ́§�¾
¢ �¡¡¡ ¥¡¡¦� ¢ �¡¡¡ ¥¡¡¦

Äº °»���� �·± ��°»°��
¡̧¡ª£ ¢ ¥¡¡¦§ �¡¡¡ ¥¡¡¦

�¡±��± ��°»°��
³ ¢�́ ¢¡¡ª£̧ ¢ ¥¡¡¦Ä ¤ �¢¡¡ ¥¡¡¦

��± ��°»°��¶ �®½� � 
�Âª�¡ �¡¡¡ ¥¡¡¦�¡ �¡¡¡ ¥¡¡¦

�©º °»���� �·ª�̄ °¿��½
¡̈ª£©¡ ¥¡¡¦� �¡̧¡ ¥¡¡¦

�§ª�̄ °¿��½ �µÁ
³̧́�¡¡ª£
µ¡ ¥¡¡¦µ �¡¡¡ ¥¡¡¦

�µª�̄ °¿��½ �¢Á
³ ¤�́ ¢ª£µ¡ ¥¡¡¦
¡̧¡ ¥¡¡¦

� ¢ª�̄ °¿��½ �Á̧
³́̈© ¢ª£ ¤¡ ¥¡¡¦� �¤¢¡ ¥¡¡¦

�̧Æ °� °�� �¬� °Ç �®�� � 
³́̈©¡ªÃ
µ ¢ ¥¡¡¦
Ä¡¡ ¥¡¡¦

� ¤±��º °²�� ®5º °Å �¬
³Ä́� �¡¡¡ª£ ¤¡ ¥¡¡¦ ¤¡ �¡¡¡ ¥¡¡¦

�̈¶ �¬��� È��� ��
�Âªµ¡ �¡¡¡ ¥¡¡¦µ¡ �¡¡¡ ¥¡¡¦

�Ä¹ ®�··� �� ��� ®��
�Âª� ¢ �¡¡¡ ¥¡¡¦� ¢ �¡¡¡ ¥¡¡¦

©¡¹ ®�··� �ª� ���º °²� ��°»°��
�Âª©¡¡ �¡¡¡ ¥¡¡¦©¡¡ �¡¡¡ ¥¡¡¦

©�� �� � ®«��� ��ª «®�°É
�Âª� ¢ �¡¡¡ ¥¡¡¦� ¢ �¡¡¡ ¥¡¡¦

©©ª «®· ��°º ° � �®��� ��
�Âª§ �¡¡¡ ¥¡¡¦§ �¡¡¡ ¥¡¡¦

©§� ®� � ��� ��� ®��
�Âª ¢ �¡¡¡ ¥¡¡¦ ¢ �¡¡¡ ¥¡¡¦ ª «¬ � �� �� Ê¢©̈ �©¡¡ ¥¡¡¦ � ���� �°��É³©¡Ì́ Ê��¡ �¡¡¡ ¥¡¡¦

�ÍÎª¹ºÏ�¹¼ÍÎ¹Í¹
¾Â Ê§̧̈ �©¡¡ ¥¡¡¦

Í �Å °®± ®�Ð °��� � �   º� Å � �·Ç �ÉÑÒ Ê 4¦ Ï ���� � Éº °� ����� �� ÑÑ Ê�̈ �¢¡¡ ¥¡¡¦
� �� �°°®� � �� �� � ®«��� �� ���¾̄̄ »� ��  � ®��� ��³ Ë�̧Ì́ Ê�¡¡ �¡¡¡ ¥¡¡¦

���� Ó���Ô������� Õ7ØÚ ×7ÛÛ ÜÛÛÝ

������Þ��ß�����
������������

� àá âãäâåáæ çà� âè éãê âæ ëì á ä� ãéàèß ãââàìæíí�è �æ ëàéí� ç89éãæ äæ çà ��Æ¾ºÃ¾ÂÂª �¼ÍÇ¾ ±ºÍð��¹ÎÍ ¥��Ä ¥¡©̧§ ¥¡̈

ñ òóô õö÷ øùúûóüýþÿóþþÿ �ýü�� �ý�ó� øû� ��ó� õ	

� ùó���ô � ø� 	õ� ø� �� úû �� õøø����� � öûú� � ��� û�
���þ�üýþÿ ô 	�ø� ö
�

� �� � !" �# $%& �' () �  * %$+#, %��+)'--.#:' (+$-
³�́ ³©́ ³§́ ³µ́ ³ ¢´ ³̧́ ³ ¤´ ³́̈ ³Ä́ ³�¡́ ³��́¾   «»° �»� �� »«»�·̧Á �· »��̄·� °¯  «¬¬ � °°�� °�¯ °©̄1¬ °É��¯ �Å °¬ ��½ �· �«®¬ ¥

¾   «»° Á̈ �· � �² ���  � ®� ²��¯ ²� ��°»°�� ¿� �Å� ��Å °��� � ®«��� ���� »� �   ¥

º °»��°��¯ ®°²� ��°� �� �½ ° � ��°¿¬ ��½ �· �«®¬ ¥
¾   «»° ��Á̈ ²��°»°���Å� �½ �°   ¥

º °²� ��°»°�� �· �²²®�� ¥�¡¡1 �· ¢1  �̄ °¿��½ ¿� �Å� ��Å °²®�Ð °���� »� �   ¥

º °²� ��°»°�� �· �²²®�� ¥©¡1 �·�¡1  Å �®°¯ « °²��Å ¿� �Å� ��Å °²®�Ð °���� »� �   ¥

¾   «»° �1 �·  «¬ ®�¯ °²®°²�®��� ��°�� °�¯ °©̄1¬ °É��¯ �Å °¬ ��½ �· �«®¬ ¥

� �� � ®«��� ���·¾Æ¾ ®�»² ��� �� °® °��� �� ¥
¾   «»° �²²®��� »�� °� É©¡Ì �· �Å °°��  �� �²��°¯ �®°�¿��� �°°¯ »�� �� °����°®°Å �¬ ¥

¾   «»° ���� »²®��°»°��  �®°¿� �Å� �°��  �� �®� Å � 4�· 4¿�É ¥
¾   «»° �Å °®°¿���¬ °��»�Ð �®«���� � É®°� ����� ��  �»� ��®� ®°� ����� ��°� °»°��  ²°®�ÃÏ ¥¦�̈ �¢¡¡

ñ òóô õö÷ øùúûóüýþÿóþþÿ �ýü�� �ý�ó� øû� ��ó� õ	

� ùó���ô � ø� 	õ� ø� �� úû �� õøø����� � öûú� � ��� û�
���þ�üýþÿ ô 	�ø� ö
�

283

ITEM  34.



9 � � � �  � � � � � � �  �  & � � � � � � � � � � � � � � % �  � � & � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � & � �  � � � #� � � � � � � ; < � � � � � � 0 3 0 3 � � �  � �� � � � � � 0 3 5 7= � � $ � � � 0 3 5 7< � � � � � � 0 3 0 3 
 8 4 � � � � �  � � � & & �  � � �  � �
 8 4 � � � � �  � � � � � � � .  � � � � � � � � � /
 8 4 � � � � �  � � � � � � � % � � �� � �  � � � � �  � �� � � � � � � � 0 3 0 3 � � �  � � � � � � �  � �< � � � 0 3 0 3 
 8 4 � � � � �  � � � � �  � � �  �  � �8 � % % � � 0 3 0 3 ; 0 3 0 5 � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � �  � �8 � % % � � 0 3 0 5 � � �  � � � � � % & � � � � �

284

ITEM  34.



9 � � � �  � � % � & � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � �  � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � 	 � � � � �  � �� �  � � � �  �  � � �  � � � � � � �  � � � � #

> R f U V [ ? ^ f S U ] ^ _ [ e U _ R [ c U X

285

ITEM  34.



9 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � & � � � � � � &  � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � �	 � � � � �  � � � � � � � % � � �  � � � � � � � � � #

@ c ^ A U V [ ? ^ c X [ ^ S a ^ _ [ c U X V S U Q [ ? ^ a U P [ ?

286

ITEM  34.



@ c ^ A U V [ ? ^ c X [ ^ S a ^ _ [ c U X V S U Q [ ? ^ X U S [ ? ^ R a [ _ U S X ^ S

@ c ^ A U V [ ? ^ c X [ ^ S a ^ _ [ c U X V S U Q [ ? ^ X U S [ ?
287

ITEM  34.



288

ITEM  34.



9 � � � �  � � � � � �  � � & � � � � � � � & � � � � � �  � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � 	 � � � � �  � � � � #

B ^ S c R e f ? U [ U d S R f ? U V [ ? ^ f S U ] ^ _ [ c X [ ^ S a ^ _ [ c U X

289

ITEM  34.



C DEFGH IJIDKL M N OP OQ
R

S TUVWXP WYS WZ[ \TU] ^_ TZ̀
a

S TUVWXP WYb[ \̂Z] ^_ TZ̀
c

d \UU[eQ Wfg ^h \̂î] ^_ TZ̀
j

d Z\VWZP `k OlOmWn ^Q `
aopqr st uDMHL EL uFH uvvEDM N OP OQ

R
S TUVWXP WY UWZ[ \TUf[ X̂OVOX[P OP[ m̂
a

S TUVWXP WY l[ \̂Zf \̂̂ w[ X̂OVOX[P OP[ m̂
c

d \UU[eQ Wx X\lVQ O[ ^P \y VO[ ^f[ ^_ TZ̀z
{

g ^[ ^_ TZWY
R

N OP OQ |\̂P XZOU} wZWQ OP WY
R

g ^h \̂î
R

~ \P ZWV\ZP WY
Rqp

d Z\VWZP `k OlOmW� \P OQxY \QQ OZUz �aj� |�cR �RR
� �WZOmWx VWZXZOU}Y \QQ OZUz �{ |c�c �o�

� \P OQ� W}[ XQ WU��� �RR
� �WZOmWx VWZXZOU}z �o �aR

� \P OQn XXTVÔP U�{o �RR
� �WZOmWx VWZXZOU}z �o ��c

� D��IDL M�� IGK �� IF�� ��u�EsL F
N OP OQ[P[ WUfN OP OQ� ZOU} �R �RR

N OP OQ[P[ WUf� ZOU} �R �RR
] ^_ TZ[ WUf� ZOU} �R �c�

b O_ \Z] ^_ TZ[ WUf� ZOU} �R �Rc
b[ \̂Z] ^_ TZ[ WUf� ZOU} �R �o�

d \UU[eQ Wfg ^h \̂î] ^_ TZ[ WUf� ZOU} �R �o�
� JIDE�IH IJIDKL M

R�fjafoRa�

a \y�

r ��EC DEFG� sE� MFK F� ��� � uK ��� I��DL p�q� �p�q�

� Et �DC EuFI � ^[ lOQ
a

� ÔUP \VU[ m̂
R

N���n� ��P T̂X\̂P Z\QQ WY[ ^P WZUWXP[ \̂
R

N���n� �N Z\lUP \VU[ m̂
R

N���n� �b Oh[ m̂Q WyPP TẐ
�

N���n� �N Z\lVOZh WY V\U[P[ \̂
R

N���n� �nP} WZ
R

k[ UZWmOZY WY��S[ m̂OQ
R

� Z\UUWY lWY[ ÔxY[ �[Y WYz
R

� mmZWUU[ �WY Z[ �[ m̂f Z\OY ZOmW
R

  ¡XWWY WY OTP} \Z[ ¢WY UVWWY
R

n VWZOP[ m̂�W}[ XQ W[ Ô̂ZWXhQ WUU |WZZOP[ X |XO ���R
d OUU[ m̂�n îZ\̂mU[Y W
R

d OUU[ m̂��[P}[ ÛTyy[ X[ ŴPY[ UP ÔXWf[ ÔY W£TO ���R
d OUU[ m̂�nP} WZVOUU[ m̂
R

k Z[ �WZk[ UP ZOXP[ \̂�b ÔTOQ \VWZOP[ \̂\y ÔW ���a
k Z[ �WZk[ UP ZOXP[ \̂�� OQh[ m̂\̂O} ÔY Uy ZWW ���R

k Z[ �WZk[ UP ZOXP[ \̂�nP} WZWQ WXP Z\̂[ XY W�[ XW ���R
k Z[ �WZk[ UP ZOXP[ \̂�g ẐWUP ZO[ ŴY Ô[ lOQR

k Z[ �WZk[ UP ZOXP[ \̂�] ÔPP ŴP[ �WfQ \UP[ ^P} \T ���R
k Z[ �WZk[ UP ZOXP[ \̂�  ¡P WZ[ \ZY[ UP ZOXP[ \̂
R

� Ô\yy Z\OY wUP ZO[ m}P
R

¤ \UP X\̂P Z\Q
R

n �WZX\ZZWXP[ m̂f \�WZUP WWZ[ m̂
R

N O[Q TZWP \U[ m̂OQ[ ^P ŴP[ \̂U
R

� W}[ XQ WUP \VVWY \̂ZO[Q Z\OYP ZOXh U
R

nP} WZ�] lVZ\VWZ\VWZOP[ \̂
R

nP} WZ�k[ UZWmOZY WY U[ m̂Uf Z\OY lOZh[ m̂UR
k \î}[QQ ZT̂OiÒ
R

� \i[ m̂[ lVZ\VWZQ `
R

  £T[ VlŴPy O[Q TZW
R

nP} WZ�¥ WPP[ m̂\yyf \TP \y �W}[ XQ W
R

] lVZ\VWZe OXh[ m̂
R

]QQ WmOQQ V̀OZh WYf T̂OPP ŴY WY
R

n VWZOP \Z[ Ŵ¡VWZ[ ŴXW
R

g ^h \̂î
j

nP} WZ�~ \[ lVZ\VWZOXP[ \̂
R� ÔP ZOyy[ XU[ m̂OQ

c
N O[Q WYP \̀[ WQYP \WlWZmŴX̀�W}[ XQ W
R

N���n� �b Oh[ m̂Z[ m}PP TẐ\̂ZWY U[ m̂OQa
N���n� �N Z\l̀[ WQY U[ m̂
R

N���n� �N Z\lY Z[ �WiÒ
R

N���n� �� \VWY WUP Z[ Ô
R

k Z\�WOZ\T̂Y�� mZOY WXZ\UU[ m̂mOP WU
R

� Z\UUWY XŴP WZQ[ Ŵx T̂Y[ �[Y WYz
R

� ZO�WQ[ m̂iZ\̂miÒ\Z\̂iZ\̂mU[Y W\y Z\OYR
k Z[ �[ m̂P \\y OUPy \ZX\̂Y[P[ \̂U
R

] lVZ\VWZ\ZWZZOP[ XQ ÔWX} Ôm[ m̂
R

N \QQ \iWYP \\XQ \UW
j

d OUU[ m̂��} WZWVZ\}[e[P WYe Ù[ m̂Uf lOZh[ m̂UR
d OUU[ m̂��} Z\Tm}f OZ\T̂Ye OZZ[ WZ
R

b OY W[ lVZ\VWZP TẐ
R

k Z[ �WZk[ UP ZOXP[ \̂�� OQh[ m̂\̂O} ÔY w} WQYY ���R
k Z[ �WZk[ UP ZOXP[ \̂��Y_ TUP[ m̂Y W�[ XWUx ZOY[ \ ���R

k Z[ �WZk[ UP ZOXP[ \̂�d OUUŴmWZ
R

k Z[ �WZk[ UP ZOXP[ \̂�� WOX}[ m̂y \Z\e_ WXPx Uzfy ���R
k Z[ �WZk[ UP ZOXP[ \̂�nP} WZ[ ^P WZ[ \ZY[ UP ZOXP[ ���R

� Ô\yy Z\OY wZ[ m}P
a

� Ô\yy Z\OY wQ WyP
R

S iWZ�[ m̂f  �OU[ �W� XP[ \̂
R

N O[Q WYP \h WWV[ V̂Z\VWZQ ÔW
R

� ZO�WQ[ m̂\̂VZ\}[e[P WYP ZOyy[ XiÒ
R

nP} WZ��[ U[ \̂\e UP ZTXP WY
R

nP} WZ�k[ UZWmOZY WY iOẐ[ m̂U[ m̂
R

nP} WZ�]QQ WmOQ \yy wZ\OYY Z[ �[ m̂
R

S WVOZOP[ \̂\y T̂[P U
R

� OZm\f W£T[ VlŴPQ \UU\ZU}[yP
R

n �WZU[ ¢WYQ \OYf �W}[ XQ W
R

N O[Q TZWP \Y[ lQ[ m}P Uf} O�WQ[ m}P U\̂
R

] lVZ\VWZUP OZP[ m̂
R

k Z[ �[ m̂Q WUUP} ÔP} WV\UP WY UVWWYQ[ l[P
R

nP} WZ
a

~ \P ZWV\ZP WY
Rp�

R�fjafoRa�

o \y�

r ��EC DEFG� sE� MFK F� ��� � uK ��� I��DL p�q� �p�q�

290

ITEM  34.



�K vI�¦§ EM�§ EM�¦̈ II� © ª«¬® ¯̄°±²³́ µ ¬ ²³́²³́ µ ¬¶ ³́¶³́ µ ¬· ³́·³́ µ ¬¸ ³́³̧́ µ ¬ ±¹³́±¹³́ µ ¬ º ¬¬»º ¬¬» µ ¬² ¼́²¼́ µ ¬¶ ¼́¶¼́ µ ¬· ¼́·¼́ µ ¬¸ ¼́¼̧́ µ ¬ ±¹¼́±¹¼́ µ ¬ ±²³́º ¬µ ½̄¾¬½µ ¯ ¿À ÁÂ ÃÄ

Å Æ»¿ ª«¹¹¹¹
¹¹¹¹
¹¹±¹
¹±

´ ¬»¿ ª«¹¹¹¹
²±¹¹
¹¹±¹
¹¶

Ç ǢÈ¿ ª«¹¹±¹
¹¹±¹
±±¹¹
¹¶

® ¯¿ »̄È¿ ª«¹¹¹¹
¹±¹¹
¹¹¹¹
¹±

ÇÉ Æ½È¿ ª«¹¹²¹
¹¹±¹
±¹¹¹
¹¶

Ê ½Ë¿ ª«¹¹¹¹
¹±¹²
¹Ì¹¹
¹·

Å ªµ Æ½¿ ª«¹¹¹¹
¹±¹¹
¹¹¹¹
¹±

À ÁÂ ÃÄ¹¹Ì
¹²¶²
²²¶²
¹¹²±

� EssID�¦C DEFGC ���K FK �s ~ \̂ wX\QQ[ U[ \̂x U[ m̂Q W�W}[ XQ Wz
j

Í WOY w\̂xy Z\̂PP \y Z\̂Pz
R

� WOZ wŴYxy Z\̂PP \ZWOZz
{

� m̂Q W |\̂X\l[ m̂Q WyPP TẐ
{

Î Z\OY U[Y Wxy Z\̂PP \U[Y Wz
c

S[Y WUi[ VW |UOlWY[ ZWXP[ \̂
R

S[Y WUi[ VW |\VV\U[P WY[ ZWXP[ \̂
R

� WOZP \ZWOZ
R

� WOZP \U[Y W
R

~ \P ZWV\ZP WY
R

nP} WZ
a

g ^h \̂î
RpqH uD¦ E�IC �sÏKLK �sF k Z̀

a{
� WP
�

] XWfy Z\UP
R

S \̂i
R

SQ TU}
R

b TY |Y[ ZP
R

� OP WZx UP ÔY[ m̂\Zl\�[ m̂z
R

S ÔY
R

n[Q
R

¥ ZO�WQ
R

~ \P ZWV\ZP WY
a

nP} WZ
R

g ^h \̂î
Rpq

ÐK ÑIÏ�Òt I�LHL Du�� Î Z[Y mW\�WZ} WOY UP ZTXP TZW
R

Î Z[Y mWfe Z[Y mWZO[Q VOZOVWP
R

k[P X}
R

¥ Z\T̂Y
R

¥ TOZY ZO[Q wy OXW
R

� \̂XZWP WP ZOyy[ Xe OZZ[ WZx lWY[ Ô\ZZ[ m}P U[Y ���R
� OeQ We OZZ[ WZ
R

gP[Q[P V̀\Q WfQ[ m}P UTVV\ZP
R

� ZOyy[ XU[ m̂OQ UTVV\ZP
R

N[ ZW} `Y ZÔP
R

� ZWW
R

S \̂ie Ôh
R

� OQQ
R

nP} WZy[ ¡WY \e_ WXP
RÎ Z[Y mWV[ WZ\ZUTVV\ZP

R
� TZef[ UQ ÔYf ZO[ UWY lWY[ Ô
a

  le Ôh lŴP
R

� TQ �WZPf V[ VW\VŴ[ m̂
R

¥ TOZY ZO[Q wŴY
R

nP} WZP ZOyy[ Xe OZZ[ WZ
R

] lVOXP OPP ŴTOP \Zf XZOU} XTU}[ \̂
R

� ZOyy[ XU[ m̂UTVV\ZP
R

nP} WZV\UPf V\Q Wf UTVV\ZP
R

b O[Qe \¡
R

¤ ÔY UXOVWf U} ZTee WZ̀
R

N ŴXW
R

Î T[QY[ m̂
R

~ \̂Wx \̂y[ ¡WY \e_ WXP UP ZTXhz
�j��

R�fjafoRa�

j \y�

r ��EC DEFG� sE� MFK F� ��� � uK ��� I��DL p�q� �p�q�

§ DK JID� �I�§ DK JIDÓ IsÏ ID © ½Ë Ô̄½³ Ȭ Ö× «̄ª½ ØË »ÈÊ Ù̄ªÚ ¯´ ªÚ ¯º ¬µ ½̄¾¬½µ ¯¿Û »° »¬Ü»À ÁÂ ÃÄ
Ý±¶¹

¹¹¹
¹

Þ±¶¹
¹¹¹
¹

Þ±×¹
¹¹¹
¹

Þ±·¹
¹¹¹
¹

Þ±ß²
²¹¹
¶

Þ±̧¹
¹¹¹
¹

Þ±à±
²¹¹
Ì

Þ²¹±
±¹¹
²

áÞ²± ª»¿ ÝÞ²¶±¹
¹¹±

áÞ²× ª»¿ ÝÞ²à±·
¹¹ß

áÞÌ¹ ª»¿ ÝÞÌ¶¶Ì
¹¹ß

áÞÌ× ª»¿ ÝÞÌà×¹
¹¹×

áÞ¶¹ ª»¿ ÝÞ¶¶±Ì
¹¹¶

áÞ¶× ª»¿ ÝÞ¶à²±
¹¹Ì

áÞ×¹ ª»¿ ÝÞ×¶±±
¹¹²

áÞ×× ª»¿ ÝÞ×à±¹
¹¹±

áÞ·¹ ª»¿ ÝÞ·¶¹¹
¹¹¹

áÞ·× ª»¿ ÝÞ·à¹¹
¹¹¹

áÞß¹ ª»¿ ÝÞß¶±²
¹¹Ì

áÞß× ª»¿ ÝÞßà¹¹
¹¹¹

áÞ¹̧ ª»¿ ÝÞ¶̧¹¹
¹¹¹

áÞ×̧ ª»¿ ÝÞà̧¹¹
¹¹¹

áÞà¹ ª»¿ ÝÞà¶²¹
¹¹²

áÞà×¹
¹¹¹
¹

º ¬µ ½̄¾¬½µ ¯¿¹¹
¹¹¹

Û »° »¬Ü»¹¹¹
¹¹

À ÁÂ ÃÄ²Ì²±
¹¹¶¶�� ��G ��� IFLÓK JIs ~ \̂W

�R
ÎQ \\Y
o

g Z[ Ŵ
R

Î ZWOP}
o

�[P ZW\TU
R

� Wy TUWY
R

~ \P ZWV\ZP WY
R��

§ Du�� IFLÓK JIs ~ \̂W
�j

ÎQ \\Y
a

g Z[ Ŵ
R

Î ZWOP}
R

�[P ZW\TU
R

� Wy TUWY
R

~ \P ZWV\ZP WY
R��

§ Du�� IFL� IFu�L ~ WmOP[ �W
R

� Ô̂Oe[ U
R

� ŴP ZOQ~ WZ�\TUS ÙP WlY WVZWUUÔP U
R

� ŴP ZOQ~ WZ�\TUS ÙP WlUP[ lTQ ÔP U
R

Í OQQ TX[ \̂mŴU
R

] ^} OQ ÔP U
R

~ OZX\P[ X� ÔQ mWU[ XU
R

k[ UU\X[ OP[ �W� ŴUP} WP[ Xxd�dz
R

d ZWUXZ[ VP[ \̂k ZTm
R

~ \P ZWV\ZP WY
��

nP} WZ
R��

§ Du���� ��G ��� I� EL IÏ k ZTm
R

�Q X\} \Qx âSP OP TP \Z̀z
R

�Q X\} \QxSP OP TP \Z̀z
j

k ZTmf�Q X\} \Qx âSP OP TP \Z̀z
R

k ZTmf�Q X\} \QxSP OP TP \Z̀z
R

� Wy TUWY
R

g ^Y WZ] ^yQ TŴXW\y�Q X\} \Qfk ZTmUfb WY[ XOP[ \̂Ua
~ \̂W] ^Y[ XOP WY
a�pq

R�fjafoRa�

� \y�

r ��EC DEFG� sE� MFK F� ��� � uK ��� I��DL p�q� �p�q�

291

ITEM  34.



C DEFGH IJIDKL M �� ssuE� ã ½ªÈÉä ª̄½
Ê ªµ ªÚÅ ÆÈ¾̄åµ ¯¿Å ½̄Ë ¬ÆÈ æ »ç Æ½«Å ÆÈ¾̄åµ ¯¿́Ë »¬½ æ »ç Æ½«¼ ¬ÈÈËèÚ ¯éÛ »° »¬Ü» æ »ç Æ½«¼ ½¬¾̄½µ «© ªÙªȬ ê »Ú «À ÁÂ ÃÄ

²¹¹̧
¹¹
¹¹
¹¹

²¹¹à
¹¹
¹¹
¹¹

²¹±¹
¹¹
¹¹
¹¹

²¹±±
¹¹
¹¹
¹¹

²¹±²
¹¹
¹¹
¹¹

²¹±Ì
¹¹
¹¹
¹¹

²¹±¶
¹¹
±¹
±²

²¹±×
¹¹
¹¹
¹¹

²¹±·
¹¹
¹²
±Ì

²¹±ß
¹±
±±
ß±¹

²¹±̧
¹¹
²¹
²¶

²¹±à
¹¹
±¹
±²

À ÁÂ ÃÄ¹
±×
Ì±²
²±

H IJIDKL M�ë IED R�fjafoRa�

c \y�

r ��EC DEFG� sE� MFK F� ��� � uK ��� I��DL p�q� �p�q�

r st uDMHL EL uF �� ssuE� ã ½ªÈÉä ª̄½Ê ªµ ªÚÅ ÆÈ¾̄åµ ¯¿ È̄½Ë ¬ÆÈéË »åª¾ªå Ëµ ªµË »ÕÅ ÆÈ¾̄åµ ¯¿ ÙË »¬½é »¬» Ö Ë »åª¾ªåËµ ªµË »Õ¼ ¬ÈÈËèÚ ¯ ì å¬Ù¾Ú ªË »µ ¬ ¾ªË »éË »ç Æ½«íÛ »Ë »ç Æ½̄¿Ê ªµ ªÚ î»¬µ å½ªÈÉ Ö½̄Ú ªµ ¯¿Û »° »¬Ü»À ÁÂ ÃÄ

²¹¹̧
¹¹
¹¹
¹¹
¹¹

²¹¹à
¹¹
¹¹
¹¹
¹¹

²¹±¹
¹¹
¹¹
¹¹
¹¹

²¹±±
¹¹
¹¹
¹¹
¹¹

²¹±²
¹¹
¹¹
¹¹
¹¹

²¹±Ì
¹¹
¹¹
¹¹
¹¹

²¹±¶
¹¹
±¹
¹¹
¹±

²¹±×
¹¹
¹¹
¹¹
¹¹

²¹±·
¹¹
¹²
¹¹
¹²

²¹±ß
¹±
±²
¹¹
¹¶

²¹±̧
¹¹
²±
¹¹
¹Ì

²¹±à
¹¹
±±
¹¹
¹²

À ÁÂ ÃÄ¹
±×
·¹
¹¹±²

r st uDMHL EL uF�ë IED R�fjafoRa�

{ \y�

r ��EC DEFG� sE� MFK F� ��� � uK ��� I��DL p�q� �p�q�

292

ITEM  34.



ï TZ[ UY[ XP[ \̂�SP OP Wi[Y W � WOZ�oRa� |oRac |oRa{ |oRa� |oRað |oRa�
b OVS WQ WXP[ \̂�� WU N[QP WZ�~ \̂W� IILK s�LG I¦ ��� ��K s��DKL IDK E

� sE� MFLr s¦ �DvELK �s R�fjafoRa�

� \y�

r ��EC DEFG� sE� MFK F� ��� � uK ��� I��DL p�q� �p�q�

293

ITEM  34.



294

ITEM  34.



295

ITEM  34.



296

ITEM  34.



� � �  � � � � � � �  � 8 � � �  � � � * � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � & � �  � � � � � � � � �  % � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � �  � � � � � � � �  �  � � � � � � � �  � � # � � � �� � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � & & �  � � � � � � � 
 8 4 � * � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � �. ~ 5 * - 7 � * 1 2 3 / � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � & � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � �  � $ � � � � � � � � � �  � #
 � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � . � � � � / � & & �  � � � � � � � � �  � �  � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � �� � � �  � � � �  � � �  � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � # 
 � � � � � � � � � � � 0 3 & � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � 6 2 & � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  �  � � � � � � � � � � # 4 � � � � � � � � � %  � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  �  � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  % & � � � � � � � � � � �  �  � � � � � � � �  � � * � � � � � 6 2 & � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � & & �  � � � �� � � � & & �  � � � � � � � � � � � � # � � � & � � � � � � % � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � + � � � � � � � � � % � � � � � � � � �  � * � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � & & � � � � � � � % # 
 �  � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � �  � $ � � � � � � �  % � � � � � � � � � � � � �& � � & � � � � � � % � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � + & � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � * � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � �  �� � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � �  � #
 � � ; < = = > ? @ A A B C D E F C < < @ E C < G < D H H @ I J K L E M  � �  � � � � � � � � + & � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 5 # 1& � � � � � � & � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 0 & � � � � � � & � � � � � � � � 	 � � � � �  � � * � � 5 # 2 & � � � � � �& � � � � � � � � � � �  �  � � �  � � � � � � � � �  � $ � � � � � � � � � �  � #
 � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � �  � $ � � � � � � �  �  � 5 # 0 5 $ 5 #

297

ITEM  34.



ñ ò ó ô õ ö ÷ øù ú û ü ý þ ÿ þ � � � � � ú � ÿ � ü � � � � � � ü � � � �	 
 � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � ! � "  # 
 � �$ % & ' ( ) * % * + ,� � 
 � 
 ! � �  - � � 
 . � - � �  / ! 0 �1 2 3 4 5 2 6 7 89 : !  # - �  � �  - � � 
 . � - � �  	 
 !  � ; < � � : !  # - �  � � = � � . # " � > # ? � � � � � � ! � @A  B � � C � � � � � 	 
 !  / � ?  � � # � #  # � � � � � � 0 � D < E F 	 � � ! B G � � � "  # 
 � H � "  
 � / # �  � I � � 0 � < J KLM � � � ! � �  N � � � � A  B � � C � � � � � 	 
 !  ! � O < P Q � R � # ! " 
 � �  G �  � /  # - � . � � � � 
 ? M 0 � S T U� � � ! � �  N � � � � 	 
 !  � < O V U W : 	 X A 	Y ' Z [ [ \ ] ^ ( _ ` % * a Z , Z= 
 � � " � � P b � � b � � � c � �  � 
 ?  � � ? ? # " " 
 � � � � # � � : �  � � # � I N � B # " � � ! � � C � � � 
 � " B / 
 � C C � d b � 0� � � E � 	 � � � � �  C � � � � � : �  � � # � I N � B Q � D ; e W � : N f � E FF � � E � P � g � F . � B b � � � � H # � � � h � � � � : N � K i ; eP � � � � j : N � d 
  � � j # � � # 
 � : �  � � # � I N � B Q A . � �� # ? � 
 ? � � 
 k � "  � U l ; e� Q F R � � 
 k � "  � � d � � ? ? # " m � 
 n  B / � R L � � R 0 � o� c � g F c 	 � � � � �  � � # � � : �  � � # � I N � B # " � � ! � i ; ep ' Z q r a Z , Z� � � P H # � !  ? � � � � � � � L L s � � � g > � !  ? � � � � � � � F Q F � � � � ! � d # - � � � � # 
 � � UE C � � #  # 
 � � � - 
 �  B !� H �  � � 	 � � ! B � ! � H �  � � #  # � ! t M P � F � � � � � � LM� j � k 
 �  � k � � # � ! t M � � F � � � � � � F � � � �M�  � k � � � 	 � � ! B � ! F j # � 
 �  � k � � # � ! t M E F � � � � � � F � � � �ME � 
 ! ! # � � �  � k � � # � ! t M � F � � � � � � � � � � �M� � 
 � � �  � � � - � I � A � � � / � ! ! � - � � " 
 !  � � � " � � ! B 0 M c � P � � E E � E � �ML A G L � �  � � � � � � � 
 � � �  � 	 
 !  ! 
 ? � � � " � � ! B � ! �� d 
  � � 	 � � ! B � ! � U D d 
  � � M > 
 ! ! � u O V V � � E � E � �M� Q E P 	 � � � � �  	 � � ! B � ! b h � � � � D D W d C b d 	 � � ! B � ! b j : N � 	 � � ! B G �  � � < J� � � � � F EM 	 
 !  � � � 	 � � ! B � D e < W > A = = b d C 	 G W d C v � � w E b / � : N v � E F v d 0� c Q g d 
  � � : v � � "  � � 	 � � ! B � ! � U ; < J W 	 G v d j : N � � � ! � �  N � � � � 
 ? C . 
 # � � �� Q � E 	 � � ! B � ! C . 
 # � � � H # � !  h � � � D D J W C C v 	 G H b � � � 	 � � ! B � ! � x ; T ; K S U� � � � F � cM 	 � � ! B 	 
 !  ! C . 
 # � � � # � H # � !  h � � � � C C G v C N 	� P Q E d 
  � � C . 
 # � � � 	 � � ! B � ! � d : 	 G v 	 G H b � � �y * + * [ \ , z p ( q , { Z , \ (| } ~ } � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �

	 
 � . � �  � v # !  # � I  � � ? ? # " ! # I � � � # �  
 � � L � � � � � 
 � � � � � 
 � 	 � � � � � � # I B  ! � � � � � m � � � � B # � � G �� � � " � � � n � 	 
 � �  � = � � � � � � C ! ! 
 " # �  � !
� � � � � � � � ��

� � �   � � �   ��
� � � � ¡ � � ¢ £ ¤

� ¥ ¦ �

E � F � c � g � F� F � Q c �
 
 n � � A d � P � � F �

§¨ © ª¨ © ª« ¬ ¬ ® ®®
¯°°° ±²²³ ´ µ¶ · ´ µ

¸¹ º »¼¼¹ º » ½ ½ ¾½ ¿ ÀÁ Â º Ã ÃÃÄ
298

ITEM  34.



 
 

 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor James T. Brown and City Council  

 FROM: David Sturch, Planner III 

 DATE: July 30, 2019 

SUBJECT:  Cedar Falls Board of Adjustment 
  Rules of Procedure Amendment 
  
Please find attached the Rules of Procedure for the Cedar Falls Board of Adjustment. The 
Board is governed by the provisions of Chapter 26, of the Cedar Falls Zoning Ordinance.  
 
The Cedar Falls Board of Adjustment has recommended a change to the Board of 
Adjustment Rules of Procedure pertaining to the codification of the Cedar Falls Code of 
Ordinances. In the Rules of Procedure there are references to the new Zoning Chapter 
26 (old Chapter 29) and the order of hearing to add a staff introduction on the 
application. The Board has agreed to these changes and it applies only to the Board of 
Adjustment Rules of Procedure. This does not involve an Ordinance change but only 
approval by a City Council Resolution. This amendment was approved by the Board of 
Adjustment on May 28, 2019.  
 
Therefore, the Planning and Community Services Department recommends that the City 
Council approve the attached Cedar Falls Board of Adjustment Rules of Procedure in the 
form of a resolution and authorize the Mayor to sign said rules. 
 
If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me at this office. 
 
xc: Karen Howard, Planning and Community Services Manager 

 

299

ITEM  35.



300

ITEM  35.



301

ITEM  35.



302

ITEM  35.



303

ITEM  35.



304

ITEM  35.



 
 

 
 

 
 

RESOLUTION NO. _________ 

 
RESOLUTION APPROVING AMENDMENTS TO THE RULES AND 
PROCEDURE FOR THE CEDAR FALLS BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, has received 

a recommendation from the Cedar Falls Board of Adjustment to approve 
amendments to the Board of Adjustment Rules of Procedure relative to 
references to Chapter 26 of the Cedar Falls Code of Ordinances and order of 

hearing with statement of case by city staff; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Cedar Falls Board of Adjustment approved said 
amendments to the Rules of Procedure on May 28, 2019; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, deems it in 
the best interest of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa to approve said amendments to 
the Rules of Procedure for the Board of Adjustment relative to references to 

Chapter 26 of the Cedar Falls Code of Ordinances and order of hearing with 
statement of case by city staff amendment. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, that the revised Rules of Procedure for the 

Cedar Falls Board of Adjustment is hereby approved. 
 

ADOPTED this _______ day of ___________________, 2019. 

 
 

 
__________________________________________ 
James P. Brown, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 

 
         
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

305

ITEM  35.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 

 TO: Mayor and Council 

 FROM: David Sturch, Planner III 
  Matt Tolan, Civil Engineer II 

 DATE: July 31, 2019 

 SUBJECT: Park Ridge Estates Final Plat 
 

 
REQUEST: Request to approve the Park Ridge Estates Final Plat (Case #FP19-008) 

 
PETITIONER: BJW Holdings LLC; owner and CGA, Inc., Engineer 

 
LOCATION: 
 

20.8 acre parcel at the north end of Lakeshore Drive 

 

PROPOSAL 
The petitioner is requesting approval of a final plat that would create 6 residential lots on 20.8 
acres of land. This subdivision includes the extension of Lake Shore Drive approximately 500 
feet north of its current terminus. Lake Shore Drive will be dedicated as a public street. 
 
BACKGROUND 
The petitioner has been planning this development for the past year. The Planning and Zoning 
Commission recommended approval of the rezoning from A-1 to R-1 at the September 12, 2018 
meeting. The City Council approved the rezoning request in November of 2018. The preliminary 
plat was recommended for approval by the Planning and Zoning Commission on November 14, 
2018 and the City Council approved the preliminary plat on November 19, 2018. 
 
During this time of rezoning and platting, the petitioner’s engineer and city staff worked with the 
adjacent property owners to plan for the improvements of the adjacent dam structure near the 
southeast corner of the plat. This dam has been established for a number of years to facilitate a 
lake for the Lakewood Hills subdivision. The owners of the adjacent Lakewood Hills subdivision 
is in the process of permitting and repairing the dam and outflow structure that empties into the 
ravine along the east side of the proposed plat. The proposed Park Ridge Estates subdivision 
provides access easements for the repair and maintenance of said dam. 
 
ZONING 
As previously mentioned, the property was zoned R-1 in the fall of 2018. The R-1 district 
requires a minimum lot area of 9,000 ft² with a minimum lot width of 75 feet. Minimum required 
building setbacks are 30 feet for front and side yards abutting a street, 30-foot rear yard setback 
and side yard building setbacks of not less than 10% of the lot width. 

306

ITEM  36.



ANALYSIS 
The proposed plat includes six residential lots and six outlots on the 20.8 acre property. All lot 
areas and lot widths satisfy the R-1 district standards of 9,000 square feet and 75 feet, 
respectively. The following is a summary of the areas and widths for each lot. 
 

Lot # Lot Width (ft.) Lot Area (sq.ft.) 

1 159 32,428 

2 145 31,362 

3 75 95,764 

4 75 79,581 

5 110 62,775 

6 385 90,505 

Outlot A 385 38,535 

Outlot B 180 72,567 

Outlot C 159 17,878 

Outlot D 163 26,369 

Outlot E 401 156,103 

Outlot F 315 120,567 

Outlot G Detention 22,381 

Outlot H Detention 20,852 

 
The plat shows a 30-foot front yard setback. The rear yard setbacks will be 30 feet and the side 
yard setback will equal 10% of the lot width. These building setbacks conform to the R-1, 
residential zoning district standards. The lots are intended to be developed with single unit 
detached dwellings. 
 
The lettered outlots are identified on the plat as follows: 

 Outlot A will be sold to the adjacent property owner to the west of this subdivision. 

 Outlot B is located in the 100-year floodplain. The preliminary floodplain maps 
(tentative date for approval in the fall/winter of 2020) show that the majority of this 
outlot will be removed from the floodplain. At that time, the property owner would be 
able to submit a preliminary and final plat this outlot for future development of another 
single family dwelling. 

 Outlots C – F encompass the sensitive land features including the floodplain district, 
wetlands, steep slopes and tree stands. These outlots are identified as a conservation 
easement and will be conveyed to the owners of the abutting lots in the subdivision. 
This is a perpetual easement for preservation purposes. The conservation easement 
defines this area as a no disturbance buffer, the owners of these lots will not be 
permitted to make any temporary or permanent change in the character of the 
aforementioned sensitive features, no grading/fill, no structures or any other 
encroachment will not be permitted. This easement is identified on the plat and deed of 
dedication. A separate conservation easement must be filed with the Black Hawk 
Recorder’s office and attached to the plat and deed of dedication. 

 Outlots G – H are set aside for storm water management purposes. These will be the 
detention basins to collect the storm water from the subdivision. Access must be 
identified on the plat through Outlot H from Lot 1 to Outlot C.  

 
The Park Ridge Estates plat includes a cul-de-sac extension of Lakeshore Drive. The middle of 
the cul-de-sac is approximately 600 feet from the north curb line of Lilliput Lane. This will be a 

307

ITEM  36.



31-foot wide street in a 60-foot public right of way. The cul-de-sac will have a 45-foot radius for 
90 feet of pavement which is large enough for city vehicles and fire trucks to make the 
turnaround. All lots will have access onto Lakeshore Drive. 
 
The International Fire Code allows up to 30 dwelling units in a residential development on a 
single access road or public street. Since the west half of Lakewood Hills and the Lakewood 
Estates subdivision already include 30 residential dwellings, a secondary access to this site is 
needed. Due to the rugged topography of the site providing a second means of access would be 
difficult and costly and would involve disturbance of sensitive environmental areas. However, 
there is an exception to this rule. More than 30 residential dwellings may be approved with only 
a single means of access, if these dwellings are equipped with an approved automatic sprinkler 
system in accordance with the International Fire Code. The proposed homes in this subdivision 
will be constructed with a residential sprinkler system approved by the City of Cedar Falls 
Building Department and Cedar Falls Fire Operations Department. Given the limited number of 
dwellings proposed, the difficulty of providing a second means of access and the addition of 
sprinkler systems, staff finds that making an exception to the secondary access rule is 
reasonable. 
 
The Deed of Dedication in association with the plat submittal is straightforward. The Deed 
language outlines the requirements for the developer and restricts the development of each lot 
in accordance with the R-1 residential standards found in the Zoning Ordinance. The 
development of this subdivision is limited to single unit dwellings. There is a provision in the 
Deed of Dedication for residential sprinkler systems to be installed in each dwelling and the 
installation of a 4-foot wide public sidewalk across the entire frontage of any lot at the time when 
a new house is under construction. Finally, all mailboxes will be grouped or clustered for the 
dwellings according to the USPS requirements and location reviewed by the City of Cedar Falls. 
 
TECHNICAL COMMENTS 
Utilities - City technical staff, including Cedar Falls Utilities (CFU) personnel, noted that the water, 
electric, gas and communication services are available to the site at the north end of Lakeshore 
Drive. An adequate sized water main has been extended to serve this subdivision. The other 
utilities are installed as part of the public improvements. The easements identified on the plat 
satisfy CFU requirements. 
 
Stormwater Management – The petitioner’s engineer has submitted a storm water management 
plan to the City and it has been reviewed by the City Engineer. The City Engineer has 
determined that the plan meets the City’s subdivision requirements and also finds that the 
design will improve the drainage pattern that has developed over the years on this undeveloped 
parcel of land. Following is a summary of the proposed stormwater management system for the 
new subdivision. 
 
The stormwater from the north end of the existing Lakeshore Drive and on the west side of the 
plat on Lot 6 will flow to an inlet located between Outlot B and Lot 1. A cut off ditch along the 
south border of the plat (west of Lakeshore Drive) will collect and divert any on-site runoff from 
Lot 6 to the street and will flow to the new intakes. The street and stormwater management 
system will be designed to direct a very large storm event into the stormwater basins on Outlot 
G and H. In such an event, approximately 1/3 of the water will be carried through an 18” storm 
sewer along the south side of Lot 1 to the detention basin in Outlot H; 1/3 of the water that is in 
the sump location in the street will be conveyed via an overflow channel located over the storm 
sewer to the basin in Outlot H. This basin is designed to collect the storm water from the street 

308

ITEM  36.



and from Lots 1-3. The remaining 1/3 of the water in a 100-year event will overtop the sump 
location in the street and travel to the north into another detention basin in Outlot G located at 
the end of the cul-de-sac. The detention basins in Outlot G and H are designed to detain up to a 
100-year rain event and release the water at a slower rate (the pre-development 2-year rate) 
into the stream at the bottom of the ravine along the north and east side of the subdivision. 
 
Sanitary Sewer - The sanitary sewer will be extended to the north end of Lakeshore Drive to 
service each lot. Typically, the sanitary sewer must be extended to the limits of the plat, per the 
City’s subdivision ordinance in order to accommodate the future growth in the northwest portion 
of Cedar Falls. The developer’s engineer provided a preliminary sanitary sewer study to identify 
a future location of the sewer extension to the limits of the plat. It was determined that due to the 
steep slopes, floodplain and soil conditions, a sanitary sewer is not feasible through the north 
end of the Lakeshore Drive extension or along the easterly property line. Therefore, the 
proposed development of this property will utilize the existing lift station at the southeast corner 
of the property. The plan is to extend a future sanitary sewer through the north edge of this plat 
to service future growth in western Cedar Falls at some point in the future. A sanitary sewer 
easement is identified along the north side of the plat to allow for the future sanitary sewer. 
 

SUMMARY 
The City’s Subdivision Ordinance outlines the requirements pertaining to Subdivision Plats. A 
Preliminary Subdivision Plat represents a “conceptual development plan” which the City must 
review and evaluate to insure compliance with all City regulations. Issues related to zoning 
regulations, utility easement provision, street locations and alignments and other factors are all 
subject to review and approval by City staff and the Planning and Zoning Commission and the 
City Council. Following Preliminary Plat approval by the City Council, the developer is free to 
begin installing the necessary public improvements (i.e. streets, sewers, waterlines, etc.) as 
indicated on the plat. 
 
A Final Subdivision Plat formalizes the Preliminary Plat and authorizes the developer to begin 
selling lots and to begin building on the newly created lots. Normally a Final Subdivision Plat 
cannot be approved until all of the required public improvements have been installed and 
completed to the satisfaction of the City Engineer. A Final Plat can be “expedited” prior to full 
completion and acceptance of public improvements provided that the developer posts a cash 
bond with the City Engineering Division which serves as a financial guarantee that all the 
improvements will be installed in a timely fashion. 
 
The lots are located outside of the designated 100-year floodplain. Outlots B - H encompass the 
100-year floodplain. 
 
A notice to the adjoining property owners informing them that this final plat will be presented to 
the City Council was mailed on August 1, 2019. 
 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
Discussion/Vote 
7/24/2019 

The Commission considered the Park Ridge Estates Final Plat. Chair Holst 
introduced the item and Mr. Sturch provided background information. He 
explained that the plat is a 20 acres parcel at the north end of Lakeshore 
Drive. Last year the Commission and Council approved the rezoning and 
preliminary plat and the developer would like to create six new residential lots 
for single-family development. Mr. Sturch summarized the plat details about 
the sensitive areas containing floodplain, wetlands and steep slopes, which 

309

ITEM  36.



will be in a no-build area. He also displayed the access easements and 
proposed stormwater management plan. Staff recommends approval with the 
following stipulations: 
 

1. Any comments or direction from the Commission 
2. Submission of a separate Conservation Easement document to be 

recorded with the plat. (submitted) 
3. All new homes will be constructed with a residential sprinkler system 

approved by the Building Division and the Fire Department. 
4. Identification of an access easement on the plat through Outlot H from 

Lot 1 to Outlot C. (done) 
5. Submission and approval of necessary construction documents, 

contracts, lien waivers, estimates and bonds for the public 
improvements. (done) 

6. Verification by the petitioner’s engineer that all access easements 
shown on the plat will be accessible and traversable for city vehicles. 
(done) 

7. Conformance to all city staff recommendations and technical 
comments 

 
Mr. Wingert stated that he will be abstaining from the item.  

 
Chair Holst asked if there were any comments from the public. 

 
Mrs. Tammy Stahl at 1009 Lakeshore Drive stated she had some comments 
about the drainage and access to the Lakewood Hills dam. Mr. Steve 
Troskey, the developer’s consultant explained that the excavation company 
is working on the infrastructure and the cleanup after the improvements. 

 
Mr. Holst noted his appreciation for the efforts in the conservation and 
retention and taking care of the existing runoff. 
 
There were no other comments and the Commission recommended approval 
of the Park Ridge Estates Final Plat. Wingert abstained from voting. 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
The proposed final plat meets the standards of the City’s subdivision code and is consistent with 
its corresponding and approved preliminary plat. The Community Development Department 
recommends approval of the Park Ridge Estates Final Plat, subject to the following comments: 
 

1. Any comments or direction specified by the City Council. 
2. All new homes will be constructed with a residential sprinkler system approved by the 

City of Cedar Falls Building Department and or Cedar Falls Fire Department according to 
IFC 2015 and NFPA 13D. 

3. Conform to all city staff recommendations and technical requirements. 
 

310

ITEM  36.



311

ITEM  36.



312

ITEM  36.



313

ITEM  36.



314

ITEM  36.



315

ITEM  36.



316

ITEM  36.



U:\bkayser\Wpdocs\REALEST\BJW, LLC\deed of dedication.doc Page 1

DEED OF DEDICATION
OF

PARK RIDGE ESTATES SUBDIVISION
CEDAR FALLS,

IOWA

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

That BJW Holdings, LLC, an Iowa limited liability company, with its principal office in
Cedar Falls, Iowa; being desirous of setting out and platting into lots and streets the land
described in the attached Certificate of Survey by ______________, a Professional Engineer and
Licensed Land Surveyor, dated _____ day of ________________, 2019, does by these presents
designate and set apart the aforesaid premises as a subdivision of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa
the same to be known as:

PARK RIDGE ESTATES SUBDIVISION
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA

all of which is with the free consent and the desire of the undersigned and the undersigned do
hereby designate and set apart for public use the street(s) as shown upon the attached plat.

EASEMENTS

The undersigned do hereby grant and convey to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, its
successors and assigns, and to any private corporation, firm or person furnishing utilities for the
transmission and/or distribution of water, sanitary sewer, gas, electricity, communication service
or cable television, perpetual easements for the erection, laying building and maintenance of said
services over, across, on and/or under the property as shown on the attached plat. No structures
of any kind shall be built or placed within any easements as shown on the attached plat.

RESTRICTIONS

Be it also known that the undersigned do hereby covenant and agree for themselves and
their successors and assigns that each and all of the residential lots in said subdivision be and the
same are hereby made subject to the following restrictions upon their use and occupancy as fully
and effectively to all intents and purposes as if the same were contained and set forth in each
deed of conveyance or mortgage that the undersigned or their successors in interest may
hereinafter make for any of said lots and that such restrictions shall run with the land and with
each individual lot thereof for the length of time and in all particulars hereinafter stated, to-wit:

1. Any dwelling that shall be erected on any lot shall have a minimum setback from the

317

ITEM  36.



U:\bkayser\Wpdocs\REALEST\BJW, LLC\deed of dedication.doc Page 2

front of the lot line as indicated on attached Final Plat. The minimum set back from each side lot
line is 10% of the lot width measured along the front of the lot or seven and one-half (7.5) feet
whichever is greater. All minimum setbacks will be required to meet or exceed R-1 Zoning.

2. No single family dwelling shall be constructed, permitted or occupied on any lot
herein having a square footage floor space, designed, intended, and constructed for living
quarters, which space shall not include cellars, attics, garages, breezeways, porches, stoops, and
other such non-living areas, of less than the following requirements:

A. 2,000 square feet for the main base of a single story, split-level or split-foyer houses.

B. 1,300 square feet on the first floor for story and one-half houses, or two story houses.
With a total for all floors not less than 2,600 square feet excluding the basement level.

3. Each single family residence shall have a minimum of a garage with a minimum of
850 square feet.

4. The owner(s) of each lot, vacant or improved, shall keep his/hers lot or lots free of
weeds and debris.

5. No obnoxious or offensive trade or activity shall be carried on upon any lot nor shall
anything be done thereon which may be or become an annoyance or nuisance to the
neighborhood.

6. All approaches and driveways in said subdivision shall be paved with concrete.

7. No old or used buildings shall be moved upon any of the lots in said subdivision for
any purpose. Any auxiliary buildings or sheds must be built of the same or similar materials of
the residential structure on the lot and have the same roof pitch and design as said residential
structure.

8. No radio station or short-wave operators of any kind shall operate from any lot which
shall cause interference with audio or visual reception upon any other lot. No exterior radio
antenna shall be erected or maintained in or on the property. No satellite TV antenna or “Dish”
may be maintained, constructed or erected on any lot unless it is constructed in the rear yard and
at least twenty feet from any property line and is shielded from the public view by shrubbery and
landscaping. No dish larger than 24” will be allowed.

9. No dwelling on any lot of said subdivision shall be occupied until the exterior is
completed and finished and the interior substantially completed and finished.

10. No bus, semi-tractor, RV, fifth-wheel camper, trailer or truck of any kind except what
is commonly described as a “pick-up truck” shall be kept or parked on any lot or street in said

318

ITEM  36.



U:\bkayser\Wpdocs\REALEST\BJW, LLC\deed of dedication.doc Page 3

subdivision for a period not to exceed twenty-four hours, after which said vehicle can not return
to said subdivision for a period of five days, provided, however, that this prohibition shall not
apply to such vehicles driven in said subdivision in pursuit of and in conducting their usual
business.

11. All buildings erected on any lot in said subdivision shall be constructed in accordance
with the Building, Plumbing, and Electrical Codes of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa.

12. No animals, livestock, or poultry of any kind shall be raised, bred or kept on any lot,
except that two dogs or cats maximum, or other household pets are allowed and then only if they
are not kept, bred or maintained for any commercial purposes, such animals shall be kept under
control so as not to constitute a public nuisance and must be kept in compliance with applicable
zoning laws and regulations of the City of Cedar Falls, Black Hawk County, Iowa. Dog runs or
dog kennels of any kind are prohibited.

13. No fencing shall be allowed on any Lot.

14. Each house must be constructed with a fire suppression system approved by the City
of Cedar Falls Building Department.

15. Tract A to be deeded to the City of Cedar Falls, for street purposes.

16. Outlot A must be conveyed to the owner of adjoining 3316 Skyview Rd., Cedar
Falls, Black Hawk County, Iowa for expansion of a yard.

17. Outlots B, C, D, E and F are located in a flood plain and shall follow all federal,
state, and local ordinances regarding the same. Outlot B is reserved for further development
pending flood map revisions. Outlot C must be conveyed to the owner of Lot 1. Outlot D must
be conveyed to the owner of Lot 2. Outlot E must be conveyed to the owner of Lot 3. Outlot F
must be conveyed to the owner of Lot 4

18. Outlots G and H shall be used for stormwater detention.

19. An access easement through Outlot B is shown on the plat. Said easement shall be
for access to the detention pond located on Outlot H and the Lakewood Hills dam structure and
is granted to any party having a legal right to inspect, maintain, or repair said detention pond or
dam structure. Said easement is not a public easement.

20. The Park Ridge Estates Conservation Easement shown on the Plat shall be to prohibit
development in this area and maintain the natural features within this area. The Park Ridge
Estates Conservation Easement is attached to the Plat.

21. Lot 1 shall access Outlot C through Outlot H.

319

ITEM  36.



U:\bkayser\Wpdocs\REALEST\BJW, LLC\deed of dedication.doc Page 4

22. A four foot wide P.C.C. sidewalk four inches thick will be installed by the owner of
said lot during or immediately after the construction of the residence on any particular lot, or
within five years after the date the plat is filed in the office of the recorder of Black Hawk
County, whichever is sooner and that the sidewalk be across the full width of the lot and on
corner lots also. In the event that the City is required to construct the sidewalk, a lien or liens
may only be imposed against the lot or lots which require city construction and no others in the
subdivision.

23. No building or structure shall be erected, placed or altered on any lot in this
subdivision until the building plans, and plot plan, showing all buildings, patios, and pools, and
showing the location thereof, and side yard distances, rear yard distances, front yard distances,
driveways, and walkways, and type of construction have been approved in writing as to
conformity and harmony of the external design and quality workmanship and materials with
existing structures in the subdivision by a representative of BJW Holdings, LLC.

24. Factory-built housing or modular homes will not be allowed. Panelized homes may
be allowed, but must meet the requirements of BJW Holdings, LLC, as stated in the previous
restriction.

25. The Owner and/or occupant of each Lot shall jointly and severally be responsible to
keep in good order or to maintain the area between the curbline and the property line abutting
their property including keeping said area free of holes, pitfalls, stumps of trees, fences, brick,
stone, cement, stakes, posts or rods to which a metal, plastic or similar receptacle designed to
hold newspapers are affixed, private irrigation or sprinkler systems, retaining walls, landscaping
brick, block, stone, timber or other similar material, or any other similar obstructions. All
mailboxes shall be clustered or grouped for the units, and shall be placed between the curb line
and the property line abutting the lots.

26. The contractor or owner of any lot shall verify the depth of the sanitary sewer service
line serving said lot to ensure minimum drainage will be met prior to any footing or foundation
work being completed. All sump pump lines must be buried and attached to the subdrain along
the back of the P.C.C. curbed street. No sump lines will be allowed to dump directly onto the
ground surface.

27. Any and all drainage easements will be required to follow the “Stormwater
Management Plan” and no building structures, fence structures, landscaping structures, private
gardens, fill material, or any other possible obstruction can be built in and over said drainage
easements. All lot owners and/or contractors working on said lots will be responsible to
maintain said easements to be free and clear of any physical obstruction(s) thus allowing the
conveyance of overland storm water runoff as intended per “Stormwater Management Plan” on
record with the City of Cedar Falls Engineer’s Office.

320

ITEM  36.



U:\bkayser\Wpdocs\REALEST\BJW, LLC\deed of dedication.doc Page 5

28. Each person or entity who is record owner of a fee or undivided fee interest in any
lot shall be a member of the Homeowners Association to be known as Park Ridge Homeowners
Association. This shall not be construed to include persons or entities whom hold an interest
merely as security for the performance of an obligation. There shall be one vote per lot and each
lot owner shall be a member of the Homeowners Association. Membership shall be appurtenant
to and may be not separated from ownership of any lot; ownership of such lot shall be the sole
qualification of membership.

The purpose of Park Ridge Homeowners Association shall be to own and maintain the
common area and green spaces of the development, including but not limited to Outlots 1 & 2
(retention ponds) and surrounding access (whether located in said subdivision or serving said
subdivision but located outside thereof) and such other activities set forth in the Articles of
Incorporation and Bylaws of the Association. Such ownership and maintenance shall include, but
not limited to, of common neighborhood cluster mailboxes, mowing, watering, include upkeep of
any underground sprinkler system, snow removal of common areas, maintenance of the retention
pond(s) water retention/detention area(s) including water quality issues set forth by the City of
Cedar Falls in the Maintenance and Repair Agreement for Park Ridge Estates Subdivision.
Initially, the Developer, BJW Holdings, LLC, shall perform the actual construction duties to
establish the common area, green spaces, entrance, pond and surrounding access area.

The annual dues for the Association shall initially be set at $300 per lot per year
beginning in ____________ 1, 2019. The Developer, BJW Holdings, LLC, shall be exempt
from any dues expense. The Association shall have the ability and authority to adjust annual
dues as it deems appropriate to carry out the maintenance duties as described above.

PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS REQUIRED IN PLAT

1. The Street(s) shown on the attached plat, and referred to as Tract A, will be brought to
City grade and that the street will be thirty-one (31) feet, back of curb to back of curb, with
approved hard surface pavement in accordance with the City of Cedar Falls, Standard
Specifications unless otherwise specified as per approved construction plans.

2. Sanitary sewer, together with the necessary manholes and sewer service lines to all
lots in the plat will be provided.

3. That underground utilities, as required by the Subdivision Ordinance of the City of
Cedar Falls, Iowa, shall be installed.

4. That city water will be provided to all lots as required by the Cedar Falls Municipal
utilities.

5. That municipal fire hydrant(s) will be provided as required by the Cedar Falls Public
Safety Department.

321

ITEM  36.



U:\bkayser\Wpdocs\REALEST\BJW, LLC\deed of dedication.doc Page 6

6. That Storm sewer will be provided as specified by the City Engineer.

7. That handicap ramps will be provided as required by law.

8. That the work improvements called herein shall be in accordance with the
specifications of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, and performed under the supervision of the City
Engineer. In the event that the developer, BJW Holdings, LLC, it grantees and assigns fail to
complete said work and improvements called for within one (1) year from the date of the
acceptance of said final plat by the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, the City may then make
improvements and assess the costs of the same to the respective lots. The undersigned, for
themselves, their successors, grantees and assigns, waive all statutory requirements of notice of
time and place of hearing and agree that the City may install said improvements and assess the
total costs thereof against the respective lots.

9. That the City may perform said work, levy the cost thereof as assessments, and the
undersigned agree that said assessments so levied shall be a lien on the respective lots with the
same force and effect as though all legal provisions pertaining to the levy of such special
assessments have been observed, and further authorize the City Clerk to certify such assessments
to the County Auditor as assessments to be paid in installments as provided by law.

10. The Developer shall construct and install all required public improvements within the
subdivision plat, to conform with approved construction plans which meet the specifications of
the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. Such required public improvements shall meet the following
requirements:

(a) Shall be constructed and installed in a good and workmanlike manner;
(b) Shall be free of defects in workmanship or materials;
(c) Shall be free of any conditions that could result in structural or other failure of

said improvements;
(d) Shall be constructed and installed in accordance with the design standards and

technical standards established for such public improvements by the City and by Cedar Falls
Utilities;

(e) Shall be constructed and installed in strict compliance with the minimum
acceptable specifications for the construction of public improvements set forth in the Cedar Falls
Code of Ordinances, including without limitation, Chapter 24, Subdivisions, and as such
specifications shall be recommended for approval by the City Engineer from time to time, and
approved by the city council.

The Developer’s construction plans are now on file in the Office of the City Engineer.

322

ITEM  36.



U:\bkayser\Wpdocs\REALEST\BJW, LLC\deed of dedication.doc Page 7

SIGNED and DATED this _______ day of _______________, 2019.

BJW Holdings, LLC

___________________________
Brian J. Wingert, Manager

STATE OF IOWA, BLACK HAWK COUNTY: ss

On this ____ day of ______________, 2019, before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public
in and for the State of Iowa, personally appeared Brian J. Wingert, Manager of BJW Holdings,
LLC, to me known as the identical persons named in and who executed the foregoing instrument
and acknowledged that they executed the same as their voluntary act and deed on behalf of BJW
Holdings, LLC.

______________________________________
Notary Public in and for the State of Iowa

323

ITEM  36.



324

ITEM  36.



325

ITEM  36.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8606 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 

 TO: Mayor and City Council 

 FROM: David Sturch, Planner III 
  Matthew Tolan, Civil Engineer II 

 DATE: July 31, 2019 

 SUBJECT: Western Home Communities Ninth Addition Final Plat 
 

 
REQUEST: 

 
Request to approve the Western Home Communities Ninth Addition Final Plat 
Plat. Case #FP19-005 
 

PETITIONER: Western Home Communities, Claassen Engineering 
 

LOCATION: 
 

The property is located on 18.33 acres of land at the southwest corner of 
Prairie Parkway and Prairie View Road in the Western Home Campus on S. 
Main Street 
 

 

 
PROPOSAL 
Western Home Communities is proposing another phase for condominium/villa development 
along the south side of Prairie View Road. The Western Home Communities Ninth Addition will 
create 18 lots intended for retirement two unit/condos, similar to the recent development that 
has occurred on nearby Caraway Lane, 
Sweet Basil Lane and Shooting Star 
Way. The lots are similar in size from the 
previous phases, typically ranging from 
0.33 acres to 0.6 acres. New streets 
extending south off of Prairie View Road 
include Caraway Lane, Savory Lane and 
Lemongrass Drive. All street are to be 
constructed to 31 ft. paving width. 
 
BACKGROUND 
The Final Plat for the Western Home 
Communities Seventh Addition was 
approved by the Planning and Zoning 
Commission in the spring of 2015 and by 
the City Council in the fall of the same 
year. The seventh addition created 17  

326

ITEM  37.



lots to allow the construction of the new Diamond Event Center and Jorgensen Plaza. Caraway 
Lane was installed as a private 29-foot wide roadway extending south of Prairie View Road 
approximately 225 feet to access the aforementioned Diamond Event Center. The seventh 
addition also created additional lots for new two unit condos on Sweet Basil Lane and Shooting 
Star Way. Finally, included in the Seventh Addition was a large 16.7 acre tract located at the 
southwest corner of Prairie View Road and Prairie Parkway. This tract was set aside for future 
development of the Western Home Communities South Main Street campus. The proposed 
ninth addition is essentially a replat of the aforementioned tract in the Western Home Seventh 
Addition. 
 
ANALYSIS 
Western Home Communities proposes to plat 18.33 acres of land at the southwest corner of 
Prairie View Road and Prairie Parkway. The area will continue with the development of the 
condominium/villas. The property is located in the MU District which permits this type of 
development. The Commission has reviewed the proposed condos/villas in the past and the 
plan is to construct similar units in the proposed ninth addition. 
 
Tract A is reserved for the new street extension of Caraway Lane, Savory Lane and 
Lemongrass Drive. Tract B is reserved for street right of way and a potential street extension 
into the future development of Outlot A. Tract C is the existing street right of way for Caraway 
Lane that currently serves access into the Jorgenson Event Center. This section of Caraway 
Lane would become a public street. All streets will be 31 feet wide. At this time, Western Home 
has no plans to add additional condos/villas in Outlot A. With no development plans identified for 
Outlot A, planned access locations must be established for this large vacant parcel. Prairie 
Parkway to the east is a “controlled” roadway with limited access locations which is established 
at the Prairie Parkway and Prairie View Road roundabout. Access to the south is not an option 
since this is an undeveloped commercial lot that is associated with the Pinnacle Prairie 
Commercial South development. This leaves the access locations onto Prairie View Road to the 
north and the proposed Savory Lane to the west. The access location on the north side of Outlot 
A (Prairie View Road) must line up with the existing street locations of Sweet Basil Lane and 
Shooting Star Way. Access to the west, if necessary, is identified in Tract B at the south end of 
Lemongrass Drive. It is important to provide multiple street connections to adjacent lots for 
adequate access, traffic flow and emergency response vehicles.      
 
TECHNICAL COMMENTS 
City technical staff, including Cedar Falls Utilities (CFU) personnel, noted that the water, gas 
and communication services are available to the site. The developer will be responsible for 
extending the utility services to the proposed development. The easements identified on the plat 
satisfy CFU requirements. Drainage easements are identified on the plat between Lots 1 
through 10, and along the south and east edge of the plat. The 30’ drainage easement along the 
west side of Prairie Parkway is subject to overland flows and must not be impeded. Future site 
plan review of this area will require restrictions on the placement of any landscaping and 
vegetation. 
 
City zoning staff notes that the proposed lots are sufficient in size to meet the anticipated 
development plans. The MU District is more flexible than other districts in terms of minimum lot 
area, lot width, etc. The MU district allows a 20 foot setback adjacent to all roadways and a 30 
foot setback is permitted around the MU district boundary. Zero side lot line setbacks are 
allowed. The proposed plan will be similar to the previous additions in the Western Home 
development. The front yard setbacks will be 20 feet and the setback along the district boundary 

327

ITEM  37.



on the south side of this plat is 39 feet, due to a drainage and utility easement. It is anticipated 
that these lots will be developed in the traditional manner with adequate front, rear and side yard 
setbacks. 
 
The property is located outside of the designated 100-year floodplain.   
 
The preliminary plat was recommended for approval by the Planning and Zoning Commission 
on May 8, 2019. The City Council approved the Western Home Ninth Addition preliminary plat 
on May 20, 2019. The developer is proceeding with the construction and installation of all 
required public infrastructure such as streets, sewers and other utilities. No lot sales or new 
home construction can begin until a Final Plat is approved by the City Council. The platting 
documents including the Deed of Dedication, City Council resolution forms and a plat fee of 
have been submitted. 
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
Discussion/Vote 
6/26/2019 

The Planning and Zoning Commission considered the Western Home 
Communities Ninth Addition Final Plat. Chair Holst stated he had a conflict of 
interest and would need to abstain from the matter. Acting Chair Leeper 
introduced the item and Mr. Sturch provided background information. He 
explained that the property is located at the southwest corner of Prairie View 
Road and Prairie Parkway and will be future development of the condos and 
villas that are currently there. Staff recommends approval of the plat with 
conformance to all City staff recommendations and requirements as well as 
any comments or direction from the Commission. 
 
There were no other comments and the Commission recommended approval 
of the final plat for the Western Home Communities Ninth Addition. 

  
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
The proposed final plat meets the standards of the City’s subdivision code and is consistent with 
its corresponding and approved preliminary plat. The Community Development Department 
recommends approval of the Western Home Communities Ninth Addition Final Plat, subject to 
the following comments: 
 

1. Any comments or direction specified by the City Council. 
2. Conform to all city staff recommendations and technical requirements. 

328

ITEM  37.



329

ITEM  37.



                             















LOT  1

LOT  2

LOT  3

LOT  4

LOT  6

LOT  7

LOT  8

LOT  5

LOT  9

LOT  10

LOT  11

LOT  14

LOT  13

LOT  12

LOT  16

LOT  15





























LOT  17

LOT  18

330

ITEM  37.



 

Deed of Dedication – Western Home Communities Ninth Addition Page 1 of 6 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Preparer: Mark F. Conway c/o Swisher & Cohrt, PLC,  (319) 232-6555 Phone 

P.O. Box 1200, 528 W. 4th St., Waterloo, IA 50704  (319) 232-4835 Fax 

 

DEED OF DEDICATION 
 

WESTERN HOME COMMUNITIES NINTH ADDITION 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

 

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS:  

 

That the undersigned, Western Home Services, Inc., an Iowa nonprofit corporation, being desirous 

of laying out and platting into lots and tracts the real estate described in the  Certificate of Survey 

prepared by David L. Scheil, a Registered Land Surveyor, dated the ____ day of _________ 2019, 

attached as Exhibit “A” do by these presents, designate and set apart the real estate described in 

the plat showing location and numbers and letters of lots and names and locations of streets as a 

subdivision of the City of Cedar Falls, in Black Hawk County, Iowa, the same to be known 

hereafter and called Western Home Communities Ninth Addition, Cedar Falls, Iowa (at times 

herein, the “Ninth Addition”), all of which is with the free consent and desire of the undersigned. 

The owners do hereby grant and convey to the City of Cedar Falls, its successors and assigns and 

to any private corporation, firm or person furnishing utilities for the transmission and/or 

distribution of water, sanitary sewer, gas, electricity, communication service or cable television, 

perpetual easements for the erection, laying, building and maintenance of such services over, 

across, on and/or under the property as shown on the attached plat.  

 

ADJACENT SUBDIVISIONS AND UNPLATTED PARCELS 

 

The Western Home Communities Ninth Addition was formerly described as Tract “E” in the 

Western Home Communities Seventh Addition. The Ninth Addition will be bordered on the west 

by Caraway Lane and the existing the Prairie Winds / Jorgensen Plaza development in the Western 

Home Communities Eighth Addition; on the north by residential villas in the Western Home 

Communities Seventh Addition; on the south by the Gencom Subdivision (Walmart) and Pinnacle 

Prairie Commercial South – Phase IV Subdivision (Greenhill Estates, Inc. & Hobby Lobby); and 

on the east by the remaining unplatted portion of Tract “E” and Tract “C” owned by Western Home 

Services, Inc. The east border of the Ninth Addition is known as Prairie Parkway. Prairie View 

Road runs between Prairie Parkway on the east and Caraway Lane on the west and will serve as 

the northern border of the Ninth Addition. Caraway Lane will extend from the north to south along 

331

ITEM  37.



 

Deed of Dedication – Western Home Communities Ninth Addition Page 2 of 6 

the western border of the Ninth Addition. All streets provide public access to, from and within the 

Ninth Addition. 

 

COVENANTS AND RESTRICTIONS 

 

The undersigned do also covenant and agree for themselves, and their successors and assigns, that 

each and all of the lots in the subdivision shall be, and the same are hereby made subject to the 

following restrictions upon their use and occupancy as fully and effectively to all intents and 

purposes as if the same were set forth and contained in each deed of conveyance or mortgage that 

the undersigned or its successors in interest may hereafter make for any of the lots, and that such 

restrictions shall run with the land and with each individual lot thereof for the length of time and 

in the particulars hereinafter stated, to-wit:  

 

1. All lots and tracts shall be known as and available for such uses as may be permitted under 

the zoning regulations of the City of Cedar Falls, in effect at that time, as may be amended 

from time to time, except as otherwise restricted in this Deed of Dedication.  

2. Structures are restricted to those allowed in Mixed Use Residential Zoning Districts and as 

may be permitted under the applicable zoning regulations of the City of Cedar Falls, as 

may be amended from time to time, except as otherwise restricted in this Deed of 

Dedication. 

3. Each portion of the property shall be made subject to the covenants, restrictions, easements, 

obligations, and other provisions of that certain Charter for Pinnacle Prairie Commercial 

Properties recorded prior to the conveyance of the property (such Charter, as it may be 

amended from time to time in accordance with its terms, is referred to herein as the 

"Charter").  The Charter shall be binding upon the owners, lessees, and occupants of each 

portion of the property made subject to the Charter and any other person or entity holding 

any interest in such property, as well as their respective guests and invitees.  The record 

owner of each lot or condominium unit within the property subject to the Charter shall, 

upon acquisition of title to such lot or unit, automatically become a member of a mandatory 

membership owners association as identified in the Charter (the "Association"), and shall 

remain a member as long as he/she/it holds title to such property.  Membership in the 

Association shall be appurtenant to and may not be separated from ownership of such lot 

or condominium unit.  The Association shall be organized to perform such obligations and 

exercise such powers as are assigned and granted to it in the Charter and its articles of 

incorporation and bylaws, which may include, without limitation, administering and 

enforcing the Charter, the design guidelines adopted pursuant thereto, and such reasonable 

rules as the Association may adopt consistent with the Charter, and maintenance of 

common areas and other property as authorized in the Charter and supplements 

thereto.   Each record owner shall have such voting rights in the Association and such 

liability for a share of the common expenses of the Association as described in the Charter 

and the by-laws of the Association.  The financial obligations of each record owner to the 

Association shall be a personal obligation of such owner and shall be secured by a lien in 

favor of the Association against the owner's property under the Charter.  

4. The subdivision is in the Central Service Area of the Charter for Pinnacle Prairie 

Commercial Properties. Responsibility for maintenance costs within this service area is 

332

ITEM  37.



 

Deed of Dedication – Western Home Communities Ninth Addition Page 3 of 6 

detailed on Exhibit “B”, the same previously acknowledged by the City in its approval of 

the Western Home Communities Seventh Addition. Responsibility for maintaining 

drainage and detention basins within this service area is detailed on Exhibit “C”, the same 

previously acknowledged by the City in its approval of the Western Home Communities 

Seventh Addition. 

5. Any and all drainage easements shall be required to follow the "Stormwater Management 

Plan" on record with the City of Cedar Falls Engineer's Office. No building structures, 

fence structures, landscaping structures, private gardens or any other possible obstruction 

shall be built in and over such drainage easements. All lot owners and/or contractors 

working on such lots will be responsible to maintain such easements and keep the same 

free and clear of any physical obstruction(s) thus allowing the conveyance of overland 

storm water runoff as intended per the City’s Stormwater Management Plan. 

6. No grading or other construction shall be performed on any lot in the subdivision that 

blocks the flow of surface drainage water. 

7. Any footing drain tiles, roof-leaders, sump pump systems installed in conjunction with the 

construction of a residence shall be expelled into the front, rear, or side yard or longitudinal 

sub-drains in the street and shall not be expelled into any sanitary sewer system or directly 

onto the street.  

8. All buildings to be erected on any lot shall be constructed within building lines as indicated 

on the plat, and within City of Cedar Falls building and zoning ordinances.  

9. No trailer, basement, tent, shack, garage, barn or other outbuilding in the tract shall at any 

time be used as a residence temporarily or permanently nor shall any residence of a 

temporary character be permitted.  

10. The titleholder of each lot and tract, vacant or improved, shall keep the same free of weeds 

and debris.  

11. No obnoxious or offensive trade shall be carried on upon any lot or tract, nor shall anything 

be done thereon which may be or become an annoyance or nuisance to the neighborhood.  

12. All subsequent owners of lots in the subdivision shall be obligated to meet any 

requirements imposed by the Commissioners of the Black Hawk County Conservation 

District or any other governmental agency, by the authority of Chapter 467A, Code of 

Iowa, as amended by the 73rd General Assembly, pertaining to soil erosion control plans 

for certain land disturbing activities. This covenant shall be perpetual and shall run with 

the land.   

13. Mailboxes shall be clustered in a common neighborhood monument-type mailboxes 
arrangement as required by the United States Postal Department. 

14. The Developer shall perform the construction duties necessary to establish the common 

area, green spaces, entrance, retention pond(s) and surrounding access areas. The 

Developer shall initially maintain the common area, green spaces, entrance retention 

pond(s) and surrounding access of the development (whether located in such subdivision 

or serving such subdivision but located outside thereof). Such ownership and maintenance 

shall include, without limitation, common neighborhood monument-type mailboxes, 

mowing, watering, including upkeep of any underground sprinkler systems, snow removal 

333

ITEM  37.



 

Deed of Dedication – Western Home Communities Ninth Addition Page 4 of 6 

of common areas, maintenance of any retention pond(s) and/or water retention/detention 

area(s), and comply with all water quality issues set forth by the City of Cedar Falls in the 

Maintenance and Repair Agreement for the Western Home Communities Ninth Addition. 

15. No dwelling or building on any lot in the subdivision shall be occupied until the exterior is 

completed and finished, the interior is substantially completed and finished, and the City 

of Cedar Falls, Iowa, issues an occupancy permit. All construction and landscaping shall 

be completed within 12 months of issuance of building permit by the City of Cedar Falls, 

Iowa.  

16. No old or used buildings shall be moved upon any of the lots in the subdivision for any 

purpose and all buildings on any lot in the subdivision shall be kept in a reasonable state 

of repair and upkeep,  

17. Inoperable cars, trucks, or other vehicles or equipment shall not be parked or stored on any 

street or driveway in the subdivision or kept upon any lot unless the same are entirely 

enclosed in a permanent structure.  

18. Commercial and recreational equipment and vehicles of any type, whether camping, boat, 

utility, trailers of any type, snowmobile, tractors of any type, or otherwise, shall not be 

parked on driveway in the subdivision or kept upon any residentially zoned lot unless the 

same be entirely enclosed in a permanent structure, or unless said vehicle as hereinabove 

described is owned by a guest or invitee of the owner of said lot, in which case, such 

exception shall not continue for more than thirty (30) days.  

19. No bus, semi-tractor, trailer, or truck of any kind, except what is commonly described as a 

"pickup truck", shall be kept or parked on any residential lot or street in the subdivision, 

provided, however, that this prohibition shall not apply to such vehicles driven in the 

subdivision in pursuit of and conducting their usual business.  

20. No concrete block, hollow tile construction, modular or pre-built home, earth home, or 

geodesic dome building is to be erected on any lot in the residentially zoned area.  

21. No trees or shrubs shall be planted by any lot owner within the street right-of-way.  

22. No radio station or short-wave operators shall construct reception or transmission towers 

on a lot, nor operate or conduct transmissions from any lot, which shall cause interference 

to audio or video reception upon any other lot. A satellite dish may be attached to a dwelling 

on any lot, provided that it shall be attached to the rear of any dwelling and no closer to the 

side lot lines than such dwelling.  

23. No horses, poultry, rabbits or livestock of any variety shall be kept or raised, nor shall any 

outdoor kennels housing more than two dogs be maintained on any lot in the subdivision.  

24. All provisions herein shall be enforceable by appropriate legal proceedings by any present 

or future owner of the legal or equitable title to any lot in said subdivision. Invalidation of 

any one or more of the within restrictions by judgment or decree of court shall not be 

regarded as affecting the validity of any of the other provisions hereof, nor shall any judicial 

determination with respect to any of the restrictive provisions hereof be regarded as 

affecting the validity or sufficiency of this instrument as a deed of dedication of said plat.  

25. The undersigned and all persons and corporations hereafter acquiring any right, title, or 

interest in any of the lots in said subdivision shall be taken and held to have agreed and 

334

ITEM  37.



 

Deed of Dedication – Western Home Communities Ninth Addition Page 5 of 6 

covenanted with the owners of all other lots in this subdivision and with the respective 

successors and assigns of all of the rest of such other lots to conform to and observe all of 

the foregoing covenants, restrictions and stipulations as to the construction of building 

thereon, for a period of 21 years from the date of filing of said plat, and this Deed of 

Dedication for record, unless by a vote of a majority of the then owners of the lots, it is 

agreed to change the said covenants in full or in part. Within the period of 21 years and in 

accordance with Iowa Code Sections 614.24 and 614.25 or their successor provisions, these 

covenants, restrictions and stipulations may be extended for an additional 21 years upon 

compliance with Sections 614.24 and 614.25 of the Code of Iowa. In the event an extension 

of the covenants, restrictions and stipulations is not filed within the period of 21 years or 

successive 21-year periods, then the covenants, restrictions and stipulations contained 

herein shall terminate at the end of the existing period of 21 years.  

 

DEDICATION AND CONSTRUCTION OF STREETS,  

SEWERS, UTILITIES AND OTHER IMPROVEMENTS 

The undersigned agree:  

1. That sanitary sewer, together with all necessary manholes and sewer service lines to all lots 

in the plat will be provided.  

2. That utilities, as required by the Subdivision Ordinance of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 

shall be installed.  

3. That City water and municipal fire hydrants will be provided as required by the City of 

Cedar Falls, Iowa.  

4. That the streets described on the attached Plat are hereby dedicated to the City of Cedar 

Falls, Iowa, and set apart for public use for street purposes.  

5. That the recreational trails described on the attached Plat are hereby dedicated to the City 

of Cedar Falls, Iowa, and set apart for public use for recreational purposes. 

6. That permanent easements will be provided for turn-arounds at the end of any streets 

described on the attached Plat. 

7. That off-site easements will be provided for storm sewers and sanitary sewers.  

8. That a 4-foot wide portland cement concrete sidewalk, 4 inches thick, and a concrete 

surface or hard surface entrance and parking area will be installed during or immediately 

after the construction of a building on any particular lot, and that the sidewalk will be 

constructed across the full width of the lot and on corner lots; also, across the parking and 

full length of the lot. The above notwithstanding, sidewalks and recreational trails shall be 

installed as buildings are constructed on all lots and tracts, or within 5 years from the date 

of the acceptance of the final plat, whichever comes first.  

9. That the work and improvements called for herein shall be in accordance with the 

construction plans and specifications approved by the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, and 

performed under the supervision of the Engineer hired by the owners, with review of such 

Engineer's certified completion statement by the City Engineer. If the undersigned, its 

grantees and assigns fail to complete the work and improvements called for herein within 

one year from the date of the acceptance of said final plat by the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 

335

ITEM  37.



 

Deed of Dedication – Western Home Communities Ninth Addition Page 6 of 6 

the City may then make the improvements and assess the costs of the same to the respective 

lots. The owners, for themselves, their successors, grantees and assigns, waive all statutory 

requirements of notice of time and place of hearing and waive statutory protections and 

limitations as to cost and assessments and agree that the City may install said improvements 

and assess the total costs thereof against the lot.  

10. That the City may perform the work, levy the cost thereof as assessments, and the 

undersigned agree that said assessments so levied shall be a lien on the respective lots with 

the same force and effect as though all legal provisions pertaining to the levy of such special 

assessments have been observed, and further authorize the City Clerk to certify such 

assessments to the County Auditor as assessments to be paid in installments as provided 

by law.  

 

Executed this ____ day of _________ 2019.  

 

WESTERN HOME SERVICES, INC. 

    

 

By: ___________________________  

Name: Kris W. Hansen   

Title:   Chief Executive Officer  

 

 

STATE OF IOWA, COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK ) ss: 

 On this ____ day of _________ 2019,  before me, a Notary Public in and for the State of 

Iowa, personally appeared Kris W. Hansen, to me personally known who, being by me duly sworn, 

did say that she is the Chief Executive Officer of Western Home Services, Inc., the corporation 

executing the within and foregoing instrument; that no seal has been procured by the corporation; 

that this instrument was signed on behalf of the corporation by authority of its Board of Directors; 

and that Kris W. Hansen as Chief Executive Officer acknowledged the execution of this instrument 

to be the voluntary act and deed of the corporation, by it and by him voluntarily executed.  

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

            Notary Public in and for said State 

 

 

336

ITEM  37.



 

Deed of Dedication – Western Home Communities Ninth Addition  

Exhibit “A” 

 

Certificate of Survey – See Attached. 

 

 

337

ITEM  37.



 

Deed of Dedication – Western Home Communities Ninth Addition  

 

Exhibit “B” 

 

Responsibility for Maintaining the Streets and Features – See Attached. 

 

 

338

ITEM  37.



339

ITEM  37.



 

Deed of Dedication – Western Home Communities Ninth Addition  

 

Exhibit “C” 

 

Responsibility for Maintaining Drainage and Detention – See Attached. 

 

 

340

ITEM  37.



341

ITEM  37.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 

 FROM: Iris Lehmann, AICP, Planner II 

  Matt Tolan, Civil Engineer II 

 DATE: July 30, 2019 

 SUBJECT: Greenhill Village Townhomes II, Phase I Final Plat 
 

 
REQUEST: 
 

Request to approve the Greenhill Village Townhomes II Final Plat 

PETITIONER: 
 

Panther Farms LLC – owner; CGA Engineers – Civil Engineer 

LOCATION: 
 

2 acres southeast of the Greenhill Road and Hudson Road intersection 

 

 
PROPOSAL 
The applicant is proposing to final plat a portion of the Greenhill Village Townhomes II 
development in the MU, Mixed Use Residential, zoning district with the intent to develop 
townhome buildings. This final plat will create a 1 acre buildable Lot, a 1.5 acre Outlot to 
function as a drainage swale reserved for future development, and a 0.5 acre Tract for a 
stormwater detention basin.  
 
BACKGROUND 
The property in question was rezoned to MU, Mixed Use Residential in 1998 as part of the 130 
acre Greenhill Village project. The intent of the MU district is to encourage a variety of housing 
types and neighborhood commercial land uses for the purpose of creating viable, self-
supporting neighborhood districts. Therefore, MU districts permit a variety of uses ranging from 
neighborhood commercial to office to single-unit homes to condominiums. To provide a guide 
for the development in this area, the rezoning was accompanied by the creation of a Greenhill 
Village Master Plan.  
 
Since that time there have been a number of amendments 
to the Greenhill Village Master Plan. The most recent 
amendment to the Master Plan was approved in April 2018. 
This amendment to the Master Plan focused on the 5.3 
acres southeast of the Greenhill Road and Hudson Road 
intersection; the area being considered in this request.  The 
approved amendment to the Master Plan allows for medium 

Approved 2018 Concept Plan 

342

ITEM  38.



density, multi-unit, residential development at a maximum density of 7.7 units an acre. The 
concept plan that was approved with this update to the Greenhill Village Master Plan presented 
a development of townhomes, see image on previous page.  
 
On March 4, 2019 a preliminary plat for this 5.3 acre site was approved by City Council. The 
approved preliminary plat, see excerpt below, consists of one developable lot, tracts for future 
streets and stormwater basins, and two outlots as placeholders for future development. The 
proposed final plat is a portion of that approved Greenhill Village Townhomes II Preliminary Plat, 
specifically the area highlighted in yellow north of Loren Drive.  
 
 

 
Approval of the proposed final plat will allow City Council to approve the 4-unit townhome 
building and 5-unit townhome building shown on the attached site plan approved by the 
Planning and Zoning Commission at their February 27, 2019 regular meeting. 
 
ANALYSIS 
The proposed final plat is consistent 
with the approved preliminary plat. 
The final plat will create one buildable 
lot, Lot 1, outlined in red in the excerpt 
to the right. This lot will be 1 acre in 
size, is consistent with the buildable lot 
shown in the preliminary plat, and will 
hold the 4-unit townhome building and 
5-unit townhome building previously 
approved by the Planning and Zoning 
Commission. As designed with the 
preliminary plat a 0.5 acre detention 

Approved 2019 Preliminary Plat 

Loren Drive 

N
o
rs

e 
D

ri
v

e 

Lloyd Lane 

Proposed Final Plat 

343

ITEM  38.



basin, Tract B, outlined in blue in the image on the previous page, will be installed with the 
creation of Lot 1. Following the grading plan for the preliminary plat, the land in Outlot B, 
outlined in green, will be used as an overland flow route that will capture stormwater run-off from 
Lot 1 and direct it to the detention basin in Tract B.  Accordingly, a 28-foot wide stormwater 
easement is established on the final plat in this location. This improvement ensures that the 
water runoff from the new development that will occur on Lot 1 will be properly managed. The 
detention basin located in Tract B will be oversized to also serve future development anticipated 
in Outlot B. 
 
The approved preliminary plat includes an extension of Loren Drive, which will create an east-
west connection to Norse Drive. The preliminary plat also shows Addison Drive extending north 
to connect to the extension of Loren Drive. These connections will create additional points of 
egress and ingress for the residential properties to the south. Additional street connections in 
this area will help to distribute traffic by providing multiple travel routes through the 
neighborhood. However, these road extensions are not part of the final plat currently proposed 
and will follow in a future phase.  
 
Following the design of the preliminary plat, the final plat provides a private alley extending 
south from Lloyd Lane to provide access to Lot 1. This private alley connection meets City 
standards and allows more flexibility with the grading of the site as opposed to a connection 
coming from the south.  Public sidewalks will be installed on the west and north sides of Lot 1 as 
well as the east side of Tract B. The sidewalk connection along the south side of Lot 1 will be 
installed when the Loren Drive connection is constructed in a future phase. 
 
Utilities are readily available to this site. The developer will coordinate with CFU for extending 
the utility services to the proposed development.    
 
Note that Outlot B may not be developed until a separate preliminary and final plat are reviewed 
and approved by the Planning and Zoning Commission and the City Council. Similarly, the 
remainder of the preliminary plat not included in this final plat cannot be developed until 
reviewed and approved by the Commission and the City Council.  
 
TECHNICAL COMMENTS 
City technical staff, including Cedar Falls Utilities (CFU) personnel, has reviewed the proposed 
final plat. All of staff’s technical comments have been addressed.  
 
The property is located outside of the designated floodplain. A courtesy mailing was sent to 
surrounding property owners on Tuesday, July 2, 2019. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
The proposed Final Plat of Greenhill Village Townhomes II, Phase I, is consistent with MU 
zoning, the adopted Master Plan for this area, meets the standards of the City’s subdivision 
code, and is consistent with its corresponding and approved Preliminary Plat.  Therefore, the 
Planning and Zoning Commission and City Staff recommend approval. 
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
Discussion/Vote 
7/10/2019 

Chair Holst introduced the item and Mr. Wingert recused himself from this 
item due to a conflict of interest. Ms. Howard presented the proposed final 
plat and provided background information. She noted that this is the first 

344

ITEM  38.



phase of the subdivision and includes one buildable lot that will allow 
construction of two buildings; one with five townhomes and one with four 
townhomes.  
 
Chris Noland, 1510 Athens Court, asked that the project not be approved 
until the total plat is submitted. He doesn’t believe the townhomes blend into 
the character of the neighborhood.  
 
Tim Tjarks, 1521 Athens Court, stated that he would also like to see a final 
plat of the entire development. He feels that single-family dwellings would be 
most appropriate in this area.  
 
Steve Troskey, CGA Engineers, stated that the development group would be 
happy to present and approve all the buildings at one time, however this is a 
significant cost to installing the infrastructure, so that is why final plats many 
times are completed in phases.   
 
Mary Ann Noland, 1510 Athens Court, stated that she doesn’t feel the 
buildings fit the character of the neighborhood and feels that the developer 
hasn’t communicated in a positive way with them. 
 
Mr. Hartley asked for an explanation of how developments like this proceed. 
Ms. Howard described the approval process.  In summary, she stated that 
the City requires the owner to submit a preliminary plat of the entire holdings 
of the property owner for approval. All infrastructure must be completed or 
the property owner must submit a bond covering the cost of installation of the 
infrastructure prior to approval of a final plat, so it is typical for developers to 
submit a final plat in phases as it is often cost prohibitive to construct the 
entire platted area and all the infrastructure at one time.  
 
Ms. Prideaux asked if the MU District encourages different types of housing. 
Ms. Howard clarified that it does and that there are other housing types 
throughout the neighborhood. 
 
Chair Holst asked what was sent out to the neighborhood in the most recent 
mailing. Ms. Howard stated that the mailing was sent to a wider area than 
required, and explained that a cover letter and plat maps were sent out in the 
mailing.  
 
Ms. Prideaux made a motion to approve the plat. Mr. Hartley seconded the 
motion. The motion was approved with 6 ayes (Adkins, Giarusso, Hartley, 
Holst, Larson, Prideaux), 0 nays and 1 abstention (Wingert). 
 

Attachments:  
  Proposed Final Plat  
  Proposed Deed of Dedication 

Approved Preliminary Plat 
Proposed site plan and building elevations    

345

ITEM  38.



57

57

58

58

27

27

27

20

20

218

RIDGEWAY AVE W

W 27TH ST

LE
V

ER
SE

E 
RD

W
A

G
N

ER
 R

D

W
A

V
ER

LY
 R

D

BEAVER VALLEY RD

RANCHERO RD

UN
IO

N
 R

D
 S

WESTBROOK

JE
PS

EN
 R

DW 12TH ST

BU
TL

ER
 R

D
 N

BU
TL

ER
 R

D
 S

VIKING RD

UNIVER
SIT

Y AVE

HE
A

RS
T 

RD

ST
RE

ET
ER

 R
D

SY
M

O
N

S 
RD

FO
RD

 R
D

FITKIN RD

BU
TL

ER
 R

D
 N

SK
YL

IN
E 

D
R

MT VERNON RD W

BI
G

 W
O

O
D

S
RD

DUNKERTON RD W

MT VERNON

RD W

BU
TL

ER
 R

D
BU

TL
ER

 R
D

BU
TL

ER
 A

V
E

HUDSON

T-
89

N

GEORGE WYTH
STATE PARK

W
A

S
H

I
N

G
T

O
N

C E D A R

 F A L L S

27282930

34

2526
2728

2930

31 32
33 34

456

7 8 9

18 1617

19 20 21

30 29
28

31 32 33 34

45
6

7 8 9

27
63

V19

T69

C67

T75

V14

V25

D17

D18

D19

D19

POP.

39260

CEDAR
FALLS

Clapsaddle-Garber Associates, Inc
16 East Main Street

Marshalltown, Iowa 50158

Ph 641-752-6701
www.cgaconsultants.com

SHEET NO.

DRAWN:
CHECKED:

DATE:
DATE:

APPROVED: DATE:

PROJECT NO.DESIGNED: DATE:REVISIONNO. DATEBY DATEBYREVISIONNO.

J:
\5

63
8\

dw
g\

Su
rv

ey
\R

ev
is

ed
 F

in
al

 P
la

t 1
1-

29
-2

01
8\

56
38

 F
in

al
 P

la
t S

he
et

 1
 - 

5-
13

-1
9.

dw
g 

- C
GA

 P
la

n 
-  

07
-3

0-
19

 - 
3:

06
pm

 - 
nc

b3
13

CGA GREENHILL VILLAGE TOWNHOMES II, PHASE 1
1 OF 2

5638.05

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA FINAL PLAT
-

BMC 5-13-19

OWNERS OF RECORD
PANTHER FARMS LLC
604 CLAY ST.
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613

SURVEY REQUESTED BY:

ZONING INFORMATION:
CURRENT: MU - MIXED USE

SAID PROPERTY IS LEGALLY DESCRIBED AS:

GREENHILL VILLAGE TOWNHOMES II, PHASE 1 LOCATED IN THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 26,
TOWNSHIP 89 NORTH, RANGE 14 WEST OF THE FIFTH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, BLACK HAWK COUNTY,
IOWA. MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:  COMMENCING AT THE NORTH 1/4 CORNER OF SECTION 26,
TOWNSHIP 89 NORTH, RANGE 14 WEST, BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IOWA; THENCE, S89°35'24"E 328.52' TO A POINT ON THE
NORTH LINE OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 26; THENCE S0°24'36"W 479.96' TO A POINT ON THE EAST RIGHT OF
WAY LINE OF NORSE DRIVE AND THE SOUTH RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF LLOYD LANE SAID POINT BEING THE POINT OF
BEGINNING; THENCE S89°37'56"E 135.97' ALONG SAID SOUTH RIGHT OF WAY LINE; THENCE, S0°08'01"W 180.13'; THENCE,
S89°35'24"E 688.47' TO A POINT ON THE WEST RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF ALGONQUIN DRIVE; THENCE, S0°09'23"W 76.99' ALONG
SAID WEST RIGHT OF WAY LINE; THENCE, SOUTHERLY 53.45' ALONG THE ARC OF A 780.00' RADIUS CURVE, CONCAVE
EASTERLY, HAVING A CHORD BEARING OF S1°47'42"E AND A CHORD DISTANCE OF 53.44' ALONG SAID WEST RIGHT OF WAY
LINE; THENCE, N89°55'11"W 825.44' TO A POINT ON THE EAST RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF NORSE DRIVE; THENCE N0°00'16"W
315.18' ALONG SAID EAST RIGHT OF WAY LINE TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, CONTAINING 3.07 ACRES.  SUBJECT TO
EASEMENTS AND RESTRICTIONS OF RECORD, IF ANY.

I FURTHER CERTIFY THAT THE ACCOMPANYING PLAT IS A TRUE REPRESENTATION OF SAID PROPERTY IN ACCORDANCE
WITH MY FIELD NOTES; THAT THE DIMENSIONS OF THE STREETS, LOTS, AND EASEMENTS DEPICTED ON SAID PLAT ARE IN
FEET AND DECIMALS THEREOF; AND THAT THIS LAND SURVEYING DOCUMENT WAS PREPARED AND RELATED SURVEY
WORK WAS PERFORMED BY ME OR UNDER MY DIRECT PERSONAL SUPERVISION AND THAT I AM A DULY LICENSED
PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF IOWA.

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

PANTHER FARMS, L.L.C.
BRIAN WINGERT
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA  50613

SURVEYOR AND ENGINEER
JEREMY A. HARRIS, P.L.S.
CLAPSADDLE-GARBER
ASSOCIATES
P.O. BOX 754 - 16 E. MAIN
STREET
MARSHALLTOWN, IOWA 50158
(641)752-6701

NOTE:
ALL BEARINGS ARE THE RESULT OF G.P.S.
OBSERVATIONS USING NAD83 IOWA STATE PLAN
NORTH ZONE

SURVEY LEGEND

CLOSURE:
- ALL SUBDIVISION BOUNDARIES ARE WITHIN THE 1:10,000

ERROR OF CLOSURE REQUIREMENT
- ALL LOTS ARE WITHIN THE 1:5000 ERROR OF CLOSURE
REQUIREMENT.

GOVERNMENT CORNER MONUMENT FOUND

(  )   RECORDED AS

PARCEL OR LOT CORNER MONUMENT FOUND

GOVERNMENT CORNER MONUMENT SET

ID CAP #22259
SET 1/2" x 30" REBAR w/BLUE PLASTIC

1/2" x 30" REBAR w/BLUE PLASTIC ID CAP #22259

FINAL PLAT
GREENHILL VILLAGE TOWNHOMES II, PHASE 1

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA

FLOOD ZONE:
FEMA FIRM MAP NUMBER 19013C0277F
ZONE X (UNSHADED)
EFFECTIVE JULY 18, 2011.

VICINITY MAP

PROJECT
LOCATION

NOT TO SCALE

SITE DATA:
SETBACK=30' (CODE ALLOWS FOR 20' w/ APPROVAL)

7 CITY COMMENTS BMC 5-13-2019

LOCATION MAP
NOT TO SCALE

PROJECT
LOCATION

CEDAR FALLS
BLACK HAWK CO.,
IOWA

Pages or sheets covered by this seal:

Professional Land Surveyor under the laws of the State of Iowa.
my direct personal supervision and that I am a duly Licensed
and the related survey work was performed by me or under
I hereby certify that this land surveying document was prepared

date

WI O A

EDL
EIC NS

P
R

O
F

E
SS IONAL L AND SUR

V
E

Y
O

R

Iowa License Number 22259
My License Renewal Date is December 31, 2019

JEREMY A. HARRIS, PLS22259

JE
REMY  A .  HARRIS

SHEETS 1 OF 2 AND 2 OF 2

PUE  PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT

N
N

DATE PREPARED: 7/8/2019

346

ITEM  38.



347

ITEM  38.



348

ITEM  38.



349

ITEM  38.



350

ITEM  38.



351

ITEM  38.



352

ITEM  38.



353

ITEM  38.



354

ITEM  38.



355

ITEM  38.



356

ITEM  38.



GARAGE FLR
ELEV.: 00'-0"

LOWER LVL FLR
ELEV.: 00'-4"

MAIN LVL FLR
ELEV.: 10'-0"

UPPER LVL FLR
ELEV.: 20'-9 7/8"

TRUSS BRG
ELEV.: 28'-11 1/4"

STANDING SEAM 
METAL ROOF

PREFINISHED ALUM 
GUTTERS & 
DOWNSPOUTS

PREFINISHED METAL 
FASIA WRAP

PREFINISHED METAL 
SOFFIT
FIBER CEMENT TRIM 
BOARDS - 
HARDIETRIM 
SMOOTH OR EQUAL 
DUAL COLOR VINYL 
WINDOWS

CONCRETE FOUNDATION 
WITH BRICK LINER

FIBER CEMENT 
TRIM BOARDS - 
HARDIETRIM 
SMOOTH OR 
EQUAL 

FIBER CEMENT 
SIDING - HARDIE 
PANEL CEDARMILL 
WITH SMOOTH 
BATTENS @ 16" O.C. 
OR EQUAL 

DUAL COLOR VINYL 
WINDOWS

STANDING 
SEAM METAL 
ROOF
PREFINISHED 
ALUM 
GUTTERS & 
DOWNSPOUTS

PREFINISHED 
METAL FASIA 
WRAP

PREFINISHED 
METAL 
SOFFIT
FIBER 
CEMENT TRIM 
BOARDS - 
HARDIETRIM 
SMOOTH OR 
EQUAL 
DUAL COLOR 
VINYL 
WINDOWS

FIBER CEMENT SIDING - HARDIE PANEL CEDARMILL 
WITH SMOOTH BATTENS @ 16" O.C. OR EQUAL 

STANDING 
SEAM METAL 
ROOF
PREFINISHED 
METAL FASIA 
WRAP
PREFINISHED 
METAL 
SOFFIT
8" SQUARE 
FIBER CEMENT 
OR 
FIBERGLASS 
COLUMN 
WRAP WITH 
SQUARE BASE 
& CAPITAL

ALUMINUM 
GAURD RAIL - 
WESTBURY 
TUSCANY OR 
EQUAL
COMPOSITE 
DECKING & 
STAIR TREADS 
EQUAL TO 
TREXFIBER CEMENT SCEEN 

BOARDS - HARDIETRIM 
SMOOTH OR EQUAL 
FIBER CEMENT RISERS - 
HARDIETRIM SMOOTH OR 
EQUAL 

CONCRETE FOUNDATION 
WITH BRICK LINER

FIBER CEMENT TRIM 
BOARDS - HARDIETRIM 
SMOOTH OR EQUAL 

DUAL COLOR VINYL 
WINDOWS

FIBER 
CEMENT TRIM 
BOARDS - 
HARDIETRIM 
SMOOTH OR 
EQUAL OVER 
WOOD POST

TOP OF ROOF
ELEV.: 34"-11 1/4"

5 Unit Front Elevation
Scale: 1/4" = 1'-0" 

6
12

6
12

6
12

6
12

6
12

6
12

6
12

6
12

6
12

6
12

GARAGE FLR
ELEV.: 00'-0"

LOWER LVL FLR
ELEV.: 00'-4"

MAIN LVL FLR
ELEV.: 10'-0"

UPPER LVL FLR
ELEV.: 20'-9 7/8"

TRUSS BRG
ELEV.: 28'-11 1/4"

ALUMINUM DECK 
DESIGNED BY 
MANUFACTURER, EQUAL 
TO CLASSIC INDUSTRIES 
ALUMADECK

STANDING SEAM 
METAL ROOF

PREFINISHED ALUM 
GUTTERS & 
DOWNSPOUTS

PREFINISHED METAL 
FASIA WRAP
PREFINISHED METAL SOFFIT
FIBER CEMENT TRIM 
BOARDS - HARDIETRIM 
SMOOTH OR EQUAL 
FIBER CEMENT SIDING - 
HARDIE PANEL 
CEDARMILL WITH 
SMOOTH BATTENS @ 
16" O.C. OR EQUAL 

PREFINISHED METAL 
SOFFIT

FIBER CEMENT SIDING - 
HARDIE PANEL 
CEDARMILL WITH 
SMOOTH BATTENS @ 
16" O.C. OR EQUAL 

STEEL GARAGE DOOR - 
PAINT TO MATCH SIDING 
COLOR

STANDING 
SEAM METAL 
ROOF

PREFINISHED 
ALUM 
GUTTERS & 
DOWNSPOUTS

PREFINISHED 
METAL 
FASIA WRAP

PREFINISHED 
METAL 
SOFFIT

DUAL COLOR 
VINYL 
WINDOWS

CONCRETE 
FOUNDATION 
WITH BRICK 
LINER

FIBER 
CEMENT 
TRIM 
BOARDS - 
HARDIETRIM 
SMOOTH OR 
EQUAL 

STEEL 
GARAGE 
DOOR - 
PAINT TO 
MATCH 
SIDING 
COLOR

FIBER 
CEMENT 
SIDING - 
HARDIE 
PLANK 
CEDARMILL 5" 
EXPOSURE 
OR EQUAL 

ALUMINUM 
DECK 
DESIGNED 
BY 
MANUFACTU
RER, EQUAL 
TO CLASSIC 
INDUSTRIES 
ALUMADECK

TOP OF ROOF
ELEV.: 34"-11 1/4"

5 Unit Rear Elevation
Scale: 1/4" = 1'-0" 

6
12

6
12

6
12

6
12

6
12

6
12

6
12

6
12

6
12

6
12

357

ITEM  38.



W & D

Master Bed Room

Bath

Closet

Linen

Walk-In

Master Bath

Closet

Bed Room

Bed Room
9'-10" x 11'-1"

10'-6" x 9'-10"

11'-7" x 14'-10"

Do
wn

Upper Level
Scale: 1/4" = 1'-0" 

Proposed Condo Unit
0 2 3 4 5 FT

Ref

Micro
Oven

DW
Powder

Mech.

CoatsKitchen

Dining

Family

Do
wn

Entry

Up

Main Level
Scale: 1/4" = 1'-0" 

Low Wall

Up

Storage
Mud RoomOptional Den/ 

4th Bedroom

Garage

18' Door

Clo.

Lower Level
Scale: 1/4" = 1'-0" 

10
'-9

 7
/8

"

BEDROOM 1
CLOSET
MASTERSTAIRS

LIVING RM. ENTRY

GARAGE

4"

WINDOW AT END 
UNITS ONLY

WINDOW AT END 
UNITS ONLY

6
12

GARAGE FLOOR
ELEV.: 00'-0"

LOWER LEVEL FLOOR
ELEV.: 00'-4"

MAIN LEVEL FLOOR
ELEV.: 10'-0"

UPPER LEVEL FLOOR
ELEV.: 20'-9 7/8"

TRUSS BEARING
ELEV.: 28'-11 1/4"

TOP OF ROOF
ELEV.: 34'-11 1'4"

9'-
8"

8'-
1 

3/
8"

Building Section
Scale: 1/4" = 1'-0" 

GARAGE FLOOR
ELEV.: 00'-0"

LOWER LEVEL FLOOR
ELEV.: 00'-4"

MAIN LEVEL FLOOR
ELEV.: 10'-0"

UPPER LEVEL FLOOR
ELEV.: 20'-9 7/8"

TRUSS BEARING
ELEV.: 28'-11 1/4"

STANDING SEAM 
METAL ROOF
PREFINISHED ALUM 
GUTTERS & 
DOWNSPOUTS

PREFINISHED METAL 
FASIA WRAP

PREFINISHED METAL 
SOFFIT

FIBER CEMENT TRIM 
BOARDS - HARDIETRIM 
SMOOTH OR EQUAL 

FIBER CEMENT SIDING - 
HARDIE PLANK 
CEDARMILL 5" EXPOSURE 
OR EQUAL 

FIBER CEMENT TRIM 
BOARDS - HARDIETRIM 
SMOOTH OR EQUAL 

DUAL COLOR VINYL 
WINDOWS

FIBER CEMENT TRIM 
BOARDS - HARDIETRIM 
SMOOTH OR EQUAL 

ALUMINUM DECK DESIGNED 
BY MANUFACTURER, EQUAL 
TO CLASSIC INDUSTRIES 
ALUMADECK

STANDING SEAM 
METAL ROOF
PREFINISHED ALUM 
GUTTERS & 
DOWNSPOUTS

PREFINISHED METAL 
FASIA WRAP

PREFINISHED METAL 
SOFFIT

FIBER CEMENT TRIM 
BOARDS - HARDIETRIM 
SMOOTH OR EQUAL 

FIBER CEMENT SIDING - 
HARDIE PLANK CEDARMILL 
5" EXPOSURE OR EQUAL 

FIBER CEMENT TRIM 
BOARDS - HARDIETRIM 
SMOOTH OR EQUAL 

DUAL COLOR VINYL 
WINDOWS

6
12 STANDING SEAM METAL ROOF

8" SQUARE FIBER CEMENT OR 
FIBERGLASS COLUMN WRAP 
WITH SQUARE BASE & 
CAPITAL

ALUMINUM GAURD RAIL - 
WESTBURY TUSCANY OR 
EQUAL

CONCRETE FOUNDATION WITH 
BRICK LINER

FIBER CEMENT TRIM BOARDS - 
HARDIETRIM SMOOTH OR EQUAL 
OVER WOOD FRAMING

COMPOSITE DECKING & 
STAIR TREADS EQUAL 
TO TREX

3.63
12

TOP OF ROOF
ELEV.: 34"-11 1/4"

3.63
12

GARAGE FLOOR
ELEV.: 00'-0"

LOWER LEVEL FLOOR
ELEV.: 00'-4"

MAIN LEVEL FLOOR
ELEV.: 10'-0"

UPPER LEVEL FLOOR
ELEV.: 20'-9 7/8"

TRUSS BEARING
ELEV.: 28'-11 1/4"

STANDING SEAM 
METAL ROOF
PREFINISHED ALUM 
GUTTERS & 
DOWNSPOUTS

PREFINISHED METAL 
FASIA WRAP

PREFINISHED METAL 
SOFFIT

FIBER CEMENT TRIM 
BOARDS - HARDIETRIM 
SMOOTH OR EQUAL 

DUAL COLOR VINYL 
WINDOWS

FIBER CEMENT TRIM 
BOARDS - HARDIETRIM 
SMOOTH OR EQUAL 

FIBER CEMENT SIDING - 
HARDIE PANEL 
CEDARMILL WITH 
SMOOTH BATTENS @ 
16" O.C. OR EQUAL 

6
12

STANDING SEAM 
METAL ROOF
PREFINISHED ALUM 
GUTTERS & 
DOWNSPOUTS
PREFINISHED METAL 
FASIA WRAP

PREFINISHED METAL SOFFIT

FIBER CEMENT TRIM BOARDS - 
HARDIETRIM SMOOTH OR EQUAL 

FIBER CEMENT TRIM 
BOARDS - HARDIETRIM 
SMOOTH OR EQUAL 

DUAL COLOR VINYL WINDOWS

STANDING SEAM METAL ROOF

8" SQUARE FIBER CEMENT 
OR FIBERGLASS COLUMN 
WRAP WITH SQUARE BASE 
& CAPITAL

ALUMINUM GAURD RAIL - 
WESTBURY TUSCANY OR 
EQUAL

FIBER CEMENT SIDING - HARDIE 
PANEL CEDARMILL WITH 
SMOOTH BATTENS @ 16" O.C. 
OR EQUAL 

CONCRETE FOUNDATION WITH 
BRICK LINER

FIBER CEMENT TRIM BOARDS - HARDIETRIM 
SMOOTH OR EQUAL OVER WOOD FRAMING

COMPOSITE 
DECKING & STAIR 
TREADS EQUAL 
TO TREX

ALUMINUM DECK DESIGNED 
BY MANUFACTURER, EQUAL 
TO CLASSIC INDUSTRIES 
ALUMADECK

3.63
12

TOP OF ROOF
ELEV.: 34"-11 1/4"

3.63
12

Side Elevation
Scale: 1/4" = 1'-0" 

Side Elevation
Scale: 1/4" = 1'-0" 

358

ITEM  38.



GARAGE FLR
ELEV.: 00'-0"

LOWER LVL FLR
ELEV.: 00'-4"

MAIN LVL FLR
ELEV.: 10'-0"

UPPER LVL FLR
ELEV.: 20'-9 7/8"

TRUSS BRG
ELEV.: 28'-11 1/4"

STANDING SEAM 
METAL ROOF
PREFINISHED ALUM 
GUTTERS & 
DOWNSPOUTS

PREFINISHED METAL 
FASIA WRAP

PREFINISHED METAL 
SOFFIT

FIBER CEMENT TRIM 
BOARDS - HARDIETRIM 
SMOOTH OR EQUAL 

DUAL COLOR VINYL 
WINDOWS

CONCRETE FOUNDATION 
WITH BRICK LINER

FIBER CEMENT TRIM 
BOARDS - HARDIETRIM 
SMOOTH OR EQUAL 

6
12

6
12

6
12

6
12

6
12

6
12

6
12

6
12

STANDING SEAM 
METAL ROOF

PREFINISHED ALUM 
GUTTERS & 
DOWNSPOUTS

PREFINISHED METAL 
FASIA WRAP

PREFINISHED METAL 
SOFFIT

FIBER CEMENT TRIM 
BOARDS - HARDIETRIM 
SMOOTH OR EQUAL 
FIBER CEMENT SIDING - 
HARDIE PANEL 
CEDARMILL WITH 
SMOOTH BATTENS @ 
16" O.C. OR EQUAL 
STANDING SEAM 
METAL ROOF
PREFINISHED METAL 
FASIA WRAP

PREFINISHED METAL 
SOFFIT

8" SQUARE FIBER 
CEMENT OR 
FIBERGLASS 
COLUMN WRAP WITH 
SQUARE BASE & 
CAPITAL

ALUMINUM GAURD 
RAIL - WESTBURY 
TUSCANY OR EQUAL

COMPOSITE DECKING 
& STAIR TREADS 
EQUAL TO TREX

FIBER CEMENT SCEEN 
BOARDS - HARDIETRIM 
SMOOTH OR EQUAL 
FIBER CEMENT RISERS - 
HARDIETRIM SMOOTH OR 
EQUAL 

CONCRETE FOUNDATION 
WITH BRICK LINER

FIBER CEMENT TRIM 
BOARDS - HARDIETRIM 
SMOOTH OR EQUAL 

DUAL COLOR VINYL 
WINDOWS

FIBER CEMENT TRIM 
BOARDS - HARDIETRIM 
SMOOTH OR EQUAL 
OVER WOOD POST

TOP OF ROOF
ELEV.: 34"-11 1/4"

4 Unit Front Elevation
Scale: 1/4" = 1'-0" 

GARAGE FLR
ELEV.: 00'-0"

LOWER LVL FLR
ELEV.: ELEV.: 00'-4"

MAIN LVL FLR
ELEV.: 10'-0"

UPPER LVL FLR
ELEV.: 20'-9 7/8"

TRUSS BRG
ELEV.: 28'-11 1/4"

ALUMINUM DECK DESIGNED 
BY MANUFACTURER, EQUAL 
TO CLASSIC INDUSTRIES 
ALUMADECK

STANDING SEAM 
METAL ROOF

PREFINISHED ALUM 
GUTTERS & 
DOWNSPOUTS

PREFINISHED METAL 
FASIA WRAP
PREFINISHED METAL SOFFIT
FIBER CEMENT TRIM 
BOARDS - HARDIETRIM 
SMOOTH OR EQUAL 
FIBER CEMENT SIDING - 
HARDIE PANEL 
CEDARMILL WITH 
SMOOTH BATTENS @ 
16" O.C. OR EQUAL 

PREFINISHED METAL 
SOFFIT

FIBER CEMENT SIDING - 
HARDIE PANEL 
CEDARMILL WITH 
SMOOTH BATTENS @ 
16" O.C. OR EQUAL 

STEEL GARAGE DOOR - 
PAINT TO MATCH SIDING 
COLOR

STANDING SEAM 
METAL ROOF

PREFINISHED ALUM 
GUTTERS & 
DOWNSPOUTS

PREFINISHED METAL 
FASIA WRAP

PREFINISHED METAL 
SOFFIT

DUAL COLOR VINYL 
WINDOWS

CONCRETE FOUNDATION 
WITH BRICK LINER

FIBER CEMENT TRIM 
BOARDS - HARDIETRIM 
SMOOTH OR EQUAL 

STEEL GARAGE DOOR - 
PAINT TO MATCH SIDING 
COLOR

FIBER CEMENT SIDING - 
HARDIE PLANK 
CEDARMILL 5" EXPOSURE 
OR EQUAL 

6
12

6
12

6
12

6
12

6
12

6
12

6
12

6
12

ALUMINUM DECK DESIGNED 
BY MANUFACTURER, EQUAL 
TO CLASSIC INDUSTRIES 
ALUMADECK

TOP OF ROOF
ELEV.: 34"-11 1/4"

4 Unit Rear Elevation
Scale: 1/4" = 1'-0" 

359

ITEM  38.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 

 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 

 FROM: Iris Lehmann, AICP, Planner II 

 DATE: July 30, 2019 

 SUBJECT: Greenhill Village Townhomes II, Phase I – Site Plan 
 

 
REQUEST: 
 

Request to approve the Greenhill Village Townhomes II, Phase I Site Plan 

PETITIONER: 
 

Panther Farms LLC – owner; CGA Engineers – Civil Engineer 

LOCATION: 
 

Lot 1 in Greenhill Village Townhomes II, Phase I 0.98 acres southeast of the 
Lloyd Lane and Norse Drive intersection 

 

 
PROPOSAL 
The applicant is proposing to build one (1) four-unit townhome building and one (1) five-unit 
townhome building on Lot 1 of the Greenhill Village Townhome II, Phase I subdivision. This 
request will be subject to the approval of the Greenhill Village Townhomes II, Phase I Final Plat.  
 
BACKGROUND 
In 1998 the 130 acres of the Greenhill 
Village property was rezoned to MU, 
Mixed Use Residential. This rezoning was 
accompanied by the creation of a 
Greenhill Village Master Plan that was to 
be used as a guide for the development in 
this area. Since that time there have been 
a number of amendments to the Greenhill 
Village Master Plan. The most recent 
amendment to the Master Plan was 
approved in April 2018.  This amendment 
to the Master Plan focused on the 5.3 
acres southeast of the Greenhill Road and 
Hudson Road intersection; the land now 
described as Greenhill Village Townhomes II. The approved amendment allows for multi-unit, 
residential development at a density of 7.7 units an acre. The concept plan that was approved 
with this update to the Greenhill Village Master Plan presented a development of townhomes, 
see image to the right.  
 

360

ITEM  39.



ANALYSIS 
The property in question is located within the MU, Mixed Use Residential, zoning district. 
Development in an MU zoning district requires a detailed site plan review to ensure that the 
development site satisfies the standards of the comprehensive plan, recognizes principles of 
civic design, land use planning, landscape architecture, and building architectural design that 
are set out for the district. Attention to details such as parking, open green space, landscaping, 
signage, building design, and other similar factors help to ensure orderly development. The 
following is a review of the zoning ordinance requirements: 
 
Use: The intent of the MU district is to encourage a 
variety of housing types and neighborhood 
commercial land uses for the purpose of creating 
viable, self-supporting neighborhood districts. 
Therefore, MU zoning permits a variety of uses 
ranging from neighborhood commercial to office to 
single-unit homes to condominiums. The approved 
Greenhill Village Master Plan, attached, arranges the 
various permitted uses and densities by area. The 
proposed Greenhill Village Townhomes II, Phase I 
Site Plan proposes to build two townhome buildings 
that are consistent with the approved Greenhill 
Village Master Plan and concept plan. The City’s 
Future Land Use Map closely follows the Greenhill 
Village Master Plan. A standard planning practice is 
to create a gradual transition of development intensity 
from single unit development to higher density 
residential to neighborhood-serving commercial and 
mixed-uses. The City’s Future Land Use Map shows 
this area, outlined in red in the image to the right, as 
being developed as Medium Density Residential. The 
proposed Greenhill Village II, Phase I Site Plan will 
serve as a transition in development intensity and is 
consistent with the City’s Future Land Use Map. The 
proposed use of Townhomes is a permitted use in 
this area. 
 
Building Location: In the MU Zoning District a 30 foot 
minimum setback area consisting of open landscaped 
green space must be established around the district. 
In addition, principal structures must be setback at 
least 20 feet from any interior streets and other 
buildings. The boundaries of the Greenhill Village MU 
zoning district run along Lloyd Lane and Norse Drive. 
The proposed setbacks are enhanced over an 
excerpt of the submitted site plan in the image to the 
right. The locations of the two buildings meet or 
exceed the standards of the district. 
 
Parking: The parking requirement for townhomes in 
Cedar Falls is two parking spaces per dwelling unit, 

Low Density 

Residential 

Medium Density 

Residential 

Commercial 

& Mixed Use 

Park 

G
re

en
w

a
y

 

Excerpt of the Cedar Falls Future 

Land Use Map 

30‘   

20‘  

41‘   

 20‘  

 30‘   

Lloyd Lane 

 30‘   

361

ITEM  39.



plus one additional parking space for each bedroom in each dwelling unit in excess of two 
bedrooms. The applicant is proposing to build one (1) four-unit townhome building and one (1) 
five-unit townhome building. Each unit will have three bedrooms, see floor plan below. Per the 
city code the development will need to provide each townhome unit a minimum of three parking 
spaces. In addition to this general requirement, one stall is required for every five units in excess 
of five units for visitor parking. There are nine units being proposed in this site plan; no guest 
parking is required. The proposed development will provide each unit with a tuck-under two stall 
garage located in the rear of the buildings and accessed from a private alley. Each garage will 
have a 20 foot long by 20 foot wide paved driveway. The proposed layout provides four parking 
spaces per unit: two in each garage and two behind each garage. These four stalls would also 
provide the needed parking for the optional fourth bedroom shown in the lower level next to the 
garage, see the proposed floor plan below.  
 

 
 
At the Planning and Zoning Commission meetings, there was public concern about parking 
congestion along neighborhood streets. The advantage of placing all the parking to the rear of 
the townhomes along a private alley is that it reserves the entire street frontage for visitor 
parking, without the interruption of multiple driveways onto the street. This site layout also helps 
to reduce traffic congestion as there are fewer conflict points since drivers do not have to back 
directly into the street. The streets are designed to accommodate parking on both sides. The 
location of the garages off of the back of the buildings also creates a more pedestrian-oriented, 
residential character along the streets which is consistent with the intent of the district. Parking 
lot regulations and landscaping requirements are not applicable to this review. The parking 
requirement is met.   
 
Open Green Space/Landscaping: The MU District requires that open green space be provided 
at the rate of 10% of the total development site area excluding the required district setbacks. It 
should be noted that with no driveways located along the street frontage there is more room for 
landscaping and street trees in front of these homes, even though this greenspace is not 
counted toward the requirement. The development site is 0.98 acres or 42,689 square feet. The 
proposed site plan offers 0.46 acres or 20,038 square feet (47%) of open space. The minimum 
required open space area for this lot is 4,269 square feet. When deducting the district setbacks 
for this property (13,534 square feet) the open space provided for the site is 6,504 square feet. 

362

ITEM  39.



The open green space requirement is met. In addition to the greenspace requirement the MU 
district has a landscaping requirement of 0.02 landscaping points per square foot of total 
development site area. For a 66,430 square foot development site (Lot 1 and Tract B), 1,329 
landscaping points are needed. The proposed landscaping plan, see image below, is proposing 
to provide 1,360 landscaping points. The proposed landscaped areas will be distributed 
throughout the development site. The MU District also requires 0.75 landscaping points for 
street trees per linear foot of public street frontage. This development is required to provide 436 
(581 feet x 0.75) landscaping points worth of street trees. The applicant is proposing to provide 
six 2 inch overstory street trees which equates to 480 landscaping points. Additional 
landscaping will be required as future development occurs throughout the Greenhill Village 
Subdivision. The landscaping requirements are met.  
 

 
 
Building Height: The maximum building height allowed in this district is 35 feet or three stories, 
whichever is less. Building height is measured from the lowest point of the grade, which in the 
case of this design with the tuck-under garages, is at the rear. The height as measured from this 
lowest point is 34 feet, 11-1/4 inches.  From the rear, the garage level is exposed along with the 
two floors of living space. However, from the street, the garage level is largely below grade, so 
the homes appear to be two stories in height, which is consistent with many of the two story 
homes in the neighborhood. The building height requirement is met.  
 
Building Design: The MU District requires a design review of various elements to ensure 
architectural compatibility to surrounding structures within the MU District. Below are a set of 
images showing the character of neighboring buildings and developments within the MU District.  
 

 
1510 Athens Ct and 1517 Athens Ct (properties to the south) 

363

ITEM  39.



 

 
Greenhill Market and Greenhill Crossing (developments to the north)  

 
Greenhill Village Commercial 4th (development to the east) 

 

Proportion: The relationship between the width and height of the front elevations of 
adjacent buildings shall be considered in the construction or alteration of a building; the 
relationship of width to height of windows and doors of adjacent buildings shall be 
considered in the construction or alteration of a building. 
 
As seen in the images above, the MU 
District houses a variety of housing 
types and neighborhood commercial 
land uses. The property in question 
has single family residential 
development to the south and west 
(the land to the west is outside of the 
MU zoning district so an example of 
this housing stock is not included in 
this analysis). A water tower (outside 
of the MU zoning district), Greenhill 
Market (commercial), and Greenhill 
Crossing (multi-family development) 
are to the north. The Greenhill Village 
Commercial 4th (Multi-family 
development) is to the east. Two 
story buildings are typical for this area. See image above for the front and back 
elevations of the proposed five-unit building. Note that the proposed four-unit building has 
the same design, see attached for the complete set of elevations.  
 

364

ITEM  39.



Each proposed townhome will be 25 feet wide by 35 feet deep. In total, the four-unit 
townhome building will be 100 feet long and the five-unit townhome building will be 125 
feet long. The proposed design breaks up a multiunit building so each townhome is easily 
distinguished from the adjacent townhome with each townhome proportioned consistent 
with that of a single unit home. Criterion met. 
 
Roof shape, pitch, and direction: The similarity or compatibility of the shape, pitch, and 
direction of roofs in the immediate area shall be considered in the construction or 
alteration of a building. 
 
All neighboring residential developments have pitched roofs. The proposed two buildings 
incorporate the same roof shape, pitch, and direction. Criterion met. 
 
Pattern: Alternating solids and openings (wall to windows and doors) in the front facade 
and sides and rear of a building create a rhythm observable to viewers. This pattern of 
solids and openings shall be considered in the construction or alteration of a building. 
 
The two proposed buildings have a distinct repeating pattern for each unit on both the 
back and front facades. Each entry is recessed from the front line of the main portion of 
the townhome units to add additional depth to the front façade. Access to each unit is 
from a front porch. In the rear the second floor dormer overhangs the main portion of the 
house to also create depth in the façade. The proposed doors and windows on each side 
create visual interest and rhythm. Criterion met. 
 
Materials and texture: The similarity or compatibility of existing materials and textures on 
the exterior walls and roofs of buildings in the immediate area shall be considered in the 
construction or alteration of a building. A building or alteration shall be considered 
compatible if the materials and texture used are appropriate in the context of other 
buildings in the immediate area. 
 
To help distinguish between adjacent townhome units a vertical board and batten siding 
will alternate with a horizontal lap board siding from unit to unit. This variation in design 
also helps to prevent monotony by visually breaking up the façade into distinct units. The 
siding is cement board, which is a more durable material than vinyl siding. A brick liner 
will be used in areas where the foundation is visible. The applicant is proposing to use a 
standing seam metal roof. The proposed materials are consistent with materials used 
within the district. Criterion met. 
 
Color: The similarity or compatibility of existing colors of exterior walls and roofs of 
buildings in the area shall be considered in the construction or alteration of a building. 
 
The proposed buildings will be covered with both vertical and horizontal, white siding, 
gray brick, and topped with a gray roof. The use of a neutral color is consistent with the 
area. To provide additional visual interest, along with the alternating siding, the applicant 
is showing each unit with its own unique door color. Criterion met. 
 
Architectural features: Architectural features, including but not limited to, cornices, 
entablatures, doors, windows, shutters, and fanlights, prevailing in the immediate area, 
shall be considered in the construction or alteration of a building. It is not intended that 
the details of existing buildings be duplicated precisely, but those features should be 

365

ITEM  39.



regarded as suggestive of the extent, nature, and scale of details that would be 
appropriate on new buildings or alterations. 
 
Each townhome unit of this building has a small porch and balcony. The roof line is 
broken up and the front walls are setback in places to create both visual horizontal and 
vertical breaks. The architectural elements of these two buildings can be found in the 
residential development to the south. Criterion met. 

 
Signage: No signage is currently proposed. The signage criterion is not applicable to this 
proposal.  
 
Access locations: A private alley is 
proposed coming south off of Lloyd Lane 
to provide access to the garages for the 
townhomes on Lot 1. A turnaround will 
be provided at a location where the 
private alley could continue east to serve 
potential future development. Public 
sidewalks are required along the north 
and west sides of Lot 1 and the east side 
of Outlot B. Sidewalk connections are 
required along public streets. Since there 
will be a new street (Loren Drive) constructed along the south side of the subject lot in the 
future, a public sidewalk will also be required along the south lot line, but this will be installed 
when this street is constructed in the future.  This future public sidewalk has been noted on the 
site plan. Private sidewalk connections to the townhomes will also be provided as shown. 
Criterion met. 
 
Traffic Generation: At the Planning and Zoning Commission meetings, concerns were 
expressed about the amount of traffic that might be generated by this development. The 
City Engineer’s Office notes that depending on the circumstances and corridor 
constraints, an urban two-lane roadway can handle capacities up to 1,000 vehicles per 
hour during peak times. The proposed subdivision shows a detention basin in the place 
of one of the six unit townhome buildings shown in the concept plan. With this change, 
the proposed development at full build-out could have 34 townhome units. A townhome 
generates traffic similar to a single family home at approximately 7 trips per day per unit 
for a total of approximately 238 trips per day. With the new street connections proposed 
with this subdivision, multiple travel routes (Norse Drive, Lloyd Lane, Addison Drive, and 
the proposed Loren Drive) will be provided to nearby arterial and collector streets. 
Therefore, traffic generated by this development will not exceed the capacity of the 
existing streets. City staff will continue to monitor traffic volumes throughout the 
neighborhood and will make improvements as necessary. 
 
Stormwater: A detention basin located east of the proposed townhomes on Outlot B of the 
Greenhill Village Townhomes II Subdivision will be utilized to control water runoff from this site. 
Outlot B will be graded to include a drainage swale that will guide the stormwater from Lot 1 to 
the detention basin. The detention basin is sized to hold the water run-off from a 100-year storm 
event and release it at a controlled rate into the City’s stormsewer system. This improvement 
ensures that the water runoff from the new development will be managed. This detention basin 
will be sized so it has the capacity to serve any development proposed on Outlot B in the future. 

366

ITEM  39.



The City Engineer’s office has reviewed the stormwater plans, but will review a more detailed 
report that is required prior to approval of construction drawings. The applicant’s engineer will be 
available at the meeting to answer any technical questions about the stormwater management 
plan for the site. Criterion met. 
 
Other Site Elements: The developer intends to remove garbage and snow from the site with a 
private contractor. 
  
TECHNICAL COMMENTS 
City technical staff, including Cedar Falls Utilities (CFU) personnel, has reviewed the proposed 
site plan. All technical comments have been addressed. 
 
Courtesy notices to neighboring property owners for this site plan were mailed on January 16, 
2019 and February 4, 2019. An additional courtesy mailing was sent to neighboring property 
owners on July 2, 2019 in connection with the notice for the Greenhill Village Townhomes II, 
Phase I Final Plat submission, which also provided notice that the approval of the final plat 
would allow for the site plan to be considered by City Council.   

 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
Discussion 
1/23/2019 

Chair Oberle introduced the item and Ms. Lehmann provided background 
information. She explained that this site plan will be contingent upon the previously 
discussed preliminary plat and the submission and approval of a final plat. The lot 
is at the southeast corner of Lloyd Lane and Norse Drive intersection. Two 
townhomes are being proposed on the site.. The proposal closely follows the 
approved concept plan. She discussed the site plan elements, including height, 
setbacks, parking, access, sidewalks, landscaping, trash, stormwater 
management, and signage. She displayed renderings of the proposed building 
layout and façade elements. Staff would like to bring this to the commission for 
discussion only at this time. 
 
Mr. Wingert recused himself due to a conflict of interest. 
 
Mr. Leeper asked if there is any percentage of masonry requirements. Ms. 
Lehmann noted that there is not. He stated that it seems to be consistent with the 
rules we have set in place. Mr. Hartley noted he would like to see more about the 
water retention and runoff at the next meeting. Ms. Oberle noted that she feels the 
porches make the front more interesting. Mr. Leeper asked about the parking 
calculations. Ms. Lehmann stated that they are meeting and exceeding the parking 
requirement. Mr. Leeper then asked about street parking and whether additional 
onsite parking could be considered in the alley. Ms. Lehmann will discuss the 
option with staff and the developer. 
 
Discussion of this item will be continued at the next meeting.  

 
Discussion 
2/13/2019 

 
As the preliminary plat was deferred, the Commission was given the option to 
defer this item as well. 
 
Mr. Holst made a motion to defer the Greenhill Village Townhomes II Site Plan to 
the February 27th meeting. Mr. Hartley seconded the motion. The motion was 

367

ITEM  39.



approved with 7 ayes (Adkins, Giarusso, Hartley, Holst, Larson, Oberle, and Saul), 
1 abstention (Wingert) and 0 nays. 
 

Discussion 
/Vote 
2/24/2019 

                                      Chair Holst introduced the item and Ms. Lehmann provided background 
information. She explained that the site plan is at the southeast corner of the 
Lloyd Lane and Norse Drive intersection. She displayed the proposed concept 
plan and discussed the site plan and façade elements. She also showed 
renderings of the proposed building design, including elevations. Each townhome 
will be created to have the feel of a single-family home. All site plan elements 
meet requirements. Staff recommends approval of the site plan subject to the 
resolution of minor technical issues and the approval of the Greenhill Village 
Townhomes II Preliminary and Final Plats. 

 
 Tim Hanson, 1517 Athens Court, asked what the maximum height will be. Ms. 

Lehmann stated that the total height from the lowest point is 34 feet, which falls 
within the height limitation requirements. Adam Daters, CGA Engineers, explained 
that there are some cases where the lower level will be at or near existing grade. 
The units on the site plan application will be below the existing water tower grade.  

 
 Robyn Frost, 4718 Addison Drive, echoed concerns about the confusion with the 

height of the building and the two and three stories. She noted concerns with 
potential drainage problems and stated that she doesn’t think the design fits into 
the neighborhood.  

 
 Mr. Larson stated that he likes the look of the project and thinks it makes sense to 

add a more homey look to a higher density area. He suggested that some larger 
trees be added to the plans to help with privacy concerns.  

 
 Mr. Holst stated that the site plan is consistent with the Master Plan, but feels that 

the exteriors are a little plain and he would like them to have better aesthetics. 
 
 Ms. Adkins asked about the potential for the 4th bedroom in the basement and the 

proposed size of the space. Ms. Lehmann stated that it is roughly 10” x 9”. Mr. 
Troskey clarified that it is around 11 x 9. Ms. Adkins stated that she didn’t believe 
based on the location right next to the garage and the mudroom and the fact that 
there was no bathroom in the basement that this would in most cases not be used 
as a bedroom.  

 
 Mr. Leeper made a motion to approve. Mr. Hartley seconded the motion. The 

motion was approved unanimously with 6 ayes (Adkins, Giarusso, Hartley, Holst, 
Larson and Leeper), and 0 nays. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
The proposed Greenhill Village Townhomes II, Phase I Site Plan is consistent with the 
development intent of this area, the approved preliminary plat, the proposed final plat, and the 
requirements of the zoning ordinance. Therefore, staff recommends approval, subject to the 
approval of the Greenhill Village Townhomes II, Phase I Final Plat.  
 
Attachments: Proposed Site Plan, Building Elevations, Proposed Landscaping Plan, Greenhill Village Townhomes 
II, Phase I Final Plat, Greenhill Village Master Plan,  Written correspondence  

368

ITEM  39.



SHEET C.001CGA PROJECT NO. 5638

GREENHILL VILLAGE TOWNHOMES II
LOT 1 SITE PLAN SUBMITTAL

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
2019

J:
\5

63
8\

dw
g\

Sh
ee

ts
\P

ha
se

 1
\P

riv
at

e 
Si

te
\5

63
8 

- C
.0

01
 (T

itl
e 

Sh
ee

t).
DW

G 
- C

.0
01

 - 
 0

1-
23

-1
9 

- 3
:5

2p
m

 - 
BM

C3
45

O
F E

N

EIS

ES O

ANO
I

L
WA I

GN

EDL

P
R

19579

EIC NS

E
R

Pages or sheets covered by this seal:

Signature Date

My license renewal date is December 31, 2018

Iowa License Number 19579

Adam C. Daters, PE

I hereby certify that this engineering document was
prepared by me or under my direct personal supervision
and that I am a duly licensed Professional Engineer
under the laws of the State of Iowa.

AD

AM

A
D

C .

ET

R
S

Clapsaddle-Garber Associates, Inc
16 East Main Street, P.O. Box 754

Marshalltown, Iowa 50158
Phone 641-752-6701

www.cgaconsultants.com

INDEX OF SHEETS

SHEET NO. DESCRIPTION

C.001 TITLE SHEET

C.002 SYMBOLS, LEGEND AND GENERAL INFORMATION

C.100 EXISTING CONDITIONS AND DEMOLITION PLAN

C.200 SITE PLAN

C.300 OVERALL UTILITIES AND GRADING PLAN

C.301-C.302 GRADING PLAN

C.303 SWPPP

C.500-C.504 DETAILS

LOCATION MAP

Council
Bluffs

Sioux City

Burlington

Des Moines
I-80

Mason City

I-35

Ames Marshalltown

Davenport

Dubuque

Cedar
Rapids

CEDAR FALLS

VICINITY MAP
NOT TO SCALE

WORK AND MATERIALS SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH
THE IOWA STATEWIDE URBAN STANDARD

SPECIFICATIONS FOR PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS, 2018
EDITION (SUDAS) AND THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS

PROJECT LOCATION

GRADING, PAVING, & UTILITIES

ERIK RD

DANISHDR

D
R

D
R

D
R

N
O

R
S

E

FJ
O

R
D

M
A

R
IU

S

LLOYD

ANN

AVE

RICHARD

RD

G
LO

R
IA

S
T

AV
E

C
T

PIZARROCT

D
R

UNIVERSITY
AVE

CONTINENTALDR

HILTON DR

CONTINENTAL
ACCESS

FOUR WINDS DR
BROOKSIDE DR

S
A

B
LE

LN

TI
FF

A
N

Y
LN

S
TE

R
LI

N
G

LN
E

V
E

R
G

R
E

E
N

CAROL

CT

LN

BROOKSIDEDR

SPRINGBROOK DR

STARVIEWDR

CIR

O
R

E
LL

A
N

A
A

VE

C
H

R
IS

K
IN

 D
R

Q
U

E
S

A
D

A
C

T

RDGREENHILL

D
R

N
O

R
S

E

ATHENS CT

GREENHILL RD

ALVARDO AVE

Q
U

E
SA

D
A

NORDIC

C
A

R
E

Y
 D

R
P

A
N

TH
E

R
LN

K
Y

LI
E

 C
T

NORDIC DR

LN

LN

LAVERNE

B
AL

B
O

A
C

O
R

O
N

AD
O

WESTMINSTER DRG
LA

C
IE

R
 D

R

VIEW CIR

MEADOWBARKWOOD DR

BOXWOOD DRA
P

P
LE

W
O

O
D

 L
N

H
E

D
G

E
W

O
O

D

C
IR

IRONW
OOD DR

A
D

D
IS

O
N

D
R

ANDOVER CT

KAEL

C
E

LT
IC

 C
T

HARRIET LN

DONALD DR

N
O

R
D

IC

RIDGE

TRAILAUSTIN WAY

AM
ELIA DR

ASHWORTH
DR

LOREN

DR

A
LG

O
N

Q
U

IN
DR

M
E

A
D

O
W

 L
A

R
K

LN

ALGONQUIN DR

VERA WAY

S
A

M
A

N
TH

A
C

IR

IR
O

N
WO

O
D

 D
R

FLYNN
DR

K
A

R
A

D
R

PRELIMINARY

- NOT FOR

CONSTRUCTION

SITE PLAN SUBMITTAL SET - DATE: 01-23-19

369

ITEM  39.



SHEET NO.

DRAWN:
CHECKED:

DATE:
DATE:

APPROVED: DATE:

PROJECT NO.DESIGNED: DATE:REVISIONNO. DATEBY DATEBYREVISIONNO.

J:
\5

63
8\

dw
g\

Sh
ee

ts
\P

ha
se

 1
\P

riv
at

e 
Si

te
\5

63
8 

- C
.0

01
 (T

itl
e 

Sh
ee

t).
DW

G 
- C

.0
02

 - 
 0

1-
23

-1
9 

- 3
:5

2p
m

 - 
BM

C3
45

CGA GREENHILL VILLAGE TOWNHOMES II
C.002

5638

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA

LAW 11-21-2018

BMC 11-21-2018

ACD 11-21-2018

---- ----

SYMBOLS, LEGEND, AND
GENERAL INFORMATION

Clapsaddle-Garber Associates, Inc
1523 S. Bell Ave. Suite 101

Ames, Iowa 50010

Ph 515-232-8553
www.cgaconsultants.com

LEGEND
EXISTING PROPOSED

EVERGREEN TREE

DECIDUOUS TREE

FRUIT TREE

SHRUBS (BUSHES)

TREE LINE

STUMP

SWAMP

CEMETERY

GRAVE

CAVE

SINK HOLE

WELL

WINDMILL

CISTERN

SEPTIC TANK

LP GAS TANK

UNDERGROUND STORAGE TANK

SATELLITE DISH

SIGN (TYPE AS NOTED)

FLAGPOLE

SOIL BORING

MONITORING WELL

PARKING METER

MAILBOX

POST

BOLLARD

SPRINKLER HEAD

SPRINKLER HEAD VALVE

GUARDRAIL (BEAM OR CABLE)

FENCE

FIELD TILE

TILE OUTLET

DRAINAGE WAY

EDGE OF WATER

SILT FENCE

CONTOUR LINE

SPOT ELEVATION

F F

G

CV

SH

W

W

C

ST

LP

UST

SIGN

PM PM

P P

B B

SPH

SPV

X X X X

105

00
.00

EXISTING PROPOSED

WATERLINE

WATER VALVE

FIRE HYDRANT

WATER METER

CURB STOP

YARD HYDRANT

POST INDICATOR VALVE

SANITARY SEWER LINE

STORM SEWER LINE

MANHOLE

CLEANOUT

INTAKE

BEEHIVE INTAKE

ROOF DRAIN

ROOF DRAIN (SURFACE)

ROOF DRAIN (UNDERGROUND)

GAS LINE

GAS VALVE

GAS METER

OVERHEAD ELECTRICAL LINE

BURIED ELECTRICAL LINE

POWER POLE

ELECTRICAL METER

ELECTRICAL HIGHLINE TOWER

TRAFFIC SIGNAL

STREET LIGHT

LUMINAIRE

ELECTRICAL BOX/TRANSFORMER

FIBER OPTICS LINE

FIBER OPTICS BOX

FIBER PEDESTAL

TELEPHONE LINE

TELEPHONE POLE

TELEPHONE PEDESTAL

TELEPHONE BOX

CABLE TELEVISION LINE

TELEVISION PEDESTAL

TELEVISION BOX

AIR CONDITIONER

W (*) W

W W

PIV PIV

San(*) San

StS (*) StS

M

C C

R R

RS R
S

RU R
U

G (*) G

G G

OH E OH E

E (*) E

E E

FO(*) FO

FO FO

FO FO

T(*) T

T T

T T
TV TV

TV(*) TV

TV TV

AC AC

EXISTING PROPOSED

SECTION/R.O.W. LINE

BOUNDARY LINE

PROPERTY LINE

EASEMENT LINE

SETBACK LINE

R.O.W. RAIL OR LOT CORNER

CONCRETE MONUMENT

GOVERNMENT CORNER MONUMENT

PARCEL OR LOT CORNER MONUMENT

TEMP. CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT CORNER

SURVEY CONTROL POINT

THE FOLLOWING UTILITIES ARE PRESENT ON THIS PROJECT

UTILITY COMPANIES

UNDERGROUND STRUCTURES, FACILITIES, AND UTILITIES
HAVE BEEN PLATTED FROM AVAILABLE SURVEYS, RECORDS
AND DEEDS. THEREFORE THEIR LOCATIONS MUST BE
CONSIDERED APPROXIMATE ONLY. THERE MAY BE OTHERS,
THE EXISTENCE OF WHICH IS PRESENTLY NOT KNOWN.

PIPE IN CEDAR FALLS IS 5.5 FT.
TYPICAL DEPTH OF COVER ON WATER MAIN
NOTE:

ELECTRIC/GAS/WATER/TV FIRE PROTECTION
CEDAR FALLS UTILITIES CITY OF CEDAR FALLS
JOHN OSTERHAUS (ELECTRIC)    (319) 273-8663
(319) 268-5298
JERALD LUKENSMEYER (GAS & WATER)
(319) 268-5330
DAVE SCHILLING (COMMUNICATIONS)
(319-268-5265)

TELEPHONE STREETS - CITY
CENTURY LINK CITY OF CEDAR FALLS
JEREMY AHRENS PUBLIC WORKS
(319) 291-9441
CFU BRIAN HEATH
DAVID SCHILLING (319) 268-5575
(319) 268-5265

CABLE BUILDING DEPARTMENT
MEDIACOM CITY OF CEDAR FALLS
KEVIN PARKER (319) 268-5180
(319) 240-4987

STORM/SANITARY SEWER CITY ENGINEER
WATER RECLAMATION CITY OF CEDAR FALLS
MIKE NYMAN (319) 268-5161
(319) 268-5560

CLAPSADDLE-GARBER ASSOCIATES
16 E. MAIN STREET
MARSHALLTOWN, IA 50158
CONTACT: ADAM DATERS, PE
PHONE (641) 752-6701

ENGINEER/ LAND SURVEYOR

1. MATERIAL AND CONSTRUCTION TO BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE "MUNICIPAL WATER UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA" ON FILE WITH
THE DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES. THE "CEDAR FALLS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRIBUTION STANDARDS" AND THE "TEN STATE
STANDARDS." THE CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY THESE REQUIREMENTS PRIOR TO BIDDING ON THIS PROJECT. IF THE STANDARDS CONFLICT, THE
CONTRACTOR SHALL ABIDE BY THE MORE STRINGENT STANDARD.

2. ALL WATER MAIN SHALL HAVE A MINIMUM OF 5.5 FEET OF COVER AT FINISHED GRADE IN PARKING AREAS AND 6.0 FEET IN STREET AREAS.
3. VALVES SHALL BE LEFT HAND OPEN RESILIENT SEAT GATE VALVES. THE COST OF VALVE BOXES ARE INCLUDED IN APPLICABLE ITEMS.

APPROXIMATE DEPTH OF VALVE BOXES WILL BE 7 FEET.
4. LEAK PRESSURE TESTS WILL BE CONDUCTED IN CONFORMANCE WITH AWWA C600-77 (CURRENT REVISION), AND SUPERVISED BY CEDAR FALLS

UTILITIES.
5. DISINFECTION WILL BE CONDUCTED IN CONFORMANCE WITH THE IOWA STANDARDS FOR WATER SUPPLY DISTRIBUTION SYSTEMS AND THE IOWA

DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS AND SUPERVISED BY CEDAR FALLS UTILITIES.
6. WATER MAIN SHALL NOT BE DEFLECTED MORE THAN 5° VERTICALLY OR HORIZONTALLY.
7. ALL WATERMAIN SHALL BE WRAPPED WITH BLUE HIGH DENSITY CROSS LINKED, 8 MIL, POLYETHYLENE WRAP IN ACCORDANCE WITH

AWWA C105.
8. SEE CFU DETAIL FOR END OF WATER MAIN HYDRANT ASSEMBLY

CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR COORDINATING WATER MAIN SHUT DOWNS WITH ANY AFFECTED CUSTOMERS AND CFU AT
LEAST 48 HOURS PRIOR TO SHUTDOWN TO MINIMIZE SERVICE DISRUPTIONS. SHUT DOWNS MAY HAVE TO BE COMPLETED DURING
NON-TRADITIONAL HOURS DEPENDING ON THE NEEDS OF THE AFFECTED CUSTOMERS. NO ADDITIONAL COMPENSATION WILL BE
PROVIDED TO THE CONTRACTOR FOR WORK.

WATER MAIN NOTES

WATER SYSTEM SHUTDOWN NOTIFICATION

1. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL RESTORE ALL AREAS DISTURBED BY ACCESS OR CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES TO ORIGINAL
CONDITIONS.  THIS MAY INCLUDE SCARIFYING AND RESEEDING OR OTHER RESTORATION EFFORTS AS REQUIRED.
RESTORATION SHALL BE INCIDENTAL TO THE PROJECT.

2. ADJOINING PROPERTY SHALL BE PROTECTED DURING DEMOLITION OPERATIONS.  DEBRIS SPILLAGE ON ADJOINING
PROPERTIES SHALL BE CAREFULLY REMOVED BY THE CONTRACTOR.

3. ALL CONSTRUCTION DEBRIS SHALL BE REMOVED FROM SITE AND PROPERLY DISPOSED OF.

DEMOLITION NOTES

1. ALL DIMENSIONS ARE TO BACK OF CURB WHERE APPLICABLE.
2. ALL DISTURBED AREAS, UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, SHALL BE SEEDED, FERTILIZED AND MULCHED WITHIN THE

APPROPRIATE SEEDING PERIOD.  SEED SHALL BE TYPE 1 LAWN MIXTURE.  SEE SUDAS SECTION 9010.
3. SEEDED SLOPES SHALL BE 4:1.  MAXIMUM SLOPE ALLOWED SHALL BE 3:1 WHERE APPROVED BY ENGINEER.
4. CONTRACTOR TO VERIFY EXISTING UTILITY SIZES PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION. ENGINEER SHALL BE NOTIFIED OF ANY

DISCREPANCIES.
5. CONTRACTOR SHALL SUPPLY DETAILED CONSTRUCTION SCHEDULE TO PROJECT ENGINEER PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION.
6. CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE RELOCATION OF EXISTING UTILITIES, WHICH ARE TO BE PERFORMED BY OTHERS,

WITH RESPECTIVE UTILITY COMPANIES.
7. ALL WORK SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OSHA CODES AND STANDARDS.  NOTHING INDICATED ON THESE DRAWINGS

SHALL RELIEVE THE CONTRACTOR FROM COMPLYING WITH ANY APPROPRIATE SAFETY REGULATIONS.
8. ONE WEEK PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION, CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY THE PROJECT ENGINEER OF THEIR INTENT TO

COMMENCE CONSTRUCTION.
9. CONTRACTOR SHALL DISPOSE OF WASTE EARTHWORK ON-SITE, AT THE DIRECTION OF THE PROJECT ENGINEER.
10. STORMWATER POLLUTION PREVENTION INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THIS PLAN SET IS NOT THE COMPLETE

STORMWATER POLLUTION PREVENTION PLAN (SWPPP), BUT RATHER A PART OF THE SWPPP THAT IS TO BE UPDATED
REGULARLY.

11. ALL SIDEWALK AND RAMPS SHALL BE IN COMPLIANCE WITH IOWA SUDAS SIDEWALK DEISGN REQUIREMENTS AND ADA
ACCESSABILITY GUIDELINES.  FAILURE OF SIDEWALK TO MEET THESE REQUIRMENTS WILL REQUIRE REMOVAL AND
RECONSTRUCTION AT CONTRACTOR'S COST.

GENERAL NOTES

1. PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL SUBMIT TO THE ENGINEER ALL SHOP DRAWINGS, MATERIAL
CERTIFICATIONS AND VENDOR MATERIALS CERTIFICATIONS FOR ALL MATERIALS TO BE INCORPORATED INTO THE
PROJECT.

2. CONTRACTOR SHALL ALLOW 14 CALENDAR DAYS FOR REVIEW OF SHOP DRAWINGS, MATERIAL CERTIFICATIONS AND
VENDOR MATERIALS CERTIFICATIONS.  IF REVIEW HAS NOT BEEN COMPLETED IN 14 CALENDAR DAYS, THIS SHALL NOT
IMPLY APPROVAL, CONTACT PROJECT ENGINEER FOR SUBMITTAL STATUS.

3. CONTRACTOR SHALL NOT BE COMPENSATED FOR ANY MATERIAL THAT IS INSTALLED PRIOR TO APPROVAL BY THE
ENGINEER.  CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL COST TO REPLACE ANY NON-APPROVED MATERIALS.

SHOP DRAWING SUBMITTALS

1. PRIOR TO INSTALLING UTILITIES, CONTRACTOR SHALL EXCAVATE AND FIELD VERIFY EXACT LOCATION, SIZE, AND
ELEVATION OF ALL PUBLIC/PRIVATE UTILITIES WITHIN THE PROJECT LIMITS.

2. UNDERGROUND STRUCTURES, FACILITIES, AND UTILITIES HAVE BEEN PLATTED FROM AVAILABLE SURVEYS, RECORDS,
AND DEEDS.  THEREFORE, THEIR LOCATIONS MUST BE CONSIDERED APPROXIMATE ONLY.  THERE MAY BE OTHERS, THE
EXISTENCE OF WHICH IS PRESENTLY NOT KNOWN.

3. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL CALL IOWA ONE CALL AT (800) 292-8989 A MINIMUM OF 48 HOURS PRIOR TO ANY EXCAVATION.
IT SHALL BE THE CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY TO VERIFY UTILITY LOCATIONS AND FLOW LINES PRIOR TO
CONSTRUCTION AND TO PROTECT ALL UTILITIES FROM DAMAGE.

UTILITY NOTES

370

ITEM  39.



T T

T

FOFO

M

M

M

M

M

M

M

M

M

T

M

TV
TV

M

M

M

M

M

M

XXXXX

X
X

X

WVFHYD

TRANS

FO BOX
FO BOX

INTAKE
RIM=945.59

F/L=940.82 (15" RCP) N
F/L =940.63 (15" ADS) SE

SAN MH
RIM= 944.82
 F/L= 929.54 (8" PVC) W
F/L= 929.50 (8" PVC) N
 F/L = 929.42 (8" PVC) S

WV
WV

FHYD
BENCHMARK 1

BURY BOLT
ELEV= 945.85

WV

FHYD
WV

TELE PED TELE
PED

TELE PED

TELE PED

SAN MH
RIM = 942.22
F/L = 931.11 (8" PVC) W
F/L = 931.07 (8" PVC) S

SAN MAN
RIM = 954.49
F/L = 941.65 (8" PVC) E
F/L = 941.69 (8" PVC) S

CO
RIM = 950.04
F/L = 942.53

SAN MH
RIM = 943.24
F/L = 932.64(8"PVC) N

FENCE POST

San(C) San(C) San(C) San(C) San(C) San(C) San(C) San(C) San(C) San(C) San(C) San(C)

San(C)
San(C)

San(C)
San(C)

San(C)
San(C)

San(C)

San(C)

Sa
n(

C)
Sa

n(
C)

Sa
n(

C)

INTAKE
RIM = 960.36

F/L = 955.01 (15" RCP) NE
INTAKE
RIM = 960.04
F/L = 955.17(15" RCP) SW
F/L = 955.62 (15" RCP) NW

INTAKE
RIM = 954.37

F/L = 949.86 ( 15" RCP) N

INTAKE
RIM = 954.33
F/L = 949.36 (15" RCP) S
F/L = 949.24 (15" RCP) W

INTAKE
RIM = 945.06

F/L = 940.25 (15" ADS) NW
F/L =939.90 (15" RCP) E

INTAKE
RIM = 945.06

INTAKE
RIM = 944.36

F/L = 938.89 (15" RCP) E

INTAKE
RIM = 944.48
F/L = 938.39(15" ADS) N
F/L = 938.53 (15"RCP) W
F/L = 938.29 (15" ADS) S

ELEC BOX

ELEC BOX

PP
FENCE

FENCE

FENCE

TV PED

TV PED

INTAKE
RIM = 960.19

F/L = 955.87 (15" RCP) SE
W

(D
)

W(D) W(D) W(D) W(D) W(D) W(D)

W(D)

W
(D)

W
(D)

W
(D)

W
(D

)

W
(D)

W
(D)

W
(D)

W
(D)

W
(D)

W
(D)

W
(D)

W
(D)

W
(D)

W(D)

W
(D)

W
(D)

W(D)W(D)W(D)W(D)W(D)W(D) W(D) W(D) W(D)

688.47'
S89°35'24"E

76
.9

9'
S

0°
09

'2
3"

W

351.07'
N89°55'11"W

21
6.

23
'

S
0°

20
'0

2"
W

139.92'
N89°39'54"W

L1

60.00'
N89°55'09"W

273.33'
N89°55'09"W

50
4.

72
'

N
0°

00
'1

6"
W

135.97'
S89°37'56"E

18
0.

13
'

S
0°

08
'0

1"
W

Curve Table
CURVE DATA

C1

ARC LENGTH

53.45'

RADIUS

780.00'

DELTA ANGLE

3°55'35"

CHORD BEARING

S1°47'42"E

CHORD

53.44'

LINE DATA
LINE NUMBER

L1

BEARING

N0°19'47"E

DISTANCE

26.06'

FND REBAR

FND 1/2" REBAR

FND 1/2" REBAR
w/ YPC #10040

FND 1/2" REBAR

FND 1/2" REBAR
w/ YPC #10040

FND REBAR

FND REBAR

FND 1/2" REBAR

FND REBAR

FND 1/2" REBAR

FND 1/2" REBAR

FND REBAR

FND 1/2" REBARFND 1/2" REBAR

FND REBAR
w/ OPC #12532

FND 1/2" REBAR
w/ RPC #11954

C
1

12
"

12
"

12"12"

8" 8"

8"

8"

15"

15
"

15"

15
"

15"

8"

W
(D

)
W

(D
)

W
(D

)

TV TV

TV

TV TV TV TV

TV
TV

TV

TV

TV

TV
TV

TV
TV

TV

TV

E(D) E(D) E(D) E(D) E(D) E(D) E(D)

E(D)

E(D)

E(D)

E(D)
E(D)

E(D)
E(D)

E(D)
E(D)

E(D)

E(D)

E(D)

E(D)

E(D)

E(D)

E(D) E(D) E(D) E(D) E(D) E(D) E(D)

G(D) G(D) G(D)

G(D)
G(D)

G(D)
G(D)

G(D)

G(D)

G(D)

G(D)

G(D)G(D)G(D)G(D)G(D)G(D)G(D)G(D)G(D)

G(D)
G(D)

G(D)
G(D)

G(D)
G(D)

G(D)
G(D)

G(D)
G(D)

G(D)
G(D)

G(D)
G(D)

G(D)
G(D)

G(D)
G(D)

FHYD
BENCHMARK 2
ELEV= 952.30

INTAKE
RIM = 945.64
F/L = 941.10 (15" RCP) S

N

0

GRAPHIC SCALE

100'50' 150'

Clapsaddle-Garber Associates, Inc
16 East Main Street

Marshalltown, Iowa 50158

Ph 641-752-6701
www.cgaconsultants.com

SHEET NO.

DRAWN:
CHECKED:

DATE:
DATE:

APPROVED: DATE:

PROJECT NO.DESIGNED: DATE:REVISIONNO. DATEBY DATEBYREVISIONNO.

J:
\5

63
8\

dw
g\

Sh
ee

ts
\P

ha
se

 1
\P

riv
at

e 
Si

te
\5

63
8 

- C
.1

00
 (E

xis
tin

g 
Co

nd
iti

on
s)

.d
wg

 - 
C.

10
0 

-  
01

-2
3-

19
 - 

3:
52

pm
 - 

BM
C3

45

CGA GREENHILL VILLAGE TOWNHOMES
C.100

5638

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA EXISTING CONDITIONS
LAW

BMC

ACD

---- ----

11-21-2018

11-21-2018

11-21-2018 371

ITEM  39.



P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

35
' x

 1
25

'
43

75
 S

Q
. F

T.

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

35
' x

 1
00

'
35

00
 S

Q
. F

T.

C

C

30'

20'
(TYP.)

20
'

(T
Y

P
.)

20'
B-B

20'
(TYP.)

20
'

(T
Y

P
.)

30'

30
'

30' GREEN SPACE
BUFFER SETBACK

20
'

30
'

10' PUE

5' 5'

5'

5'

20
'

B
-B

B

E

1'

41
'

A

A

R25'

R25
'

12'

D

E

E

E

B

B

C

C

C

C

C

C

C

C

E

E

CT T

M

M

M

XXXXXXXXXXX
X

X
X

X
X

X

TELE PED
TELE
PED

Sa
n(

C)

FENCE POST

San(C) San(C) San(C) San(C) San(C) San(C) San(C) San(C) San(C) San(C) San(C) San(C) San(C) San(C) San(C) San(C)

St
S(

C)

ELEC BOX

PP

FENCE

FENCE

W
(D

)
W

(D
)

W
(D

)
W

(D
)

W(D) W(D) W(D) W(D) W(D) W(D) W(D) W(D) W(D) W(D) W(D) W(D) W(D) W(D) W(D) W(D) W(D)

W
(D)

W
(D)

W
(D)

W
(D)

W(D) W(D) W(D) W(D) W(D) W(D) W(D)

FND 1/2" REBAR
w/ YPC #10040

FND 1/2" REBAR

FND 1/2" REBAR
w/ YPC #10040

12"

8"

15
"

TV TV

E(D)
E(D)

E(D) E(D) E(D) E(D) E(D) E(D) E(D) E(D) E(D) E(D) E(D) E(D) E(D) E(D) E(D) E(D) E(D) E(D)

E(D)

E(D) E(D) E(D) E(D)

G(D) G(D) G(D) G(D)

G(D)
G(D)

G(D)
G(D)

G(D)
G(D)

G(D) G(D) G(D) G(D)

G(
D)

G(D)G(D)G(D)G(D)G(D)G(D)G(D)G(D)G(D)G(D)G(D)G(D)G(D)G(D)G(D)G(D)G(D)G(D)G(D)G(D)

G(D)
G(D)

G(D)
G(D)

G(D)
G(D)

G(D)
G(D)

G(D)
G(D)

G(D)
G(D)

G(D)
G(D)

G(D)
G(D)

G(D)
G(D)

G(D)
G(D)

G(D)
G(D)

G(D)
G(D)

G(D)
G(D)

3 STAIRS SHALL
BE REQUIRED

LOT
LINE

40'

R10'R10'
C

FUTURE
SIDEWALK

20'
PUE

20
'

P
U

E

N

0

GRAPHIC SCALE

40'20' 60'

Clapsaddle-Garber Associates, Inc
16 East Main Street

Marshalltown, Iowa 50158

Ph 641-752-6701
www.cgaconsultants.com

SHEET NO.

DRAWN:
CHECKED:

DATE:
DATE:

APPROVED: DATE:

PROJECT NO.DESIGNED: DATE:REVISIONNO. DATEBY DATEBYREVISIONNO.

J:
\5

63
8\

dw
g\

Sh
ee

ts
\P

ha
se

 1
\P

riv
at

e 
Si

te
\5

63
8 

- C
.2

00
 (L

ay
ou

t).
dw

g 
- C

.2
00

 - 
 0

1-
23

-1
9 

- 3
:5

2p
m

 - 
BM

C3
45

CGA GREENHILL VILLAGE TOWNHOMES II
C.200

5638

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA SITE PLAN
LAW

BMC

ACD

---- 08-06-18

08-06-18

08-06-18

08-06-18

OWNER OF RECORD:
PANTHER FARMS LLC

ZONE INFORMATION:
DISTRICT: MU - MIXED USE
BUILDING SETBACKS

                    REQUIRED        PROVIDED (MIN)

MINIMUM PERIMITER SETBACK:            30' 30'

SEPERATION BETWEEN STRUCTURES  20' 30'

LOT 1 AREA: 0.98 ACRES (42,689 SF)
IMPERVIOUS: 0.46 ACRES (19,986 SF)

DATE OF PREPARATION:

PARKING INFORMATION:

FLOODPLAIN INFORMATION:
NO FLOODPLAIN PRESENT PER FIRM PANEL 19013C0277F

LEGEND

APPLICANT INFORMATION

STORMWATER MANAGEMENT
STORMWATER MANAGEMENT TO BE PROVIDED BY
CAPTURING STORM WATER ON SITE AND ROUTING
FLOWS THROUGH A DETENTION POND IN THE
STORM WATER TRACT TO THE SOUTHEAST.

PROPERTY USE
MULTIFAMLY HOUSING

DEVELOPER INFORMATION

UTILITY INFORMATION
PUBLIC UTILITIES PRESENT AS SHOWN.

EASEMENTS
ROW LINES, UTILITY EASEMENTS, AND
BUFFER SETBACKS AS SHOWN.

12/10/2018

- PRIVATE ACCESS DRIVE, 6"PCC

- PRIVATE DRIVEWAY, 6" PCC

- SIDEWALK, 4" PCC

- PCC PATCH

- LANDSCAPING

BUILDING INFORMATION
 2 TOTAL BUILDINGS
 1  -   4 PLEX APARTMENT UNITS
 1  -   5 PLEX APARTMENT UNITS

9 - TOTAL UNITS
3 BEDROOMS PER UNIT = 27 BEDS

34' - 11 1/4"  -  HEIGHT

REQUIRED: 3 STALLS PER UNIT
PROVIDED: 4 STALLS PER UNIT

         18 PARKING STALLS IN DRIVEWAY
         18 PARKING STALLS IN GARAGE
         36 TOTAL PARKING STALLS

604 CLAY ST.
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613
CONTACT: CORY HENKE (319-640-0182)

PANTHER FARMS LLC
604 CLAY ST.
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613

VICINITY MAP
NOT TO SCALE

PROJECT LOCATION

A

B

C

D

E

SIGHT TRIANGLES
        SIGHT TRIANGLE SHOWN ARE BASED ON

A 30 MPH DESIGN SPEED

WETLANDS
THERE ARE NO KNOWN WETLANS ON THIS SITE.

372

ITEM  39.



T T

T

FO
FO

M

M

M

M

M

M

M

M

X

XXXXXXXX

X
X

X

X

FHYD

TRANS

FO BOX

FO BOX

INTAKE
RIM=945.59

F/L=940.82 (15" RCP) N
F/L =940.63 (15" ADS) SE

WV

WV

FHYD
BENCHMARK 1

BURY BOLT
ELEV= 945.85

TELE PED
TELE
PED

TELE PED

SAN MAN
RIM = 954.49
F/L = 941.65 (8" PVC) E
F/L = 941.69 (8" PVC) S

CO
RIM = 950.04
F/L = 942.53

Sa
n(

C)

FENCE POST

San(C) San(C) San(C) San(C) San(C) San(C) San(C) San(C) San(C) San(C) San(C) San(C) San(C) San(C) San(C) San(C) San(C) San(C) San(C) San(C) San(C)

INTAKE
RIM = 954.37

F/L = 949.86 ( 15" RCP) N

RIM = 954.33
F/L = 949.36 (15" RCP) S
F/L = 949.24 (15" RCP) W

StS(C)

INTAKE
RIM = 945.06

F/L = 940.25 (15" ADS) NW

ELEC BOX

PP

FENCE

FENCE

FENCE

INTAKE
RIM = 960.19

F/L = 955.87 (15" RCP) SE
W

(D
)

W
(D

)
W

(D
)

W(D) W(D) W(D) W(D) W(D) W(D) W(D) W(D) W(D) W(D) W(D)

W(D)

W
(D

)
W

(D
)

W
(D)

W
(D)

W
(D)

W
(D)

W
(D)

W(D)

W
(D)

W
(D)

W
(D)

W
(D)

W
(D)

W
(D)

W
(D)

W
(D)

W
(D)

W
(D)

W(D)W(D)W(D)W(D)W(D)W(D)W(D)W(D)W(D) W(D) W(D) W(D) W(D) W(D)

FND 1/2" REBAR
w/ YPC #10040

FND 1/2" REBAR

FND 1/2" REBAR
w/ YPC #10040

FND REBAR

FND REBAR

FND 1/2" REBAR

FND REBAR

FND REBAR

12
"

12"12"

8"
8"

15
"

15"

15
"

W
(D

)

TV TV TV

TV
TV

TV TV TV TV TV TV TV TV

TV

TV

TV
TV

TV
TV

TV
TV

TV
TV

TV

TV

E(D)

E(D) E(D) E(D) E(D) E(D) E(D) E(D) E(D) E(D) E(D) E(D) E(D)

E(D)

E(D)

E(D)
E(D)

E(D)

E(D)
E(D)

E(D)
E(D)

E(D)
E(D)

E(D)
E(D)

E(D)

E(D)

E(D)
E(D) E(D) E(D) E(D) E(D) E(D) E(D) E(D) E(D) E(D) E(D) E(D)

G(D)

G(D)
G(D)

G(D)
G(D)

G(D) G(D)G(D)G(D)G(D)G(D)G(D)G(D)G(D)G(D)G(D)G(D)G(D)G(D)G(D)

G(D)
G(D)

G(D)
G(D)

G(D)
G(D)

G(D)
G(D)

G(D)
G(D)

G(D)
G(D)

G(D)
G(D)

G(D)
G(D)

G(D)
G(D)

G(D)
G(D)

G(D)
G(D)

G(D)
G(D)

FHYD
BENCHMARK 2
ELEV= 952.30

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W

W

955

955

956957958958

96
0

95
8

95
7

95
5

95
5

95
6

95
7

95
8

95
9

96
0

95
9

95
8

95
7

95
6

95
5

95
5

95
5

95
6

95
7

95
8

95
9

96
1

96
2

96
1

96
0

96
0

95
8

95
7

95
6

959
958
957
956
955

954

954
955
956
957
958
959
960

955

955

953 952 95
1

95
0

94
9

94
8

94
7

94
6

94
5

944

943

94
4

94
5

94
6

94
7

94
8

94
9 94
9

94
8

94
7

94
6

958
957

956
955

954
953

952
951

950

950951952953954955956957958959960

958 957 956 955

10' PUE
10' PUE

15" RCP
(BY OTHERS)

8" HDPE
(BY OTHERS)

STS - 14
SW-401, 48" MH

(BY OTHERS)

GRADE A SWALE FROM THE PROPOSED DEVELOPED
AREA TO THE PROPOSED DETENTION TO CUT OFF
ANY FLOWS TOWARDS THE EAST.

SanSan

San
San

San
San

San
San

San
San

San
San

San
San

San

LOT
LINE

PUBLIC
WATERMAIN

PUBLIC
SANITARY

SEWER

SANITARY SEWER
SERVICE (TYP.)

WATER SERVICE (TYP.)

20'
PUE

20
'

P
U

E

SANITARY
SEWER MH

SANITARY
SEWER MH

FIRE HYDRANT

10
' P

U
E

10
' P

U
E

10' PUE

SANITARY
SEWER MH

PUBLIC
SANITARY
SEWER

SIDEWALK

SIDEWALK

N

0

GRAPHIC SCALE

60'30' 90'

Clapsaddle-Garber Associates, Inc
16 East Main Street

Marshalltown, Iowa 50158

Ph 641-752-6701
www.cgaconsultants.com

SHEET NO.

DRAWN:
CHECKED:

DATE:
DATE:

APPROVED: DATE:

PROJECT NO.DESIGNED: DATE:REVISIONNO. DATEBY DATEBYREVISIONNO.

J:
\5

63
8\

dw
g\

Sh
ee

ts
\P

ha
se

 1
\P

riv
at

e 
Si

te
\5

63
8 

- C
.3

00
 (O

ve
ra

ll 
Ut

ili
ty

 &
 G

ra
di

ng
).d

wg
 - 

C.
30

0 
-  

01
-2

3-
19

 - 
3:

52
pm

 - 
BM

C3
45

CGA GREENHILL VILLAGE TOWNHOMES II
C.300

5638

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
OVERALL UTILITY AND

GRADING PLAN
LAW

BMC

ACD

---- ----

11-21-2018

11-21-2018

11-21-2018 373

ITEM  39.



X
X

X X X X X X X X X X X

TELE PED

TELE
PED

San(C)

FENCE POST

PP

FENCE

504.72'
N0°00'16"W

S
89

°3
7'

56
"E

180.13'
S0°08'01"W

FND 1/2" REBAR
w/ YPC #

10040
FND 1/2" REBAR

FND 1/2" REBAR
w/ YPC #

10040

961.22
961.29

961.22

961.22
961.30

961.93

961.86

961.86

961.86
961.93

956.53

956.53

956.53

956.53

956.53

956.53

956.53

956.53

955.90

955.90

955.90

955.90

955.90

955.90

955.90

955.90

955.90

955.90

955.70
(TOC)

955.76
(TOC)

955.74
(TOC)

955.62
(TOC)

955.58
(TOC)

955.46
(TOC)

955.43
(TOC)

955.30
(TOC)

955.27
(TOC)

955.14
(TOC)

954.95
(TOC)

954.97
(TOC)

955.00
(TOC)

955.27
(TOC)

955.30
(TOC)

955.75
(TOC)

955.85
(TOC)

956.27
(TOC)

956.11
(TOC)

955.61
(TOC) 955.41

(TOC)

955.20
(TOC)

955.05
(TOC)

954.84
(TOC)

954.92
(TOC)

955.00
(TOC)

955.06
(TOC)

955.13
(TOC)

955.33
(TOC)

955.48
(TOC)

955.64
(TOC)

955.80
(TOC)

955.87
(TOC)

955.91
(TOC)

955.72
(TOC)

955.53
(TOC)

955.26
(TOC)

955.13
(TOC)

955.40
(TOC)

955.59
(TOC)

955.04
(TOC)

956.44
(TOC)

956.55
(TOC)

956.28

955.71

955.01

954.71

954.63 LP

954.72

954.92

955.08

955.39

955.47

955.50 HP

955.32

955.12

954.85

954.63

954.52

954.44

3.
1%

3.
0%

2.
0%

5.
4%

7.
2% 8.

1%

3.
7%

2.
8% 1.
8%

1.
1%

1.
0%

4.
6%

15
.4

%

2.0% 2.0%

0.
8%

0.6% 0.6% 0.6% 0.6%
955.24

2.0%0.6%

1.
0%

1.
0%

0.
8% 1.
0%

1.
0%

1.
0%

1.
0%

1.
0%

1.
0%

1.
0%

1.
0%

1.
0%

96
1

96
0

95
9

959

958

957

956

955

958958

955

955

955

956

957

958

959

960

95
4 959960

958

957

956

955

955

958

LOWER LEVEL EL: 956.53
MAIN LEVEL EL: 966.53

LOWER LEVEL EL: 955.90
MAIN LEVEL EL: 965.90

3.
9%

8.
4%

25
.9

%

19
.8

%

14
.5

%

26.2%

25.0%

21.3%

13
.6

%

3.4%

15
.9

%

11.2%
San

San
San

San
San

San
SanSan

San

San

San

San

San

San

San

San

W
W

W

W
W

W

W
W

W

W
W

W

W
W

W

W
W

W

W
W

W

W
W

W

W
W

W

W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W

PROPOSED
8" WATERMAIN

PROPOSED
8" SANITARY SEWER

SanSanSanSanSanSanSanSanSanSanSanSanSanSanSanSanSanSanSanSanSanSanSanSan

3 STAIRS SHALL
BE INSTALLED WITH

10" TREADS AND 7" RISE

PROPOSED
SANITARY SEWER MH PROPOSED

SANITARY SEWER MH

PROPOSED
SANITARY
SEWER MH

N

0

GRAPHIC SCALE

20'10' 30'

Clapsaddle-Garber Associates, Inc
1523 S. Bell Ave. Suite 101

Ames, Iowa 50010

Ph 515-232-1784
www.cgaconsultants.com

SHEET NO.

DRAWN:
CHECKED:

DATE:
DATE:

APPROVED: DATE:

PROJECT NO.DESIGNED: DATE:REVISIONNO. DATEBY DATEBYREVISIONNO.

J:
\5

63
8\

dw
g\

Sh
ee

ts
\P

ha
se

 1
\P

riv
at

e 
Si

te
\5

63
8 

- C
.3

01
-3

02
 (G

ra
di

ng
 P

la
n)

.d
wg

 - 
C.

30
0 

-  
01

-2
3-

19
 - 

3:
52

pm
 - 

BM
C3

45

CGA GREENHILL VILLAGE TOWNHOMES II
C.301

5638

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA GRADING PLAN
LAW

BMC

ACD

---- ----

11-21-2018

11-21-2018

11-21-2018 374

ITEM  39.



T

M

M

StS(C)

WV

TELE PED

San(C)
San(C)

San(C)
San(C)

San(C)
San(C)

San(C)
San(C)

San(C)
San(C)

San(C)
San(C)

San(C)
San(C)

San(C)
San(C)

San(C)

W(D) W(D) W(D)

W
(D

)
W

(D
)

W
(D

)
W

(D
)

W
(D

)

W
(D)

W
(D)

W
(D)

W
(D)

W
(D)

W
(D)

W
(D)

W
(D)

W
(D)

W
(D)

W
(D)

W(D)W(D)W(D)

W
(D)

W(D) W(D) W(D) W(D)

76
.9

9'
S

0°
09

'2
3"

W

351.07'
N89°55'11"W

FND REBAR

FND REBAR

FND 1/2" REBAR

C
1

12
"

TV

TV

TV

TV
TV

TV
TV

TV
TV

TV
TV

TV
TV

TV
TV

TV
TV

E(D)
E(D)

E(D)
E(D)

E(D)
E(D)

E(D)
E(D)

E(D)
E(D)

E(D)
E(D)

E(D)
E(D)

E(D)
E(D)

E(D)
E(D)

94
9.5

0
94

9.6
0

94
9.5

0
94

9.6
0

94
9.5

0
94

9.6
0

94
9.5

0
94

9.6
0

94
9.5

0

94
9.6

0

94
9.5

0

94
9.6

0

94
9.5

0

94
9.6

0

94
9.5

0

94
9.6

0

94
9.5

0 94
9.6

0

25.1%

25
.0

%
25

.0
%

25.0%

0.9%0.9%

12.2%

15.7%

13.2%

94
594

6

94
7

94
8

94
9

95
0

95
195

295
3954

95
0

950

951
952

953
954

950

949

948

947

946

945

94
4

944

950

951

952

953

954

955
956

957
958

949

948

947

946

945

944

943

94
4 94

5

94
6

94
7

94
8

94
9 94

9 94
8 94
7 94
6

94
6

947

948

949

94
3

943

StS

StS

StS

StS

SCOUR PROTECTION, TRM OR EROSION STONE/RIP-RAP.

PROPOSED
STORM SEWER

PROPOSED
STORM SEWER

PROPOSED
STORM SEWER MH

N

0

GRAPHIC SCALE

20'10' 30'

Clapsaddle-Garber Associates, Inc
1523 S. Bell Ave. Suite 101

Ames, Iowa 50010

Ph 515-232-1784
www.cgaconsultants.com

SHEET NO.

DRAWN:
CHECKED:

DATE:
DATE:

APPROVED: DATE:

PROJECT NO.DESIGNED: DATE:REVISIONNO. DATEBY DATEBYREVISIONNO.

J:
\5

63
8\

dw
g\

Sh
ee

ts
\P

ha
se

 1
\P

riv
at

e 
Si

te
\5

63
8 

- C
.3

01
-3

02
 (G

ra
di

ng
 P

la
n)

.d
wg

 - 
C.

30
1 

-  
01

-2
3-

19
 - 

3:
52

pm
 - 

BM
C3

45

CGA GREENHILL VILLAGE TOWNHOMES II
C.302

5638

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA GRADING PLAN
LAW

BMC

ACD

---- ----

11-21-2018

11-21-2018

11-21-2018 375

ITEM  39.



T T

T

FO
FO

M

M

M
M

M

M

M

X

XXXXXX

X
X

X

WV

WV

FHYD
BENCHMARK 1

BURY BOLT
ELEV= 945.85

WV

TELE PED
TELE
PED

TELE PED

SAN MH
RIM = 942.22
F/L = 931.11 (8" PVC) W
F/L = 931.07 (8" PVC) S

SAN MAN
RIM = 954.49
F/L = 941.65 (8" PVC) E
F/L = 941.69 (8" PVC) S

FENCE POST

San(C) San(C) San(C) San(C) San(C) San(C) San(C) San(C) San(C) San(C) San(C) San(C) San(C) San(C) San(C) San(C)

San(C)
San(C)

San(C)
San(C)

San(C)
San(C)

San(C)

INTAKE
RIM = 954.37

F/L = 949.86 ( 15" RCP) N

INTAKE
RIM = 954.33
F/L = 949.36 (15" RCP) S
F/L = 949.24 (15" RCP) W

ELEC BOX

PP

FENCE

FENCE

FENCE

W
(D

)
W

(D
)

W(D) W(D) W(D) W(D) W(D) W(D) W(D) W(D)

W(D)

W
(D

)

W
(D)

W
(D)

W
(D)

W
(D)

W
(D)

W
(D)

W
(D)

W
(D)

W(D)

W
(D)

W
(D)

W(D)W(D)W(D)W(D)W(D)W(D)W(D) W(D) W(D) W(D) W(D)

688.47'
S89°35'24"E

76
.9

9'
S

0°
09

'2
3"

W

351.07'
N89°55'11"W

50
4.

72
'

N
0°

00
'1

6"
W

135.97'
S89°37'56"E

18
0.

13
'

S
0°

08
'0

1"
W

FND REBAR

FND 1/2" REBAR
w/ YPC #10040

FND 1/2" REBAR

FND 1/2" REBAR
w/ YPC #10040

FND REBAR

FND REBAR

FND 1/2" REBAR

FND REBAR

C
1

12
"

12"12"

8"
8"

8"

15
"

15"

15
"

TV TV

TV

TV TV TV TV TV TV

TV

TV
TV

TV
TV

TV
TV

TV

E(D)

E(D) E(D) E(D) E(D) E(D) E(D) E(D) E(D)

E(D)
E(D)

E(D)
E(D)

E(D)
E(D)

E(D)
E(D)

E(D)

E(D)

E(D)

E(D) E(D) E(D) E(D) E(D) E(D) E(D) E(D) E(D)

G(D) G(D)

G(D)
G(D)

G(D)

G(D)

G(D)

G(D) G(D)G(D)G(D)G(D)G(D)G(D)G(D)G(D)G(D)G(D)G(D)

G(D)
G(D)

G(D)
G(D)

G(D)
G(D)

G(D)
G(D)

G(D)
G(D)

G(D)
G(D)

G(D)
G(D)

G(D)
G(D)

G(D)
G(D)

958
957 956

955 954

953 952

951 950
949948
947946
945 944 943

945 946947
948949

950951952953954955956

94
5 94

6
94

7 94
8

94
9 94

9
94

8
94

7
94

6

954955956957958

957958959960

95
0

95
1952

953

954

959

96
1

96
0 95

9
95

8
95

7
95

6

961 960
959
958
957

956

955

955
956

95
9

95
8

957 955

95
5

95
5

95
6

95
7

95
8

95
9

96
0

N

0

GRAPHIC SCALE

80'40' 120'

Clapsaddle-Garber Associates, Inc
16 East Main Street

Marshalltown, Iowa 50158

Ph 641-752-6701
www.cgaconsultants.com

A

B

LEGEND

INSTALL SILT FENCE OR COMPOST FILLED FILLED SOCK - TO BE REMOVED AT THE END
OF THE PROJECT.

INSTALL INLET PROTECTION - TO BE REMOVED AT THE END OF THE PROJECT.

INSTALL CONCRETE WASH OUT AREA - TO BE REMOVED & RESTORED AT THE END OF
THE PROJECT.

INSTALL EXCELSIOR MAT

INSTALL STABILIZED CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE.

INSTALL FILTER SOCKS/DITCH CHECKS

SHEET NO.

DRAWN:
CHECKED:

DATE:
DATE:

APPROVED: DATE:

PROJECT NO.DESIGNED: DATE:REVISIONNO. DATEBY DATEBYREVISIONNO.

J:
\5

63
8\

dw
g\

Sh
ee

ts
\P

ha
se

 1
\P

riv
at

e 
Si

te
\5

63
8 

- C
.3

03
 (S

W
PP

P)
.d

wg
 - 

C.
30

2 
-  

01
-2

3-
19

 - 
3:

52
pm

 - 
BM

C3
45

CGA GREENHILL VILLAGE TOWNHOMES II
C.303

5638

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
STORM WATER POLLUTION

PREVENTION PLAN
LAW

BMC

ACD

---- ----

11-21-2018

11-21-2018

11-21-2018

C

D

E

POLLUTION PREVENTION PLAN NOTES

1. ALL CONTRACTORS SHALL BE SUPPLIED A COPY OF THE SWPPP DOCUMENT AT
THE BEGINNING OF CONSTRUCTION.  A COPY OF THE SWPPP DOCUMENTS SHALL
BE LOCATED WITH THE SWPPP MANAGER AT ALL TIME.  COPIES CAN ALSO BE
FOUND AT THE OFFICES OF 16 E MAIN STREET, MARSHALLTOWN, IA 50158.   ALL
CONTRACTORS/SUBCONTRACTORS SHALL CONDUCT THEIR OPERATIONS IN A
MANNER THAT MINIMIZES EROSION AND PREVENTS SEDIMENTS AND NON EARTH
DISTURBING POLLUTANTS FROM LEAVING THE SITE AS DESCRIBED IN THE SWPPP.
THE PRIME CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR COMPLIANCE AND
IMPLEMENTATION OF  THE SWPPP FOR THEIR ENTIRE CONTRACT.  THIS
RESPONSIBILITY SHALL BE FURTHER SHARED WITH SUBCONTRACTORS WHOSE
WORK IS A SOURCE OF POTENTIAL POLLUTION AS DEFINED IN THE SWPPP.

2. THIS SHEET IS NOT THE COMPLETE STORM WATER PREVENTION PLAN (SWPPP),
BUT RATHER A PART OF THE SWPPP THAT IS TO BE UPDATED REGULARLY BY THE
CONTRACTOR. IT IS THE PRIME CONTRACTORS RESPONSIBILITY TO UPDATE THE
SWPPP PLAN AS NEEDED AS WELL AS CONDUCT ANY NECESSARY INSPECTIONS IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA DNR AND EPA GUIDELINES.
THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR IDENTIFYING ANY DEFICIENCIES,
CORRECTING THOSE DEFICIENCIES IMMEDIATELY AND DOCUMENTING SUCH WITH
THE SWPPP. ALL EROSION CONTROL ITEMS SHALL BE REMOVED AT THE END OF
THE PROJECT.  THE SWPPP MANAGER SHALL UPDATE SITE PLAN WITH THE
LOCATION OF THE "POLLUTION PREVENTION PLAN LEGEND" ITEMS ONCE THE
LOCATION OF THOSE CONTROLS IS ESTABLISHED.  ANY ADDITIONAL CONTROLS
THAT ARE USED BUT ARE NOT LISTED IN THE LEGEND SHALL BE CLEARLY
IDENTIFIED ON THE PLANS. POST CONSTRUCTION STORM WATER CONTROL
(DETENTION) IS LOCATED OFFSITE.

A

A

A

A

A
A

A

A

A

A
B

C

E

D D D

F

F F F

F

376

ITEM  39.



Clapsaddle-Garber Associates, Inc
16 East Main Street

Marshalltown, Iowa 50158

Ph 641-752-6701
www.cgaconsultants.com

SHEET NO.

DRAWN:
CHECKED:

DATE:
DATE:

APPROVED: DATE:

PROJECT NO.DESIGNED: DATE:REVISIONNO. DATEBY DATEBYREVISIONNO.

J:
\5

63
8\

dw
g\

Sh
ee

ts
\P

ha
se

 1
\P

riv
at

e 
Si

te
\5

63
8 

- C
.5

00
 (D

et
ai

ls
).d

wg
 - 

C.
50

0 
-  

01
-2

3-
19

 - 
3:

53
pm

 - 
BM

C3
45

CGA GREENHILL VILLAGE TOWNHOMES II
C.500

5638

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA DETAILS
LAW

BMC

ACD

---- 06-29-2017

06-29-2017

06-29-2017

06-29-2017

PCC PAVEMENT SECTION

SLOPE AS
PER PLANS

6" PCC
PAVEMENT

6" GRANULAR
SUBBASE
(MINIMUM)

TOP 12" OF SUBGRADE
SHALL BE COMPACTED TO
95% STANDARD PROCTOR

DENSITY (SPD) 2.0' BEYOND
EDGE OF PAVEMENT

PCC SIDEWALK PAVEMENT SECTION

4" PCC
PAVEMENT

4" GRANULAR
SUBBASE
(MINIMUM)

SLOPE AS
PER PLANS

FORM

GRADE

ELEV.

SLOPE AS
PER PLANS

71
2''

41
2''

6"

6" STANDARD INTEGRAL

PCC CURB & GUTTER

R 3"

R3"

ADJACENT PAVEMENT

2.0% MAX.

12"18"

SIDEWALK4" MIN.
6"

SEALED 'E' JOINT

1" RADIUS

STRAIGHT FACED

CLASS A SIDEWALK

   6"
CURB

NO CURB

2'-0" TRANSITION

CURB RUNOUT FOR

ALL CURB CUTS

Back of curb

Curb opening

Drive
way width

6

7Sidewalk

2

12"18"

Curb

Driveway

TYPICAL SECTION

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

3

Driveway radius (R).
Residential: 10 foot minimum, 15 foot maximum.
Commercial and industrial: As specified in the
contract documents.

Cut existing curb using saw-cut method. Do not cut deeper
than roadway surface. Grind curb if necessary to provide
smooth transition into driveway.

Pavement thickness.
Residential: 6 inches minimum.
Commercial and industrial: 7 inches minimum.

Sidewalk thickness through driveway to match thickness
of driveway.

Center reinforcing bar vertically in the pavement.

Match thickness of adjacent roadway, 8 inches minimum.

Provide 'E' joint at back of curb unless 'B' joint is specified.

For alleys, invert the pavement crown 2% toward
center of alley. 'E' joint

C joint

'B' joint
'C' or 'E'

joint

Property line

1'-0" m
in.

Refer to
Detail B

Drop curb
height: 0" to 2"

DETAIL B

Back of curb

1'-0"

1'-0"

#5 x 36"
reinforcing
bar

as specified

CONCRETE DRIVEWAY, TYPE B

2

4
C.501

KEY

TURNING SPACE

3 1

2PARALLEL CURB RAMP
(FOR CLASS A SIDEWALK)

PARALLEL CURB RAMP FOR CLASS A SIDEWALK

CURB RAMP

PARALLEL CURB RAMP: TARGET CROSS
SLOPE OF 1.5% WITH A MAXIMUM CROSS
SLOPE OF 2.0%.  THE LENGTH OF THE
PARALLEL RAMP
IS NOT REQUIRED TO EXCEED 15 FEET,
REGARDLESS OF RESULTING SLOPE.  DO
NOT EXCEED 8.3% SLOPE FOR PARALLEL
RAMPS SHORTER THAN 15 FEET.

TURNING SPACE: TARGET SLOPE OF 1.5%,
WITH A MAXIMUM SLOPE PERPENDICULAR
TO THE TRAVEL DIRECTIONS OF 2.0%. AT
MID-BLOCK CROSSINGS, CROSS SLOPE OF
LANDING MAY EXCEED 2.0% TO MATCH
ROADWAY GRADE.  MINIMUM 4 FEET BY 4
FEET.

W

4.0' M
IN.

1

1

1 2

5

3 4

8

7

VARIES

71
2''

FORM

GRADE

ELEV.

1 12'' TO 3''

(AS SPECIFIED)

DROP CURB6

377

ITEM  39.



Clapsaddle-Garber Associates, Inc
16 East Main Street

Marshalltown, Iowa 50158

Ph 641-752-6701
www.cgaconsultants.com

SHEET NO.

DRAWN:
CHECKED:

DATE:
DATE:

APPROVED: DATE:

PROJECT NO.DESIGNED: DATE:REVISIONNO. DATEBY DATEBYREVISIONNO.

J:
\5

63
8\

dw
g\

Sh
ee

ts
\P

ha
se

 1
\P

riv
at

e 
Si

te
\5

63
8 

- C
.5

00
 (D

et
ai

ls
).d

wg
 - 

C.
50

1 
-  

01
-2

3-
19

 - 
3:

53
pm

 - 
BM

C3
45

CGA GREENHILL VILLAGE TOWNHOMES II
C.501

5638

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA DETAILS
LAW

BMC

ACD

---- 06-29-2017

06-29-2017

06-29-2017

06-29-2017

T/3 ± 14''

1
8" ± 1

16"' SAW CUT

SEE DETAIL C

T

T

< 8'' 24'' LONG AT 30'' CENTERS

JOINT BARS

'BT-5' #4

#5
'BT-3' 24'' LONG AT 30'' CENTERS

BAR LENGTH AND SPACING

'BT-4' 24'' LONG AT 15'' CENTERS
≥ 8''

11

12

T

T

< 8'' 36'' LONG AT 30'' CENTERS

JOINT BARS

'BT-1' #4
#5'BT-2' 36'' LONG AT 30'' CENTERS

BAR LENGTH AND SPACING

≥ 8''

10 12

T

< 8'' 30'' LONG AT 30'' CENTERS

JOINT BARS
'KT-1' #4

#5
'KT-2' 30'' LONG AT 30'' CENTERS

BAR LENGTH AND SPACING

'KT-3' 30'' LONG AT 15'' CENTERS
≥ 8''

SEE DETAIL E

T

T

T

SEE DETAIL D

T

< 8'' 36'' LONG AT 30'' CENTERS

JOINT BARS

'L-1' #4

#5
'L-2' 36'' LONG AT 30'' CENTERS

BAR LENGTH AND SPACING

'L-3' 36'' LONG AT 15'' CENTERS
≥ 8''

12

9'' MIN. 15'' MIN.

11

T/2

A

2''1''

KEYWAY DIMENSIONS

B

STANDARD

LESS THAN 8''

8'' OR GREATER

NARROW

13
4'' 23

4''

PAVEMENT THICKNESSTKEYWAY TYPE

1'' + 14'' OR - 18''

A B

DETAIL E

11

3
4'' DIA. HOLE FOR BT-3
AND BT-4 JOINT
5
8'' DIA. HOLE FOR BT-5
JOINT

'B'

PLAIN JOINT

(ABUTTING DISSIMILAR PAVEMENT SLABS)

'BT'

ABUTTING PAVEMENT JOINT - RIGID TIE

'KT'

ABUTTING PAVEMENT JOINT - KEYWAY TIE

'BT'

ABUTTING PAVEMENT JOINT - RIGID TIE (DRILLED)

LONGITUDINAL CONTRACTION JOINTS

'L'

CONTRACTION JOINT

SEE DETAIL E
SEE DETAIL D-1 OR D-2

T

T

#5 BARS,
30" LONG AT
12" CENTERS

SEE DETAIL E
11

21
2''

#5 BARS AT
12'' CENTERS

11
#5 BARS 30" LONG AT 12" CENTERS

#6 BARS AT 12'' CENTERS
#5 BARS AT 12'' CENTERSSEE DETAIL E

21
2''

21
2''

#5 BARS AT
12'' CENTERS

'KS-2'

[DOUBLE REINFORCED PAVEMENT

(BRIDGE APPROACH)]

'K'

KEYED JOINT FOR ADJACENT SLABS

(WHERE T IS 8'' OR MORE)

'KS-1'

[SINGLE REINFORCED PAVEMENT (BRIDGE APPROACH)]

#8 BARS AT
12'' CENTERS

T/3 ± 14''

JOINT SEALANT MATERIAL
1
4'' ± 1

16'' SAW CUT

DETAIL D-1

(REQUIRED WHEN THE DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

IS THE CONTRACTING AUTHORITY, OR WHEN SPECIFIED IN

THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS.)

DETAIL D-2

(REQUIRED WHEN THE DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

IS THE CONTRACTING AUTHORITY, OR WHEN SPECIFIED IN

THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS.)

CRACK OR
JOINT LINE

CRACK OR
JOINT LINE

9

L

T
T/2

L/2

SEE DETAIL C

5

T

T

T

6

SEE DETAIL A OR B

SEE DETAIL A OR B

AT 12'' CENTERS
18'' LONG DOWEL

641

2

T

30'' LONG TIE BAR
AT 12'' CENTERS

743

2

BAR SIZE TABLE

T

< 8'' #6

#10

3
4''

≥ 8''

TIE BAR
SIZE

DOWEL
DIAMETER

1 14''

TOP OF CURB

SAW CUT

1 12''JOINT
SEALANT
MATERIAL

8
1
2" TO 34''

TOP OF PAVEMENT
SEALANT

1
4'' ± 1

16'' SAW CUT

1
4'' ± 18''

SAW CUT
8

A

A

CRACK OR
JOINT LINE

DETAIL C

1
8'' TO 5

16'' SAW CUT

1
4'' ± 18''

1 14'' ± 14''

1
4'' ± 1

16'' SAW CUT

1 14'' ± 14'' SAW CUT

1
4'' ± 18''

CRACK OR
JOINT LINE

A

A

A

A

'B'

PLAIN JOINT

(ABUTTING DISSIMILAR PAVEMENT SLABS)

'C'

CONTRACTION JOINT

'CD'

DOWELED CONTRACTION JOINT

'DW'

DAY'S WORK JOINT(NON-WORKING)

BAR PLACEMENT

(APPLIES TO ALL JOINTS UNLESS

OTHERWISE DETAILED.)

DETAIL B

(SAW CUT FORMED BY APPROVED EARLY

CONCRETE SAWING EQUIPMENT.)

SECTION A-A

(DETAIL AT EDGE OF PAVEMENT)

DETAIL A

(SAW CUT FORMED BY CONVENTIONAL

CONCRETE SAWING EQUIPMENT.)

TRANSVERSE CONTRACTION JOINTS

'C' JOINT IN CURB

(MATCH 'CT', 'CD', OR 'C' JOINT IN PAVEMENT.)

ASPHALT

30'' LONG TIE BAR
AT 12'' CENTERS

2

4

PAVEMENT EDGE

HOLE DIAMETER  18''
LARGER THAN DOWEL

T

AT 12'' CENTERS.
24'' LONG TIE BAR

4

2

PAVEMENT EDGE SEE DETAIL C 

T

HOLE DIAMETER 18''
LARGER THAN DOWEL

4 5

18'' LONG DOWEL
AT 12'' CENTERS

2

4 5

PAVEMENT EDGE
24'' MIN.

HEADER BOARD

T

PLASTIC OR TARPAPER WRAPPED

HEADER BLOCK
2

T/3

30'' LONG TIE BAR
AT 12'' CENTERS

'HT'

HEADER JOINT

(END RIGID PAVEMENT)

'RD'

ABUTTING PAVEMENT JOINT

'RT'

ABUTTING PAVEMENT JOINT

RIGID TIE

'CT'

TIED CONTRACTION JOINT

SEE DETAIL A OR B

9''
MIN.

15''
MIN.

9''
MIN.

9''
MIN.

JOINT SEALANT
MATERIAL SHALL
MATCH COLOR
OF PAVEMENT

JOINT SEALANT
MATERIAL SHALL
MATCH COLOR
OF PAVEMENT

CRACK OR
JOINT LINE

JOINT SEALANT
MATERIAL
SHALL MATCH
COLOR OF
PAVEMENT

BOTTOM OF
SAW CUT

TOP OF
SLAB

378

ITEM  39.



Clapsaddle-Garber Associates, Inc
16 East Main Street

Marshalltown, Iowa 50158

Ph 641-752-6701
www.cgaconsultants.com

SHEET NO.

DRAWN:
CHECKED:

DATE:
DATE:

APPROVED: DATE:

PROJECT NO.DESIGNED: DATE:REVISIONNO. DATEBY DATEBYREVISIONNO.

J:
\5

63
8\

dw
g\

Sh
ee

ts
\P

ha
se

 1
\P

riv
at

e 
Si

te
\5

63
8 

- C
.5

00
 (D

et
ai

ls
).d

wg
 - 

C.
50

2 
-  

01
-2

3-
19

 - 
3:

53
pm

 - 
BM

C3
45

CGA GREENHILL VILLAGE TOWNHOMES II
C.502

5638

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA DETAILS
LAW

BMC

ACD

---- 06-29-2017

06-29-2017

06-29-2017

06-29-2017

L

T
T/2

L/2

Resilient
Joint Filler

See Detail F

1'' Nominal

18'' Long Dowel
at 12'' Centers

16

15

Width
(See Doweled Expansion Joints Table)

T

Detail F
(See Doweled Expansion
Joints Table)

Top of Curb

Resilient
Joint Filler

1'' Nominal

Top
of Slab

2'' Thru Curb
B

B

Top of Curb

Top of Slab
1'' Thru Curb

Curb

Resilient
Joint Filler

Slab

Match 'E' Joint
in Pavement

B

B

(See Detail F)
Joint Sealant

SECTION B-B

Joint Filler

T

BAR SIZE TABLE

DOWELED EXPANSION JOINTS

EF

16

EE

FILLER MATERIALWIDTHTYPE

ED 1''

2''

3
4'' 11

4'' 11
2''

31
2''

< 8''
Dowel

Diameter

≥ 10''

DETAIL F

5
8''

 Joint
 Filler

1
2'' Joint Sealant Material

14

2
≥ 8'' but

< 10''

Resilient (Detail F)

Flexible Foam (Detail F)

Flexible Foam (Detail G)

DOWEL PLACEMENT

(Applies to all joints unless otherwise detailed.)

'E'

JOINT IN CURB

(View at Back of Curb)

'E'

1'' EXPANSION JOINT

'ES'

JOINT IN CURB

(View at Back of Curb)

'ED', 'EE', 'EF'

 DOWELED EXPANSION JOINT

Joint Filler Material
(See Doweled Expansion
Joints Table)

EXPANSION JOINTS

See Detail H

'CF' JOINT

TYPE WIDTH

CF-1 2"

2

1

2

''

3''

3

1

2

''

CF-2

CF-3

CF-4

Top

of Slab

Top of Curb

16

Flexible Foam
Joint Filler

2'' Nominal

B

B

1
2'' Joint Sealant Material

1''

17

Tire Buffings

14

 31
2''

1
2'' Joint Sealant Material

3
4''

Flexible Foam
Joint Filler 16

DETAIL H

DETAIL G

14

1
4" plywood or
pressed wood
spacer required
for 'EF' joint.

'EE'

JOINT IN CURB

(View at Back of Curb)

Width (See

table below)

Type Method of Load Transfer Thermal movement

Comments
Joint Transverse Longitudinal Expansion Aggregate

Interlock
Key Tie

Bar
Dowel

Bar

Doweled to
allow

movement

Tied to
prevent

movement

Expansion
joint allows
movement

Lack of
reinforcing

allows
movement

B X X X Used between dissimilar materials or when other joints are not suitable.

C X X X Transverse joint used when T < 8 in. May also be used on non-primary routes if AADIT < 200 vpd.

CD X X X X Transverse joint used when T ≥ 8 in. Use C joint when joint length is 2 ft.

CT X X X X Speciality tied contraction joint.

DW X X X Used by contractor as a stopping point.

HT X X X Used at the end of rigid pavement prior to placement of second slab.

RD X X X Joint between new and existing pavements, dowels are used.

RT X X X Joint between new and existing pavements, tie bars are used.

BT-1 X X Longitudinal joint used when T < 8 in, interchangeable with L-1 depending on paving sequence.

BT-2 X X Used when L-2 and the KT-2 are not possible, T ≥ 8 in.

BT-3 X X Joint used between new and existing pavements. Tie bars are used when T ≥ 8 in.

BT-4 X X Joint used between new and existing pavements. Tie bars are used when T ≥ 8 in.

BT-5 X X Joint used between new and existing pavements. Tie bars are used when T < 8 in.

K X X X T > 8 in. minimal usage.

KS X X X Used in reinforced pavements.

KT-1 X X X Longitudinal joint used when T < 8 in, interchangeable with L-1 depending on paving sequence.

KT-2 X X X Longitudinal joint used when T < 8 in, interchangeable with L-2 depending on paving sequence.

KT-3 X X X Longitudinal joint used when T < 8 in, interchangeable with L-3 depending on paving sequence.

L-1 X X X Longitudinal Joint used when T < 8 in, interchangeable with BT-1.

L-2 X X X Longitudinal joint used when T ≥ 8 in, interchangeable with KT-2 depending on paving sequence.

L-3
X X X Longitudinal joint used with pavement of large width, interchangeable with KT-3 depending on paving

sequence.

CF X X X 4 in expansion joint.

E X X X X 1 in expansion joint.

E X X X X X 1 in doweled expansion joint.

EE X X X X X 2 in doweled expansion joint.

EF X X X X X 4 in doweled expansion joint

ES X X Used in curb to match expansion joint in pavement.

2

3

4

6

5

7

8

9

11

12

10

13

14

15

16

17

EDGE WITH 1/4 INCH TOOL FOR LENGTH OF JOINT INDICATED
IF FORMED; EDGING NOT REQUIRED WHEN CUT WITH
DIAMOND BLADE SAW.

SEE DOWEL ASSEMBLIES FOR FABRICATION DETAILS AND
PLACEMENT LIMITS. COAT THE FREE END OF DOWEL BAR TO
PREVENT BOND WITH PAVEMENT. AT INTAKE LOCATIONS,
DOWEL BARS MAY BE CAST-IN-PLACE.

PREDRILL OR PREFORM HOLES IN JOINT MATERIAL FOR
APPROPRIATE DOWEL SIZE.

COMPACT TIRE BUFFINGS BY SPADING WITH A SQUARE-NOSE
SHOVEL.

SEE DOWEL ASSEMBLIES FOR FABRICATION DETAILS.

SEE BAR SIZE TABLE.

LOCATE 'DW' JOINT AT A MID-PANEL LOCATION BETWEEN
FUTURE 'C' OR 'CD' JOINTS. PLACE NO CLOSER THAN 5 FEET
TO A 'C' OR 'CD' JOINT.

PLACE BARS WITHIN THE LIMITS SHOWN UNDER DOWEL
ASSEMBLIES.

EDGE WITH 1/4 INCH TOOL FOR LENGTH OF JOINT INDICATED
IF FORMED; EDGING NOT REQUIRED WHEN CUT WITH
DIAMOND BLADE SAW. REMOVE HEADER BLOCK AND BOARD
WHEN SECOND SLAB IS PLACED.

UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED, USE 'CD' TRANSVERSE
CONTRACTION JOINTS IN MAINLINE PAVEMENT WHEN  T  IS
GREATER OR EQUAL TO 8 INCHES. USE 'C' JOINTS WHEN  T  IS
LESS THAN 8 INCHES.

'RT' JOINT MAY BE USED IN LIEU OF 'DW' JOINT AT THE END OF
THE DAYS WORK. REMOVE ANY PAVEMENT DAMAGED DUE TO
THE DRILLING AT NO ADDITIONAL COST TO THE
CONTRACTING AUTHORITY.

SAW 'CD' JOINT TO A DEPTH OF T/3 ± 1/4''; SAW 'C' JOINT TO A
DEPTH OF T/4 ± 1/4''.

WHEN TYING INTO OLD PAVEMENT,  T  REPRESENTS THE
DEPTH OF SOUND PCC.

BAR SUPPORTS MAY BE NECESSARY FOR FIXED FORM PAVING
TO ENSURE THE BAR REMAINS IN A HORIZONTAL POSITION IN
THE PLASTIC CONCRETE.

SAWING OR SEALING OF JOINT NOT REQUIRED.

THE FOLLOWING JOINTS ARE INTERCHANGEABLE, SUBJECT TO
THE POURING SEQUENCE:
     'BT-1', 'L-1', AND 'KT-1'
     'KT-2' AND 'L-2'
     'KT-3' AND 'L-3'

SEALANT OR CLEANING NOT REQUIRED.

1. PAVEMENT JOINT TYPES ARE DEPENDENT UPON POUR
SEQUENCE.

2. JOINTS SHALL BE A MINIMUM OF 2' IN LENGTH AND HAVE AN
ANGLE OF 70° OR MORE.

3. MAXIMUM JOINT SPACING IS AS FOLLOWS:
TRANSVERSE = 15'
LONGITUDINAL = 12.5'

NOTES:

1

379

ITEM  39.



Clapsaddle-Garber Associates, Inc
16 East Main Street

Marshalltown, Iowa 50158

Ph 641-752-6701
www.cgaconsultants.com

SHEET NO.

DRAWN:
CHECKED:

DATE:
DATE:

APPROVED: DATE:

PROJECT NO.DESIGNED: DATE:REVISIONNO. DATEBY DATEBYREVISIONNO.

J:
\5

63
8\

dw
g\

Sh
ee

ts
\P

ha
se

 1
\P

riv
at

e 
Si

te
\5

63
8 

- C
.5

00
 (D

et
ai

ls
).d

wg
 - 

C.
50

3 
-  

01
-2

3-
19

 - 
3:

53
pm

 - 
BM

C3
45

CGA GREENHILL VILLAGE TOWNHOMES II
C.503

5638

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA DETAILS
LAW

BMC

ACD

---- 06-29-2017

06-29-2017

06-29-2017

06-29-2017

SEE PLAN

Service Riser

Slope

Slop
e

Slope
Service Line

Service Line
Tee or Wye

22.5 to 45

Sanitary Sewer Main Trench Wall

Class 1  Bedding
Material

1

2

3

Sanitary
Sewer Main

Support Bench
18'' min.

Place bedding and backfill  material  as required for sewer
main.

Service Line Slope:
        4 inch:  2% to 5%
    6 inch and greater:  1% to 5%

If service riser slope is steeper than 1:1, construct riser of
entire service line with schedule 40 PVC (ASTM D 1785) or
ductile iron (AWWA C151, Class 52).  Use single length of
pipe for riser, if possible.1

2

2

3

SANITARY SEWER SERVICE STUB WITH RISER

SANITARY SEWER SERVICE STUB

STABILIZED CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE

1

Thickness as
specified (6" min.).

1

2

1

1

Entrance length:  50
foot minimum (30
foot for single family
residential), or as
specified in the
contract
documents.  Length
of entrance may be
increased if
sediment track-out
occurs.

Length

10' m
in.

20' m
in.

ROLLED EROSION CONTROL PRODUCT (RECP)

INSTALLATION IN CHANNEL

STAPLE CHECK

Flow

END LAP

Flow

ANCHOR SLOT

Flow

8"

(1'-0" max. anchor spacing)

EDGE LAP

LONGITUDINAL SLOT

(4'-0" max. anchor spacing)

4" min.

4
"
 
m

i
n

.

(3'-0" max. anchor spacing)

Install 2 rows of

anchors, 12" on-center.

Stagger rows 6".

Install 2 rows of

anchors, 12" on-center.

Stagger rows 6".

Compacted Soil

Backfill

Anchor Slot

Staple

Check

Longitudinal Slot

End Lap

Longitudinal Slot

Edge

Lap

1
2
"
 
m

i
n
.

6" min.

8" max.

8" max.

3" min.

380

ITEM  39.



Clapsaddle-Garber Associates, Inc
16 East Main Street

Marshalltown, Iowa 50158

Ph 641-752-6701
www.cgaconsultants.com

SHEET NO.

DRAWN:
CHECKED:

DATE:
DATE:

APPROVED: DATE:

PROJECT NO.DESIGNED: DATE:REVISIONNO. DATEBY DATEBYREVISIONNO.

J:
\5

63
8\

dw
g\

Sh
ee

ts
\P

ha
se

 1
\P

riv
at

e 
Si

te
\5

63
8 

- C
.5

00
 (D

et
ai

ls
).d

wg
 - 

C.
50

4 
-  

01
-2

3-
19

 - 
3:

53
pm

 - 
BM

C3
45

CGA GREENHILL VILLAGE TOWNHOMES II
C.504

5638

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA DETAILS
LAW

BMC

ACD

---- 06-29-2017

06-29-2017

06-29-2017

06-29-2017

TYPICAL SILT FENCE DITCH CHECK

ATTACHMENT TO POST

FABRIC

POST

WIRE OR
CABLE TIES

FORESLOPE

GENERAL NOTES:

INSTALL SILT FENCE ACCORDING TO THE
REQUIREMENTS OF SECTION 311000 AND AT
LOCATIONS SHOWN IN THE CONTRACT
DOCUMENTS OR AS DIRECTED BY THE
JURISDICTIONAL ENGINEER.

VARIABLE (20' FOR A NORMAL 10' WIDE DITCH.)

POST SPACING
(5'-0" MAX.)

POST SPACING
(5'-0" MAX.)

4

5

1

3

BACKSLOPE

5

1

2

3

4

5

INSERT 12 IN. OF FABRIC A MINIMUM OF 6 IN. DEEP
(FABRIC MAY BE FOLDED BELOW THE GROUND LINE)

COMPACT GROUND BY DRIVING ALONG EACH SIDE OF
THE SILT FENCE AS REQUIRED TO SUFFICIENTLY
SECURE THE FABRIC IN THE TRENCH TO PREVENT
PULLOUT AND FLOW UNDER THE FENCE.

IN DITCHES, EXTEND SILT FENCE UP SIDE SLOPE SO
THE BOTTOM ELEVATION AT THE END OF THE FENCE IS
A MINIMUM OF 2 IN. HIGHER THAN THE TOP OF THE
FENCE IN THE LOW POINT OF THE DITCH.

STEEL POSTS TO BE EMBEDDED 20 IN. UNLESS
OTHERWISE ALLOWED BY THE JURISDICTIONAL
ENGINEER.

SECURE TOP OF ENGINEERING FABRIC TO STEEL POSTS
USING WIRE OR PLASTIC TIES (50 LB. MIN.).  SEE
DETAILS OF "ATTACHMENT TO POSTS."

902

904

906

908

910

TYPICAL SILT FENCE INSTALLATION ON LONGITUDINAL SLOPES

DETAILS OF SILT FENCE ON LONGITUDINAL SLOPES

TYPICAL SILT FENCE INSTALLATION ON LONGITUDINAL SLOPES

GROUND LINE

FABRIC

FLOW

'T' STEEL
FENCE POST
4'-0" MINIMUM

(Profile View)

4

1

GROUND
LINE

FABRIC

1

INSTALL "J-HOOK" AT EACH END OF AN
INDIVIDUAL SECTION OF SILT FENCE

INSTALL PARALLEL TO
GROUND CONTOUR

(PLAN VIEW)

(600' IF SLOPE IS FLATTER THAN 5%)

1

5

4

2

REDUCE POST SPACING TO 5'-0" AT WATER
CONCENTRATION AREAS, OR AS REQUIRED TO
ADEQUATELY SUPPORT FENCE

200' MAX. LENGTH PER SECTION

SEE PLANS FOR SPACING

36"
24"

8'-0"SPACING

SILT FENCE

1
1

Dire
cti

on of fl
ow

Water flow

FILTER SOCK FILTER BERM

For sediment and slope control

12
"

24"

2'-0"

For perimeter control along street

Fill material

Water flow

Water flow

Disturbed area

10
' m

ax
.

10
' m

ax
.

Stakes (Typ.)

Area to
be protected

Place berm or sock
perpendicular to slope

Construct "J-hook" at each
end on an individual section
of sock or berm.

GENERAL NOTES:

Berm shown is typical for slopes flatter than
3:1.  For
steeper slopes, increase berm size as
directed by the
Jurisdictional Engineer.
Place berm in uncompacted windrow
perpendicular to the
slope at locations specified in the contract
documents.

Filter sock diameter as specified in the
contract
documents.

Place additional filter material or
soil to fill the seam between the
tube and the ground

Filter material

1"x2" wood stake
(or approved equal)

20
0' 

M
ax

. le
ng

th
 p

er
 se

cti
on

(6
00

' if
 sl

op
e 

is 
fla

tte
r t

ha
n 

5%
)

TYPICAL PLACEMENT OF FILTER BERM OR FILTER SOCK

381

ITEM  39.



382

ITEM  39.



GARAGE FLR
ELEV.: 00'-0"

LOWER LVL FLR
ELEV.: 00'-4"

MAIN LVL FLR
ELEV.: 10'-0"

UPPER LVL FLR
ELEV.: 20'-9 7/8"

TRUSS BRG
ELEV.: 28'-11 1/4"

STANDING SEAM 
METAL ROOF

PREFINISHED ALUM 
GUTTERS & 
DOWNSPOUTS

PREFINISHED METAL 
FASIA WRAP

PREFINISHED METAL 
SOFFIT
FIBER CEMENT TRIM 
BOARDS - 
HARDIETRIM 
SMOOTH OR EQUAL 
DUAL COLOR VINYL 
WINDOWS

CONCRETE FOUNDATION 
WITH BRICK LINER

FIBER CEMENT 
TRIM BOARDS - 
HARDIETRIM 
SMOOTH OR 
EQUAL 

FIBER CEMENT 
SIDING - HARDIE 
PANEL CEDARMILL 
WITH SMOOTH 
BATTENS @ 16" O.C. 
OR EQUAL 

DUAL COLOR VINYL 
WINDOWS

STANDING 
SEAM METAL 
ROOF
PREFINISHED 
ALUM 
GUTTERS & 
DOWNSPOUTS

PREFINISHED 
METAL FASIA 
WRAP

PREFINISHED 
METAL 
SOFFIT
FIBER 
CEMENT TRIM 
BOARDS - 
HARDIETRIM 
SMOOTH OR 
EQUAL 
DUAL COLOR 
VINYL 
WINDOWS

FIBER CEMENT SIDING - HARDIE PANEL CEDARMILL 
WITH SMOOTH BATTENS @ 16" O.C. OR EQUAL 

STANDING 
SEAM METAL 
ROOF
PREFINISHED 
METAL FASIA 
WRAP
PREFINISHED 
METAL 
SOFFIT
8" SQUARE 
FIBER CEMENT 
OR 
FIBERGLASS 
COLUMN 
WRAP WITH 
SQUARE BASE 
& CAPITAL

ALUMINUM 
GAURD RAIL - 
WESTBURY 
TUSCANY OR 
EQUAL
COMPOSITE 
DECKING & 
STAIR TREADS 
EQUAL TO 
TREXFIBER CEMENT SCEEN 

BOARDS - HARDIETRIM 
SMOOTH OR EQUAL 
FIBER CEMENT RISERS - 
HARDIETRIM SMOOTH OR 
EQUAL 

CONCRETE FOUNDATION 
WITH BRICK LINER

FIBER CEMENT TRIM 
BOARDS - HARDIETRIM 
SMOOTH OR EQUAL 

DUAL COLOR VINYL 
WINDOWS

FIBER 
CEMENT TRIM 
BOARDS - 
HARDIETRIM 
SMOOTH OR 
EQUAL OVER 
WOOD POST

TOP OF ROOF
ELEV.: 34"-11 1/4"

5 Unit Front Elevation
Scale: 1/4" = 1'-0" 

6
12

6
12

6
12

6
12

6
12

6
12

6
12

6
12

6
12

6
12

GARAGE FLR
ELEV.: 00'-0"

LOWER LVL FLR
ELEV.: 00'-4"

MAIN LVL FLR
ELEV.: 10'-0"

UPPER LVL FLR
ELEV.: 20'-9 7/8"

TRUSS BRG
ELEV.: 28'-11 1/4"

ALUMINUM DECK 
DESIGNED BY 
MANUFACTURER, EQUAL 
TO CLASSIC INDUSTRIES 
ALUMADECK

STANDING SEAM 
METAL ROOF

PREFINISHED ALUM 
GUTTERS & 
DOWNSPOUTS

PREFINISHED METAL 
FASIA WRAP
PREFINISHED METAL SOFFIT
FIBER CEMENT TRIM 
BOARDS - HARDIETRIM 
SMOOTH OR EQUAL 
FIBER CEMENT SIDING - 
HARDIE PANEL 
CEDARMILL WITH 
SMOOTH BATTENS @ 
16" O.C. OR EQUAL 

PREFINISHED METAL 
SOFFIT

FIBER CEMENT SIDING - 
HARDIE PANEL 
CEDARMILL WITH 
SMOOTH BATTENS @ 
16" O.C. OR EQUAL 

STEEL GARAGE DOOR - 
PAINT TO MATCH SIDING 
COLOR

STANDING 
SEAM METAL 
ROOF

PREFINISHED 
ALUM 
GUTTERS & 
DOWNSPOUTS

PREFINISHED 
METAL 
FASIA WRAP

PREFINISHED 
METAL 
SOFFIT

DUAL COLOR 
VINYL 
WINDOWS

CONCRETE 
FOUNDATION 
WITH BRICK 
LINER

FIBER 
CEMENT 
TRIM 
BOARDS - 
HARDIETRIM 
SMOOTH OR 
EQUAL 

STEEL 
GARAGE 
DOOR - 
PAINT TO 
MATCH 
SIDING 
COLOR

FIBER 
CEMENT 
SIDING - 
HARDIE 
PLANK 
CEDARMILL 5" 
EXPOSURE 
OR EQUAL 

ALUMINUM 
DECK 
DESIGNED 
BY 
MANUFACTU
RER, EQUAL 
TO CLASSIC 
INDUSTRIES 
ALUMADECK

TOP OF ROOF
ELEV.: 34"-11 1/4"

5 Unit Rear Elevation
Scale: 1/4" = 1'-0" 

6
12

6
12

6
12

6
12

6
12

6
12

6
12

6
12

6
12

6
12

383

ITEM  39.



W & D

Master Bed Room

Bath

Closet

Linen

Walk-In

Master Bath

Closet

Bed Room

Bed Room
9'-10" x 11'-1"

10'-6" x 9'-10"

11'-7" x 14'-10"

Do
wn

Upper Level
Scale: 1/4" = 1'-0" 

Proposed Condo Unit
0 2 3 4 5 FT

Ref

Micro
Oven

DW
Powder

Mech.

CoatsKitchen

Dining

Family

Do
wn

Entry

Up

Main Level
Scale: 1/4" = 1'-0" 

Low Wall

Up

Storage
Mud RoomOptional Den/ 

4th Bedroom

Garage

18' Door

Clo.

Lower Level
Scale: 1/4" = 1'-0" 

10
'-9

 7
/8

"

BEDROOM 1
CLOSET
MASTERSTAIRS

LIVING RM. ENTRY

GARAGE

4"

WINDOW AT END 
UNITS ONLY

WINDOW AT END 
UNITS ONLY

6
12

GARAGE FLOOR
ELEV.: 00'-0"

LOWER LEVEL FLOOR
ELEV.: 00'-4"

MAIN LEVEL FLOOR
ELEV.: 10'-0"

UPPER LEVEL FLOOR
ELEV.: 20'-9 7/8"

TRUSS BEARING
ELEV.: 28'-11 1/4"

TOP OF ROOF
ELEV.: 34'-11 1'4"

9'-
8"

8'-
1 

3/
8"

Building Section
Scale: 1/4" = 1'-0" 

GARAGE FLOOR
ELEV.: 00'-0"

LOWER LEVEL FLOOR
ELEV.: 00'-4"

MAIN LEVEL FLOOR
ELEV.: 10'-0"

UPPER LEVEL FLOOR
ELEV.: 20'-9 7/8"

TRUSS BEARING
ELEV.: 28'-11 1/4"

STANDING SEAM 
METAL ROOF
PREFINISHED ALUM 
GUTTERS & 
DOWNSPOUTS

PREFINISHED METAL 
FASIA WRAP

PREFINISHED METAL 
SOFFIT

FIBER CEMENT TRIM 
BOARDS - HARDIETRIM 
SMOOTH OR EQUAL 

FIBER CEMENT SIDING - 
HARDIE PLANK 
CEDARMILL 5" EXPOSURE 
OR EQUAL 

FIBER CEMENT TRIM 
BOARDS - HARDIETRIM 
SMOOTH OR EQUAL 

DUAL COLOR VINYL 
WINDOWS

FIBER CEMENT TRIM 
BOARDS - HARDIETRIM 
SMOOTH OR EQUAL 

ALUMINUM DECK DESIGNED 
BY MANUFACTURER, EQUAL 
TO CLASSIC INDUSTRIES 
ALUMADECK

STANDING SEAM 
METAL ROOF
PREFINISHED ALUM 
GUTTERS & 
DOWNSPOUTS

PREFINISHED METAL 
FASIA WRAP

PREFINISHED METAL 
SOFFIT

FIBER CEMENT TRIM 
BOARDS - HARDIETRIM 
SMOOTH OR EQUAL 

FIBER CEMENT SIDING - 
HARDIE PLANK CEDARMILL 
5" EXPOSURE OR EQUAL 

FIBER CEMENT TRIM 
BOARDS - HARDIETRIM 
SMOOTH OR EQUAL 

DUAL COLOR VINYL 
WINDOWS

6
12 STANDING SEAM METAL ROOF

8" SQUARE FIBER CEMENT OR 
FIBERGLASS COLUMN WRAP 
WITH SQUARE BASE & 
CAPITAL

ALUMINUM GAURD RAIL - 
WESTBURY TUSCANY OR 
EQUAL

CONCRETE FOUNDATION WITH 
BRICK LINER

FIBER CEMENT TRIM BOARDS - 
HARDIETRIM SMOOTH OR EQUAL 
OVER WOOD FRAMING

COMPOSITE DECKING & 
STAIR TREADS EQUAL 
TO TREX

3.63
12

TOP OF ROOF
ELEV.: 34"-11 1/4"

3.63
12

GARAGE FLOOR
ELEV.: 00'-0"

LOWER LEVEL FLOOR
ELEV.: 00'-4"

MAIN LEVEL FLOOR
ELEV.: 10'-0"

UPPER LEVEL FLOOR
ELEV.: 20'-9 7/8"

TRUSS BEARING
ELEV.: 28'-11 1/4"

STANDING SEAM 
METAL ROOF
PREFINISHED ALUM 
GUTTERS & 
DOWNSPOUTS

PREFINISHED METAL 
FASIA WRAP

PREFINISHED METAL 
SOFFIT

FIBER CEMENT TRIM 
BOARDS - HARDIETRIM 
SMOOTH OR EQUAL 

DUAL COLOR VINYL 
WINDOWS

FIBER CEMENT TRIM 
BOARDS - HARDIETRIM 
SMOOTH OR EQUAL 

FIBER CEMENT SIDING - 
HARDIE PANEL 
CEDARMILL WITH 
SMOOTH BATTENS @ 
16" O.C. OR EQUAL 

6
12

STANDING SEAM 
METAL ROOF
PREFINISHED ALUM 
GUTTERS & 
DOWNSPOUTS
PREFINISHED METAL 
FASIA WRAP

PREFINISHED METAL SOFFIT

FIBER CEMENT TRIM BOARDS - 
HARDIETRIM SMOOTH OR EQUAL 

FIBER CEMENT TRIM 
BOARDS - HARDIETRIM 
SMOOTH OR EQUAL 

DUAL COLOR VINYL WINDOWS

STANDING SEAM METAL ROOF

8" SQUARE FIBER CEMENT 
OR FIBERGLASS COLUMN 
WRAP WITH SQUARE BASE 
& CAPITAL

ALUMINUM GAURD RAIL - 
WESTBURY TUSCANY OR 
EQUAL

FIBER CEMENT SIDING - HARDIE 
PANEL CEDARMILL WITH 
SMOOTH BATTENS @ 16" O.C. 
OR EQUAL 

CONCRETE FOUNDATION WITH 
BRICK LINER

FIBER CEMENT TRIM BOARDS - HARDIETRIM 
SMOOTH OR EQUAL OVER WOOD FRAMING

COMPOSITE 
DECKING & STAIR 
TREADS EQUAL 
TO TREX

ALUMINUM DECK DESIGNED 
BY MANUFACTURER, EQUAL 
TO CLASSIC INDUSTRIES 
ALUMADECK

3.63
12

TOP OF ROOF
ELEV.: 34"-11 1/4"

3.63
12

Side Elevation
Scale: 1/4" = 1'-0" 

Side Elevation
Scale: 1/4" = 1'-0" 

384

ITEM  39.



GARAGE FLR
ELEV.: 00'-0"

LOWER LVL FLR
ELEV.: 00'-4"

MAIN LVL FLR
ELEV.: 10'-0"

UPPER LVL FLR
ELEV.: 20'-9 7/8"

TRUSS BRG
ELEV.: 28'-11 1/4"

STANDING SEAM 
METAL ROOF
PREFINISHED ALUM 
GUTTERS & 
DOWNSPOUTS

PREFINISHED METAL 
FASIA WRAP

PREFINISHED METAL 
SOFFIT

FIBER CEMENT TRIM 
BOARDS - HARDIETRIM 
SMOOTH OR EQUAL 

DUAL COLOR VINYL 
WINDOWS

CONCRETE FOUNDATION 
WITH BRICK LINER

FIBER CEMENT TRIM 
BOARDS - HARDIETRIM 
SMOOTH OR EQUAL 

6
12

6
12

6
12

6
12

6
12

6
12

6
12

6
12

STANDING SEAM 
METAL ROOF

PREFINISHED ALUM 
GUTTERS & 
DOWNSPOUTS

PREFINISHED METAL 
FASIA WRAP

PREFINISHED METAL 
SOFFIT

FIBER CEMENT TRIM 
BOARDS - HARDIETRIM 
SMOOTH OR EQUAL 
FIBER CEMENT SIDING - 
HARDIE PANEL 
CEDARMILL WITH 
SMOOTH BATTENS @ 
16" O.C. OR EQUAL 
STANDING SEAM 
METAL ROOF
PREFINISHED METAL 
FASIA WRAP

PREFINISHED METAL 
SOFFIT

8" SQUARE FIBER 
CEMENT OR 
FIBERGLASS 
COLUMN WRAP WITH 
SQUARE BASE & 
CAPITAL

ALUMINUM GAURD 
RAIL - WESTBURY 
TUSCANY OR EQUAL

COMPOSITE DECKING 
& STAIR TREADS 
EQUAL TO TREX

FIBER CEMENT SCEEN 
BOARDS - HARDIETRIM 
SMOOTH OR EQUAL 
FIBER CEMENT RISERS - 
HARDIETRIM SMOOTH OR 
EQUAL 

CONCRETE FOUNDATION 
WITH BRICK LINER

FIBER CEMENT TRIM 
BOARDS - HARDIETRIM 
SMOOTH OR EQUAL 

DUAL COLOR VINYL 
WINDOWS

FIBER CEMENT TRIM 
BOARDS - HARDIETRIM 
SMOOTH OR EQUAL 
OVER WOOD POST

TOP OF ROOF
ELEV.: 34"-11 1/4"

4 Unit Front Elevation
Scale: 1/4" = 1'-0" 

GARAGE FLR
ELEV.: 00'-0"

LOWER LVL FLR
ELEV.: ELEV.: 00'-4"

MAIN LVL FLR
ELEV.: 10'-0"

UPPER LVL FLR
ELEV.: 20'-9 7/8"

TRUSS BRG
ELEV.: 28'-11 1/4"

ALUMINUM DECK DESIGNED 
BY MANUFACTURER, EQUAL 
TO CLASSIC INDUSTRIES 
ALUMADECK

STANDING SEAM 
METAL ROOF

PREFINISHED ALUM 
GUTTERS & 
DOWNSPOUTS

PREFINISHED METAL 
FASIA WRAP
PREFINISHED METAL SOFFIT
FIBER CEMENT TRIM 
BOARDS - HARDIETRIM 
SMOOTH OR EQUAL 
FIBER CEMENT SIDING - 
HARDIE PANEL 
CEDARMILL WITH 
SMOOTH BATTENS @ 
16" O.C. OR EQUAL 

PREFINISHED METAL 
SOFFIT

FIBER CEMENT SIDING - 
HARDIE PANEL 
CEDARMILL WITH 
SMOOTH BATTENS @ 
16" O.C. OR EQUAL 

STEEL GARAGE DOOR - 
PAINT TO MATCH SIDING 
COLOR

STANDING SEAM 
METAL ROOF

PREFINISHED ALUM 
GUTTERS & 
DOWNSPOUTS

PREFINISHED METAL 
FASIA WRAP

PREFINISHED METAL 
SOFFIT

DUAL COLOR VINYL 
WINDOWS

CONCRETE FOUNDATION 
WITH BRICK LINER

FIBER CEMENT TRIM 
BOARDS - HARDIETRIM 
SMOOTH OR EQUAL 

STEEL GARAGE DOOR - 
PAINT TO MATCH SIDING 
COLOR

FIBER CEMENT SIDING - 
HARDIE PLANK 
CEDARMILL 5" EXPOSURE 
OR EQUAL 

6
12

6
12

6
12

6
12

6
12

6
12

6
12

6
12

ALUMINUM DECK DESIGNED 
BY MANUFACTURER, EQUAL 
TO CLASSIC INDUSTRIES 
ALUMADECK

TOP OF ROOF
ELEV.: 34"-11 1/4"

4 Unit Rear Elevation
Scale: 1/4" = 1'-0" 

385

ITEM  39.



386

ITEM  39.



387

ITEM  39.



388

ITEM  39.



389

ITEM  39.



390

ITEM  39.



C
oncept Plan

391

ITEM  39.



� � � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 
 � � � � � � �   � � � � � �� � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � �  � � � � � 	 � � � � � � � � � 	 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 � � � � � � � � � �  � ! " � � � � � � � 	 � � � � � � # � $ � � � � � � ! � � � � �� � � � � # � � � � � 	 � � � 	  � � � � � � � % � � � 	 � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � ! � � � � � � # � � � � � � � � ! � � � �  � � � � �� ! � � � � � $ � � 	 	 � �  � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � 	 & � � ! � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � ! � � � �  � � � � � �  � � �� � � � � � � � � � � ' 
 � � � � � � � & � � ! � � � ( ) � 	 � * � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � # ! � � � � � � � � � � �  � �� � � � � � � � � ! � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � 	 � ! � � � � � � � � # � � �  � � �  � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � + � � # � � � � � � $ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � ! � $ � �  � # � ! � �  � � � � � � � � � � 	 ! � � 	 � � 	 � � � ! � � � � � " � � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 � � � � � � � # � � � � 	 � ! � � � ! � � � �# � 	 � � � � � " � 	  � � � � �  � � �  � � , + � � � � � � � ! � � " ! � � � � � � � � � ! � � � � � $ � � # � � � ! � � � � � �� � � 	 � � � � �  � � � # � � � � � � � � " � � � � � � # � 	 � � � � � " � 	 � � � �  � � � - � � � � � � � �  � � � - � �  � � , � �� ! � # � � 	 � � � � � " � � � � 	 � � � � � � ! � � . � � � 	 � � * . � �  � 	 � 	 � � � � � � � . � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � # � � � � � 	 � � � � � � � 	 � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � " � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �" � � � � � � 	 � � � � � � 	 � � 	 � � � � � � � � � � � 	 � � 	 # � � � � � / � � � 	 � � �  � � � � � � � �  � � � � �  � � � � ! � � � � �  � � � 0 + �  � � � ! � � 1 � " � � �  � � � � 2 � � � 	 � � � � � ! � � � � � � � � � � � � 	  � � � � � � � � � " � � 3 � � � �� � � � �  � �  � � # � � ! � � � � � � ! � � � � � � # � � � � � 	 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � �  � � �� � � 	 � � � � � � � ( 4 0 � ' 
 2 � � � � $ � � � � � � � " � � " � � � � � � # � �  � � 	 � 	  � � � 	 � � � � � � � � � �  � 5� �  � � � � 	 � � � � � � � " � � � � 6 0 � � � � � � ! � � � � � � � � � ! � � � � 7 ( � � 8 � � 2  � � � � � " " � � � � 	 � � � �� � 9 ! � � � , + � � � �  � � � � � � �  � � � � � � 	 : � + � . ; + � � � � � ! � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � # � � � �� � � � � � � 	 , � # � � � � � � � � � � � � $ � � �  � � � ! � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 � � 	 � � � � � � ! � � � � ! � � � � � �  � � �� � " " � � � � � - . ; < - � � � � � # � � � � � 	 ,= � �  � � �  � � � � � �  � � ! � � � > 0 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � # � � � � 2� � 	 � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 � � � � � � � � � � � �  � �  � � � � � �  � �  � � � � � � � � �� # % � � � � � � � � � � 	 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � ? + � � � @ � # � � � ! � � � � ! � � � $ �  � � � ! � � � � � � � � � � �  �  � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � �  � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � " � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � �  � � � � � �: � � � $ � � � � � ! � � � � " � � 	 � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � ,� � � � � � ! � � 9 ! � � � � � � � � � � � ! � � �  � # � � � � � � � � � � � � � � # � � � � � � �  � � � � ! " " � � � 	 � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � # � � $ � � ) 1 � A 1 � 4 � � 	 * . + . * B � � � � � � � 	 � � � � � � � � � � , � � � � � � � � � � ! � � � $ � � � � � � �� � � �  � � � � � � � � � � % ! � � � � " " � � � � # � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � + � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � , : �� � � � � $ � � � � � � � � � � �  � � 	  � � �  � 	 � � � � � � � " � � " � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � �  � � � � �  � � � �  ! � � � 5� �  � � � ! � � � � � � � " � � � � 6 �  � � � � �  � � ! � � � �  � ! � � � � � � � 	 ! " � � # � � � � � � � � � � ! � � � � � � � � � � � � � ! � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � # � � � � � � � � 	 ,3 � � 	 � ! � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � 	 � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � " � � � � � � � � � � � � � " ! � � � " � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � �  � �  � � � � � � � C " � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � �� � � � � # � � � � � 	 ,
392

ITEM  39.



+ � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � ! � � . � � � 	 � ! � � � ! � 	 � � � � � � � � # � � � � � � �  � � � � � � �" � � � >
•

� B * 3 � + D � �  ! � � � 5 � �  � � � ! � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � # � � � � � 	 � : �� � � � � � � � � � � " � � � � � � E 8 ! � � � � 1 4 � �  " � � C � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � �  � � �� � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � �
•

+ < � = = � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � < � � 	 � � � # � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � �  � � � 	 � �� � � � �  " � � � � # � � � � � � �  � � � � � � 	 � ! 	 � � � � ! � � � � � � � ! � � � � � � � � � � � � # � � � � � � � � �� � 	 � � � � � � B � � $ � � 	 � ! 	 � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � # � � � � � 	 � � � � � � � � � 	 � � � �  � � �� � � � # � � � � � � � � � 	  � � � � 	 	 � � � � # � � � � � C � � � 	 � 	 � � 	 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � 	� ! 	 � � � � ! � � � � � � � ! � � �
•

< ; * . = =  � � � � � � � � � ! � � � � " � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � " � � 	 � � ! � � � � � � # � � � � � 	 " � � 	 �� � � � � � � � � � �  � 	 � � � � " � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 ! � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 	  � � � � � � � � � " � � � �� � � � � � � " � � 	 ? � �  � � � � � � � 	 � � 	 � ! � � � � � � � � � � � � � # � � � � � � � � 	 � � � � � � � �  � � @ �# � � $ � � � 	 � � � � � � � 	 	 � � � � � � 	 � � �  � � � � � � 	 � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � 	 � � � � � � � �� � � � � 	 � � � � � � � � 	 � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � �
• F ; = = B < 1 � < � � � � D � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � " � � � � � � # � 	 � � � � � � � 	 # � � � � � �  ! � � � 5� �  � � � � �  � � 0 E 8 ! � � � � 1 4 � �  " � � C � � 2 � � � � � C � � �  � 	 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � ! �� ! � � � � � � � � # ! � � � � # � �  � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � �  � � � � 	  ! � � � 5 ! � � � # ! � � 	 � � � � � + � � � � � �� � � � ) � � � � � � �  � � � ! � �  � � � # � � � � $ � � � � � � � � ! � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � ! �" � � � � � � , + � � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � � ! � � � �  � � � # � 	 � � � � � � �" � � " � � 	 � � ! � � � � � � ! � � � � 	  � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � # �� � � � � � � 	 � � � � � � � � � � � � ! � � � ! � � ,
•

� < . � B < + D � � G ; B  � � � � $ � �  � � � �  � � � # � � � � � � � � � ! � � � � � ! � � � � C � � # ! �  � � �� # � ! � � � � � � � ! � � � � ! � � �  � � ? : � � � � $ � �  � � � � � � �  � � ,�
< � � " � � � � ! � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � �

393

ITEM  39.



From:                              Robin Frost <frostrr@gmail.com>

Sent:                               Monday, January 28, 2019 8:39 PM

To:                                   Iris Lehmann

Subject:                          Greenhill Village Townhomes II

 

Follow Up Flag:              Follow up

Flag Status:                     Completed

 
Dear Ms. Lehmann,
 
I am writing to express my concern at the total lack of communication the Greenhill Village
neighborhood has received about the change in the bordering property development. As residents of the
Greenhill Village neighborhood, we have not received ANY communication from the City of Cedar Falls
about the amendment to the master plan and proposed development adjacent to our homes.  The first my
husband and I learned of the issue was a Facebook post by a fellow resident to the Greenhill Village
Facebook Group on January 23 at 4:54 p.m., approximately one hour prior to the Planning & Zoning
Committee meeting.  As I did not see the message until much later, I was unable to attend the meeting
that evening.  
 
Upon reviewing the memorandum in the Community Development packet, I was disturbed to learn there
had been an amendment to the Greenhill Village master plan last April (2018) to allow the area to be
developed as townhomes rather than the original intention of single-family homes.  I was further
disturbed that neither my household, nor any of the neighbors, had received communication about the
meeting or potential change prior to last April’s decision.  I have heard indirectly that the city’s records
show it sent notices about such a meeting.  However, my own records (along with all of my neighbors’)
show that no such letter was received.  
 
I assure you that as a new resident to Greenhill Village (as of December 2017) I was hyper-aware that
development may be possible nearby, so I would have been vigilant about any communication that came
from the city about this subject.    
 
Furthermore, we did not receive a notice of the Planning & Zoning meeting on Jan. 23 where the
proposed development was discussed, nor was the Greenhill Village Homeowners’ Association notified. 
If the Homeowners’ Association had received notice, the subject certainly would have been on the
agenda for the annual HOA meeting which took place on Jan. 21, just two days prior to the Planning &
Zoning meeting. 
 
Not only am I dismayed at the total lack of communication from the City, but also at the proposed plan
and its rapid progression through the development process.  It is disturbing to read a plan that the
neighborhood had no part in developing or influencing, and realize how far along the proposed
development is in the process.  As I read the recommendations and technical comments from the City
technical staff and CFU, it appears that commencing development is imminent and inevitable.  I am
appalled that the City would allow this process to continue without following the proper channels, and
with the  knowledge that none of the neighborhood residents received the required written
communication.
 
As you may know, adding rental units to a neighborhood can reduce nearby property values by 13.8%
(American Community Survey) by reducing the desirability of the neighborhood due to safety and
aesthetic concerns.  Parking, water runoff, sewage and garbage are additional concerns, several of which
are not addressed in the development request.  Additionally, the City will want to consider the flooding

394

ITEM  39.



that occurred in the area on Labor Day 2018 when planning for drainage and runoff. Addison
Drive/Athens Court had several feet of water, which impacted the basements of many nearby homes
causing property damage (inside dwellings and to outdoor landscaping), insurance claims, and
complaints to the city. As this flood event had not yet occurred when the amendment was made to the
plan, surely this incident should be a factor for consideration and discussion by the city and any future
developer. 
 
I am proud to live in Cedar Falls, and specifically in Greenhill Village, but disappointed by the manner in
which this issue is being handled. I respectfully request a delay in this development request in order to
revisit the amendment which was made without the opportunity for neighborhood residents to weigh in,
research the impact and discuss with our neighbors. 
 
Thank you for your consideration,
 
Robin Frost
4718 Addison Drive
Cedar Falls
 
[NOTICE: This message originated outside of the City Of Cedar Falls mail system -- DO NOT CLICK
on links or open attachments unless you are sure the content is safe.]

395

ITEM  39.



From:                              Vinod Phuke <vinodphuke@gmail.com>

Sent:                               Friday, February 01, 2019 11:34 AM

To:                                   Iris Lehmann

Subject:                          Raising concern 8-4 Town homes recently approved by planning and zoning

department

 

Follow Up Flag:              Follow up

Flag Status:                     Flagged

 

Hello Iris,

 I would like to raise my concern related to 8-4 Town homes recently approved by planning and

zoning department. This was originally planned for the single family homes,  this change will

negatively impact on living since these town homes will be rented to tenants and we are currently

facing lots of traffic and parking issues, this new plan will make things worse as a member of

Greenhill village family I would like to raise my concern and strongly oppose this new plan

Best regards

Vinod Phuke

1029 Amelia Dr Unit 1

Cedar Falls IA-50613

319-610-8880

[NOTICE: This message originated outside of the City Of Cedar Falls mail system -- DO NOT CLICK
on links or open attachments unless you are sure the content is safe.]

396

ITEM  39.



From:                                         Larry Durchenwald <ldurch@cfu.net>

Sent:                                           Tuesday, February 05, 2019 9:54 AM

To:                                               Iris Lehmann

Subject:                                     New townhouses at Greenhill Village

 

Members of Cedar Falls City Council;

My name is Larry Durchenwald, and my wife and I are current residents of 1525 Athens Ct. We are retired and

have been part of the neighborhood since June 2013. We enjoy the neighborhood and have gotten to appreciate

knowing our neighbors.

We are against the new townhouses in the area of Norse Drive, because that intersection onto Hudson Road is

very busy as it is, and additional, high density, occupancy, dwellings will create a traffic issue trying to enter

Hudson Road. Often, there is a line of cars waiting for the traffic light at the intersection of Greenhill Road and

Hudson road, so entering Hudson Road during those situations will be very frustrating.

It is not unusual to see cars going around that tight corner of Harriet Lane and Norse Drive on the inside of the

turn, no matter what direction they are going. Visibility in this corner is limited at best.

If this area is to be developed, we much prefer the addition of single family housing where properties will be

better cared for by actual property owners, rather than temporary renters. We feel, also, that townhouses this

close to our established neighborhood, will decrease the value of our homes.

Larry & Rita Durchenwald

1525 Athens Ct.

Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613

[NOTICE: This message originated outside of the City Of Cedar Falls mail system -- DO NOT CLICK
on links or open attachments unless you are sure the content is safe.]

397

ITEM  39.



From:                              Iris Lehmann

Sent:                               Monday, February 04, 2019 8:15 AM

To:                                   'Karmen Woelber'

Subject:                          RE: Greenhill Village area zoning

Attachments:                 Combined Staff Report - Greenhill Villiage Townhomes.pdf

 
Good morning Karmen,

 

Thank you for your email. I just want to assure you that a zoning change for apartment buildings has not been

approved for this area nor is it being considered. The Planning and Zoning Commission will be considering the

proposal for one (1) four-unit townhome building and one (1) five-unit townhome building at their February 13th

Planning and Zoning Commission meeting. Townhomes are essentially single family units attached to one another

to create a multiple unit building of 4-5 attached homes (much like duplexes). I attached for your reference the

staff report from the last discussion of this project on January 23, 2019. It is our understanding that the

developer intends to market these units as for sale.

 

Please feel free to contact me if you have any questions or if you still have any concerns with the proposal. Again

the Commission will be discussing this project at their next meeting on February 13th and public comment is

encouraged.

 

Kind regards,

 

Iris Lehmann, AICP

Planner II

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa

Phone: 319.268.5185

 

From: Karmen Woelber [mailto:karmen@cfu.net] 
Sent: Friday, February 01, 2019 9:15 PM
To: Iris Lehmann
Subject: Greenhill Village area zoning

 
Ms. Lehmann,
 
I live at 4808 Algonquin Dr. Unit 6. I have just been informed through my homeowner's
association that there are plans to change the zoning in the area in front of the water tower.
Plans to change it from single family dwelling zoning to apartment zoning. I have significant
concerns about the negative impact this change would have on our neighborhood and property
values.  I have also been told that the city states all residents in the area have been previously
informed of the anticipated change. I want to state very clearly that I have not received any
information at all regarding this issue. The first I new of it was from an email via my
homeowner's association that I received today.
 
Respectfully yours, 
Karmen Woelber
[NOTICE: This message originated outside of the City Of Cedar Falls mail system -- DO NOT CLICK
on links or open attachments unless you are sure the content is safe.]

398

ITEM  39.



From:                              Iris Lehmann

Sent:                               Monday, February 04, 2019 8:19 AM

To:                                   'Dad'

Subject:                          RE:

Attachments:                 Combined Staff Report - Greenhill Villiage Townhomes.pdf

 
Good morning Dean,

 

Thank you for your email. I just want to assure you that plans for “massive rental units” are not being considered.

The Planning and Zoning Commission will be considering the proposal for one (1) four-unit townhome building

and one (1) five-unit townhome building at their February 13th Planning and Zoning Commission meeting.

Townhomes are essentially single family units attached to one another to create a multiple unit building of 4-5

attached homes (much like duplexes). I attached for your reference the staff report from the last discussion of

this project on January 23, 2019. It is our understanding that the developer intends to market these units as for

sale.

 

Please feel free to contact me if you have any questions or if you still have any concerns with the proposal. Again

the Commission will be discussing this project at their next meeting on February 13th and public comment is

encouraged.

 

Kind regards,

 

Iris Lehmann, AICP

Planner II

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa

Phone: 319.268.5185

 

From: Dad [mailto:dlb51111@juno.com] 
Sent: Friday, February 01, 2019 5:09 PM
To: Iris Lehmann
Subject:

 
Iris, I have just been informed of the proposed building of massive rental units close to where i live. The
City of CF is claiming all homeowners close to that area were notified, This is false. I was never notified
of such a proposition and am completely against such. The building of so many RENTAL units will no
doubt decrease the value of all homes any where near that area and the traffic would be unmanageable.
Also the turnover in such units is very high and would be a detriment to all homeowners around there.
Please do whatever you can to stop this catastrophe from going forward.
 
Thank you.
Dean Boyd
1315 Amelia Dr.

____________________________________________________________

Drink 1 Cup Before Bed, Watch Your Body Fat Melt Like Crazy
Celebrity Local
http://thirdpartyoffers.juno.com/TGL3132/5c54d1a1abad751a168b4st04vuc

399

ITEM  39.



[NOTICE: This message originated outside of the City Of Cedar Falls mail system -- DO
NOT CLICK on links or open attachments unless you are sure the content is safe.]

400

ITEM  39.



From:                                         Iris Lehmann

Sent:                                           Friday, February 01, 2019 3:41 PM

To:                                               'Diane Lantz'

Subject:                                     RE: Greenhill Village Apartment Project

Attachments:                          Combined Staff Report - Greenhill Villiage Townhomes.pdf

 

Hi Diane,

 

Thank you for your email. I just want to assure you that plans for high rise apartment buildings have not been

approved. The Planning and Zoning Commission will be considering the proposal for one (1) four-unit townhome

building and one (1) five-unit townhome building at their February 13th Planning and Zoning Commission

meeting. Townhomes are essentially single family units attached to one another to create a multiple unit building

of 4-5 attached homes (much like duplexes). I attached for your reference the staff report from the last

discussion of this project on January 23, 2019. It is our understanding that the developer intends to market these

units as for sale.

 

Please feel free to contact me if you have any questions or if you still have any concerns with the proposal. Again

the Commission will be discussing this project at their next meeting on February 13th and public comment is

encouraged.

 

Kind regards,

 

Iris Lehmann, AICP

Planner II

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa

Phone: 319.268.5185

 

-----Original Message-----

From: Diane Lantz [mailto:dlantz1216@yahoo.com]

Sent: Friday, February 01, 2019 3:11 PM

To: Iris Lehmann

Subject: Greenhill Village Apartment Project

 

I just recently learned of plans to build eight apartment buildings near the UNI water tower in Greenhill Village. 

No notice has even been given to the homeowners of this area.

 

As a residence of Greenhill Village, I’m writing to adamantly oppose this project.  When purchasing my home I

believed it to be a neighborhood of privately owned homes and condos. Not a neighborhood of high rise

apartment buildings that will without a doubt lower the value of our properties and overpopulate this area.

Traffic has already increased significantly due to the number of apartment buildings at the corner of Greenhill

and Ashworth.  This will only add to what already is a disappointing  and sometimes dangerous situation.

 

The City of Cedar Falls needs to listen to the people of this neighborhood who have invested their money and

made their home in a family-oriented neighborhood not suspecting for a minute that it could become a college

student community.

 

Sincerely,

 

Diane Lantz

Greenhill Village 401

ITEM  39.



 

Sent from my iPhone

 

[NOTICE: This message originated outside of the City Of Cedar Falls mail system -- DO NOT CLICK on links or open

attachments unless you are sure the content is safe.]

402

ITEM  39.



403

ITEM  39.



404

ITEM  39.



405

ITEM  39.



406

ITEM  39.



407

ITEM  39.



408

ITEM  39.



409

ITEM  39.



 

 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com  

 

INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 

Administration Division 

  

  

 

 

  

 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council  

 FROM: Rose A. Phillips, Housing Planner II, INRCOG 

  Karen Howard, Planning and Community Services Manager 

 DATE: August 1, 2019 

 SUBJECT: Contract for a HOME Rehabilitation Project at 2121 California Street 
  
 
Cedar Falls is a recipient of Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) and HOME 
funds that support several programs, including housing rehabilitations or housing 
repairs for income-qualifying residents. 
 
On May 24, 2019, quotes were requested from four (4) general contractors for a 
rehabilitation project at 2121 California Street to repair a significantly deteriorated roof. 
In addition, due to potential disturbance of exterior paint and the presence of peeling 
paint on the home that may pose a lead hazard, the project also includes repainting the 
home using lead safe work practices. The Scope of Work includes roof and gutter 
replacement and re-painting the existing wood siding. The State Historical Society of 
Iowa has confirmed that the home may be eligible for the National Register of Historic 
Places, and the proposed work will help preserve the home’s historic value.  
 
The only firm to provide a quote by the June 11, 2019 deadline was Brothers 
Construction Enterprises. The results are shown below. With permit costs added, the 
total contract amount would be $22,846. This project would be funded by the City’s 
HOME funds. 
 

2121 California 
Street 

Total 
Quote 

Amount 

Hard Costs 
(including $220 
permit costs) 

Lead Hazard Reduction 
Costs (including $140 
permit costs) 

Total 
Contract 
Amount 

Brothers 
Construction 
Enterprises, Inc. 

$22,486 $13,456 $9,390 $22,846 

 
 
For 2121 California Street, the Inspector’s estimate for the main Scope of Work, 
including hard costs, permits, and lead hazard reduction, was $10,740. One reason for 

410

ITEM  40.



 

 

the discrepancy between the estimate and the contractor quote for services is that the 
contractor determined that the garage and rear porch, which had been excluded from 
the original roofing specifications, would need to be roofed in order to ensure the 
integrity of the roofing work on the rest of the house. The roof has numerous valleys and 
connections among different portions of the house, allowing problematic roofing work on 
one part of the house to affect the roof elsewhere. Moreover, to ensure that the exterior 
painting work will last as long as possible – up to 10-15 years, the Contractor is working 
with a highly qualified subcontractor whose costs are not low. As a result, the Inspector 
believes the Contractor’s costs are reasonable.  
 
As a result of the competitive quoting process, the Housing Commission and City Staff 
recommend acceptance of the one (1) quote received and entering into a contract, 
attached, with Brothers Construction Enterprises, Inc. in the amount of $22,846 for 2121 
California Street.  
 
  
 

411

ITEM  40.



412

ITEM  40.



413

ITEM  40.



414

ITEM  40.



415

ITEM  40.



416

ITEM  40.



417

ITEM  40.



418

ITEM  40.



419

ITEM  40.



420

ITEM  40.



421

ITEM  40.



422

ITEM  40.



423

ITEM  40.



424

ITEM  40.



425

ITEM  40.



ADMINISTRATION 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

  

  

 

 

 
 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 

 FROM: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator 

 DATE: August 1, 2019 

 SUBJECT: Assignment & Assumption Agreement: CV Properties 2, LLC 
 
On May 2, 2016 the City and CV Properties Housing Cooperative Association entered 
into an Agreement for Private Development pertaining to a new development at 917 W 
23rd Street. This agreement was approved under the standard terms and conditions for 
projects that are located within the College Hill Urban Renewal Area. Part of those 
standard terms and conditions of the Agreement prohibits the sale of property and 
assignment of the Agreement without the written approval of the City of Cedar Falls.  
This language is included to allow the City to review these proposed ownership 
transfers and insure compliance with the terms of the Agreements. 
 
On February 5, 2018, City Council approved assigning of the Agreement for Private 
Development from CV Properties Housing Cooperative Association to CV Properties 2, 
LLC. Both entities involved Brent Dahlstrom and his attorney indicated at the time that 
they were trying to move the property under Mr. Dahlstrom’s primary ownership entity. 
 
The City recently received a request from CV Commercial 2, LLC to transfer the 
ownership of CV Properties 2, LLC. As with the previous request approved in 2018, 
both entities involve Brent Dahlstrom and they have indicated that they are in the 
process of refinancing the building with another bank and would like to refinance under 
a different company name.   
 
The attached Assignment and Assumption Agreement has been reviewed and 
approved by all parties.  The obligations pertaining to building and development 
requirements have been satisfied and the new ownership group (CV Commercial 2, 
LLC) will assume any and all ongoing obligations applicable in the Development 
Agreement.  These primary ongoing obligations include minimum assessed valuations 
as applicable, payment of property taxes, and property maintenance. 
 
 
 
 
 

426

ITEM  41.



I recommend that City Council approve and adopt the following: 
 

1. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Assignment and 
Assumption Agreement by and among the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa; CV 
Properties 2, LLC; and CV Commercial 2, LLC. 

 

 

If you have any questions pertaining to this project, please let me know. 
 
xc: Ron Gaines, PE, City Administrator 
       Brent Dahlstrom, CV Commercial 2, LLC 
 
 

427

ITEM  41.



428

ITEM  41.



429

ITEM  41.



430

ITEM  41.



431

ITEM  41.



432

ITEM  41.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Prepared by:  Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 (319) 273-8600 

 

RESOLUTION NO. ___________ 

 

RESOLUTION APPROVING ASSIGNMENT OF AGREEMENT FOR 

PRIVATE DEVELOPMENT AND CONVEYANCE OF DEVELOPMENT 

PROPERTY BY CV PROPERTIES 2, LLC, TO CV COMMERCIAL 2, LLC, 

FOLLOWING A PREVIOUS ASSIGNMENT OF THE SAME AGREEMENT 

FOR PRIVATE DEVELOPMENT AND CONVEYANCE OF THE SAME 

DEVELOPMENT PROPERTY BY CV PROPERTIES HOUSING 

COOPERATIVE ASSOCIATION TO CV PROPERTIES 2, LLC, ALL IN 

ACCORDANCE WITH THE TERMS OF THE AGREEMENT FOR PRIVATE 

DEVELOPMENT BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, 

IOWA, AND CV PROPERTIES HOUSING COOPERATIVE ASSOCIATION 

 

 WHEREAS, CV Properties Housing Cooperative Association and the City of Cedar 

Falls, Iowa, entered into that certain Agreement for Private Development dated the 2nd day of 

May, 2016 (the “Agreement for Private Development”), regarding the development of the 

following described real estate, to-wit: 

 

Lot No. Three (3) in Campus Addition to Cedar Falls, Iowa 

 

(the “Development Property”); and 

 

WHEREAS, CV Properties Housing Cooperative Association assigned the Agreement 

for Private Development and conveyed the Development Property to CV Properties 2, LLC, an 

Iowa limited liability company, by way of Assignment and Assumption Agreement which was 

approved by the City on February 5, 2018 in Resolution No. 20,951; and 

 

WHEREAS, CV Properties 2, LLC now proposes to assign the Agreement for Private 

Development and transfer and convey the Development Property to CV Commercial 2, LLC, an 

Iowa limited liability company; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Agreement for Private Development requires the approval and consent 

of the City of Cedar Falls to such assignment and transfer; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls has been presented with a 

proposed Assignment and Assumption Agreement, pursuant to which CV Properties 2, LLC 

proposes to assign the Agreement for Private Development and transfer the Development 433

ITEM  41.



 

Property to CV Commercial 2, LLC, and CV Commercial 2, LLC, agrees to assume the 

obligations of CV Properties 2, LLC under the Agreement for Private Development, and agrees 

to perform all duties and obligations thereunder; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, deems it to be in the best 

interests of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, to consent to the assignment of the Agreement for 

Private Development and to approve the transfer of the Development Property from CV 

Properties 2, LLC, to CV Commercial 2, LLC, on the terms and conditions stated in the proposed 

Assignment and Assumption Agreement. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 

 

1. That the assignment of the Agreement for Private Development by CV Properties 

2, LLC to CV Commercial 2, LLC, be and the same is hereby in all respects authorized, 

approved and confirmed. 

 

2. That the transfer and conveyance of the Development Property by CV Properties 

2, LLC to CV Commercial 2, LLC, be and the same is hereby authorized, approved and 

confirmed. 

 

3. That the form and content of the Assignment and Assumption Agreement, the 

provisions of which are incorporated herein by reference, be and the same are hereby in all 

respects authorized, approved and confirmed, and the Mayor and the City Clerk be and they are 

hereby authorized, empowered and directed to execute, attest, seal and deliver the Assignment 

and Assumption Agreement for and on behalf of the City in substantially the form and content 

now before this meeting, but with such changes, modifications, additions or deletions therein as 

shall be approved by such officers, and that the Mayor and the City Clerk are hereby authorized, 

empowered and directed to do all such acts and things and to execute all such documents as may 

be necessary to carry out and comply with the provisions of the Assignment and Assumption 

Agreement as executed.  The City Clerk is directed to cause a copy of the Assignment and 

Assumption Agreement to be filed with the Black Hawk County Recorder. 

 

 PASSED AND APPROVED this ________ day of _________________________, 2019. 

 

 

 

      _______________________________________ 

(SEAL)     James P. Brown, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

________________________________________ 

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

434

ITEM  41.



1 
 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 

 FROM: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator 

 DATE: July 31, 2019 

 SUBJECT: Highway-1 District Site Plan Review 
 

 
REQUEST: 
 

Revised site plan approval for a new Dairy Queen restaurant and a 
convenience store/gas station/automobile service station. 
 

PETITIONER: 
 

Martin Rouse (developer); Fehr-Graham (engineer); Peters Construction 
(contractor); AHTS Architects (architect) 
 

LOCATION: 
 

Lot 2 of Gateway Business Park at Cedar Falls 

 

 
PROPOSAL 
The developer, Martin Rouse, received approval by 
City Council on June 3, 2019 for a site plan to 
construct a new DQ Grill and Chill restaurant and a 
convenience store/automobile service station on Lot 2 
of Gateway Business Park at Cedar Falls I, which is 
located at the northeast corner of Hudson Road and 
W. Ridgeway Avenue (highlighted lot on the image to 
the right). Since the approval from City Council, the 
developer has received direction from corporate Dairy 
Queen to alter the site plan to separate the drive 
through lane from the parking area and to shift the 
location of the building. Therefore, this change to the 
site plan will require approval from the Planning & 
Zoning Commission and City Council. 
 
BACKGROUND 
Lots 1 and 2 of Gateway Business Park at Cedar Falls 
I, along with the stormwater detention basin parcel, 
were platted in June of 2018. Currently, a Holiday Inn 
& Suites Hotel and conference center is under 

Lot 2 – Proposed Project Location 

435

ITEM  42.



2 
 

construction on Lot 1. Cyber Lane, which was also approved as part of the plat, is currently 
under construction and will be completed in 2019. The City Council approved a site plan for this 
development on June 3, 2019.   
 
ANALYSIS 
The property is zoned HWY-1, Highway Commercial District, which is intended to promote 
general services commercial uses intended to serve a broader market area (i.e. City-wide or 
regional customer base). The property is also located within the Highway 20 Overlay District, 
which provides enhanced development guidelines for commercial uses located within this 
corridor. The ordinance requires detailed site plan review in order to ensure that the 
development site satisfies a number of basic aesthetic standards. Attention to details such as 
parking, open green space, landscaping, signage, building design and other similar factors help 
to ensure orderly development in the entire area. Following is a review of the zoning ordinance 
requirements: 
 

1) Use: No changes are being made to the approved use of the site. A restaurant is listed as 
a permitted use within the Highway 20 Commercial Corridor Overlay District. A gas 
station/convenience store can also have a regional customer base, thus fitting within the 
permitted uses of the Highway 20 Commercial Corridor Overlay District. A service station 
is listed as a conditional use within the Highway 20 Commercial Corridor Zoning District. A 
conditional use may be permitted within this district subject to approval by the Planning & 
Zoning Commission and City Council. The restaurant and convenience store are 
permitted uses. The service station is a conditional use, and exceeds the 
recommended setback guidelines from Hudson Road. 
 

2) Setbacks: 20-ft. setbacks are required along the edge of the district and along any internal 
streets/principal access ways. These areas must be landscaped. Open space and 
landscaping is shown on the plan within these areas. Both the restaurant and convenience 
store/service station buildings meet the setback requirements. No changes are being 
made to the location of the convenience store building. The DQ Grill & Chill building 
is moving further to the south on the lot, but will still meet all setback requirements. 
 

3) Parking/Access: The parking for the convenience store/auto service center is not being 
altered. For the DQ Grill & Chill building, parking is being shifted from the south side of the 
building to the north along the north property line (11 parking stalls). Also, the previous 
plan showed one-way traffic around the building. Parking to the west of the building will 
now be two-way traffic, with one-way traffic around the east of the building. The previous 
plan showed 11 angled parking stalls to the east of the building. Those stalls are being 
removed and added to the parking area west of the building. In all, 42 parking spaces 
were shown on the original site plan, and 42 spaces are shown on this revised plan. 
Overall, the submitted parking lot and access plan is satisfied.  

 

4) Open Green Space: This property is located within the Highway 20 Commercial Corridor 
Overlay Zoning District. This overlay district requires that open green space/landscape 
area be provided at the rate of 15% of the development site. The previously approved plan 
showed an open space area of 27.7% of the site. For this updated plan, additional green 
space has been added, which now equates to 29.9% of the site. Landscaping is shown 
throughout the site, both within the green space areas in the parking lot and around the 

436

ITEM  42.



3 
 

buildings and along the street frontages. The open green space exceeds the minimum 
requirement and is well distributed. 
 

5) Landscaping: The previously approved landscape plan showed a total of 8,100 points, 
whereas the required number of points for the site was 5,446. This landscaping was made 
up of parking lot trees, street trees, and general landscaping throughout the site. For the 
updated landscape plan, there are a total of 7,240 points shown, which is 860 points less 
than the original plan. Although the total number of points has been reduced, the revised 
landscape plan shows less Karl Forester Grass around the perimeter of the parking area 
and more hearty shrubbery, which provides more of a screen from the parking lot, but 
takes up additional space, so less shrubs are needed. Staff feels that this revised plan 
better screens the parking areas from the roadway, while still meeting the overall 
landscaping requirements. In total, there will be 64 trees and 259 shrubs and grasses 
planted on the site. Landscaping requirements are met. 
 

6) Sidewalks/Recreational Accommodations: A new 10-foot wide recreational trail will be 
installed along Hudson Road and W. Ridgeway Avenue. This will be completed by the 
current owner of the property (also the owner of the Holiday Inn & Suites Hotel). The 
previous site plan showed a connection from this trail to the property near the northwest 
corner of the property, west of the DQ building. This access has been moved to the south 
side of the DQ building on the revised plan, in order to allow easier access to the site from 
the trail without having to cross through the drive through lane and parking lot, and also 
due to the slope of the ground being higher at the northwest corner of the property. 
Trail/sidewalk plan satisfied. 

 

 

7) Building Design: The HWY-1, Highway Commercial District states that all structures 
established within the district shall be reviewed for architectural compatibility with 
surrounding structures. Items such as proportion, roof shape, pitch and direction, pattern, 
materials and texture, color, and architectural features were all reviewed during the 
previous site plan review. No changes to the building design for either building are being 
made. Overall, the design of the proposed restaurant and convenience store/gas 
station/auto service station is architecturally compatible with other buildings in the 
surrounding area.  

 
8) Trash Dumpster Site: The original site plan showed a trash enclosure on the restaurant 

site at the southeast corner of the property, within a full enclosure with a gate on the front. 
The updated site plan shifts the trash enclosure to the north side of the building, away 
from the view of the road. The enclosure will still be fully enclosed with a gate on the front 
like the original design. Dumpster enclosure plan is acceptable. 

 
9) Lighting Plan: The HWY-1 District regulations do not have specific lighting design 

guidelines. The site plan shows the location of light poles throughout the site. The parking 
lot lights will be mounted atop a 25’ tall light pole with a 3’ concrete base. The fixtures will 
be housed in a die-cast aluminum housing with LED lights. Also, recessed LED lighting 
will be provided under the gas canopy to provide light to the customers who are fueling 
their vehicles. Lighting plan is acceptable.  

 
 
 

437

ITEM  42.



4 
 

10) Signage: No changes to the approved signage plan are being made. For reference, there 
are three signs being proposed on the site: one at the southwest corner of the property 
near the intersection of Hudson Road and W. Ridgeway Avenue, one at the southeast 
corner of the property near the intersection of W. Ridgeway Avenue and Cyber Lane, and 
one near the northeast corner of the property at the main entrance to the property along 
Cyber Lane. Signage plan generally meets the standards, pending a detailed review 
at the time a sign permit is requested. 

 

11) Storm Water Management: A storm water detention basin is located at the north end of 
the property to collect the storm water runoff from the site. The water runoff from the 
building and parking areas will be collected via intakes within the parking area and 
transferred via piping to the detention basin. Stormwater Management Plan has been 
reviewed and approved by the Engineering Division. 

 
TECHNICAL COMMENTS 
Water, electric, gas, and communications utility services are available to the site in accordance 
with the service policies of Cedar Falls Utilities. The property owner/contractor is responsible to 
extend all utility services to the building. These utility extensions will be reviewed by CFU 
personnel as part of the building plan review. 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
The Planning & Zoning Commission and City Staff recommend approval of the revised HWY-1 
District Site Plan for the new proposed commercial development. 
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
Discussion/Vote 
7/24/2019 

Chair Holst recused himself from the matter and Ms. Saul acted as Chair for 
the item. Mr. Graham provided background information, explaining that the 
four acre site is at the northeast corner of West Ridgeway Avenue and 
Hudson Road was approved recently approved by City Council. After 
approval, the Dairy Queen corporate office asked the developer to make 
modifications to the parking area of the plan, which requires an amendment 
to the site plan. He displayed the original and revised plans to show the 
changes being proposed, which includes creation of a separation drive-thru 
lane, moving the trash enclosure, and changes to the number and location of 
parking stalls. They would also like to move the trail connection to the south 
side. Mr. Graham also displayed the landscape plan and discussed the drop 
in the site points, but explained that the change will actually be an 
improvement and will still be above the requirements. Staff recommends 
approval subject to any comments or suggestions by the commission. 
 
Ms. Prideaux feels that the new design enhances overall pedestrian and bike 
safety, as well as traffic flow. 
 
Ms. Prideaux made a motion to approve the Minutes as presented. Ms. 
Adkins seconded the motion. The motion was approved with 5 ayes (Adkins, 
Leeper, Prideaux, Saul and Wingert), 1 abstention (Holst) and 0 nays. 

 
  

 

438

ITEM  42.



S Prairie
Lake

Dry

Run
Cre ek

(S)

W Viking
Industrial

Park

Technology
Park

Industrial
Park

Central
River AEA

Prairie
Lakes
Park

Technology Pkwy

Pr
inc

eto
n A

ve

Richmond St

Montclair St

Scranton St

Columbia St

Concord St

Saratoga St

Camden St

Le
xin

gto
nB

lvd

Ch an cel lorDr

Waterway Ave (Planned)

C yber Ln (Planned)

Hu
ds

on
 R

d

W Ridgeway Ave
R-4

M-1
M-1

PC-2

HWY-1

BR

A-1

A-1

W Viking
Industrial

Park

Waterloo
Regional
Airport

Falls
Access

Cedar Falls

Hu
ds

on
Rd

Ce d a
rH

eig
hts

Dr

University Ave

Waterloo Rd Rainbow Dr

Orchard Dr

V ikin

gRd

W 18th St

Greenhill Rd

Center St

E Dunkerton Rd

W Ridgeway Ave

S M
ain

 St
Ma

in 
St

W 1st St

W 12th St

Un
ion

 R
d

E 1st St

W 27th St

NUnion Rd

Lincoln St

E Lone Tree Rd

Le
ve

r se
eR

d

®¬57

®¬58

®¬27 £¤63
£¤20

£¤218

Location
Map

^

DQ Grill & Chill/Convenience 
Store/Auto Service Station
Hwy-1 Site Plan Review

Cedar Falls City Council
August 5, 2019

439

ITEM  42.



ENGINEERING & ENVIRONMENTAL

Ó 

440

ITEM  42.



CL

ENGINEERING & ENVIRONMENTAL

Ó 

441

ITEM  42.



442

ITEM  42.



443

ITEM  42.



444

ITEM  42.



445

ITEM  42.



446

ITEM  42.



447

ITEM  42.



448

ITEM  42.



32
7 

E
as

t F
ou

rth
 S

tre
et

S
ui

te
 2

04
W

at
er

lo
o,

 Io
w

a 
50

70
3

D
ra

w
in

gs
 a

nd
 S

pe
ci

fic
at

io
ns

, i
de

as
,

de
si

gn
s,

 a
nd

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 re

pr
es

en
te

d
ar

e 
an

d 
sh

al
l r

em
ai

n 
th

e 
pr

op
er

ty
 o

f t
he

ar
ch

ite
ct

 a
nd

 n
o 

pa
rt 

sh
al

l b
e 

co
pi

ed
 o

r
di

sc
lo

se
d 

to
 o

th
er

s,
 o

r u
se

d 
in

 c
on

ne
c-

tio
n 

w
ith

 a
ny

 w
or

k 
or

 p
ro

je
ct

 o
th

er
 th

an
th

e 
sp

ec
fie

d 
pr

oj
ec

t f
or

 w
hi

ch
 th

ey
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

pr
ep

ar
ed

 w
ith

ou
t t

he
 w

rit
te

n
co

ns
en

t o
f t

he
 a

rc
hi

te
ct

.  
Vi

su
al

 c
on

ta
ct

w
ith

 th
es

e 
pl

an
s 

an
d 

sp
ec

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 s
ha

ll
co

ns
tit

ut
e 

co
nc

lu
si

ve
 e

vi
de

nc
e 

of
ac

ce
pt

an
ce

 o
f t

he
se

 re
st

ric
tio

ns
.

C
   

 C
op

yr
ig

ht
 2

01
9

July 17, 2019

P
h.

: 3
19

-2
33

-1
16

3
Fa

x:
 3

19
-2

33
-9

86
3

/V
ol

um
es

/P
ro

je
ct

 D
oc

s/
20

18
-0

05
0 

R
ou

se
 D

ai
ry

 Q
ue

en
 C

on
ve

ni
en

ce
 S

to
re

 - 
P

et
er

s/
3.

 C
on

su
lta

nt
s/

La
nd

sc
ap

e/
04

-1
6-

20
19

 p
la

nt
in

g.
pl

n

R
ou

se
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t

C
ed

ar
 F

al
ls

, I
ow

a
R

id
ge

w
ay

 A
ve

nu
e

2,451 sq ft

DUMPSTER

1,212 sq ft

110 sq ft 121 sq ft

1,095 sq ft

2,201 sq ft

226 sq ft

226 sq ft

11,146 sq ft

4,483 sq ft

159 sq ft 200 sq ft 820 sq ft

166 sq ft

1,015 sq ft

21,162 sq ft

770 sq ft

2,129 sq ft
462 sq ft

644 sq ft

4,090 sq ft

2,701 sq ft

936

934

932

926

LAWN

LAWN LAWN

8-K 3-Af

3-Af

3-Lp

3-Af

1-Lp

3-Lp

7-Af

1-Lp

8-K

3-Rb

1-Jc

4-Rb

1-Af

5-Lp
5-Af

2-Rp

3-Mk3-Lp3-Ve6-Ve7-Af7-Ve

3-H

6-Ve

3-H

6-H3-Ve

3-H
3-Rb

3-H
3-Rb

6-H
6-R

5-Jc
5-Rb
5-D

6-Jc
6-Rb

6-Jc
6-Rb

6-D

9-D

6-Jc
6-Rb

9-D
6-Jc
5-Rb

1' - 3'
BERM

1' - 3'
BERM

PLANT LIST

 Overstory Trees
13   - 2" caliper/80 pts = 1,040pts.-  Acer Plat."columnaire" 50x15 wide
2   - 2" caliper/80 pts = 160pts. - Gleditsia T. "Skyline" Honeylocust 40x40 wide
19   - 2" caliper/80 pts = 1,520pts. - Ginko Biloba 5x30 wide
30   - 6' ht. / 80 pts =  2,400pts.  -  Pinus Strobus "White Pine" 60x30 wide

55 - 5 GAL/10 pts = 550 pts.    Hydrangea P. Limelight
16 - 2 GAL/5 pts = 80 pts.    Karl Foerster Grass
29 - 2 GAL/5 pts = 145 pts      Hemerocallis Daylily "Happy Returns"
49 - 2 GAL/5 pts = 245 pts.   Rudbekia G. VAR "Sullivanti"
24 - 5 GAL/10 pts = 240 pts.   Juniperus communis var. depressa
10 - 5 GAL/10 pts = 100 pts.  Wiegela - Red Prince
25 - 5 GAL/10 pts = 250 pts.  Viburnum O. "Campactum European Viburnum"
29 - 5 GAL/10 pts = 290 pts.  Cornus R. "Artic Fire" Dogwood
16 - 5 GAL/10 pts = 160 pts. Syringa V. "Common Purple Lilac"
6 - 5 GAL/10 pts = 60 pts.  Syringa Pubescens "Miss Kim" Lilac
Total points provided = 7,240
Total points required = 5,446
Notes:
Rudbekia and Daylilies to be interplanted at high visibility areas in mulch beds.

Mulch areas to receive weed fabric and 2" depth of River rock mulch.

Lawn areas to receive sod or seed provide alternate bids.

Large stone out crop grouping @ 3 Locations
Berm areas to be 3' Ht.

PROVIDE 20" DEPTH OF APPROVED BLACK DIRT IN ALL PLANTING AREAS.

HL

W

K
H

D

Quantity- Size/Points- Variety

GB

M

HLHL

GB

GB

GB

GB

GB

GB

W

W

W

W

W

W
W

W

W
W W

W
W

W

W

W

W

GB GB GBGBGBGB

M M M
M

M

M M

Jc
Rb

M M

GB GB

GBGB

M

M

W

W

W
W

GB GB

M M
W W

GB

M
W

Rp
Ve
Af
Lp
Mk

Sq ft

Sq ft

3,692 sq ft

W

W

W

W

W

W

3-Mk3-Rp7-Rp5-H

4-H

9-H 3-H 3-H 3-H

10-H

North

SCALE: 1"   = 50'
Planting Plan P-1

449

ITEM  42.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 

 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 

 FROM: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator 

 DATE: July 31, 2019 

 SUBJECT: PC-2 District Site Plan Review – 918 Viking Road 
 

 
REQUEST: 

 
Request to approve a PC-2 Planned Commercial District Site Plan for a new 
8,260 square foot retail building. 
 

PETITIONER: 
 

HI YIELD LLC, Owner; Clapsaddle-Garber Associates, Inc., Engineer 
 

LOCATION: 
 

918 Viking Road 
 

 

  
PROPOSAL 
It is proposed to construct an 8,260 
square foot commercial building (in 
blue outline to the right) which will 
provide room for two tenants. The 
overall development plan for the 
property includes a 55,000 square 
foot gym/retail building, and four 
commercial buildings totaling 
approximately 30,000 square feet.   
 
BACKGROUND 
The property was rezoned by the 
City Council from A-1 Agricultural 
District to PC-2 Planned Commercial 
District on September 19, 2016. A 
site plan for just the gymnasium/retail building was approved by the City Council on December 
5, 2016 after a unanimous recommendation of approval from the Planning & Zoning 
Commission. During the review of the gymnasium/retail building site plan in 2016, a general 
design of the 4 outbuildings was presented, however those buildings were not part of the 
original site plan approval. A site plan was presented for Outbuilding #3 at the northeast corner 
of the property, and was approved by City Council on August 21, 2017. Then, on October 16, 
2017, a revised site plan for the gymnasium/retail building was approved by City Council, which 
added approximately 10,000 square feet of building area and added a parking area behind the 
building. A site plan was presented for Outbuilding #1 at the northwest corner of the property, 
and was approved by City Council on December 3, 2018.  

450

ITEM  43.



ANALYSIS 
The property is zoned PC-2, Planned Commercial District. The PC-2 District is a predominantly 
commercial project containing retail and general service facilities on larger tracts of land that is 
designed and improved in accordance with a comprehensive project plan and developmental 
procedures agreement. It is further the purpose of these regulations to encourage high 
standards of building architecture and site planning which will foster commercial development 
that maximizes pedestrian convenience, comfort and pleasure. 
 
As indicated in the Background section, several site plan reviews on this property have already 
been approved. The overall development plan for the property shows a total of five buildings; 
one has already been completed, and two are currently under construction. This approval is for 
the fourth of five buildings. A detailed site plan review of each building when it is proposed to be 
constructed is required to ensure that the development site satisfies a number of standards.  
Details such as building design and location, parking, signage, dumpster location, and other 
similar criteria are reviewed to ensure orderly and quality development in the PC-2 Planned 
Commercial District. 
 
Following is a review of the zoning ordinance requirements: 
 
1) Proposed Use: The 8,260 square foot retail/professional office building is a permitted use in 

the PC-2 District. Use permitted. 
 
2) Setbacks: The setbacks apply to the building, parking lot and signage. The PC-2 District 

normally requires a 30-foot setback around the perimeter of the "district”. The PC-2 District 
also states that for areas less than 10 acres in size, that the setback area may be reduced 
to 20’, subject to review and approval from the Planning & Zoning Commission and City 
Council. The developer did ask that the 30 foot open space buffer setback be reduced to 
20 feet in width, which was approved by City Council.  

 
The proposed building is located 25 feet from the rear property line, which meets the 20 
foot minimum buffer requirement. The parking area is also shown approximately 50 feet 
from the south property line as well. Building and Parking Area setbacks are satisfied. 

 
3) Parking: The parking requirement was previously calculated for the entire development, 

which included the gymnasium building and 4 outbuildings. Based on the anticipated uses 
and sizes of the buildings within this shopping center, the total parking required for all of the 
uses is 340 parking stalls. The overall site plan showed 346 parking stalls, which meets the 
minimum requirement. For this parcel alone (918 Viking Rd), 37 parking stalls are shown. 
There is a shared parking agreement between the individual parcels that allow for shared 
parking between the properties. Parking requirements are satisfied. 

 
4) Open Space: Open green space must be provided on site. The ordinance requires 10% of 

the total development site excluding the required setback area. In this case the lot contains 
approximately 9 acres of land (400,000 ft²). When the perimeter setbacks are excluded  
(20-foot minimum), approximately 61,000 square feet can be deducted from the total: 
400,000-61,000=339,000 x 0.10 = 33,900 square feet open green space must be provided 
on site. The property has approximately 298,103 square feet of open space remaining, 
which far exceeds the minimum open space requirement. Open green space satisfied. 

 
5) Landscaping: The PC-2 District requires landscape plantings at the rate of 0.02 points per 

square foot of the total development site excluding the setback areas described above 
(0.02 x 339,000 ft²) = 6,780 basic site landscaping points. These points can be made up 

451

ITEM  43.



with any combination of trees, conifers and shrubbery and distributed throughout the site, 
parking areas and along the street. This parcel has no street frontage, so no street trees 
are required.  

 
In addition to these points, landscaping must also be provided to satisfy “parking lot 
landscaping.” The parking lot calculation must be “added” to the “site/street tree 
landscaping” number (6,780) to arrive at a total landscaping requirement for the property. 
The parking area landscaping requirement is one tree for every 15 parking stalls or 2,500 
square feet of hard surface parking area. If the one tree for every 15 stalls ratio is applied, 
the total tree planting for this portion of the parking lot would be 37/15 stalls = 3 trees. The 
plan for this portion of the development shows 3 parking lot trees. 
 
A landscaping plan for the overall site was submitted when the gymnasium building went 
through the site plan review process. All requirements were met at that time. For this 
portion of the development, the landscaping plan appears to be similar to what was 
submitted for the overall development and for the completed outbuilding #3, with trees 
located within the parking lot, and trees located around the building. Landscape Plan is 
acceptable.  

 
6) Sidewalks: A Sidewalk is identified along the building frontage. This sidewalk will connect 

this building to the building to the south, which will connect to the sidewalk that will be 
installed along Viking Road. Sidewalk plan is acceptable, and will be installed in 
conjunction with the construction of this building. 

 
7) Building Design: The proposed building will be constructed with a mixture of rock faced 

block (gray), Cumaru wood shiplap siding, glass windows and doors, and two tones of 
corrugated metal paneling (silver and charcoal). Wall signage will also be located above 
each doorway. This building design is the same as Outbuilding #1 and #3, which was 
previously approved. Overall Building Design is acceptable. 

 
 

8) Trash Dumpsters: The dumpster enclosure will be located just to the southeast of the 
building, between the gymnasium building and the proposed building. A dumpster 
enclosure plan was submitted when the gymnasium building was proposed that included a 
6’ split face block wall with a slated gate for access. Dumpster enclosure plan is 
acceptable.   

 
9) Storm Water Management: There are two underground storm water collection areas 

located under the parking lot in front of Outbuilding #1 and Outbuilding #3. These detention 
basins release the water into the storm sewer located along Viking Road. Also, there is a 
storm water detention area located to the southwest of the gymnasium building. Water from 
around the gymnasium building and areas south of the gymnasium building will go to this 
detention pond. This overall storm water management plan was reviewed and approved by 
the Engineering Division during the site plan review of the gymnasium building in 2016. An 

Front Design of Building 

452

ITEM  43.



individual SWPPP application and permit will be required for this building, and each 
remaining building, as they are being proposed. 

 
10) Lighting Plan: While not required by the PC-2 District 

requirements, a general lighting plan has been 
submitted and appears to be satisfactory. The 
applicant has provided information showing the 
location of 9 proposed light poles to be installed in 
front of the building and within the parking lot. The 
lighting fixtures will consist of LED die-cast 
aluminum box downlights.  

 
 
11) Signage: The PC-2 District permits wall signs to cover 20% of the surface area of any one 

wall space. However, no more than two wall faces can be utilized for signage in the PC-2 
District. Wall signage is identified on the front side of the building over each tenant space 
entry.  One main freestanding entrance sign is allowed adjacent to the adjoining major 
thoroughfare. Said sign shall not exceed 20 feet in height and 200 square feet in area. A 
freestanding entrance sign was shown on the original site plan submittal for the 
gymnasium building. Signage requirements appear to be met, but will be verified at 
the time of sign permit application. 

 
TECHNICAL COMMENTS 
City technical staff, including Cedar Falls Utilities (CFU) personnel, have few comments on the 
proposed site plan. All basic utility services are available to the site. The developer is required to 
provide all utility services to the building and must coordinate those improvements with CFU 
personnel. 
 
The City Engineering Division has had comments regarding their Storm Water Pollution 
Prevention Plan (SWPPP) for the site. A number of deficiencies were noted by City staff during 
several past site visits; however, those items have been addressed by the developer. The 
developer and contractor for the site will need to address any changes that occur as 
construction continues on the site with continued maintenance, weekly inspections, seeding 
during appropriate times, and use of SWPPP approved stabilization techniques. The City is 
requiring that the developer obtain an individual SWPPP permit for each of the remaining 
buildings on the site prior to construction to help maintain control of the site during the duration 
of the remaining construction on the site.   
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
The Planning & Zoning Commission and City Staff recommend approval of the PC-2 District Site 
Plan for the construction of a new commercial building on the property. 
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
Discussion/Vote 
7/24/2019 

Chair Holst introduced the item and Mr. Graham provided background 
information. He explained that the site plan is for a new commercial building 
at 918 Viking Road that will include five different buildings. In 2016 there was 
an overall site plan approved with a gymnasium and five outbuildings. The 
proposed building is the fourth of the five. Mr. Graham displayed the site 
plan, as well as the paving, explaining that the paving has been done in 
stages as the buildings are completed. He showed renderings of the building 
design and the landscape plan. Staff recommends approval of the 8,260 
square foot retail building with any comments or direction specified by the 

453

ITEM  43.



Commission.  

Chair Holst stated that he feels that the site plan follows the previous 
iterations of the project.  

Ms. Saul made a motion to approve the Minutes as presented. Ms. Prideaux 
seconded the motion. The motion was approved unanimously with 6 ayes 
(Adkins, Holst, Leeper, Prideaux, Saul and Wingert), and 0 nays. 

 
 

  
 

454

ITEM  43.



N
Pra

irie
La

ke

S Pra
irie

Lak
e

Technology
Park

Industrial
Park

Prairie
Lakes Park

CFU
Solar

Garden

Danish Dr

Enterprise Dr

Nordic Dr

Ch
an

ce
llo

r D
r

Savannah Park Rd

We
stm

ins
ter

Dr
Viking Rd

M-1

M-2

M-1-P

R-2

A-1

PC-2

University
of Northern

Iowa

W Viking
Industrial

Park

Waterloo
Regional
Airport

Black
Hawk
Park

Cedar Falls

Hu
ds

on
Rd

Ce
da

rHe i g
hts

Dr

Waterloo Rd Rainbow Dr

Orchard Dr

V ikin

gRd

W 18th St

University Ave

Greenhill Rd

Center St

E Dunkerton Rd

W Ridgeway Ave

S M
ain

 St
Ma

in 
St

W 1st St

W 12th St

Un
ion

 R
d

E 1st St

W 27th St

NUnion Rd

Lincoln St

E Lone Tree Rd

Le
ve

rse
eR

d

®¬57

®¬58

®¬27 £¤63
£¤20

£¤218

^

Location
Map

918 Viking Road - PC-2 District
Site Plan Review

Cedar Falls City Council
August 5, 2019

455

ITEM  43.



456

ITEM  43.



457

ITEM  43.



458

ITEM  43.



459

ITEM  43.



460

ITEM  43.



461

ITEM  43.



462

ITEM  43.



463

ITEM  43.



FROST PROOF STOOP

FROST 
PROOF 
STOOP

FROST 
PROOF 
STOOP

FROST 
PROOF 
STOOP

FROST 
PROOF 
STOOP

FROST PROOF STOOP

FUTURE SLAB ON GRADE - 
SEE STRUCTURAL DRAWINGS

CONCRETE 
FLOOR SLAB @ 
MECH ROOM

FUTURE SLAB ON GRADE - 
SEE STRUCTURAL DRAWINGS

Lease Space

Kitchen Dining

FUTURE SLAB ON GRADE - 
SEE STRUCTURAL DRAWINGS

Mechanical
& Toilets

918 VIKING RD. - SHELL
Scale: 3/16" = 1'-0"

Full Building
Metal Panel - Charcoal 46%
Metal Panel - Silver 12%
Masonry - Gray  4%
Wood - Natural  6%
Painted Steel - White  7%
Fascia/Soffit - Silver  6%
Windows/Doors 19%

South Elevation
Metal Panel - Charcoal 28%
Metal Panel - Silver 16%
Masonry - Gray  4%
Wood - Natural  0%
Painted Steel - White 21%
Fascia/Soffit - Silver  5%
Windows/Doors 26%

East Elevation
Metal Panel - Charcoal 75%
Metal Panel - Silver  0%
Masonry - Gray  0%
Wood - Natural  0%
Painted Steel - White  3%
Fascia/Soffit - Silver  5%
Windows/Doors 17%

North Elevation
Metal Panel - Charcoal 28%
Metal Panel - Silver 12%
Masonry - Gray  5%
Wood - Natural 10%
Painted Steel - White 21%
Fascia/Soffit - Silver  5%
Windows/Doors 19%

West Elevation
Metal Panel - Charcoal 35%
Metal Panel - Silver 20%
Masonry - Gray  8%
Wood - Natural 10%
Painted Steel - White  2%
Fascia/Soffit - Silver  6%
Windows/Doors 19%

Material Percentages

SIGNAGE SIGNAGE

18
'-0

"
18

'-0
"

18
'-0

"

18
'-0

"

SIGNAGE

7/8" VERTICAL CORRUGATED METAL PANEL - CHARCOAL

7/8" VERTICAL CORRUGATED METAL PANEL - SILVER

ROCK FACED CEMENT MASONRY UNITS - GRAY COLOR

CUMARU WOOD SHIPLAP SIDING WITH NATURAL COLOR SEALER

GALVANIZED STEEL FRAME PAINTED BONE WHITE, 2 COATS OVER PRIMER, SEMI-GLOSS

STEEL SOFFIT AND FASCIA TRIM - SILVER

GALVANIZED STEEL CHANNEL PAINTED BONE WHITE, 2 COATS OVER PRIMER, SEMI-GLOSS

CUMARU WOOD 2 x 8 OUTLOOKERS WITH NATURAL COLOR SEALER

STANDING SEAM METAL ROOF - GALVALUME

EXTERIOR FINISH GUIDE
NOTE: ALL EXTERIOR MATERIALS MUST HAVE A SAMPLE APPROVED BY THE

ARCHITECT BEFORE MATERIALS ARE ORDERED

8 x 8 GUTTER & 4 x 6 DOWNSPOUTS - CHARCOAL

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

1

1 5

10

9

7

6

REAR ELEVATION - EAST
Scale: 1/8" = 1'-0"

SIDE ELEVATION - SOUTH
Scale: 1/8" = 1'-0"

SIDE ELEVATION - NORTH
Scale: 1/8" = 1'-0"

FRONT ELEVATION - WEST
Scale: 1/8" = 1'-0"

1

15

10

9

7

6

1

121

3

1

7

1

5

6

9

1

1

3

121

7

1

5

10

6

9

4

4

8

7

4

4

5

6

9

4

43

5

6

9

8

7

3

1

1

1 2 2

1

1 2

1

1 2

2 3

1 2

2 1

1 2

2 1

1 2

3

1 2

1

1 2

1

1 4

4

8
7

6

1

1

2

2

1

1

3

1 2

1

1

2

1

1

5

9

7

6

3

Proposed Building for:

918 VIKING ROAD

464

ITEM  43.



465

ITEM  43.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 

Administration Division 

  

  

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 TO: Mayor Brown & City Council 

 FROM: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, AICP, Director of Community Development 

 DATE: August 1, 2019 

 SUBJECT: Paver Order: Peter Melendy Park & MU2 sidewalk on 2nd St. 

 
The Community Development Department has been working on a downtown 
streetscape project for several years.  A new brick pattern for the Parkade and 
expansion to side streets has been chosen and Council recently amended our design 
contract with Snyder to add Peter Melendy Park design/construction plans and 
schematic layout for MU2’s sidewalk on 2nd St. knowing the developer is open to 
partnering with the City as they complete construction of that site.  The purpose of this 
memo is to request approval to order pavers that need to be manufactured before 
season’s end for both of the projects.   
 
The color and size of bricks needed for the downtown design are: 

 Red (Regimental Full Range) 4x8 Available 

 Grey mix:  

o Carbon Black 8x8 Not available 
o Sienna Blend 8x8 Available 

 Carbon Black 4x8 Available 

 Tan/gold brick (Wheatfield) 8x8 Not available 

 Wheatfield ADA pavers 4x8 Available 

 
The Belden Brick Company is the manufacturer recommended for the downtown 
streetscape project.  The rationale includes: 

 Matched the proposed color and pattern master plan design better than other 
manufacturers researched. (Techo-Block, Unilock, & Belden were researched.) 

 Clay fired (Belden Pavers) and concrete pavers (Unilock) were both displayed at 
the Master Plan community meeting.  General consensus was that the clay fired 
pavers looked superior in terms of color, surfacing, and quality compared to 
concrete pavers. 

466

ITEM  44.



 Clay fired pavers support the idea of “historic” and “traditional” Downtown Cedar 
Falls.  Clay fired pavers were more typically used in historic settings. 

 Participants at the Master Plan meeting raised concerns of the existing condition 
of the concrete pavers on Main Street and felt their ‘wear quality’ would be less 
favorable than clay fired pavers. Durability has also been discussed by City staff 
with the consensus being clay fired are preferred. 

 Belden manufactures the brick and sells it through local dealers.  In Iowa those 
include Midland Products in Waterloo, United Brick in Urbandale, and Kings 
Material, Inc. in Cedar Rapids. 

 
Several of the pavers are available now, but two colors/sizes need to be manufactured.  
In order to complete the MU2 sidewalk and Peter Melendy Park before winter, I am 
requesting approval to submit an order immediately.  Midland Concrete Products has 
indicated upon placing an order, manufacture would likely occur the middle of October.  
They indicate the pavers should then be available in November. 
 
The brick supply for Peter Melendy Park is 55 pallets quoted at $40,623.10.  The 
general design of the park has been shown to the Park & Recreation Commission.  The 
construction plans and public bidding process will kick off at the August 5th Council 
meeting.  A conceptual rendering of the plans is attached.  If this order is approved, 
construction plans will note the brick is being supplied by the City.  The total project is 
currently estimated to be $264,000.00 (including the brick supply). 
 
The brick supply for MU2 (2nd St. sidewalk) is 9 pallets quoted at $7,794.40.  A 
schematic design was prepared by Snyder.  The developer would install the brick to 
meet that plan and all required standards for work in the right of way.  A general plan 
was discussed at the May 20, 2019 City Council Committee of the Whole meeting.  A 
majority of Council members wished for 2nd St. to have full brick.  Council requested 
information on the difference in cost.  It is approximately $38,000 for the area in front of 
MU2.  This accounts for all brick supply, revised subbase material, labor, and a credit 
on concrete (originally planned).  Upon invoice from the developer, the City would 
reimburse for these costs with the exception of the 9 pallets of bricks noted above.   
 
Time is of the essence for both projects.  Neither will be able to finish the brick pattern 
from the streetscape plans without the two bricks that need to be manufactured.  The 
Belden Brick Company will initiate manufacturing when an order is placed, indicating 
they can be manufactured in mid-October at this point.  We are optimistic the projects 
could then be completed before winter. 
 
The City’s CIP #91: Downtown Brick Replacement anticipated a project focused on 
Main Street.  CIP #92: Downtown Streetscape Plan Implementation partners with #91.  
The levee project and downtown redevelopments have created opportunities to 
implement downtown streetscape expansion further.  The CIP will be updated to reflect 
these changes.  Funding will be certified as TIF debt for this project.  The City has 
secured a Gaming grant for a portion of CIP #91 and 92. 
 

467

ITEM  44.



This project meets Organizational Goal #4 of the City Council goals for fiscal year 2019, 
utilizing TIF to make landscaping, alley, and other streetscape improvements in the 
Downtown and College Hill. 
 
Staff requests Council authorization of payment to order bricks to complete brick pattern 
for Peter Melendy Park and E. 2nd St. sidewalk at MU2. 
 
 
Attachments: Peter Melendy Park conceptual rendering (June 20, 2019) 
  Quote for Peter Melendy Park bricks (#MCP003724) 
  Quote for remaining 2nd St. pavers at MU2 (#MCP0037246) 
 
CC:   Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance and Business Operations 
 Benjamin Claypool, Engineer II 

468

ITEM  44.



FRIDAY, JUNE 20th, 2019Downtown, Cedar Falls, Iowa 

Cedar Falls Peter Melendy Park Master Plan
GRAPHIC FOR ILLUSTRATIVE PURPOSES ONLY

DARK GRAY PAVER BAND

ORNAMENTAL GRASS TO ALIGN WITH DARK 
GRAY PAVERS 
SHRUBS/PERENNIALS 

YELLOW/TAN PAVER BAND

RED MULTI-COLOR PAVERS

CONCRETE PLANTER CURB 
EXISTING LIGHT TO REMAIN 

EXISTING PUBLIC ART TO REMAIN

BENCH 
BIKE RACKS 

PLANTER POTS

RELOCATED EXISTING 
PARK SIGN

TURF

EXISTING WALKS TO REMAIN 

1ST STREET 

M
A

IN
 S

TR
EE

T 

CEDAR RIVER

TRAFFIC SIGNAL TO 
REMAIN  

TRASH RECEPTACLE  

MULTI-COLOR GRAY PAVERS 

EXISTING STAIRS DOWN TO REMAIN

EXISTING STAIRS DOWN TO REMAIN

EXISTING LIGHT TO REMAIN 

EXSITING ELECTRIAL 
BOX TO REMAIN 

EXSITING ELECTRIAL 
BOX TO REMAIN 

N

5

SCALE 1” = 10’-0”

0  10 20

469

ITEM  44.



Quote
Quote No.: MCP003724

MCP-Waterloo
4802 Sergeant Road
Waterloo, IA 50701
319-226-3700

Quote Date: 7/25/2019
Customer ID: 100658
Employee: Funk, Cody

BILL TO: SHIP TO:
City of Cedar Falls
2200 Technology Pkwy
Cedar Falls IA 50613

City of Cedar Falls
2200 Technology Pkwy
Cedar Falls IA 50613

CUSTOMER P.O. NO. TERMS CONTACT
Peter Melendy Park (revised) Due End Of Next Month cfunk@midland-cp.com

FOB POINT SHIPPING TERMS SHIP VIA
Cost and Freight

ITEM QTY. UOM NET PRICE WEIGHT EXTENDED PRICE
22290000000-NS:   City Line Standard Paver 
with chamfer and lugs (4x8x2.25") - Regimental 
Full Range Color - (Plant 2)

2820.00 EA 0.7700 17,766 2,171.40

NOTE: 6.3lbs each. 470 units (104sf) per bundle = 2961lbs
Order in full pallets only. Not returnable.

22290000000-NS:   City Line Standard Paver 
with chamfer and lugs (4x8x2.25") - Carbon 
Black Color - (Plant 2)

4230.00 EA 1.0700 26,649 4,526.10

NOTE: 6.3lbs each. 470 units (104sf) per bundle = 2961lbs
Order in full pallets only. Not returnable.

22290000000-NS:   City Line Standard 
8x8x2.25" Paver chamfered edge no lugs - 
Carbon Black Color - (Plant 2)

3600.00 EA 2.5900 44,640 9,324.00

NOTE: 12.4lbs each. 240 units (106sf) per bundle = 2976lbs
Order in full pallets only. Not returnable.

22290000000-NS:   City Line Standard 
8x8x2.25" Paver chamfered edge no lugs - 
Sienna Blend Color - (Plant 2)

3600.00 EA 2.5900 44,640 9,324.00

NOTE: 12.4lbs each. 240 units (106sf) per bundle = 2976lbs
Order in full pallets only. Not returnable.

22290000000-NS:   City Line Standard 
8x8x2.25" Paver chamfered edge no lugs - 
Wheatfield Color - (Plant 2)

2160.00 EA 2.5900 26,784 5,594.40

NOTE: 12.4lbs each. 240 units (106sf) per bundle = 2976lbs
Order in full pallets only. Not returnable.

22290000000-NS:   City Line Standard ADA 
Paver chamfered edge no lugs (4x8x2.25")  - 
Wheatfield Color - (PLANT 6)

480.00 EA 1.8400 2,736 883.20

NOTE: 5.7lbs each. 480 units (106sf) per bundle = 2736lbs
Order in full pallets only. Not returnable.

FREIGHT (NT):   Freight (Non-Taxable) 4.00 EA 2,200.0000 8,800.00

NOTE: Freight rate for 48,000lbs from Suger Creek, OH to Cedar Falls, IA. City of Cedar Falls is responsible for unloading.
ORDER TOTALS 55 PALLETS - FIGURE 
ROUGHLY 4X4' FOR EACH PALLET.
QUANTITIES ROUNDED UP TO NEAREST 
PALLET PER SNYDER AND ASSOCIATES 
ESTIMATED SQUARE FOOTAGES. PLEASE 
VERIFY BEFORE ORDERING.

Continued... Page: 1 of 2470

ITEM  44.



Quote
Quote No.: MCP003724

MCP-Waterloo
4802 Sergeant Road
Waterloo, IA 50701
319-226-3700

Quote Date: 7/25/2019
Customer ID: 100658
Employee: Funk, Cody

BILL TO: SHIP TO:
City of Cedar Falls
2200 Technology Pkwy
Cedar Falls IA 50613

City of Cedar Falls
2200 Technology Pkwy
Cedar Falls IA 50613

CUSTOMER P.O. NO. TERMS CONTACT
Peter Melendy Park (revised) Due End Of Next Month cfunk@midland-cp.com

FOB POINT SHIPPING TERMS SHIP VIA
Cost and Freight

ITEM QTY. UOM NET PRICE WEIGHT EXTENDED PRICE

Total Weight (LBS): 163,215 Sales Total: 40,623.10
Freight & Misc.: 0.00
Less Discount: 0.00
Tax Total: 0.00

Quoted Pricing Valid For 30 Days Total (USD): 40,623.10

Page: 2 of 2471

ITEM  44.



Midland Concrete Products, LLC

GENERAL POLICIES

Each item below is subject to change based on subjects and terms.  Midland Concrete Products, LLC will work with each 
client to reach a satisfactory outcome.

No allowance will be given after products have been installed.

Our responsibility will not exceed our selling price of the merchandise to our customer.

All shortages, damages product problems or exceptions of any kind must be noted on a delivery ticket or brought to the 
attention of your salesperson or dispatcher within 48 hours of product delivery.

Sales tax will be charged on all applicable items unless you have a customer account and a tax exempt certificate on file 
with our accounting office.  Cash (non-account) customers must notify the sales staff of tax exempt status when ordering.

Payment terms are cash, check or credit card or open customer account.  All orders must be prepaid.  No C.O.D. orders 
will be accepted.

We reserve the right to protect our mechanic's lien on all unpaid balances.

We assess a $30.00 charge on all returned checks.

We will charge $125.00 per hour for detention of all loads on-site that are not unloaded within an hour of arrival.

A second delivery charge may apply if we have to redeliver or come back to move product.

Prices are subject to change without notice.

Due to inherent characteristics of concrete, color may vary slightly.  No guarantee of color or shade is made or implied.

RETURN POLICY

All returns or warranty claims must be accompanied by the original sales receipt, and are subject to a restocking fee.

Due to the nature of the product, we do not accept returns of bagged goods (i.e. cement products, mortar color, or 
polymeric sand products).

We do not accept returns of special order products or items originally sold as seconds.

No returns accepted after 60 days of original purchase date.

Pallet deposits will only be refunded if the pallets are returned in reusable condition, accompanied by a proof of purchase.

Refunds for cash accounts will be applied to credit card used for purchase or will be issued by a check in approximately 
10 business days.

472

ITEM  44.



Quote
Quote No.: MCP003726

MCP-Waterloo
4802 Sergeant Road
Waterloo, IA 50701
319-226-3700

Quote Date: 7/25/2019
Customer ID: 100658
Employee: Funk, Cody

BILL TO: SHIP TO:
City of Cedar Falls
2200 Technology Pkwy
Cedar Falls IA 50613

City of Cedar Falls
2200 Technology Pkwy
Cedar Falls IA 50613

CUSTOMER P.O. NO. TERMS CONTACT
2nd Street (revised) Due End Of Next Month cfunk@midland-cp.com

FOB POINT SHIPPING TERMS SHIP VIA
Cost and Freight

ITEM QTY. UOM NET PRICE WEIGHT EXTENDED PRICE
22290000000-NS:   City Line Standard 
8x8x2.25" Paver chamfered edge no lugs - 
Carbon Black Color - (Plant 2)

720.00 EA 2.5900 8,928 1,864.80

NOTE: 12.4lbs each. 240 units (106sf) per bundle = 2976lbs
Order in full pallets only. Not returnable.

22290000000-NS:   City Line Standard 
8x8x2.25" Paver chamfered edge no lugs - 
Sienna Blend Color - (Plant 2)

720.00 EA 2.5900 8,928 1,864.80

NOTE: 12.4lbs each. 240 units (106sf) per bundle = 2976lbs
Order in full pallets only. Not returnable.

22290000000-NS:   City Line Standard 
8x8x2.25" Paver chamfered edge no lugs - 
Wheatfield Color - (Plant 2)

720.00 EA 2.5900 8,928 1,864.80

NOTE: 12.4lbs each. 240 units (106sf) per bundle = 2976lbs
Order in full pallets only. Not returnable.

FREIGHT (NT):   Freight (Non-Taxable) 1.00 EA 2,200.0000 2,200.00

NOTE: Freight rate for 48,000lbs from Suger Creek, OH to Cedar Falls, IA. City of Cedar Falls is responsible for unloading.
ORDER TOTALS 9 PALLETS - FIGURE 
ROUGHLY 4X4' FOR EACH PALLET.
QUANTITIES ROUNDED UP TO NEAREST 
PALLET PER SNYDER AND ASSOCIATES 
ESTIMATED SQUARE FOOTAGES. PLEASE 
VERIFY BEFORE ORDERING.

Total Weight (LBS): 26,784 Sales Total: 7,794.40
Freight & Misc.: 0.00
Less Discount: 0.00
Tax Total: 0.00

Quoted Pricing Valid For 30 Days Total (USD): 7,794.40

Page: 1 of 1473

ITEM  44.



Midland Concrete Products, LLC

GENERAL POLICIES

Each item below is subject to change based on subjects and terms.  Midland Concrete Products, LLC will work with each 
client to reach a satisfactory outcome.

No allowance will be given after products have been installed.

Our responsibility will not exceed our selling price of the merchandise to our customer.

All shortages, damages product problems or exceptions of any kind must be noted on a delivery ticket or brought to the 
attention of your salesperson or dispatcher within 48 hours of product delivery.

Sales tax will be charged on all applicable items unless you have a customer account and a tax exempt certificate on file 
with our accounting office.  Cash (non-account) customers must notify the sales staff of tax exempt status when ordering.

Payment terms are cash, check or credit card or open customer account.  All orders must be prepaid.  No C.O.D. orders 
will be accepted.

We reserve the right to protect our mechanic's lien on all unpaid balances.

We assess a $30.00 charge on all returned checks.

We will charge $125.00 per hour for detention of all loads on-site that are not unloaded within an hour of arrival.

A second delivery charge may apply if we have to redeliver or come back to move product.

Prices are subject to change without notice.

Due to inherent characteristics of concrete, color may vary slightly.  No guarantee of color or shade is made or implied.

RETURN POLICY

All returns or warranty claims must be accompanied by the original sales receipt, and are subject to a restocking fee.

Due to the nature of the product, we do not accept returns of bagged goods (i.e. cement products, mortar color, or 
polymeric sand products).

We do not accept returns of special order products or items originally sold as seconds.

No returns accepted after 60 days of original purchase date.

Pallet deposits will only be refunded if the pallets are returned in reusable condition, accompanied by a proof of purchase.

Refunds for cash accounts will be applied to credit card used for purchase or will be issued by a check in approximately 
10 business days.

474

ITEM  44.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 
 FROM: Ben Claypool, Civil Engineer II, PhD, EI 
 
 DATE: August 1, 2019 
 
 SUBJECT: 2019 Peter Melendy Park Renovation Project 
  Project No. PI-039-3208 
  Request for PS&E Approval 
 
Submitted within for City Council approval are the Plans, Specifications, and Estimate of 
Costs and Quantities for the 2019 Peter Melendy Park Renovation Project. 
 
I would recommend setting Monday, August 19th, 2019 at 7:00 p.m. as the date and 
time for the public hearing on this project and Tuesday, August 27th, 2019 at 2:00 p.m. 
as the date and time for receiving and opening bids. I would also request that the Notice 
to Bidders be published by August 9, 2019. The Plans and Specifications will be ready 
for distribution to contractors on August 9, 2019 allowing more than two (2) weeks of 
review before contract letting. 
 
This project involves the renovation of Peter Melendy Park. The renovation will include 
the installation of approximately 730 square yards of brick pavers of assorted colors 
(supplied by the City), approximately 470 square yards of PCC sidewalk removal, tree 
plantings, amenities and sodding. 
 
The total estimated cost for the construction of this project is $264,000. The project will 
be funded utilizing TIF.  
 
The Plans, Specifications, and Estimate of Costs and Quantities are available for your 
review at the City Clerk's office or the Engineering Division of the Community 
Development Department. 
 
 
xc: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Community Development 
 Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 

475

ITEM  45.



��������
�����	�	
��
��

��


��


����� ���� �� ���� ���� ������ ����� ��

�� 
� !"�� #��
$
� !"�� #��
$

����� ���� �% ��& '()'�� !� '*(')+ ��*��� ��

,"�-
�" #��
$
� !�," #��
$

.���� ���� �% �.& '()'�� !/00 �)�+ �

��.�-
�� #��
$
. !11� #��
$

2���� ���� �3 ��3 45�6�+� '� !�� �))�.

,"�-
�" #��
$
� !��" #��
$

"���� ���� �� �� �� ���� �7 ��(���+� '�

81" -
" #��
$
2 !��" #��
$

1���� ���� �9 �� ��� �)� !�: !�� ����:; ������+ �

81" -
�. #��
$
�� !"2" #��
$

,���� ���� �� ��� '*(�5+� '�& �)+� ��

�� 
� !��� #��
$
� !��� #��
$

�.��� ���� �% ��< �(� �5�*��+ '0= �)��+ ��� �> �5?0���@ �+ ��� ��

����-
�� #��
$
� !22� #��
$

8"��� ���� �A ��B �� 6�;�C �)+ *��+

23;
"�� #��
$
� !��� #��
$

��,��� ���� �9 ��7��7 �6�*��+ �*(� �)���& �)+� ��

�� 
� !��� #��
$
� !��� #��
$

��,�.� ���� �; ��< �*'6�� '0 �� �D��?

2�, -
�� #��
$
2 !�,� #��
$

��,�.� ���� �� �� E ����= )�7 �+E !��F !":

�� -
"" #��
$
� !"2� #��
$

�.,�.� ���� �G ��> �� 5?H7 �6�� �� �D��? D�+E� ����� ��> �)�

"22 -
�1� #��
$
�� !��� #��
$

�2,�.� ���� �G ��> �� 5?H7 �6�� �� �D��? D�+E< �� �0 '�5���:7 �6�*��+> �)�

2� -
��� #��
$
� !��� #��
$

�",�2� ���� �A ��7 �6�*��+< �*'6��

�1 -
� #��
$
��� #��
$

�1��.� ���� �; ��& �*('���I& ��00� 5� '�+ �'�

�� 
� !"�� #��
$
� !"�� #��
$

�,8��� ���� �; �� '�

�8� J
��� #��
$
�8 !��� #��
$

��8�.� ���� �� ��7� ��+ )

�� 
"1 !��� #��
$
"1 !��� #��
$

�88�2� ���� �& ��9 �� �+7 �'+ �5+� '�% �6� 5� !

23;
," #��
$
.�� #��
$

��8�2� ���� �& ��9 �� �+7 �'+ �5+� '�% �6� 5� !@ �� �+ ����5�

23;
�� #��
$
�� #��
$

���� !��� ���� �;@ '���� K�+� '�

�� 
." !��� #��
$
." !��� #��
$

���� !�"� ���� �; ���� �E+� ��

�� 
� !"�� #��
$
� !"�� #��
$

�.�� !�1� ���� �; ��; *���+� �)

�� 
�. !��� #��
$
�. !��� #��
$  ��+ '+ �� )L�12 !�81 #��

$
�M��NO�M��	
�	P QRST UVVV WVV
X

����
����

M
���M�MY
�
MZ�ZN�
�M[�
���M\�\

���] �M W���]�M	�

���]

������ ^VVV_̀aV
����
]�N��	�
��
b���Mc���M� ����MY��	�

�Y�NN\ �3%;<G;�� !9; ��� #��,2 #��A

476

ITEM  45.



 ADMINISTRATION 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

  

   

 

 

 
 

 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 

 FROM: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator 

 DATE: August 1, 2019 

SUBJECT:      Sale of Lot 3, West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase II, City of Cedar 
Falls, Black Hawk County, Iowa (Contains 1.25 acres more or less). 

 
 
I would like to request that a public hearing be scheduled for August 19, 2019 to 
address the proposed transfer of the above referenced City owned real estate to 
Strickler Properties, L.C. The proposed project would consist of a new 6,000 sf. 
office/storage facility to be constructed along the Development Drive, south of Venture 
Way in the West Viking Road Industrial Park. Additional information pertaining to the 
land transaction and the Agreement for Private Development will be provided to City 
Council prior to the public hearing. 
 
If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me. 
 
         
        
 
 
 

477

ITEM  46.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Prepared by: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613, (319) 268-5160 

 

 

RESOLUTION NO. ______ 

 

RESOLUTION SETTING DATE OF PUBLIC HEARING (1) TO CONSIDER 

ENTERING INTO A PROPOSED AGREEMENT FOR PRIVATE DEVELOPMENT 

BETWEEN THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, AND STRICKLER PROPERTIES, 

L.C.; AND (2) TO CONSIDER CONVEYANCE OF CERTAIN CITY-OWNED REAL 

ESTATE PURSUANT TO SAID PROPOSED AGREEMENT 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, has received a proposal from 

Strickler Properties, L.C., an Iowa limited liability company (the “Developer”), to enter into a proposed 

Agreement for Private Development (the "Agreement") between the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, and 

Strickler Properties, L.C. on terms which include: 

 

(1) Conveyance of certain city-owned real estate legally described as consisting of all that 

certain parcel or parcels of land located generally in the City of Cedar Falls, County of 

Black Hawk, State of Iowa, more particularly described as follows: 

 

Lot 3, West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase II, City of Cedar Falls, Black 

Hawk County, Iowa (Contains 1.25 acres more or less). 
 

(the “Development Property”); 

and  

 

(2) Entering into a Minimum Assessment Agreement whereby the minimum actual taxable 

value of the land and improvements to be constructed on the Development Property would be 

established at an amount not less than $721,675.00 for a period through December 31, 2031.  

 

 WHEREAS, as required by law, a hearing is to be held by the City Council of the City of Cedar 

Falls, Iowa, to consider entering into the proposed Agreement for Private Development and conveyance 

of the Development Property to the Developer pursuant to the terms of said Agreement.  

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, that a hearing be held on the 19
th

  day of August, 2019, at 7:00 p.m., in the 

Council Chambers of the City Hall of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa, 

to consider entering into a proposed Agreement for Private Development between the City of Cedar 

478

ITEM  46.



Falls, Iowa, and Strickler Properties, L.C., and to consider conveyance of the Development Property to 

the Developer on certain terms as set forth in the proposed agreement.  A copy of the proposed 

agreement is on file in the Office of the Cedar Falls City Clerk.  The City Clerk is hereby directed to 

publish said notice of said public hearing. 

 

ADOPTED this _____ day of _____________, 2019. 

 

   

  James P. Brown, Mayor 
   

ATTEST:   
   

   

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk   

 

  

479

ITEM  46.



CERTIFICATE 

 

 

STATE OF IOWA   ) 

     ) SS: 

COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK: ) 

 

 

I, Jacqueline Danielsen, City Clerk of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, hereby certify that the above 

and foregoing is a true and correct typewritten copy of Resolution No. _______________ duly and 

legally adopted by the City Council of said City on the _____ day of ____________________, 2019. 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto signed my name and affixed the official seal of the 

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa this _____ day of ____________________, 2019. 

   

  

Jacqueline Danielsen 

City Clerk of Cedar Falls, Iowa 

 

480

ITEM  46.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Prepared by: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613, (319) 243-2713 

 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING (1) TO CONSIDER ENTERING INTO A 

PROPOSED AGREEMENT FOR PRIVATE DEVELOPMENT BETWEEN THE 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, AND STRICKLER PROPERTIES, L.C., AND 

(2) TO CONSIDER CONVEYANCE OF CERTAIN CITY-OWNED REAL 

ESTATE TO STRICKLER PROPERTIES, L.C., PURSUANT TO SAID 

PROPOSED AGREEMENT 

 

To Whom It May Concern: 

 

Notice is hereby given that on the 19
th 

 day of August, 2019, at 7:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers of 

the City Hall, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa, a Public Hearing will be held by the City Council of 

said City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, on a proposal from Strickler Properties, L.C., an Iowa limited liability 

company (the “Developer”), to enter into a proposed Agreement for Private Development between the 

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, and Strickler Properties, L.C., on terms which include: 

 

(1) Conveyance of certain city-owned real estate legally described legally described as 

consisting of all that certain parcel or parcels of land located generally in the City of 

Cedar Falls, County of Black Hawk, State of Iowa, more particularly described as 

follows: 

 

Lot 3, West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase II, City of Cedar Falls, Black 

Hawk County, Iowa (Contains 1.25 acres more or less). 
 

(the “Development Property”); 

and 

 

(2) Entering into a Minimum Assessment Agreement whereby the minimum actual taxable 

value of the land and improvements to be constructed on the Development Property would be 

established at an amount not less than $721,675.00 for a period through December 31, 2031. 

 

A copy of the proposed agreement is on file in the Office of the Cedar Falls City Clerk. 

 

Any interested party may appear at the time and place of hearing and be heard, or may file written 

objections with the City Clerk on or before the date and time of said hearing. 

 

481

ITEM  46.



This notice is given pursuant to Resolution No. ________________ by the City Council of the City of 

Cedar Falls, Iowa on the _____ day of ____________, 2019. 
 

 

   

  

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

 

 

 

482

ITEM  46.



1 
 

ADMINISTRATION 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 

 FROM: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator 
 

 DATE: August 1, 2019 

 SUBJECT: Ordinance for Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal 
Plan (Amendment No. 5 Area) 

 
On December 17, 2018, City Council approved Amendment No. 5 to the Cedar Falls 
Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Plan. The primary objective of Amendment 
No. 5 was to add property to the Urban Renewal Area, specifically an area just west of 
the City’s West Viking Road Industrial Park, and to update and modify the status and 
budget figures of certain previously identified projects within the Urban Renewal Area. If 
Council may remember, the City recently acquired 200 acres of farm ground within this 
area in order to continue the development and expansion of the city’s industrial park. 
 
Along with the adoption of the Amendment No. 5 in December of 2018, a Tax Increment 
Ordinance also needs to be adopted, which implements the collection of tax increment 
revenues from the parcels of property that are located within the Amendment area. Once 
approved, the effective date of the Ordinance will start the 20-year sunset clock on the 
ability to collect increment within the Amendment area. 
 
With the above information noted, a copy of the proposed Ordinance is attached for your 
review. Also attached is a map that shows the Amendment No. 5 area that is part of this 
Ordinance. The Ordinance and related documents were drafted by City staff in 
coordination with the Ahlers Law Office in Des Moines. 
 
I recommend that City Council adopt the following: 
 

1. An Ordinance amending Ordinance No. 1923, 2122, 2461, 2696, 2785, and 
2923, providing that general property taxes levied and collected each year on all 
property located within the amended Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor 
Urban Renewal Area, in the City of Cedar Falls, County of Black Hawk, State of 
Iowa, by and for the benefit of the State of Iowa, City of Cedar Falls, County of 
Black Hawk, Cedar Falls Community School District, Dike-New Hartford 
Community School District, and other taxing districts, be paid to a special fund for 
payment of principal and interest on loans, monies advanced to and 

483

ITEM  47.



2 
 

indebtedness, including bonds issued or to be issued, incurred by the City in 
connection with the amended Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban 
Renewal Area (Amendment No. 5 to the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor 
Urban Renewal Plan). 

 
If you have any questions pertaining to this memorandum, please feel free to let me 
know. 
 
xc: Ron Gaines, P.E., City Administrator 
 Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance and Business Operations 

 

484

ITEM  47.



Hudson Rd

W Ridgeway Ave

Westminster Dr

U.S. Highway 20

Highway 58

Technology Pkwy

Highway 58

Chancellor Dr

Nordic Dr

ILegend

Cedar Falls Corporate Limits

Unified Hwy 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Area

South Cedar Falls Urban Renewal Area

Recent Expansion Area

485

ITEM  47.



 

 -1- 

ORDINANCE NO. __________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 1923, 2122, 

2461, 2696, 2785, AND 2923, PROVIDING THAT GENERAL 

PROPERTY TAXES LEVIED AND COLLECTED EACH YEAR 

ON ALL PROPERTY LOCATED WITHIN THE AMENDED 

CEDAR FALLS UNIFIED HIGHWAY 58 CORRIDOR URBAN 

RENEWAL AREA, IN THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, 

COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK, STATE OF IOWA, BY AND 

FOR THE BENEFIT OF THE STATE OF IOWA, CITY OF 

CEDAR FALLS, COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK, CEDAR 

FALLS COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, HUDSON 

COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, DIKE-NEW HARTFORD 

COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, AND OTHER TAXING 

DISTRICTS, BE PAID TO A SPECIAL FUND FOR PAYMENT 

OF PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST ON LOANS, MONIES 

ADVANCED TO AND INDEBTEDNESS, INCLUDING BONDS 

ISSUED OR TO BE ISSUED, INCURRED BY THE CITY IN 

CONNECTION WITH THE AMENDED CEDAR FALLS 

UNIFIED HIGHWAY 58 CORRIDOR URBAN RENEWAL 

AREA (AMENDMENT NO. 5 TO THE CEDAR FALLS 

UNIFIED HIGHWAY 58 CORRIDOR URBAN RENEWAL 

PLAN) 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, has heretofore, in 

Ordinance No. 1923, 2122, 2461, 2696, 2785, and 2923, provided for the division of taxes within 

the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Area ("Area" or "Urban Renewal 

Area"), pursuant to Section 403.19 of the Code of Iowa; and 

 

WHEREAS, taxable property now has been added to the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 

Corridor Urban Renewal Area through the adoption of Amendment No. 5 to the Cedar Falls 

Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Plan; and 

 

WHEREAS, indebtedness has been incurred by the City, and additional indebtedness is 

anticipated to be incurred in the future, to finance urban renewal project activities within the 

amended Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Area, and the continuing 

needs of redevelopment within the amended Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban 

Renewal Area are such as to require the continued application of the incremental tax resources of 

the amended Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Area; and 

 

WHEREAS, the following enactment is necessary to accomplish the objectives described 

in the premises. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF CEDAR FALLS, STATE OF IOWA, THAT: 

 

486

ITEM  47.



 

 -2- 

Ordinance Number(s) 1923, 2122, 2461, 2696, 2785, and 2923 are hereby amended to 

read as follows: 

 

Section 1. For purposes of this Ordinance, the following terms shall have the following 

meanings: 

a) Industrial Park Urban Renewal Area means that portion of the City of Cedar Falls, 

State of Iowa, described in the Urban Renewal Plan for the Cedar Falls Industrial Park Urban 

Renewal Area approved by Resolution No. 8196 on the 12th day of November, 1990, which 

Area includes the lots and parcels located within the area legally described as follows: 

Beginning at the intersection of the West right-of-way line of the proposed 

Relocated Highway #58 and the east-west centerline of Section 36 Township 89 

North Range 14 West of the 5
th

 Principal Meridian, Cedar Falls, Iowa.  Thence 

Northerly along said West right-of-way line to the South line of Eldorado Heights 

3
rd

 Addition to said City of Cedar Falls; thence Westerly along said South line 

extended to the West line of Section 25 T89N R14W; thence Southerly to the East 

1/4 corner of Section 26 T89N R14W; thence Southwesterly to the Southeast 

corner of Viking Hills 2
nd

 Addition; thence South to the SW corner of the SE 1/4 

of the SE 1/4 of Section 26 T89N R14W; thence Easterly on the South line of said 

section 26 to a point 630 feet West of the Southeast corner of said Section 26; 

thence Southerly parallel with the east line of Section 35 T89N R14W a distance 

of 700 feet; thence Easterly parallel with the North line of said Section 35 a 

distance of 310 feet; thence Southerly to a point 350 feet South and 310 feet West 

of the Southwest corner of the Industrial Park Plat; thence Easterly to the West 

line of Section 36; thence Southerly to the West 1/4 corner of said Section 36; 

thence Easterly to the point of beginning.  Except, the creek running along the 

west boundary and all lands lying west of said creek. 

 

b) Expanded Industrial Park Urban Renewal Area Amendment No. 1 (1995) means that 

portion of the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, described in the Urban Renewal Plan for the 

Cedar Falls Expanded Industrial Park Urban Renewal Area Amendment No. 1 (1995) approved 

by Resolution No. 10,224 on the 13
th

 day of November, 1995, which Area includes the lots and 

parcels located within the area legally described as follows: 

 
All of Sections 35 and 36, Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the Fifth P.M. 

and that part of Sections 2 and 3, Township 88 North, Range 14 West of the Fifth 

P.M. lying North of U.S. Highway No. 20. 

 

And also that part of the West 2 of Section 25, Township 89 North, Range 14 

West of the Fifth P.M. lying West of Iowa Highway No. 58. 

 

And also that part of the East 2 of the southeast 1/4 of Section 26, Township 89 

North, Range 14 West of the Fifth P.M. described as beginning at the East 1/4 

corner of said Section 26; thence Southwest to the Southeast corner of Viking 

Hills 2
nd

 Addition; thence South to the Southwest corner of the Southeast 1/4 of 

487

ITEM  47.



 

 -3- 

the Southeast 1/4 of said Section 26; thence East to the Southeast corner of said 

Section 26; thence North to the point of beginning. 

 

Except that portion described as follows: 

 

Beginning at the intersection of the West right-of-way line of the proposed 

Relocated Highway #58 and the east-west centerline of Section 36 Township 89 

North Range 14 West of the 5
th

 Principal Meridian, Cedar Falls, Iowa.  Thence 

Northerly along said West right-of-way line to the South line of Eldorado Heights 

3
rd

 Addition to said City of Cedar Falls; thence Westerly along said South line 

extended to the West line of Section 25 T89N R14W; thence Southerly to the East 

1/4 corner of Section 26 T89N R14W; thence Southwesterly to the Southeast 

corner of Viking Hills 2
nd

 Addition; thence South to the SW corner of the SE 1/4 

of the SE 1/4 of Section 26 T89N R14W; thence Easterly on the South line of said 

Section 26 to a point 630 feet West of the Southeast corner of said Section 26; 

thence Southerly parallel with the east line of Section 35 T89N R14W a distance 

of 700 feet; thence Easterly parallel with the North line of said Section 35 a 

distance of 310 feet; thence Southerly to a point 350 feet South and 310 feet West 

of the Southwest corner of the Industrial Park Plat; thence Easterly to the West 

line of Section 36; thence Southerly to the West 1/4 corner of said Section 36; 

thence Easterly to the point of beginning.  Except, the creek running along the 

west boundary and all lands lying west of said creek. 

 

c) Industrial Park Urban Renewal Area Amendment No. 2 (2003) means that portion of 

the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, described in the Urban Renewal Plan for the Cedar Falls 

Industrial Park Urban Renewal Area Amendment No. 2 (2003) approved by Resolution No. 

13862 on the 17
th

 day of November, 2003, which Area includes the lots and parcels located 

within the area legally described as follows: 

 

The Northeast Quarter (NE1/4) and the North One-half (N1/2) of the North One-

half (N1/2) of the Southeast Quarter (SE1/4) of Section Thirty-four (34), 

Township Eighty-nine (89) North, Range Fourteen (14) West of the 5th P.M., 

Black Hawk County, Iowa, except the following described parcels: 

 

Parcel 1:  The East Eight Hundred Forty-three (843) feet of the West One 

Thousand Eighty-three (1,083) feet of the North Five Hundred Fifty (550) feet of 

the Northeast Quarter (NE1/4) of Section Thirty-four (34), Township Eighty-nine 

(89) North, Range Fourteen (14) West of the 5th P.M., Black Hawk County, 

Iowa; 

 

Parcel 2:  The West Two Hundred Forty (240) feet of the North Five Hundred 

Fifty (550) feet of the Northeast Quarter (NE1/4) of Section Thirty-four (34), 

Township Eighty-nine (89) North, Range Fourteen (14) West of the 5th P.M. 

Black Hawk County, Iowa; and 

 

488

ITEM  47.



 

 -4- 

Parcel 3:  Commencing at the Northeast corner of the said Section 34; thence 

South 00 degrees 39 minutes 19 seconds East, on the East line of the Northeast 

Quarter of Section 34, 70.00 feet, to the point of beginning; thence continuing 

South 00 degrees 39 minutes 19 seconds East on the East line of the Northeast 

Quarter of said Section 34, 1,888.00 feet; thence South 89 degrees 19 minutes 13 

seconds West, 85.00 feet; thence North 00 degrees 39 minutes 19 seconds West, 

1,888.00 feet, to the present South right-of-way line of Viking Road; thence North 

89 degrees 19 minutes 13 seconds East, on the present South right-of-way line of 

Viking Road, 85.00 feet, to the point of beginning. The East line of the Northeast 

Quarter of said Section 34 is assumed to bear South 00 degrees 39 minutes 19 

seconds East for the purpose of this description, and 

 

A parcel of land located in the Northeast 1/4 of the Northeast 1/4 and the 

Southeast 1/4 of the Northeast 1/4 of Section 34, Township 89 North, Range 14 

West of the Fifth Principal Meridian, Black Hawk County, Iowa, more 

particularly described as follows: 

 

Commencing at the Northeast corner of said Section 34; thence South 0039’19” 

East on the East line of the Northeast 1/4 of said Section 34 a distance of 70.00 

feet to the point of beginning of the parcel herein described; thence continuing 

South 0039’19” East on the East line of the Northeast 1/4 of said Section 34 a 

distance of 1,888.00 feet; thence South 8919’13” West a distance of 85.00 feet; 

thence North 0039’19” West a distance of 1,888.00 feet to the present South 

right-of-way line of Viking Road; thence North 8919’13” East on the present 

South right-of-way line of Viking Road a distance of 85.00 feet to the point of 

beginning; containing 3.68 acres. 

 

Basis of Bearings: The East line of the Northeast 1/4 of said Section 34 is 

assumed to bear South 0039’19” East for the purpose of this description. 

 

A parcel of land located in the Northeast 1/4 of the Northeast 1/4 of Section 34, 

Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the Fifth Principal Meridian, Black Hawk 

County, Iowa, more particularly described as follows: 

 

Beginning at the Northeast corner of said Section 34; thence South 0039’19” 

East on the East line of the Northeast 1/4 of said Section 34 a distance of 70.00 

feet; thence South 8919’13” West a distance of 85.00 feet; thence North 

8054’49” West a distance of 218.13 feet to the present South right-of-way line of 

Viking Road; thence North 0040’47” West a distance of 33.00 feet to the North 

line of the Northeast 1/4 of said Section 34; thence North 8919’13” East on the 

North line of the Northeast 1/4 of said Section 34 a distance of 300.00 feet to the 

point of beginning; containing 0.39 acre, of which 0.23 acre is within existing 

road right-of-way. 

 

Basis of Bearings: The East line of the Northeast 1/4 of said Section 34 is 

assumed to bear South 0039’19” East for the purpose of this description. 

489

ITEM  47.



 

 -5- 

 
d) Northern Cedar Falls Industrial Park Urban Renewal Area (2009) means that portion 

of the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, described in the Urban Renewal Plan for the Northern 

Cedar Falls Industrial Park Urban Renewal Area (2009) approved by Resolution No. 16,631 on 

the 28
th

 day of September, 2009, which Area includes the lots and parcels located within the area 

legally described as follows: 

 

That part of Section 6 and Section 7, Township 89 North, Range 13 West and that 

part of Section 31, Township 90 North, Range 13 West of the Fifth P.M. in the 

City of Cedar Falls, Black Hawk County, Iowa described as beginning at the 

Northeast corner of the Southeast Quarter of said Section 31; thence Southerly 

along the East line of said Southeast Quarter to the Southeast corner of said 

Southeast Quarter; thence continue Southerly along the East line of said Section 6 

to the Southeast corner of said Section 6; thence continue Southerly along the 

East line of said Section 7 to the South Right-of-way line of Lincoln Street; 

thence Westerly along said South Right-of-way line to the Easterly Right-of-way 

line of U.S. Highway 218; thence Northerly along said Easterly Right-of-way line 

to the Easterly Right-of-way line of U.S. Highway 218; thence Northerly along 

said Easterly Right-of-way line to the North line of the Southeast Quarter of said 

Section 31; Thence Easterly along said North line to the point of beginning. 

 

e) Amendment No. 1 to the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal 

Area means that portion of the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, described in Amendment No. 1 

to the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Plan approved by Resolution 

No. 18,377 on the 10
th

 day of December, 2012, which Amendment No. 1 Area includes the lots 

and parcels located within the area legally described as follows: 

 

South of the present North Right-of-way line U.S. Highway 20, described as 

follows: 

All that part of the Northwest fractional 1/4 and the Northeast fractional 1/4 of 

Section 3, Township 88 North, Range 14 West of the 5th Principal Meridian lying 

South of the present North Right-of-way line of US Highway 20 and all that part 

of the Northwest fractional 1/4 and the Northeast fractional 1/4 of Section 2, 

Township 88 North, Range 14 West of the 5th Principal Meridian lying south of 

the present North Right-of-way line of US Highway 20, all in the City of Cedar 

Falls, County of Black Hawk, State of Iowa.  

 

And also, 

 

North of the centerline of Viking Road, described as follows: 

A parcel of land situated in part of the Southeast 1/4 of Section 25, Township 89 

North, Range 14 West of the 5th Principal Meridian, City of Cedar Falls, County 

of Black Hawk, State of Iowa, described as follows: 

 

Beginning at the Southeast corner of said Section 25; Thence Northerly on the 

East line of said Section 25, to the present North Right-of-way line of East Viking 

490

ITEM  47.



 

 -6- 

Road; Thence Westerly on the present North Right-of-way line of East Viking 

Road to the East line of GENCOM Addition, an official plat in the City of Cedar 

Falls, Iowa; Thence Southerly on said East line and the Southerly prolongation of 

said East line to the South line of said Section 25; Thence Easterly on said South 

line to the point of beginning. 

 

And also, 

 

North of the centerline of Viking Road, described as follows: 

 

A parcel of land situated in part of the Southwest 1/4 of the Southeast 1/4 of 

Section 26, Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the 5
th

 Principal Meridian, 

City of Cedar Falls, County of Black Hawk, State of Iowa, described as follows: 

 

Beginning at the Southeast corner of the Southwest 1/4 of the Southeast 1/4 of 

said Section 26; Thence Northerly on the East line of the Southwest 1/4 of the 

Southeast 1/4 of said Section 26 to the present North Right-of-way line of West 

Viking Road; Thence Westerly on the present North Right-of-way line of  West 

Viking Road to the present East Right-of-way line of Hudson Road; Thence South 

on a line that is normal to the South line of said Section 26, Township 89 North, 

Range 14 West of the 5th P.M., to the South line of said Section 26; Thence 

Easterly on said South line to the point of Beginning. 

 

And also, 

 

Northeast 1/4 of Section 26, Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M., 

described as follows: 

 

A parcel of land situated in part of the Northeast 1/4 of Section 26, Township 89 

North, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M., City of Cedar Falls, County of Black 

Hawk, State of Iowa, described as follows: 

 

Beginning at the Southeast Corner of the Northeast 1/4 of said Section 26, Thence 

Westerly on the South line of the Northeast 1/4 of said Section 26, a distance of 

270.00 feet; Thence northerly to the Southeast corner of Greenhill Village Fourth 

Addition, an official plat in the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa; Thence Northeasterly 

on the Easterly line of said Greenhill Village Fourth Addition to the Southeasterly 

corner of Greenhill Village Sixth Addition, an official plat in the City of Cedar 

Falls, Iowa; Thence Northeasterly on the Easterly line of said Greenhill Village 

Sixth Addition to the East line of the Northeast 1/4 of said Section 26; Thence 

Southerly on said East line to the point of beginning. 

 

And also, 

 

From Viking Road to the North line of Sections 25 Township 89 North, Range 14 

West of the 5th P.M. (Greenhill Road), described as follows: 

491

ITEM  47.



 

 -7- 

 

A parcel of land situated in part of Section 25, Township 89 North, Range 14 

West of the 5th Principal Meridian, City of Cedar Falls, County of Black Hawk, 

State of Iowa, described as follows: 

 

Commencing at the Southeast corner of said Section 25; Thence westerly on the 

South line of said Section 25, a distance of 1878.5 feet to the point of beginning 

of the parcel of land herein described; Thence Northerly on a line that is normal to 

the South line of said Section 25, to the present North Right-of-way line of East 

Viking Road; Thence Westerly on the present North Right-of-way line of East 

Viking Road to the Southwest corner of Blain’s Corner, an official plat in the City 

of Cedar Falls, Iowa (the Southwest of Blain’s Corner is on the present North 

Right-of-way line of East Viking Road); Thence Northerly and Northwesterly and 

Northerly on the West line of said Blain’s Corner to the Northwest corner of said 

Blain’s Corner; Thence Westerly on the Westerly prolongation of the North line 

of said Blain’s Corner and the North line of Cedar Falls Industrial Park Phase III, 

an official plat in the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, to the present Easterly Right-of-

way line of Iowa Highway 58; Thence Northwesterly and Northerly and 

Northeasterly on the present Easterly Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 58, to 

the present South Right-of-way line of Greenhill Road; Thence Easterly on the 

present South Right-of-way line of Greenhill Road to the Northwesterly Right-of-

way line of the former Chicago, Great Western Railway Company property; 

Thence Northeasterly on said Northwesterly Right-of-way line to the North line 

of the Northwest 1/4 of said Section 25, Township 89 North, Range 14 West of 

the 5th P.M.; Thence Westerly on said North line to the present Westerly Right-

of-way line of Iowa Highway 58; Thence Southerly and Southeasterly and 

Southerly on the present Westerly Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 58 to the 

South line of said Section 25; thence Easterly on the South line of said Section 25 

to the point of beginning. 

 

And also, 

 

From the North line of Section 25, Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the 5th 

P.M. (Greenhill Road) to the North line of Section 24, Township 89 North, Range 

14 West of the 5th P.M. (University Avenue), described as follows: 

 

Beginning at the intersection of the Northwesterly Right-of-way line of the former 

Chicago, Great Western Railway Company property and the North line of the 

Northwest 1/4 of Section 25, Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M.; 

Thence Westerly on said North line to the Northeast corner of Section 26, 

Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M.; Thence Westerly on the 

North line of the Northeast 1/4 of said Section 26 to the Southerly prolongation of 

the West line of the East 40 acres of the East 1/2 of the Southeast 1/4 of Section 

23, Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M.; Thence Northerly on said 

West line to the present North Right-of-way line of Greenhill Road; Thence 

Easterly on the present North Right-of-way line of Greenhill Road to the present 

492

ITEM  47.



 

 -8- 

Westerly Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 58; Thence Northeasterly on the 

present Westerly Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 58 to the North line of the 

Northeast 1/4 of Section 24, Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M.; 

Thence Easterly on said North line to the present Easterly Right-of-way line of 

Iowa Highway 58; Thence Southwesterly on the present Easterly Right-of-way 

line of Iowa Highway 58 to the present North Right-of-way line of Greenhill 

Road; Thence Easterly on the present North Right-of-way line of Greenhill Road 

to the Northwesterly Right-of-way line of the former Chicago, Great Western 

Railway Company property; Thence Southwesterly on the Northwesterly Right-

of-way line of the former Chicago, Great Western Railway Company property to 

the point of beginning; all in the City of Cedar Falls, County of Black Hawk, 

State of Iowa. 

 

And also, 

 

From the North line of Section 24, Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the 5th 

P.M. (University Avenue) to the Southwesterly Right-of-way line of the Iowa 

Northern Railway, described as follows: 

 

Beginning at the intersection of the North line of the Northeast 1/4 of Section 24, 

Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M. and the Southerly 

prolongation of a line that is 100.00 feet West of and parallel with the West line 

of Lot 45 in Fairvalley Addition, an official plat in the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa; 

Thence Northerly on the Southerly prolongation of said parallel line and said 

parallel line to the present North Right-of-way line of University Avenue; Thence 

Easterly on the North Right-of-way line of University Avenue to the present 

Westerly Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 58; Thence Northerly on the 

Westerly Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 58 to the present South Right-of-

way line of East Seerley Boulevard; Thence Westerly on the present South Right-

of-way line of East Seerley Boulevard to the Northerly prolongation of the West 

line of Lot 46 in said Fairvalley Addition; Thence Northerly on the Northerly 

prolongation of the West line of Lot 46 in said Fairvalley Addition to the present 

North Right-of-way line of East Seerley Boulevard; Thence Westerly on the 

present North Right-of-way line of east Seerley Boulevard to the present East 

Right-of-way line of Main Street; Thence Northerly on the present East Right-of-

way line of Main Street to the present South Right-of-way line of East 22nd 

Street; Thence Easterly on the present South Right-of-way line of East 22nd 

Street and its Easterly prolongation to the present Westerly Right-of-way line of 

Iowa Highway 58; Thence Northerly on the present Westerly Right-of-way line of 

Iowa Highway 58 to the East line of Taylor 2nd Addition, an official plat in the 

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa; Thence Northerly on said East line to the South line of 

Block 16 in said Taylor 2nd Addition; Thence Westerly on said South line to the 

East line of the West 1/2 of said Block 16; Thence Northerly on said East line to 

the present South Right-of-way line of East 17th Street; Thence Westerly on the 

present South Right-of-way line of East 17th Street to the present East Right-of-

way line of State Street; Thence Northerly on the present East Right-of-way line 

493

ITEM  47.



 

 -9- 

of State Street to the present South Right-of-way line of East 15th Street; Thence 

Easterly on the present South Right-of-way line of East 15th Street to the present 

East Right-of-way line of Bluff Street; Thence Northerly on the present East 

Right-of-way line of Bluff Street to the present South Right-of-way line of East 

14th Court; Thence Easterly on the present South Right-of-way line of East 14th 

Court to the West line of Behrens’ Addition, an official plat in the City of Cedar 

Falls, Iowa; Thence Southerly on said West line to the South line of said Behrens’ 

Addition; Thence Easterly on the South line of said Behrens’ Addition, 34.50 feet 

to the Southwesterly corner of the parcel of land described in City Lot Deed Book 

619, Page 476 and recorded in the Black Hawk County Recorder’s Office; Thence 

Northeasterly on the Northwesterly line of the parcel of land described in City Lot 

Deed Book 619, Page 476 and recorded in the Black Hawk County Recorder’s 

Office and its Northeasterly prolongation to the present Northeasterly Right-of-

way line of Waterloo Road; Thence Northwesterly on the present Northeasterly 

Right-of-way line of Waterloo Road to the present Southeasterly Right-of-way 

line of Utility Parkway; Thence Northeasterly on the present Southeasterly Right-

of-way line of Utility Parkway to the point of intersection of the present 

Southeasterly Right-of-way line of Utility Parkway and the Southerly 

prolongation of the West line of Lot 6 of Block 6 in T. Mullarky’s Addition (part 

vacated), an official plat in the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa; Thence Northerly on the 

Southerly prolongation of the West line of said Lot 6 to the Southwesterly corner 

of said Lot 6; Thence Easterly on the South line of said Lot 6 to the Easterly 

Right-of-way line of the Wisconsin Iowa and Nebraska Railroad Company (later 

the Chicago, Great Western Railway Company now the Northwestern 

Transportation Company); Thence Northerly on the Easterly Right-of-way line of 

the former Wisconsin Iowa and Nebraska Railroad Company (later the Chicago, 

Great Western Railway Company now the former Northwestern Transportation 

Company) to the present South Right-of-way line of East 9th Street; Thence 

Easterly on the present South Right-of-way line of East 9th Street to the present 

Southwesterly Right-of-way line of the Iowa Northern Railway Company’s 

property; Thence Southeasterly on the present Southwesterly Right-of-way line of 

the Iowa Northern Railway Company’s property to the present Southeasterly 

Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 58; Thence Southwesterly on the present 

Southeasterly Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 58 to the present North Right-

of-way line of Grand Boulevard; Thence Westerly on the present North Right-of-

way line of Grand Boulevard to the Northerly prolongation of the present West 

Right-of-way line of East Street; Thence Southerly on the Northerly prolongation 

of the present West Right-of-way line of East Street and the West Right-of-way 

line of East Street to the Southeasterly Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 58; 

Thence Southwesterly on the present Southeasterly Right-of-way line of Iowa 

Highway 58 to the present Northeasterly Right-of-way line of Waterloo Road; 

Thence continuing Southwesterly on the present Southeasterly Right-of-way line 

of Iowa Highway 58 to the North line of Lot 534 in Pacific Addition, an official 

plat in the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa; Thence Westerly on said North line to a 

point that is 85.00 feet Easterly of the Northwest corner of said Lot 534; Thence 

Southerly to a point that is on the North line of Lot 2 in Block 2 of Bixby’s 

494

ITEM  47.



 

 -10- 

Subdivision, an official plat in the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, and 85.53 feet 

(85.00 feet record) Easterly of the Northwest corner of said Lot 2; Thence 

Easterly on the North line of Lots 2 and 1 in said Block 2 of Bixby’s Subdivision 

to the present Southwesterly Right-of-way line of Waterloo Road; Thence 

Southeasterly on the present Southwesterly Right-of-way line of Waterloo Road 

to the present West Right-of-way line of East Street; Thence Southerly on the 

present West Right-of-way line of East Street to the present Northerly Right-of-

way line of 18th Street; Thence continuing Southerly on the present West Right-

of-way line of East Street to the present South Right-of-way line of East 19th 

Street; Thence Westerly on the present South Right-of-way line of East 19th 

Street to a line that is 12.50 feet West of and parallel with the East line of Lots 

550, 551, 552 and 553 of said Pacific Addition; Thence Southerly on said parallel 

line to the South line of the North 58.00 feet of Lot 551 of said Pacific Addition; 

Thence Westerly on said South line to the East line of Lot 526 of said Pacific 

Addition; Thence Southerly on the East line of Lots 526 and 525 to the South line 

of said Pacific Addition, also being the North line of the Southeast 1/4 of Section 

13, Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M.; Thence Westerly on the 

South line of said Pacific Addition and the North line of Southeast 1/4 of said 

Section 13 and the North line of Galloway Addition, an official plat in the City of 

Cedar Falls, Iowa, to the present Easterly Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 58; 

Thence Southerly on the Easterly Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 58 to the 

Westerly line of Lot 4 of said Fairvalley Addition; Thence continuing Southerly 

on the present Easterly Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 58, also being the 

Westerly line of Lot 4 of said Fairvalley Addition, to the present North Right-of-

way line of Seerley Boulevard; Thence Southerly to the Northeast corner of Lot 

41 of said Fairvalley Addition, being on the present South Right-of-way line of 

Seerley Boulevard; Thence Westerly, 44.45 feet on the present South Right-of-

way line of Seerley Boulevard, also being the North line of Lot 41 of said 

Fairvalley Addition to the present Easterly Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 

58; Thence Southerly on the present Easterly Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 

58 to the North line of the Northeast 1/4 of Section 24, Township 89 North, 

Range 14 West of the 5th P.M; Thence Westerly on said North line to the point of 

beginning; all in the City of Cedar Falls, County of Black Hawk, State of Iowa. 

 

And also, 

 

From the Iowa Northern Railway in Section 18, Township 89 North, Range 13 

West of the 5th P.M. to Lincoln Street, described as follows: 

 

Beginning at the intersection of the present Southwesterly Right-of-way line of 

the Iowa Northern Railway Company’s property in the Northwest 1/4 of Section 

18, Township 89 North, Range 13 West of the 5th P.M. and the present 

Northwesterly Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 58; Thence Northeasterly and 

Northwesterly and Northeasterly on the present Northwesterly Right-of-way line 

of Iowa Highway 58 and the present Northwesterly Right-of-way line of U.S. 

Highway 218 to the present North Right-of-way line of Lincoln Street; Thence 

495

ITEM  47.



 

 -11- 

Easterly on the present North Right-of-way line of Lincoln Street to the Easterly 

Right-of-way line of U.S. Highway 218; Thence South on the present Right-of-

way line of U.S. Highway 218 to the present South Right-of-way line of Lincoln 

Street, also being the Northwest corner of Maplewood Addition, an official plat in 

the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa; Thence Southerly on the West line of said 

Maplewood Addition and its Southerly prolongation to the South line of the 

Northwest 1/4 of the Northeast 1/4 of Section 7, Township 89 North, Range 13 

West; Thence Easterly on said South line to the present Easterly Right-of-way 

line of U.S. Highway 218; Thence Southeasterly on the present Easterly Right-of-

way line of U.S. Highway 218 to the present Easterly city limits of the City of 

Cedar Falls, Iowa; Thence Southerly on the present Easterly city limits of the City 

of Cedar Falls, Iowa, to the present South Right-of-way line of U.S. Highway 

218; Thence Southwesterly on present South Right-of-way line of U.S. Highway 

218 and the present Southeasterly Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 58, also 

being the present Easterly city limits of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, to the 

center of the Cedar River; Thence Southwesterly on the present Southeasterly 

Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 58 to the present Southwesterly Right-of-way 

line of the Iowa Northern Railway Company’s property in the Northwest 1/4 of 

Section 18, Township 89 North, Range 13 West of the 5th P.M. Thence 

Northwesterly on the present Southwesterly Right-of-way line of the Iowa 

Northern Railway Company’s property in the Northwest 1/4 of Section 18, 

Township 89 North, Range 13 West of the 5th P.M. to the point of beginning, all 

in the City of Cedar Falls, County of Black Hawk, State of Iowa. 

 

f) Amendment No. 2 to the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal 

Area did not add or remove land. 

 

g) Amendment No. 3 to the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal 

Area did not add or remove land. 

 

h) Amendment No. 4 to the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal 

Area means that portion of the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, described in Amendment No. 4 

to the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Plan approved by Resolution 

No. 21,079 on the 7
th

 day of May, 2018, which Amendment No. 4 Area removed the lots and 

parcels located within the area legally described as follows: 

 

That part of Section 35, Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the 5th Principal 

Meridian, described as follows: 

 Commencing at the Northwest corner of said Section 35; 

 thence along the West line of said Section 35 South to the Southerly right 

of way line of Viking Road, being the Point of Beginning; 

 thence along said Southerly right of way to the Northwest corner of Parcel 

D described in Plat of Survey recorded in File 2018-00009903 in the Office of the 

Black Hawk County Recorder; 

 thence along the Westerly line of said Parcel D South to the South line of 

the North 700 feet of said Section 35; 

496

ITEM  47.



 

 -12- 

 thence along said Westerly line of said Parcel D and along said South line 

of the North 700 feet East to the West line of the East 320 feet of the Northwest 

Quarter of the Northwest Quarter of said Section 35; 

 thence along the Westerly line of said Parcel D and along said West line of 

the East 320 feet of the Northwest Quarter of the Northwest Quarter South to the 

Northwest corner of Cedar Falls Industrial Park Phase 9; 

 thence along the West line of said Cedar Falls Industrial Park Phase 9 

South to the Northwest corner of Cedar Falls Industrial Park Phase 13; 

 thence along the West line of said Cedar Falls Industrial Park Phase 13 

South to the Northwest corner of Lot 4 in Cedar Falls Technology Park Phase 1; 

 thence along the West line of said Lot 4 South to the Northerly right of 

way line of Technology Parkway; 

 thence along said Northerly right of way line Westerly to the West line of 

said Section 35; 

 thence along said West line North to the Point of Beginning; 

 

and also, 

 

That part of Section 36, Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the 5th Principal 

Meridian and that part of Section 2, Township 88 North, Range 14 West of the 

5th Principal Meridian, described as follows: 

 Commencing at the Northeast corner of said Section 36; 

 thence along the East line of said Section 36 South to the Northerly right 

of way line of Viking Road, being the Point of Beginning; 

 thence along the East line of said Section 36 South to the Southeast corner 

of said Section 36; 

 thence along the South line of said Section 36 West to the Northeast 

corner of said Section 2; 

thence along the East line of said Section 2 South to the Northerly right of 

way line of U.S. Highway 20; 

thence along said Northerly right of way line Westerly to the Easterly right 

of way line of Iowa Highway 58; 

thence along said Easterly right of way line Northerly to the Southerly 

right of way line of Ridgeway Avenue; 

thence Northerly to the Southwest corner of Parcel No. 1 as described in 

Land Deed Book 563 Page 674 in the Office of the Black Hawk County Recorder, 

point being on the Southerly right of way line of Ridgeway Avenue; 

thence along the Westerly line of said Parcel No. 1 Northerly to the 

Southeast corner of Parcel No. 3 as described in in Land Deed Book 559 Page 446 

in the Office of the Black Hawk County Recorder; 

thence along the Easterly line of said Parcel No. 3 Northerly to the 

Southeasterly corner of Tract B as described in Land Deed Book 558 Page 715 in 

the Office of the Black Hawk County Recorder; 

thence along the Easterly line of said Parcel B Northerly to the South line 

of Tract A as described in said Land Deed Book 558 Page 715; 

thence along said South line East to the Southeast corner of said Tract A; 

497

ITEM  47.



 

 -13- 

thence along the East line of said Tract A North to the Southeast corner of 

a parcel of land described in Land Deed Book 559 Page 532 in the Office of the 

Black Hawk County Recorder; 

thence along the Easterly line of said parcel of land described in Land 

Deed Book 559 Page 532 Northerly to the Southwest corner of East Viking Plaza 

Addition; 

thence along the Westerly line of said East Viking Plaza Addition 

Northerly to the Southwesterly corner of Tract B in said East Viking Plaza 

Addition; 

thence along the Southeasterly line of said Tract B Northeasterly to the 

Northeasterly corner of said Tract B, being on the Southerly right of way line of 

Viking Road; 

thence along said Southerly right of way line Easterly to the Point of 

Beginning; 

 

and also, 

 

South of the present North right-of-way line U.S. Highway 20, described as 

follows: 

All that part of the Northwest fractional ¼ and the Northeast fractional ¼ of 

Section 3, Township 88 North, Range 14 West of the 5th Principal Meridian lying 

South of the present North Right-of-way line of US Highway 20 and all that part 

of the Northwest fractional ¼ and the Northeast fractional ¼ of Section 2, 

Township 88 North, Range 14 West of the 5th Principal Meridian lying south of 

the present North Right-of-way line of US Highway 20, all in the City of Cedar 

Falls, County of Black Hawk, State of Iowa; 

 

and also, 

 

That part of Section Nos. 35 and 36, lying in Township 89 North, Range 14 West 

of the 5th Principal Meridian and that part of Section No. 2 and 3, Township 88 

North, Range 14 West of the 5th Principal Meridian, described as follows: 

 Commencing at the Northwest corner of said Section 35; 

 thence along the West line of said Section 35 South to the Northerly right 

of way line of Technology Parkway, being the Point of Beginning; 

 thence along said Northerly right of way line Easterly to the Northerly 

extension of the Westerly line of Lot 20 in Cedar Falls Technology Park Phase 2; 

thence along said extension Southwesterly to the Northwesterly corner of 

said Lot 20; 

thence along the Westerly line of said Lot 20 Southwesterly to the South 

line of said Cedar Falls Technology Park Phase 2; 

thence along the South line of said Cedar Falls Technology Park Phase 2 

East to the Southeasterly corner of Lot 19 in said Cedar Falls Technology Park 

Phase 2; 

thence along the Easterly line of said Lot 19 Northwesterly to Southerly 

right of way line of said Technology Parkway; 

498

ITEM  47.



 

 -14- 

thence along said Southerly right of way line Easterly to the Easterly right 

of way line of Waterway Avenue; 

thence along said Easterly right of way line Southeasterly to the South line 

of said Cedar Falls Technology Park Phase 2; 

thence along said South line East to the Northwest corner of Tract B in 

Ridgeway Park Addition, point also being the Northwest right of way corner of 

Commerce Drive; 

thence along the Northerly right of way line of said Commerce Drive East 

to the Northerly extension of the East line of said Ridgeway Park Addition; 

thence along said Northerly extension South to the Northeast corner of 

said Ridgeway Park Addition; 

thence along the East line of said Ridgeway Park Addition South to the 

Northerly right of way line of Ridgeway Avenue; 

thence along said Northerly right of way line Easterly to the Easterly right 

of way line of Iowa Highway 58; 

thence along said Easterly right of way line Southerly to the Northerly 

right of way line of U.S. Highway 20; 

thence along said Northerly right of way line Westerly to the West line of 

said Section 3; 

thence along said West line North to the Northwest corner of said Section 

3; 

thence along the North line of said Section 3 East to the Southwest corner 

of said Section 35; 

thence along the West line of said Section 35 to the Point of Beginning. 

 

i) Amendment No. 5 to the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal 

Area means that portion of the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, described in Amendment No. 5 

to the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Plan approved by Resolution 

No. 21,368 on the 17
th

 day of December, 2018, which Amendment No. 5 Area includes the lots 

and parcels located within the area legally described as follows: 

 

Viking Road ROW (North side): 

The South thirty-three (33) feet of Section twenty-seven (27), Township 

eighty-nine (89) North, Range fourteen (14) West, except that part of Viking 

Road right of way contained within the city limits of Cedar Falls lying in the 

Southeast Quarter (SE1/4) of said Section twenty-seven (27);  

 

And also, 

 

S Union Road ROW (West side): 

The East thirty-three (33) feet of the North three-quarters (3/4) of Section 

thirty-three (33), Township eighty-nine (89) North, Range fourteen (14) West, 

and the South thirty-three (33) feet of the East thirty-three (33) feet of Section 

twenty-eight (28), Township eighty-nine (89) North, Range fourteen (14) West, 

except the South thirty-three (33) feet of the East three hundred and twenty-eight 

and ninety-two hundredths (328.92) feet; 

499

ITEM  47.



 

 -15- 

 

And also, 

 

The Northwest Quarter (NW1/4) of Section thirty-four (34), Township 

eighty-nine (89) North, Range fourteen (14) West; 

 

And also, 

 

The Northwest Quarter (NW1/4) of the Northeast Quarter (NE1/4) of 

Section thirty-four (34), Township eighty-nine (89) North, Range fourteen (14) 

West, except West Viking Road Industrial Park Phases 1 & 2; 

 

And also, 

 

The North one-half (N1/2) of the Southwest Quarter (SW1/4) of Section 

thirty-four (34), Township eighty-nine (89) North, Range fourteen (14) West. 

 

j) Amended Area means that portion of the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, included 

within the Industrial Park Urban Renewal Area, the Expanded Industrial Park Urban Renewal 

Area Amendment No. 1 (1995), the Industrial Park Urban Renewal Area Amendment No. 2 

(2003), the Northern Cedar Falls Industrial Park Urban Renewal Area (2009), the Amendment 

No. 1 to Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Area, and the Amendment 

No. 5 to Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Area, except the portions 

removed by Amendment No. 4 to the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal 

Area, which Amended Area includes the lots and parcels located within the area legally 

described in Subsections (a)-(i). 

 

Section 2. The taxes levied on the taxable property in the Amended Area, legally 

described in Section 1 hereof, by and for the benefit of the State of Iowa, County of Black Hawk, 

Iowa, Cedar Falls Community School District, Hudson Community School District, Dike-New 

Hartford Community School District, and all other taxing districts from and after the effective 

date of this Ordinance shall be divided as hereinafter in this Ordinance provided. 

Section 3. As to the Industrial Park Urban Renewal Area, that portion of the taxes which 

would be produced by the rate at which the tax is levied each year by or for each of the taxing 

districts taxing property in such Area upon the total sum of the assessed value of the taxable 

property in such Area as shown on the assessment roll as of January 1, 1989, being January 1 of 

the calendar year preceding the effective date of Ordinance No. 1923, shall be allocated to and 

when collected be paid into the fund for the respective taxing district as taxes by or for the taxing 

district into which all other property taxes are paid.  The taxes so determined shall be referred 

herein as the "base period taxes" for such area. 

As to Expanded Industrial Park Urban Renewal Area (1995) Amendment No. 1 Area, 

base period taxes shall be computed in the same manner using the total assessed value shown on 

the assessment roll as of January 1, 1994, being the first day of the calendar year preceding the 

effective date of Ordinance No. 2122, minus the total assessed value shown on the assessment 

500

ITEM  47.



 

 -16- 

role as of January 1, 1994 for the taxable property removed from the area by Amendment No. 4 

to the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Area.   

 

As to Cedar Falls Industrial Park Urban Renewal Area (2003) Amendment No. 2 Area, 

base period taxes shall be computed in the same manner using the total assessed value shown on 

the assessment roll as of January 1, 2002, being the assessment roll applicable to property in such 

area as of January 1 of the calendar year preceding the effective date of Ordinance No. 2461. 

 

 As to the Northern Cedar Falls Industrial Park Urban Renewal Area (2009), that portion 

of the taxes which would be produced by the rate at which the tax is levied each year by or for 

each of the taxing districts upon the total sum of the assessed value of the taxable property in 

such Area, as shown on the assessment roll as of January 1, 2009, such date being January 1 of 

the calendar year preceding the first calendar year in which the City of Cedar Falls, State of 

Iowa, certified to the Auditor of Black Hawk County, Iowa the amount of loans, advances, 

indebtedness, or bonds payable from the division of property tax revenue for such Area. 

 

 As to Amendment No. 1 to the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal 

Area, base period taxes shall be computed using the total assessed value shown on the 

assessment roll as of January 1, 2012, being the assessed value applied to property in such area 

as of January 1 of the calendar year preceding the effective date of Ordinance No. 2785. 

 

 As to Amendment No. 5 to the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal 

Area, base period taxes shall be computed using the total assessed value shown on the 

assessment roll as of January 1, 2018, being the assessed value applied to property in such area 

as of January 1 of the calendar year preceding the effective date of this Ordinance. 

 
Section 4. That portion of the taxes each year in excess of the base period taxes for the 

Amended Area, determined for each sub-area thereof as provided in Section 3 of this Ordinance, 

shall be allocated to and when collected be paid into the special tax increment fund previously 

established by the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, to pay the principal of and interest on loans, 

monies advanced to, or indebtedness, whether funded, refunded, assumed or otherwise, including 

bonds issued under authority of Section 403.9 or Section 403.12 of the Code of Iowa, incurred 

by the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, to finance or refinance, in whole or in part, urban 

renewal projects undertaken within the Amended Area pursuant to the Urban Renewal Plan, as 

amended, except that (i) taxes for the regular and voter-approved physical plant and equipment 

levy of a school district imposed pursuant to Iowa Code Section 298.2  and taxes for the 

instructional support program of a school district imposed pursuant to Iowa Code Section 

257.19  (but in each case only to the extent required under Iowa Code Section 403.19(2)); (ii) 

taxes for the payment of bonds and interest of each taxing district; (iii)  taxes imposed under 

Iowa Code Section 346.27(22) related to joint county-city buildings; and (iv) any other 

exceptions under Iowa Code Section 403.19 shall be collected against all taxable property within 

the Amended Area without any limitation as hereinabove provided. 

Section 5. Unless or until the total assessed valuation of the taxable property in the areas 

of the Amended Area exceeds the total assessed value of the taxable property in the areas shown 

by the assessment rolls referred to in Section 3 of this Ordinance, all of the taxes levied and 

collected upon the taxable property in the Amended Area shall be paid into the funds for the 

501

ITEM  47.



 

 -17- 

respective taxing districts as taxes by or for the taxing districts in the same manner as all other 

property taxes. 

Section 6. At such time as the loans, monies advanced, bonds and interest thereon and 

indebtedness of the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, referred to in Section 4 hereof have been 

paid, all monies thereafter received from taxes upon the taxable property in the Amended Area 

shall be paid into the funds for the respective taxing districts in the same manner as taxes on all 

other property. 

Section 7. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions of this 

Ordinance are hereby repealed.  The provisions of this Ordinance are intended and shall be 

construed so as to continue the division of taxes from property within the various subareas, under 

the provisions of Section 403.19 of the Code of Iowa, as authorized in Ordinance No. 1923, 

2122, 2461, 2696, 2785, and 2923 as amended by this Ordinance.  Notwithstanding any 

provisions in any prior Ordinances or other documents, the provisions of this Ordinance and all 

prior Ordinances relating to the Urban Renewal Area, as amended, shall be construed to continue 

the division of taxes from property within the Amended Area to the maximum period of time 

allowed by Section 403.19 of the Code of Iowa.  In the event that any provision of this 

Ordinance shall be determined to be contrary to law it shall not affect other provisions or 

application of this Ordinance which shall at all times be construed to fully invoke the provisions 

of Section 403.19 of the Code of Iowa with reference to the Amended Area and the territory 

contained therein. 

Section 8. This Ordinance shall be in effect after its final passage, approval and 

publication as provided by law. 

PASSED AND APPROVED this __________ day of _______________, 2019. 

  

 

  

Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

  

City Clerk 

 

 

Read First Time: ____________________, 2019 

 

Read Second Time: __________________, 2019 

 

Read Third Time: ___________________, 2019 

 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED: ____________________, 2019. 

 

502

ITEM  47.



 

 -18- 

I, ____________________, City Clerk of the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, hereby 

certify that the above and foregoing is a true copy of Ordinance No. __________ passed and 

approved by the City Council of the City at a meeting held ____________________, 2019, 

signed by the Mayor on ____________________, 2019, and published in the Waterloo-Cedar 

Falls Courier on ____________________, 2019. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(SEAL) 

 

 

 

City Clerk, City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa 

01596006-1\10283-163 

503

ITEM  47.


	Top
	1. Regular Meeting of July 15, 2019.
	190715MINUTES

	2. Public Hearing - 2019 Sidewalk Assessment
	1. 2019 Sidewalk Assessment Zone 2 PH Memo

	3. Resolution approving SW Assessment Project plans
	4. PH - Vacate pedestrian trail access easement
	1 CC staff report for Western Home easement vacation on 8-5-19
	2 Pedestrian Trail Access Easement Vac Map
	3 Pedestrian Trail Access Easement Vac. Plat Rev1
	CC Easement Vacation Resolution - Western Home 8-5-19

	5. Resolution vacating easement
	6. Public Hearing - ACOH, LLC Partial Property Tax Abatement Ordinance
	1_Council Memo for Tax Exemption 08-05-19-ACOH-FINAL
	2_ACOH, LLC Site Map
	Ord-PPTE ACOH

	7. Ordinance for Public Hearing - ACOH
	8. Public Hearing - Buckeye Corrugated, Inc. Partial Property Tax Abatement Ordinance
	1_Council Memo for Tax Exemption 08-05-19-Buckeye-FINAL
	2_Site Map
	Ord-PPTE Buckeye

	9. Ordinance for Public Hearing - Buckeye
	10. Public Hearing - FN Investors, LLC Partial Property Tax Abatement Ordinance
	1_Council Memo for Tax Exemption 08-05-19-FN Investors-FINAL
	2_FN Investors, LLC Site Map
	Ord-PPTE FN Investors

	11. Ordinance for Public Hearing - FN Investors
	12. Ord. 2949-Public events
	2949-Public Events

	13. Resignation of Evan Renfro as a member of the Library Board of Trustees
	Renfro - Library Board Resignation

	14. 7/15/19 Committee of the Whole Minutes
	Comm of the Whole 07 15 19

	15. City-CFU Joint Meeting 7-22-19
	City-CFU Joint meeting minutes-07-22-19

	16. Monthly Report - June 2019
	Monthly Report - June 2019

	17. Temporary signs - CMS-Downtown Shuttle
	1 CMS bus shuttle cc memo temporary sign permit 7-30-19
	2 CMS downtown shuttle sign request

	18. Special Events for 8/05/19 Council
	1-Special Event Request Council Memo
	a-Street closures - Fondo - 8-17-19
	b-Parking variance - Campus St - 8-19-19
	c-Street closure - West 5th St - 8-31-19
	d-Scott Sterrett Memorial Half Marathon - 9-7-19
	e-Lot G Closure - Pear Fair &amp; Oktoberfest

	19. Tobacco Permits 8/05/19
	08052019 Tobacco Applications

	20. Liquor Licenses 8/05/19
	Liquor Beer 8-5-19

	21. Easement Agreement - Sidewalk Café at 311 Main Street
	Sidewalk Café - 311 Main Street

	22. Betterment Grant-Beaus Blessings
	1-Memo-Betterment Grants
	2-Beaus Blessing

	23. Betterment Grant-Community Theatre
	Community Theatre

	24. Betterment Grant-Historical Society
	Historical Society

	25. Betterment Grant-HusomeStrong Foundation
	HomeStrong Foundation

	26. Betterment Grant-Volunteer Center
	Volunteer Center

	27. Betterment Grant-Symphony Orchestra
	Symphony Orchestra

	28. W. 1st Street Acquisition-Relocation Assistance
	1.council memo on w 1st street
	2.0689_001

	29. Form of Contract - South Main Street Parking Lot Project
	1. South Main Street Parking Lot Memo
	2. Form of Contract
	3. Performance, Payment, and Maintenance Bond
	4. Certificate of Insurance
	5. Form of Proposal

	30. Contract for Completion - Western Homes 9th Addition
	1. Contract for Completion Memo - Western Homes 9th Addition
	2. Contract for Completion
	3. Exhibit A - Legal Description and Final Plat
	4. Exhibit B - Estimate
	5. Exhibit C - Cash Escrow Agreement
	6. Exhibit D - Maintenance Bond

	31. Contract for Completion - Park Ridge Estates
	1. Contract for Completion Memo - Park Ridge Estates
	2. Contract for Completion
	3. Exhibit A - Legal Description and Final Plat
	4. Exhibit B - Estimate
	5. Exhibit C - Performance and Payment Bond
	6. Exhibit D - Maintenance Bond

	32. Supplemental Agreement #9 - 2019 Engineering Services
	1. Supplemental Agreement #9 - Engineering Services Memo
	2. Supplemental Agreement  9-CutePDF

	33. Low Bid - 2019 Bridge Maintenance Project
	1. 2019 Bridge Maintenance
	2. 2019 Bridge maintenance bids

	34. Cedar Heights Drive Reconstruction - TSIP Agreement
	1. Memo - Cedar Heights Recon TSIP
	2. TSIP_CedarHeights-Greenhill_Item-A_Resolution
	3. TSIP_CedarHeights-Greenhill_AppForm
	4. TSIP_CedarHeights-Greenhill_DRAFT-CutePDF

	35. Resolution approving the Rules of Procedure amendment for the Cedar Falls Board of Adjustment
	1 city council memo on BOA rule of procedure meeting change on 8-5-19
	2 BOA Rules of Procedure May 2019
	3 resolution for the BOA rules of procedure on 8-5-19

	36. Final plat of Park Ridge Estates
	1_P&amp;Z staff report for park ridge estates fp on 7-11-19
	2 zoning location map
	3 Park Ridge Estates Final Plat
	4 Deed of Dedication
	5 Conservation Easement

	37. Final plat for the Western Home Communities Ninth Addition
	1 CC staff report for Western Home 9th Final Plat on 7-10-19
	2 ZoningLocationMap
	3 WHC 9th Final Plat 6-10 b
	4 Deed of Dedication 9th Addn

	38. Greenhill Village Townhome II, Phase I - Final Plat
	1. CC Staff report FP for Greenhill Village Townhomes II
	2. 5638 Final Plat Sheet 1 - 7-30-19 NB
	3. 5638 Final Plat Sheet 2 - 6-27-19 CGA Plan FULLY UPDATED
	4. signed deed of dedication
	5. Approved Prel Plat
	6. Proposed Greenhill Village Townhomes Site Plan (Phase 1)
	7. landscape plan updated 2-26-19
	8. Proposed Elevations Combined

	39. Greenhill Village Townhomes-Site plan
	1 CC Staff report Site Plan for Greenhill Village Townhomes II, Phase I
	2. Greenhill Village Townhomes Site Plan Submittal (Phase 1) 01-23-2019
	3. landscape plan updated 2-26-19
	4. Elevations Combined
	5. Greenhill Village Frnt Rendering
	6. Greenhill Village Back Rendering - No Trees
	7. Greenhill Village Backyard Rendering
	8. Greenhill Village Back Rendering - Trees
	9. 5638 Final Plat Sheet 2 - 6-27-19 CGA Plan FULLY UPDATED
	10. Approved Greenhill Villiage Townhomes II Concept Plan
	11. Combined Written Correspondence-CutePDF
	12.Additional Correspondence

	40. Contract for HOME Rehab Project
	Council memo-2121 California Street
	Rehab Contract Jorgensen 2121 California - updated.final

	41. Assignment and Assumption-CV Properties 2
	1_Council Memo for 08-05-19
	2_Signed Assignment and Assumption Agreement
	3_Resolution Approving Assignment of Agreement

	42. HWY-1 District Site Plan Review
	1_Revised Rouse Development Site Plan staff report to CC on 08-05-19
	2_ZoningLocationMap
	3_Revised Site Plan
	4_Exterior Perspectives
	5_7-17-19 Planting Plan

	43. PC-2 Site Plan Review
	1_Gym Outbuilding  4 Site Plan Review Staff Report to CC on 08-05-19-FINAL
	2_ZoningLocationMap
	3_Overall Site Layout
	4_5582 - Viking Rd SE Building-6-14-19
	5_Building 4 Shell
	6_landscape plan 918 viking rd

	44. Downtown Brick Paver Order
	supply order 7-29-19
	Peter Melendy Park Concept (Snyder 6-20-2019)
	Midland Concrete Products
	CF - 2nd Street 080119

	45. Set Public Hearing - PS&E - Peter Melendy Park Renovation Project
	1. PS&amp;E Memo - Peter Melendy Park Renovation Project
	2. Estimate (2)-CutePDF

	46. Set Public Hearing - Strickler Properties, LC Economic Development Project
	1_Memo to Council Setting Date of Public Hearing 08-05-19-FINAL
	2_Resolution Setting Public Hearing-FINAL
	Notice of Public Hearing-FINAL

	47. Tax Increment Ordinance for Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Plan - Amendment No. 5
	1_Memo To Council Approving Ordinance on 8-5-19
	2_TIF Expansion Area Map
	3_Amend No. 5 Parcel - Ordinance (01596006x7F7E1)

	48. Allow Bills and Payroll of August 5, 2019
	Bottom

